BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, March 14, 2019
Early Learning Coalition Office
280 Hunt Park Cove, Suite 1020,
Longwood, FL 32750
8:30 a.m. to conclusion of business
I.

Call to Order
a. Determination of Quorum
b. Welcome and Introductions

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

II.

Consent Agenda Items
a. Acceptance of Agenda
b. Approval of BOD Meeting Minutes – December 13, 2018
c. Approval of Planning & Program Meeting Minutes-February 7, 2019
d. Approval of Finance Committee Meeting MinutesFebruary 13, 2019

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

III.

Action Items
a. MKA Independent Annual Audit Report
b. 2017-2019 School Readiness Plan - due by March 31, 2019
c. Organizational Chart Update
d. Internship for Grants and Communications
▪ Job description and Stipend

IV.

Cheyenne McGregor, Director of Grants
& Communications

Discussion Items

a. Revenue Generating Committee Update

1. Provider Appreciation Sponsorship Package
2. Stroller Donation

b. CCEP update

V.

W. Ed Moss, Jr., Moss Krusick & Assoc
Jennifer Grant, CEO

Informational Items
a. CEO Report
b. OPPAGA Studies
1. Research on Local Match Programs for School Readiness
2. Research on ELC Matching Funds
3. Research on CCEP
c. Legislative Update
d. Gubernatorial Appointments

Jennifer Grant, CEO
Cheyenne McGregor, Director Of
Grants & Communications

Jennifer Grant, CEO

Every Early Learning Coalition of Seminole Board of Directors’ or committee meeting invites public comment. We welcome the opportunity
as part of our continuing effort to improve our responsiveness to the needs of children, families and the community we support. To present
comment, interested parties complete a Public Comment Card available at the sign-in table and deliver to the Coalition’s Executive Director
in advance of the Call to Order and be present during the public comment period. All interested parties are asked to indicate whether the
comment is related to the business associated with the specific agenda before the Board/Committee or if the comment is intended for
consideration by the Board/Committee at a future meeting. All comments are limited to 3 minutes unless otherwise waived by majority action
of the members present.

Old Business
None

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

New Business
Next meeting: Strategic Planning Meeting - June 13, 2019 at 8:30 am

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

Public Comment

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

Adjourn

Adam Balls, Acting Chair

Every Early Learning Coalition of Seminole Board of Directors’ or committee meeting invites public comment. We welcome the opportunity
as part of our continuing effort to improve our responsiveness to the needs of children, families and the community we support. To present
comment, interested parties complete a Public Comment Card available at the sign-in table and deliver to the Coalition’s Executive Director
in advance of the Call to Order and be present during the public comment period. All interested parties are asked to indicate whether the
comment is related to the business associated with the specific agenda before the Board/Committee or if the comment is intended for
consideration by the Board/Committee at a future meeting. All comments are limited to 3 minutes unless otherwise waived by majority action
of the members present.

Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
December 13, 2018 at 8:30 am
280 Hunt Park Cove, Suite 1020
Longwood, FL 32750
Members Present: Jeff Anderson, Adam Balls, Dr. AnaLynn Jones, Traci Klinkbeil, Grant Knowlton,
Kimberly English
Via Conference Call: Kendra Cassell, Gay DeLaughter, Anne Masterson, Ryan Ridley
Members Absent: Jeff Bauer, Dr. Nana Robertson, Megan Elder, Heidi Jones, Lourdes Quintana, Susan
Mulligan
Coalition Staff:

Jennifer Grant, Kerri Alberts, Maryanne Miller, Cheyenne McGregor, Tonya Schadle, Karen
Milligan, Robin Hammons

Public Attendance: None
I.

Call to Order
Adam Balls called the meeting to order at 8:44 a.m. and introductions were made. It was
determined that quorum was met.

II.

Consent Agenda Items
a. Acceptance of Agenda
b. Approval of Nominating Committee Meeting Minutes-September 10, 2018
b. Approval of BOD Meeting Minutes – September 13, 2018
c. Approval of Planning & Program Meeting Minutes - November 8, 2018
d. Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - November 14, 2018
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda items as presented.
First motion: Grant Knowlton
Second Motion: Dr. AnaLynn Jones
Motion was unanimously approved

III.

Action Items
a. SR Eligibility Priorities- Corrected Version
Jennifer Grant presented the SR Eligibility Priorities, with a correction to the order of priority 3
and 4, as outlined in the handout.
Motion was made to accept the corrected version of the SR Eligibility Priorities as presented.
First Motion: Dr. AnaLynn Jones
Second Motion: Ryan Ridley
Motion was unanimously approved
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b. Holiday Closures
Jennifer Grant presented a proposal for a holiday schedule as outlined in the handout. This is
in alignment with other coalitions. Acting Chair Adam Balls commented on the phones being
covered for emergency purposes and provider calls.
Motion to approve the Holiday Closure as presented:
First Motion: Grant Knowlton
Second Motion: Traci Klinkbeil
Motion was unanimously approved
c. Salary Adjustments
Jennifer Grant presented the cost of living salary adjustments as outlined in the handout.
Member Kimberly English commented on a raise for the providers versus a raise for the
Coalition employees.
Motion for Salary Adjustments to be approved as proposed:
First Motion: Dr. Analynn Jones
Second Motion: Grant Knowlton
Motion was approved by majority: Ayes: 9
Nay: 1
d. Resolution to Relocate Safe Deposit Box:
Jennifer Grant presented a resolution to relocate the safe deposit box to a local Wells Fargo
Branch in Longwood. Wells Fargo requires a Board approved resolution to close the current
safe deposit box. The new branch would charge $125. to open a new safe deposit box.
Member Jeff Anderson and Acting Chair Adam Balls commented on the fee charged and
requested another attempt to waive the fee prior to relocating the safe deposit box.
First Motion: Grant Knowlton
Second Motion: Jeff Anderson
Motion was unanimously approved.
e. CEO Performance Evaluation
The CEO Performance Evaluation was presented by Acting Chair Adam Balls. The evaluation
comments from the Executive Committee were discussed. A recommendation to develop a
new evaluation process to measure performance throughout the year, was presented by
Treasurer Grant Knowlton.
Motion to accept the CEO Performance Evaluation as presented:
First Motion: Grant Knowlton
Second Motion: Dr. Analynn Jones
Motion was unanimously approved
IV.

Discussion Items

a. Community Needs Assessment
Jennifer Grant discussed the Community Needs Assessment as presented in the handouts. The 4C
Head Start program provided the Community Assessment Update 2018 and the 4c-FL 2017
Community Assessment. The assessment is now required by law to be included in the SR Coalition
Plan and OEL approved the use of the head start program data.
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V.

Informational Items
a. CEO Report - Jennifer Grant provided a detailed report as outlined in the handout.
b. Coalition Plan Amendments Update – Jennifer Grant informed the Board members that the
Coalition is in the process of updating the SR Coalition Plan and have been approved for an
extension to March 31, 2019.
c. OEL Professional Development Grant – Jennifer Grant informed the Board that OEL had
written a grant to the federal government for a three-year grant that includes the projects
outlined on the handout.
d. Gubernatorial Appointments - Jennifer Grant stated that we were advertising for the
Gubernatorial Appointments on the Board of Directors, and asked Board members if they were
aware of other interested parties.

VI.

Old Business
None

VII.

New Business
Adam Balls stated the next meeting would be on March 14, 2019.

VIII.

Public Comment
None

IX.

Adjournment
Adam Balls adjourned the meeting at 9:59 a.m.

Minutes prepared by:

Minutes approved by:

Karen Milligan
Executive Assistant

Adam Balls, Acting Chair
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Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
Planning & Program Meeting Minutes
February 7, 2019
280 Hunt Park Cove, Suite 1020
Longwood, FL 32750
Members Present: Grant Knowlton, Dr. Nana Robertson, Lourdes Quintana, Dr. AnaLynn Jones
Via Conference Call: Gay DeLaughter, Anne Masterson
Members Absent: None
Coalition Staff: Jennifer Grant, Maryanne Miller, Tonya Schadle, Karen Milligan, Robin Hammons
Public Attendance:
I.

Call to Order
Dr. Nana Robertson called the meeting to order at 9:37 a.m. and introductions were made. It was
determined that quorum was met.

II.

Consent Agenda Items
1. Acceptance of Agenda
2. ELC_Seminole_17-19_SR_Plan_OEL-SR 115_Revised_due by March 31, 2019:
Jennifer presented the SR Plan revisions to the members as outlined in the handout. The
Coalition is mandated to make changes to the SR Plan due to changes in law. Other
amendments were made to better align components with what is being affected by law.
Grant Knowlton and Dr. Nana Robertson commented on processes and language for Class I
Violation Revocations.
Motion to approve the SR Plan Revisions and present to the Board on March 13, 2019:
First Motion to approve: Gay DeLaughter
Second Motion to approve: Grant Knowlton
Motion approved unanimously

III.

Discussion Items
1. Department Updates:
EFS Mod and VPK reconciliation updates were provided by Jennifer Grant and Maryanne
Miller:
• A deadline of twenty days has been issued by OEL for providers to mark the
attendance for VPK reconciliation and submit to the Coalition.
• Tickets are still being worked by OEL to correct the system issues.
• SR Attendance testing has not been rolled out yet and many variables exist.
• SR Contracts are not updated in the system for next year, which may cause issues
for families for next year.
• The SR waiting list has been worked and the last group of families is being invited in
to complete the process. Families have expressed that the message sent to them is
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not clear and many do not understand the next steps. Emails were discussed as
another alternative method to reach out to parents to extend an invitation.
• Manual work is still needed to complete reconciliation.
PFP and MMCI updates were provided by Tonya Schadle:
• School Readiness Teacher Training began in January.
• Pre-K teachers received training in the course ‘Inclusion in a Preschool Setting’.
• Infant/Toddler teachers received training in early intervention with infant/toddlers.
• MMCI has several cohorts taking place currently.
• Approximately 125 people are receiving training.
IV.

New Business
Jennifer Grant announced the new staff members:
• Stephanie Miller as a Classroom Assessment Specialist
• Luz Decherniss as the AP/Reimbursement Specialist
Dr. Nana Robertson stated the next meeting would be on May 9, 2019.

V.

Public Comment
There was none.

VIII.

Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 10:42 a.m.
First motion: Dr. AnaLynn Jones
Second motion: Grant Knowlton

Minutes prepared by:

Minutes approved by:

Karen Milligan
Executive Assistant

Adam Balls, Acting Chair
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Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
February 13, 2019
280 Hunt Park Cove, Suite 1020
Longwood, FL 32750
Members Present: Grant Knowlton
Via Conference Call: Ryan Ridley, Traci Klinkbeil
Members Absent: Dr. Analynn Jones
Coalition Staff: Jennifer Grant, Mohammad Khan, Robin Hammons, Cheyenne McGregor
Public Attendance: None
I.

Call to Order
Grant Knowlton called the meeting to order at 3:09 p.m. and introductions were made. It was
determined that quorum was met.

II.

Consent Agenda Items
Acceptance of Agenda as presented:
First motion to approve: Ryan Ridley
Second motion to approve: Traci Klinkbeil
Motion was unanimously approved

III.

Action Items
a. Internship: Grants and Communications
• Job Description and Stipend:
Cheyenne McGregor presented the Intern job description as outlined in the handout. This
position would assist the Grants and Communications Department, due to an increased
need for communication with providers and several upcoming grants with similar
deadlines. The higher level of work to be performed would be justified by a stipend.
Motion to approve the intern position with stipend:
First motion to approve: Ryan Ridley
Second motion to approve: Traci Klinkbeil
Motion was unanimously approved

IV.

Informational Items
a., b. Mohammad O. Khan stated the August thru September 2018 Bank Reconciliations and
August thru September 2018 Credit Card Statements have been uploaded to the ShareFile portal
for review.
c., d. SR and VPK Provider Payments: Mohammad O. Khan commented on the EFS
Modernization tickets and the issues that continue to surround the provider payments. The
payment totals are reflected below for the time frame of July – December 2018:
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• SR Provider Payments: $3,799,000.
• VPK Provider Payments: $4,795,000.

e. OEL Fiscal Monitoring: Jennifer Grant provided an update on the fiscal monitoring and the
findings from the accounting firm contracted by OEL.
f. EFS Modernization Update: Jennifer Grant provided an update on the EFS Modernization
system and that OEL continues to work on the tickets. VPK attendance is beginning to be input
into the system for reconciliation.
g. New Staff Member- Stephanie Miller has been hired as the Classroom Assessment Specialist.
V.

New Business
Grant Knowlton stated the next meeting would be on Wednesday, May 15, 2019 at 3:00 p.m.

VI.

Public Comment
None

VIII.

Adjourn
Grant Knowlton adjourned the meeting at 3:54 p.m.

Minutes prepared by:

Minutes approved by:

Karen Milligan
Executive Assistant

Adam Balls, Acting Chair
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March 14, 2019
To the Board of Directors
The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
Longwood, Florida
We have audited the financial statements of The Seminole County Coalition for School
Readiness, Inc. d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole (the “Coalition”) for the year
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated March 14, 2019.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
letter to you dated April 2, 2018. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting
policies. The significant accounting policies used by the Coalition are described in Note
A to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2018. We noted no transactions
entered into by the Coalition during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:
Management’s estimates to allocate functional expenses between
programs. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the allocations in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing
and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition,
none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

To the Board of Directors
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Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated March 14, 2019.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Coalition’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Coalition’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our retention.
Other Matters
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors and management of The Seminole
County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc. and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC
Winter Park, Florida
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors of
The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
Longwood, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Seminole County
Coalition for School Readiness, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), d/b/a Early Learning
Coalition of Seminole, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2018, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness,
Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
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Other Matters
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor
General, and special audit guidance provided by the Office of Early Learning, is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14,
2019, on our consideration of The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of The Seminole County Coalition for School
Readiness, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Seminole
County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC
Winter Park, Florida
March 14, 2019
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Advances to providers
Total current assets

$

104,276
1,377,141
30,663
244,304

$

1,756,384

$

1,639,025
65,958
34,447

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

1,739,430

Unrestricted net assets

16,954

Total liabilities and net assets

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES AND SUPPORT
Government Grants:
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten
School Readiness
Matching revenue
Other income

$

Total revenues and support

9,821,694
9,034,664
439,706
75,625
19,371,689

EXPENSES
Program services:
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten
School Readiness
Other

9,615,378
8,606,708
493,625

Total program services

18,715,711

Support services:
Management and general

640,383

Total expenses

19,356,094

Change in net assets

15,595

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

1,359

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Program Services
School

Voluntary PreKindergarten
Direct provider support
Salaries and benefits
Professional fees
Matching provider support
Mini grants
Rent expense
Office expense
Equipment
Travel and conferences
Insurance
Membership and subscriptions
Postage and printing

Total expenses

Readiness

Management

Other

Total

and general

Total

$

9,423,065
160,094
5,973
15,993
7,089
1,711
502
717
28
206

$

7,216,564
670,274
271,973
299,773
67,020
34,577
34,568
7,636
3,116
394
813

$

18,048
11,983
109,082
329,693
7,536
4,444
11,905
7
397
505
25

$

16,657,677
842,351
387,028
329,693
307,309
87,457
53,571
36,286
8,535
3,833
927
1,044

$

446,715
93,162
500
20,319
43,212
9,943
13,980
7,158
5,145
249

$

16,657,677
1,289,066
480,190
329,693
307,809
107,776
96,783
46,229
22,515
10,991
6,072
1,293

$

9,615,378

$

8,606,708

$

493,625

$

18,715,711

$

640,383

$

19,356,094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net
assets to net cash used in operating activities:
Increase in assets:
Grants receivable
Advances to providers
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities

$

15,595

(501,208)
(244,304)
(3,089)
589,190
(53,959)

Net cash used in operating activities

(197,775)

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

302,051
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Organization and nature of operations
The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc. (the “Coalition”), d/b/a Early
Learning Coalition of Seminole, is a Florida not-for-profit corporation. The Coalition is
authorized to implement the provisions of the “School Readiness Act” in Seminole County,
Florida. The Coalition’s mission is to promote high quality school readiness services and after
school care through community-responsive policy guidance and program outcome oversight.
Led by a board of community leaders, the Coalition’s priority is to ensure that all eligible
children, birth through five years of age, in Seminole County are afforded the opportunity for
developmentally appropriate learning experiences leading to enhanced academic success, as
funding permits, and to support the economic self-sufficiency of low income families in need of
before and after school care.
2. Basis of accounting and financial statement presentation
The accompanying financial statements and accompanying schedule have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America and include all funds and activities over which the Board of
Directors of the Coalition has oversight and financial responsibility.
The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets. A description of the three net asset categories follows:
Unrestricted – net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Temporarily restricted – net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met by actions of the Coalition and/or passage of time.
Permanently restricted – net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the Coalition.
Revenues from financial assistance programs are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets because the related restrictions are satisfied in the period in which the support is
recognized.
3. Use of estimates in the financial statements
The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
4. Income taxes
The Coalition is exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and has been granted treatment as a publicly supported organization and not
as a private foundation by the Internal Revenue Service.
Management has analyzed the Coalition’s various federal and state filing positions and
believes that its income tax filing positions and deductions are well documented and
supported, and that no accruals for tax liabilities are necessary. Therefore, no reserves for
uncertain income tax positions have been recorded. The Coalition remains subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service for the years ended June 30, 2016 through June
30, 2018.
5. Cash and equivalents
The Coalition considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The Coalition maintains its cash deposits accounts in banks
which participate in the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Program. Balances are
insured up to $250,000. At June 30, 2018, the Coalition had no accounts in excess of federally
insured limits.
6. Donated services, materials and facilities
Donated services, materials and facilities that are measurable are recorded as support at their
fair market values at the date of receipt by the Coalition. As of June 30, 2018, the Coalition did
not receive any donated services, materials and facilities.
7. Grants receivable
Grants receivable at June 30, 2018, consisted of amounts due from state and local agencies
and were recorded when services were provided. The Coalition’s receivables as of June 30,
2018, are due in less than one year and are considered fully collectible.
8. Revenue recognition
The Coalition receives funding through grants and contract revenue from federal, state, county
and city agencies. Revenues are earned as allowable grant costs are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
9. Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue represents grant revenues collected but not yet earned as of June 30, 2018.
Revenues from grant proceeds are not recognized until expended.
10. Functional allocation of expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited.
11. Recent accounting pronouncements
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases, that requires lessees to put most leases on
their balance sheets and recognize expenses on their income statements in a manner similar
to today’s capital lease accounting. The guidance also eliminates today’s real estate specific
provisions for all entities. For lessors, the guidance modifies the classification criteria for
accounting for sales-type and direct financing leases. The new guidance is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Coalition is
evaluating the potential effects ASU 2016-02 will have on its financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-forProfit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities,
which is designed to help not-for-profits tell their stories through their financial statements. Notfor-profit financial statements have been prepared under the FASB's current guidance since
1993. The new standard changes presentation and disclosure requirements with the intention
of helping not-for-profits provide more relevant information about their resources—and the
changes in those resources—to donors, grantors, creditors, and other financial statement
users. Specifically, ASU 2016-14 decreases the number of net asset classes from three to
two, requires disclosure of qualitative information on liquid resources and liquidity risks for
meeting cash needs for general expenses within one year, requires reporting and analysis of
expenses by function and nature, and enhances reporting and disclosures about underwater
endowments. The new net asset classes will be net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions. The standard will take effect for annual financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and early application of the
standard is permitted. The Coalition is currently assessing the impact the new standard will
have on its financial statements.
The FASB recently issued new accounting pronouncement on revenue recognition, which is
effective beginning in 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Coalition is evaluating the impact
of the new pronouncement on its financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
12. Subsequent events
Management has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial
statements and has concluded that there are no subsequent events that would require
disclosure through the date these financial statements were available to be issued on March
14, 2019.
NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS
1. Economic dependency
The Coalition received substantially all of its revenue from federal and state contracts during
the year ended June 30, 2018. The continuance of state and federal funding is subject to
annual legislative budgetary review.
2. Concentration of credit risk
The activities of the Coalition are conducted in Seminole County, Florida and are supported by
funding provided by government agencies. Expenditures incurred by the Coalition associated
with the execution of various grants are subject to audit and possible disallowance by the
grantor agency. The Coalition would be held responsible for recovery (reimbursement to the
grantor agency) of disallowed amounts. Management believes that if audited, any adjustment
for disallowed expenses would be immaterial in amount.
NOTE C – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As mandated by Chapter 1002, Part VI School Readiness and 1002.83 Early Learning Coalitions,
certain members of the Coalition’s Board are affiliated with the School Board of Seminole County
(an early care and learning provider) and Seminole State College of Florida, with whom the
Coalition performs services, considering them a related party. During the year ended June 30,
2018, the Coalition made payments to, had an outstanding payable, and receivable balance with
the related parties as follows:
Payments made:
School Board of Seminole County
Seminole State College of Florida
Total payments:
Payables at year end:
Seminole State College of Florida
School Board of Seminole County
Total payables:
10

$

54,334
30,780

$

85,114

$

7,987
4,397

$

12,384
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE C – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Receivables at year end:
School Board of Seminole County

$

1,545

Effective July 1, 2010, the Florida Legislature mandated that all board members of Early Learning
Coalitions shall be considered eligible to vote on all matters, subject to the restrictions for related
party transactions imposed on all board members by the By-Laws of the Coalition for related party
transactions.
NOTE D – STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS DATA
The Coalition has reconciled its financial records to the statewide School Readiness data and
reporting system on a monthly basis. This reconciliation was performed in a timely and satisfactory
manner.
NOTE E – LEASES AND COMMITMENTS
The Coalition has one non-cancelable operating lease agreement for the rental of office space,
which expires on December 31, 2022. The future minimum lease payments are as follows:
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

78,823
80,298
81,810
83,360

Total

$

324,291

Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, totaled $107,776 which is included in rent
expense on the Statement of Functional Expenses.
NOTE F – QUALIFIED RETIREMENT PLAN
The Coalition established a qualified retirement plan effective January 2006, for all qualifying
employees. All regular full time employees that have worked a minimum of 1,000 regular paid
hours are eligible to participate in the plan. The Coalition will contribute 3% of the employee’s
salary plus an additional 3% of the employee’s salary in matching funds pro-rated for any salary
adjustments occurring between deposits in the plan. The Coalition provided $26,202 for matching
contributions and retirement benefits to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2018. Employees are
immediately vested in their contributions and the matching contributions.
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE G – CALCULATION OF MAXIMUM ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The following compares administrative expenses incurred to expenses subject to the maximum
5% and 4% administrative expenses for the School Readiness program and Voluntary PreKindergarten program, respectively, allowed by the Florida Office of Early Learning (“FOEL”):
School
Readiness
Total administrative expenses subject
to 5% and 4% maximum

$

387,542

Maximum 5% and 4% administrative
expenses allowable per FOEL
Administrative expenses
under maximum

Voluntary
Pre-Kindergarten
$

410,944
$

(23,402)

374,128

Total
$

376,923
$

761,670
787,867

(2,795) $

(26,197)

NOTE H – SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance follows the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which is a different basis of accounting as that used in the preparation
of the financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Florida Office of Early
Learning, the pass-through entity for the programs, approved reimbursement of fiscal 2017-2018
expense amounts against the Coalition’s 2016-2017 grant award. Accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require recognition of the expenditures in the period
incurred and recognition of the corresponding reimbursement once the amount is earned and
collection is certain. Reconciliations of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance to federal and state expenditures included in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets is as follows:
Federal expenditures – schedule of federal awards and state
financial assistance
Expenditures / reimbursements from the State of Florida General
Revenue Fund recognized in School Readiness services
Expenditures / reimbursements from 2016-2017 grant award
recognized in the 2017-2018 financial statements
Total federal expenditures

$ 8,393,160
30,054
611,450
9,034,664

State expenditures – schedule of federal awards and state
financial assistance
Expenditures / reimbursements from the State of Florida General
Revenue Fund recognized in School Readiness services
Total state expenditures

9,851,748
(30,054)
9,821,694

Federal and state expenditures – statement of activities
and changes in net assets
12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Board of Directors of
The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
Longwood, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of
activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 14, 2019.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The
Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.’s (the Coalition), internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Coalition’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Coalition’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC
Winter Park, Florida
March 14, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
CHAPTER 10.650, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
To the Board of Directors of
The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
Longwood, Florida
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project
We have audited The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.’s (the
Coalition), d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement, and the
requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects
Compliance Supplement, and special audit guidance provided by the Office of Early
Learning that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Coalition’s major
federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Coalition’s
major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations,
and the terms and conditions of its federal awards and state financial assistance
applicable to its federal programs and state projects.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Coalition’s
major federal programs and state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General and
special audit guidance provided by the Office of Early Learning. Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
or state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Coalition’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the Coalition’s compliance.

15

DRAFT
03/05/2019
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project
In our opinion, the Coalition complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and
state projects for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the Coalition is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Coalition’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program and state project
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and state project and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state
project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General and special audit guidance
provided by the Office of Early Learning. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC
Winter Park, Florida
March 14, 2019
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
June 30, 2018
Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
1. Type of auditors’ report issued:

Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

None reported

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

No

No

Federal Awards
1. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Unmodified

2. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

None reported

3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

No

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs

$750,000

5. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Yes

No

Identifications of major programs:
Name of Federal Programs
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Child Care and Development Fund Cluster
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (continued)
June 30, 2018
Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results (continued)
State Financial Assistance
1. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
major projects:

Unmodified

2. Internal control over major projects:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

None reported

3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with the Florida Single Audit Act and
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General

No

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B projects

$300,000

No

Identification of major projects:
Name of State Projects
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program

CSFA Number
48.108

Section II – Enhanced Fields System (EFS) monthly reconciliation
1. EFS reconciled monthly

Yes

2. Processes in place to identify and correct errors during
monthly reconciliations to EFS

Yes

3. Coalition’s financial records reconcile and agree to EFS
records as of program year ended, June 30, 2018

Yes

4. Audit work papers documenting verification of
reconciliations available to OEL staff

Yes

Section III – Financial Statement Findings
No current year findings (no corrective action plan or management letter required.)
Section IV – Federal Award and State Programs Findings and Questioned Costs
None reported (no corrective action plan or management letter required.)
Section V – Status of Prior year audit Findings
There were no prior year audit findings.
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The Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness, Inc.
d/b/a Early Learning Coalition of Seminole

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Grantor/Program Title

CFDA
CSFA

Award
Number

93.575

SR468

93.596

SR468

Expenditures

Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Florida's Office of Early Learning
CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds
of the Child Care and Development Fund

$

1,809,652
3,823,915

Total Child Care Development Fund Cluster

5,633,567

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

93.558

SR468

2,580,038

Performance Funding Project

93.575

PP468

163,470

Social Services Block Grant

93.667

SR468

16,085

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

$

8,393,160

$

9,821,694

State Financial Assistance:
State of Florida Department of Education
Passed through Florida's Office of Early Learning
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program

48.108

SV468/OA468

State General Revenue Unrestricted 2017-2018

-

2017-18 SGU

30,054

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

$

9,851,748

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

$

18,244,908

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), State of Florida Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General , and the Department of Financial Services' State Projects Compliance Supplement.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.
Indirect Cost Rates
The Coalition has elected to not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for its federal programs and state
projects for the year ended June 30, 2018. The indirect cost rates used on the Coalition's federal programs and
state projects are determined by the relevant federal or state agency.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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Coalition Identification and Information
Coalition Name:
Address:
Phone:
E-mail Address:

Seminole County Coalition for School Readiness Inc
DBA Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
280 Hunt Park Cv, Suite 1020
Longwood, FL 32750
407.960.2461
jgrant@seminoleearlylearning.org

Chair
Jeffrey Bauer

Executive Director or Chief
Executive Officer
Jennifer Grant
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Form OEL-SR 115 (October, 2018)
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FEIN #:

59-3664594

Mailing Address
(if different)
Fax:

407.960.2489

Director of Finance

Counties Represented

Mohammad O. Khan

Seminole

I. COALITION OPERATIONS
A. Membership
Please complete the Coalition Membership Form.

Early Coalition of Seminole
Approved as of September 06, 2017
Count
or
N/A

Designation in
F.S. 1002.83(3)
and (4)

Voting
Member

Chair, appointed by
the Governor

Yes

Private sector
appointed by the
Governor

Yes

Private sector
appointed by the
Governor
Department of
Children & Family
Services circuit
administrator or
designee

Name
Address
Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Affiliation and/or
Employment

For multi-county
coalitions,
indicate the
county the
member
represents

Date
Appointed

Length of
Current
Term and
Date it Will
End

Term

December
2017

Jeffrey Bauer
s. 119.071 (4) (d); Exempt employee
jeffreybauer@aol.com
Pending Appointment
Application Submitted to GO

1-Private Sector

N/A

December
2013

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2nd
4-Year
Term
N/A

Yes

Pending Appointment
Application Submitted to GO

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yes

Traci Klinkbeil
375 Commerce Parkway,
Suite 202
Rockledge, FL 32955
(407) 409-0050
Traci.Klinkbeil@myflfamilies.com

County Department
of Children and
Families

N/A

June 2015

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced
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Early Coalition of Seminole
Approved as of September 06, 2017
Count
or
N/A

Designation in
F.S. 1002.83(3)
and (4)

Voting
Member

Name
Address
Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Affiliation and/or
Employment

For multi-county
coalitions,
indicate the
county the
member
represents

Date
Appointed

Length of
Current
Term and
Date it Will
End

Term

District
superintendent of
schools or designee

Yes

AnaLynn Jones
239 Rinehart Road
Lake Mary, FL 32746
(407) 320-9416
(407) 320-0293

County School
District

N/A

October
2015

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

Regional workforce
board executive
director or designee

Yes

Regional Workforce
Board

N/A

September
2015

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

County health
department
director or designee

Yes

County Health
Department

N/A

June 2012

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

President of a
Florida College
System institution
or his or her
permanent designee

Yes

Seminole State
College

N/A

January 2008

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

Member appointed
by Board of
County
Commissioners or
the governing
board of a
municipality

Yes

Ryan Ridley (Vice Chair)
CareerSource Seminole County
2884 S. Orlando Drive
Sanford, FL 32773
(407) 531-1223 ext. 4749
RRidley@careersourecf.com
Susan Mulligan
400 West Airport Blvd.
Sanford, FL 32773
(407) 665-3334
(407) 665-3385 Fax
Susan_mulligan@doh.state.fl.us
Nana Robertson
100 Weldon Boulevard
Sanford, FL 32773
(407) 708-2674
(407) 708-2350 Fax
RobertsN@seminolestate.edu
Kendra Cassell
185 Hidden Woods Cove
Altamonte Springs, FL 32701
(407) 370-9030
kcassell@edwardsconstruction.com
Private Sector Appointed by Board of
County Commission

Board of County
Commission or
Municipal Governing
Board

N/A

January 2009

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

Head Start Director

Yes

Gay DeLaughter
3500 West Colonial Drive
Orlando, FL 32808
(407) 532-4365

Head Start

N/A

August 2012

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

Page 6 of 21

Office of Early Learning
Early Learning Coalition School Readiness Plan Guide and Template

Early Coalition of Seminole
Approved as of September 06, 2017
Count
or
N/A

Designation in
F.S. 1002.83(3)
and (4)

Voting
Member

Name
Address
Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Affiliation and/or
Employment

For multi-county
coalitions,
indicate the
county the
member
represents

Date
Appointed

Length of
Current
Term and
Date it Will
End

Term

(407) 445-7366 Fax
gdelaughter@4corlando.org
gdelaughter@4cflorida.org
Representative of
private for-profit
child care providers

Yes

Frank Taylor
Kid City USA – Lake Mary
289 Seminole Avenue
Lake Mary, FL 32746
(407) 323-1221

For-Profit

N/A

November
2014

November
2018

September
2022

September
2022

1st
4-Year
Term

buildingleadersforsuccess@gmail.com

Representative of
faith based child
care providers

Yes

Representative of
program under
federal Individuals
with Disabilities
Education Act

Yes

Children services
council or juvenile
welfare board chair

Yes, if
applicable

Kimberly English
Rising Kids Academy
1455 South 17-92
Longwood, FL 32750
(407) 695-1602
Risingstarofapopka@gmail.com
Anne Masterson
Early Childhood Center-First United
Methodist
263 King St
Oviedo, FL 32765
(407) 365-3702
jarkmasterson@bellsouth.net
Lourdes Quintana
Early Steps Program
The Developmental Center
601 West Michigan Street
Orlando, FL 32805
(407) 317-7430
(407) 648-4150 Fax
Lourdes.Quintana@orlandohealth.com
NOT APPLICABLE

Non-For-Profit

N/A

May 2015

May 2019

1st
4-Year
Term

Developmental
Center for Infants
and Children
Director, Orlando
Early Steps

N/A

February
2017

Seated Until
Replaced

Seated
Until
Replaced

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Early Coalition of Seminole
Approved as of September 06, 2017
Count
or
N/A

Designation in
F.S. 1002.83(3)
and (4)

Voting
Member

Name
Address
Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Affiliation and/or
Employment

For multi-county
coalitions,
indicate the
county the
member
represents

Date
Appointed

Length of
Current
Term and
Date it Will
End

Term

or executive
director
Child care licensing
agency head

Yes, if
applicable

NOT APPLICABLE

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Central agency
administrator

Yes, if
applicable

NOT APPLICABLE

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Private Sector
Business

Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation
Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation

Megan Elder
First Step Therapy
417 S Netherwood Cres
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714
(407) 925-5623
Megclaire4ot@gmail.com
Heidi Jones
Chase
600 Business Center Drive
Lake Mary, FL 32746
(407) 771-0662
(407) 218-5270 Fax
heidi.jones@chase.com
Jeff Anderson
HD Realty
1499 State Road 434 West
Longwood, FL32750
(407) 260-8800
(407) 260-2581 Fax
jeffanderson@hdrealty.com
Adam Balls, Vice Chair Acting Chair
Private Sector Business
World Risk Management
20 North Orange Avenue,
Suite 500
Orlando, FL 32801
(321) 445-9668 (513) 939-9142

2-Private Sector

N/A

March 2017

March 2021

1st
4 – Year
Term

3-Private Sector

N/A

December
2016

December
2020

1st
4-Year
Term

4-Private Sector

N/A

March 2013

March 2017

March 2017

March 2021

2nd
4-Year
Term

September
2014

September
2018

1st

September
2018

September
2022

2nd
4-Year
Term

Private Sector
Business

Private Sector
Business

Private Sector
Business

Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation
Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation

5- Private Sector
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Early Coalition of Seminole
Approved as of September 06, 2017
Count
or
N/A

Designation in
F.S. 1002.83(3)
and (4)

Voting
Member

Name
Address
Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Private Sector
Business

Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation

Private Sector
Business

Yes, if needed to
meet private
sector
percentage or
multi-county
representation

Affiliation and/or
Employment

(407) 445-2868
Adam_Balls@wrmllc.com
Grant Knowlton
Lakefront Counseling &
Communications
118 Lakeside Circle
Sanford, FL 32773
(407) 314-6687
gwknowlton@yahoo.com

6- Private Sector

For multi-county
coalitions,
indicate the
county the
member
represents

N/A

Early Coalition of Seminole Membership Management
Approved as of September 06, 2017
I.
II.
III.
IV.

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP : 16
TOTAL PRIVATE SECTOR MEMBERSHIP: 6, PRIVATE SECTOR PERCENTAGE: 38%
TOTAL NON-VOTING EX OFFICIO MEMBERSHIP: 0
NUMBER OF VACANCIES IN REQUIRED POSITIONS: 2

B. Business Organization
Refer to Attachment I.B. (Updated Organizational Chart is included)

C. Articles of Incorporation
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Date
Appointed

September
2016

Length of
Current
Term and
Date it Will
End

December
2020

Term

1st
4-Year
Term
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Refer to Attachment I.C.
N/A

D. Bylaws
Refer to Attachment I.D.

E. Coalition Fiscal Agent Contract (if applicable)
Refer to Attachment I.E.
N/A

F. Procurement
Refer to Attachment I.F.

G. Tangible Personal Property Maintenance
Refer to Attachment I.G.

H. Records Maintenance
Refer to Attachment I.H.

I. Information Technology Security Controls
Refer to Attachment I.I.
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J. Disbursement Controls
Refer to Attachment I.J.

II. IMPLEMENTATION
A. Minimum Children to be Served by Care Level
Please fill out the Minimum Children to be Served by Care Level Form by running EFS Ad Hoc Report CC085 .
Care Code
(INF)
(TOD)
(2YR)
(PR3)
(PR4)
(PR5)
(SCH)
(SPCR)

Description
<12 MTH
12<24 MTH
24 <36 MTH
36 <48 MTH
48 <60 MTH
60 <72 MTH Not In School
In School
Special Needs

Refer to Attachment II.A.

B. School Readiness Application and Waiting List Procedures
Refer to Attachment II.B.

C. Eligibility and Enrollment Policies and Procedures
Refer to Attachment II.C.1. and II.C.2.
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Coalition Local Priorities
Describe the data source used to conduct the community assessment:
Data sources used to conduct the community assessment:
•
•

2017 Head Start/Early Head Start Community Assessment
Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
Community Assessment Update 2018
HeadStart/Early Head Start/Early Head Start CCP

Priority
Number
Priority
Economically
disadvantaged
children
until eligibile to enter Kg.
3

4

Children birth to Kg whose parents are transitioning from temporary
cash assistance work program to employment

5

Children with special needs and current IEPs from age 3 until eligibile
to enter Kg.

6

At-risk children at least 9 but younger than 13.

7

Children younger than 13 whose parents are transitioning from
temporary cash assistance work program to employment.

8

Economically disadvantaged children younger than 13.

9

Children concurrently enrolled in Head Start and VPK, regardless of
priorities 1-4.
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Describe how community needs are addressed.
Per the 2015 Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) 16.1%
of children ages 0-17 in Seminole County live in poverty. Financial
assistance with the cost of child care allows families to keep much
needed income.
Based on survey results most parents feel that low wages and the
availability of jobs are a very serious problem. Child care assistance will
allow parents of young children to seek employment while the children
are receiving quality early education.
In 2015-2016, 8% of SCPS children with IEPs were preschool children
between ages 3 and 5. SR services will support early intervention for
these children at risk of school failure.
Children at risk of abuse, neglect, domestic violence and homelessness
are also at risk of school failure. Financial assistance with the cost of
child care allows children to be in safe and nurturing environments
during out of school time and eases financial stress.
Based on survey results most parents feel that low wages and the
availability of jobs are a very serious problem. Financial assistance with
the cost of child care allows children to be in safe and nurturing
environments during out of school time and eases financial stress.
Per the 2015 Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) 16.1%
of children ages 0-17 in Seminole County live in poverty. Financial
assistance with the cost of child care allows families to keep much
needed income.
The 2018 Community Assessment indicated that minimum wage
($8.55/hr) employees must work more than 96 hours per week to afford
a two-bedroom home. Families concurrently enrolled may still need
additional financial support to cover child care while working.

Office of Early Learning
Early Learning Coalition School Readiness Plan Guide and Template

D. Parent Access and Choice
Refer to Attachment II.D.

E. Sliding Fee Scale and Fee Waiver Policies
Refer to Attachment II.E.

F. Child Screenings
Refer to Attachment II.F.

G. Program Assessment
Refer to Attachment II.G.

H. Use of Observation-Based Child Assessments
What assessment tool/tools are used for child assessments?
The Coalition uses Teaching Strategies Gold (TSG) to perform pre and post tests. The objective is to determine the degree to which TSG post-test
scores are predictive of Kindergarten readiness and to engage as many volunteer participants as possible in the TSG assessment strategies.

How does the coalition solicit voluntary participation?
Refer to Attachment II.H.

N/A
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I. Provider Payment Rates
Please complete the Provider Payment Rate Schedule Form and attach the coalition’s procedures for implementing the provider rates as
Attachment II.I.
Coalition Gold Seal Rate 15.38% (possibly subject to change)

Level
1
2
3
4
5

If Applicable, In Addition to the State Approved Quality Rate, the Coalition Quality Improvement Rate
Percent

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective 01/01/2018)

CARE CODE

Description

(INF)
(TOD)
(2YR)
(PR3)
(PR4)
(PR5)
(SCH)

<12 MTH

(SPCR)

Special Needs

12<24 MTH
24 <36 MTH
36 <48 MTH
48 <60 MTH
60 <72 MTH
In School

Licensed or
Exempt
Centers and
Public/NonPublic Schools

32.31
27.37
25.89
25.51
24.71
24.52
21.55

Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)
Licensed
Gold Seal
Gold Seal
Registered
Gold Seal
Differential Family Child
Differential
Family
Differential
Care Homes
Child Care
Homes
6.46
5.47
5.18
5.10
4.94
4.90
4.31

25.42
22.15
22.15
22.00
21.42
21.42
19.44

Page 14 of 21

20.33
20.33
20.33
20.16
20.16
20.16
17.94

Informal
Providers

9.00
8.50
8.50
8.50
10.00
10.00
7.50
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CARE CODE

(INF)
(TOD)
(2YR)
(PR3)
(PR4)
(PR5)
(SCH)
(SPCR)

Description
<12 MTH
12<24 MTH
24 <36 MTH
36 <48 MTH
48 <60 MTH
60 <72 MTH
In School

Licensed or
Exempt
Centers and
Public/NonPublic Schools

20.33
17.94
17.04
16.58
16.54
16.54
13.28

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)
Licensed
Gold Seal
Gold
Registered
Gold Seal
Differential Family Child
Seal
Family
Differential
Care
Differential
Child Care
Homes
Homes
4.07
3.59
3.41
3.32
3.31
3.31
2.66

17.94
15.76
15.50
15.25
15.25
15.25
11.96

15.48
15.48
14.87
14.87
14.82
14.82
10.76

Informal
Providers

6.20
6.20
5.50
5.00
7.50
7.50

Special Needs

J. Contracted Slots
Please describe the coalition’s use of contracted slots based on the community assessment and attach supporting documentation as
Attachment II.J:

N/A

III. QUALITY ACTIVITIES AND SERVICES
A. Child Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) and School-Aged Care
Describe the quality activities and services the coalition will implement to enhance child care resource and referral and school-age care.
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In an effort to provide a more efficient intake process for the families, the ELC of Seminole will continue to implement a crosstrained
based workflow among: Eligibility Specialists, CCR&R and Inclusion.
The Coalition’s website provides an enriched section on educational materials on Inclusion and community resources.
CCR&R staff will attend community events to share educational materials for quality child care, inclusion services, and community
resources. Government to ensure coordination of resources to serve children ages 5 – 12 children and children outside the Coalition’s
eligibility criteria.
o
Coalition help to promote Summer Day Camp Scholarships for children ages 5 - 12.
o
Coalition compiles Summer Day Camp Listing for parents for children ages 5 – 12.
o
The coalition maintains updated listings of programs that serve school age.
•
Informational Provider and Parents Quarterly news letter

Please attach any supporting documentation as Attachment III.A.

B. Infant and Toddler Early Learning Programs
Describe the quality activities and services the coalition will implement to enhance infant and toddler early learning programs.
Refer to Attachment III.B.

C. Inclusive Early Learning Programs
Describe the quality activities and services the coalition will implement to enhance inclusive early learning programs.

Refer to Attachment III.C.
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D. Quality Improvement Strategies
Describe the quality improvement strategies the coalition will use as part of the program assessment Quality Improvement Plan.
Refer to Attachment III.D.

E. Quality Performance Report
a. Does the coalition train programs on the Child Performance Standards adopted by OEL?
Yes
No
If yes, does the coalition track how many programs were trained, by provider type, on the child performance standards?
Yes

No

If yes, does the coalition track the number of children served in programs trained on the child performance standards?
Yes

No

b. Does the coalition provide targeted technical assistance to programs such as coaching, mentoring, or consulting during the fiscal
year? Note: targeted technical assistance is (coaching, mentoring and consultation) designed to address a particular domain/area of
quality.
Yes

No

If yes, what type of targeted technical assistance is provided?
Health and safety
Infant and toddler care
School-age care
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Inclusion
Teaching dual language learners
Understanding developmental screenings and/or observational assessment tools for program improvement purposes
Mental health
Business management practices
Other Describe:
Building relationships with children, observing and recording child behaviors, curriculum use, professionalism, teacher-child
interactions.

c. Does the coalition provide financial supports to early learning providers? Financial supports must be intended to reward, improve,
or sustain quality. They can include grants, cash, reimbursements, gift cards, or purchases made to benefit a program. One-time grants,
awards, or bonuses include any kind of financial support that a program can receive only once. On-going or periodic quality stipends
include any kind of financial support intended to reward, improve, or sustain quality that a program can receive more than once.
Does the coalition provide one-time grants, awards or bonuses to Child Care Centers?
Yes

No

If yes, describe:
Conference Scholarships and Professional Development Scholarships

Does the coalition provide one-time grants, awards or bonuses to Family Child Care Homes?
Yes
If yes, describe:

No

Family Conference Scholarships
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Does the coalition provide on-going or periodic quality stipends to Child Care Centers?
Yes

No

If yes, describe:
Based on trainings, materials are purchased to improve and sustain quality in their program.

Does the coalition provide on-going or periodic quality stipends to Family Child Care Homes?
Yes

No

If yes, describe:
The Coalition provides 50% of conference fees and accommodations for all School Readiness providers based upon funding
availability.
Please check what types of financial supports are provided to child care teachers/providers.
Scholarships
Reimbursement for Training Expenses
Loans
Wage supplements
N/A
Other Describe:
The Coalition provides scholarships for Florida Family Child Care Home Association (FCCH) conferences, and staff credentials
covering tuition cost and books at Seminole State College
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d. Does the coalition have a voluntary Quality Rating Improvement System (QRIS) in place for the coalition’s service area?
Yes

No, Currently 23 of Seminole’s providers are participating in the Early Learning Performantce Funding Project.

If yes, please provide how many levels and a brief description of each level:
QRIS Level
Level Description

Please attach any supporting documentation as Attachment III.D.

IV. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
A. Budget
Please fill out Attachment IV.A Coalition Budget Report.

B. Prior Year Revenues and Expenditures
Please fill out Attachment IV.B Coalition Revenue and Expenditure Report.

V. MONITORING
A. Monitoring Plan and Procedures
Refer to Attachment V.A.1 and V.A.2
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B. Grievance/Complaint Resolution
Please attach a copy of the grievance policies and procedures that address complaints made by parents and child care providers as Attachment
V.B.

VI. COALITION PLAN VALIDATION
A. Public Input
Please attach copies of proof of public input, such as coalition minutes as Attachment VI.A.

By signing below, I hereby certify that all information provided in this plan is accurate and complete to the best of my belief and knowledge. I certify
that all services will be provided in accordance with the plan as approved by the Florida Office of Early Learning (OEL). I further certify that the local
services will be provided in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations and the State Child Care and Development
Fund Plan approved by the Federal Department of Health and Human Services.
Chair Signature:
Printed Name:
Date Signed:

Executive Director:
Adam Balls ( Vice Acting Chair)

Printed Name:
Date Signed:
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Attachment II.A. Minimum Children to be Served by Care Level
EFS Ad Hoc Report CC085
Early Learning Coalition Plan Care Level Data (version - 08/06/2013)
ID DATABASE_NAME
--- ---------------------------------------140 EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SEMINOLE
FROM_PERIOD
-----------------------------------------------------DATA THROUGH REPORTING PERIOD BEGINNING ON: 07/01/2017
THROUGH_PERIOD
-----------------------------------------------------DATA THROUGH REPORTING PERIOD BEGINNING ON: 06/30/2018
FOR COALITION CODES
CODE
-------ALL_DATA
RUN_DATE
--------30-JAN-19
School Readiness: Children Served by Care Level
CARE_LEVEL_ORDER
---------------2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

CARE CHILDREN_SERVED
---- --------------INF
228
TOD
491
2YR
612
PR3
670
PR4
622
PR5
442
SCH
809
GT13
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Attachment II.B. School Readiness Application and Waiting List Procedures

SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

SR Application and Waiting List Procedures
Single Point of Entry- Application and Waiting List Procedures
September 30, 2015, Revised October 17, 2017, January 28, 2019

PURPOSE: Procedures for implementing the Coalition’s School Readiness application and waiting list procedures in
accordance with 6M-4.300, s. 1002.85 (2) (b), s.1002.85 (2) (c) 3, and s.1002.87 (1), F.S.. Parents shall submit a
prequalifying questionnaire and provide requested documentation to an early learning coalition. If funds are available at the
time of application the coalition will conduct an eligibility determination. If funds are not available at the time of application, the
coalition will place the child or children on a waiting list.
SCOPE: To provide Family Services staff with procedures for processing School Readiness application and waiting list
procedures required for the School Readiness program.
PROCESS: Parents shall submit a prequalifying questionnaire and provide requested documentation to an early learning
coalition. If funds are available at the time of application the coalition will process the application through the waiting list
and generate a funding notice for the child through the Family Portal to initiate the School Readiness Eligibility and
Enrollment procedures. If funds are not available at the time of application, the coalition will place the child or children on a
waiting listEligibility for the School Readiness program will be documented through processing School Readiness applications
through the Family Portal, as applicable based on the procedures below.
Application Procedures
1. All parents requesting school readiness program services must first complete the prequalifying questionnaire, s
file and application, certifying the family’s total assets do not exceed the program requirements and provide requested
documentation to the Coalition. For relative caregiver and TANF child only cases, the family’s income and assets
shall be based on the child’s income only. If the result of the prequalifying questions indicate that the family may be
potentially eligible, the family will then be directed to complete the School Readiness Application. before completing
the School Readiness Application, if applicable, and submit it through the single point of entry at
https://familyservices.floridaearlylearning.com. Parents may complete the prequalifying questions and School
Readiness Application at any time. If the results of the prequalifying questions indicate that the family may be
potentially eligible, the family will then be directed to complete the School Readiness Application.
1.
2. Upo n comple tion of the School Readiness Applica tion, par ents must s ubmit at leas t one document per parent
residing in the household to complete the application process. The document may be a current paystub, a
verification of employment statement, written statement from employer, school enrollment or class registration,
or documentation of a temporary or permanent disability.
3.
2.4. For at-risk families identified in section 1002.71 (1), F.S., who have a valid child care authorization, eligibility
determination processing is not dependent upon completion of the prequalifying questions and application, however,
an application must be completed within 14 calendar days of eligibility determination.
3.5. If the prequalification screening results indicate that the family may not be potentially eligible, the family shall be
directed to contact the learning coalition to offer Child Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) services.
Eligibility Screening
1. Family Services staff will review each submitted application and required documentation within 20 calendar days of
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receipt to determine if the parent is potentially eligible The Coalition will notify the parent if the eligibility criteria have
or have not been met.
2. If the Family Services staff determines that the family is potentially eligible based on their application and funding is
available, the coalition will conduct an eligibility determination. Upon determining the family eligible for the school
readiness program, the child is eligible for enrollment with a provider delivering the school readiness program. The
Family Services staff shall indicate the required supporting documents for eligibility determination and enrollment into
services.
3. If the family is potentially eligible and funding is not available, Family Services staff shall place the child on its waiting
list. If the family is not potentially eligible, Family Services staff will offer the parent CCR&R services.
Waiting List Management
Family Services staff will use the waiting list as an enrollment management tool for the school readiness program on an
ongoing basis. The Coalition will not purge its waiting list by removing all children at one time. Waiting list management
shall consist of:
a) Placement of Children on the Waiting List.
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I.

A family shall be placed on the waiting list on a first-come, first-serve basis, based on the date of the
a p p r o v e d submitted application, the potential eligibility category and eligibility priority categories
and the age of the child. The Coalition may consider local service priorities within a priority category.
If a parent requests school readiness program services for an additional child following placement on the
waiting list, the additional child shall be placed on the waiting list according to the initial date the family was
placed on the waiting list. The additional child shall also be assigned a potential eligibility category and
priority.
An unborn child shall not be eligible for the waiting list.
A parent may update the information reported in the School Readiness Application. Family Services staff will
review the changes and if the family remains potentially eligible, the family shall retain its place on the
waiting list.

II.

III.
IV.

b) Revalidation
At least once every six (6) months from the date the family was initially placed on the waiting list or from the last
revalidation date the Coalition Portal issued an automated revalidation notice within the established timeframe within 30
days prior to revalidation date to the family requesting coalition will contact the parent and request the parent to
submit updated information regarding eligibility status. The coalition shall notify the parent within 30 calendar days
prior to the revalidation date. --- Automated Process in Portal
c) Availability of Funding
The coalition will notify the parent within thirty (30) calendar days of funding availability by generating a funding
notification to the parent through the Family Portal to potentially enroll the child in the school readiness
program. The Family Portal system generated notice In the notice, the coalition will provide instructions to the parent
on how to complete the school readiness eligibility determination and enrollment process. --- Automated
Process in Portal
d) Removal from the Waiting List
The Family Portal system generated notice The coalition will notify the parent of removal from the waiting list. The
notification will include the reason why the family was not placed on the waiting list or why the family or child
was removed from the waiting list. Notice of removal is not required when funding becomes available for the child
to receive school readiness services and the child is enrolled with a school readiness provider. A family will be
removed from the waiting list under the following circumstances:
I.
II.
III.
IV.
V.
VI.
VII.
VIII.

Failure to maintain accurate contact information;
Failure to meet the school readiness eligibility requirements as specified in Section 1002.87(1), F.S.;
Failure to confirm information. The parent does not validate its information by the due date indicated on
the notification;
Over age limitations. Any child on the waiting list age 13 or older will be removed from the waiting list;
School readiness services no longer needed. The parent indicates, via email, fax, mail, telephone or in
person, that school readiness services are no longer needed;
The parent does not respond to the notification for available funding by the due date;
The family no longer resides in the early learning coalition’s service delivery area; or
Funding becomes available for the child to receive school readiness services and the child is enrolled
with a school readiness provider. Actual eligibility determination will be conducted prior to authorization
for enrollment, which will be based on available funding. Enrollment in the school readiness program
will be on a first-come, first-serve basis pursuant to Section 1002.87(1), F.S.

e) Reapplication
I.
If a family is removed from the waiting list, a parent must reapply for school readiness services and shall be
screened for eligibility to be placed back onto the waiting list and receive a new waiting list date.
II.
If a family on the waiting list of an early learning coalition moves out of the coalition’s service area, the family
Page 2

Attachment II.B. School Readiness Application and Waiting List Procedures

shall reapply for eligibility services with the coalition operating in the family’s new location. The family will receive
a new waiting list date with the coalition offering services in the new location.
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SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

School Readiness Eligibility and Enrollment Procedures
Child Eligibility
January 1, 2013- Revised April 23, 2014, Revised October 17, 2017, January 26, 2019

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to Family Services staff to determine eligibility for each
applicant applying for the School Readiness Program in accordance with Rule 6M- 4.200 F.A.C, 45 CFR s. 98.30, 98.18, s.
1002.81 (5), s. 1002.82 (2) (b), F.S., s.Section 1002.85(2) ( c )3., F.S., ss.1002.84(7), 1002.85(2) (j), 1002.87 7(1), ss.
402.305, 402.313, 402.3131, F.S., Chapters 65C-20 and 65C-22.F.S., and Rule 6M-4.200, F.A.C.
SCOPE: To provide Family Service staff with procedures for obtaining required documentation required for School
Readiness services. During the initial determination and redetermination an applicant must submit documentation, as
applicable, to verify compliance with eligibility requirements. Prior to the eligibility determination and enrollment, new
applicants shall submit required documentation within 30 calendar dayscalendar days from the datethe date on the
funding notification. Redetermining applicants shall submit required documentation through the Family Services Portal
prior to theto the redetermination date (based on functionality of the Family Services Portal). The coalition shall determine
eligibility within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the documentation (based on functionality of the Family Services Portal
and Coalition Services Portal).
PROCESS: Eligibility for the School Readiness program will be documented by required eligibility verification for
approval of services. During the initial determination and redetermination an applicant must submit documentation, as
applicable, to verify compliance with eligibility requirements. The Coalition completes School Readiness services for
families though the Family Portal (based on functionality of the Family Services Portal and Coalition Services Portal.
All Child Care Application and Child Care Authorizations referrals are submitted through the Coalition’s Share File from
authorized referring agencies. Only valid and complete documentation received from authorized referring agencies is
accepted as the initial eligibility processes for parents receiving At Risk, Temporary Cash Assistance, and Transitional
Child Care eligibility categories. Incomplete and Invalid referrals are not accepted and returned for resubmission by the
referring agency. The Coalition will request parent/guardian signatures on Child Care Authorization Referrals that are
processed outside of the Family Services Portal by mail after receipt of complete referral from referring agency and
document attempts in history notes. The Parental Payment Signature is signed by the parent, coalition and provider in the
Family Services, Coalition Services and Provider Services Portal.

The following documents are required, as applicable based on eligibility priority accordingly:
1)

Documentation of Child’s Age Verification:
Verification of age must be established for each child eligible for the school readiness program in accordance
with Section 1002.87(1), F.S. The coalition shall keep a record of at least one of the following supporting
documents that shows the child’s name and date of birth:
a. An original or certified copy of the child’s birth record filed according to law with the appropriate public
officer.
b. An original or certified copy of the child’s certificate of baptism or other religious record of the child’s
birth, accompanied by an affidavit stating that the certificate is true and correct, sworn to or affirmed
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by the child’s parent.
An insurance policy on the child’s life which has been in force for at least 2 years.
A passport or certificate of the child’s arrival in the United States.
An immunization record signed by a public health officer or licensed practicing physician, or
A valid military dependent identification card.
For Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) families identified in Seection 1002.87 (1), F.S.,
the child’s age, as indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is sufficient
to establish the child’s age as verified by the parent.
g.h. For children identified in Sections 1002.87(1)(a), (1)(d), and (1)(g), F.S., the child’s age, as indicated
on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is sufficient to establish the child’s
age as verified by the parent.
h.i. For children identified in Sections 1002.81(a)-(d), F.S., the child’s age, as indicated on a child care
authorization submitted by the referring agency, is sufficient to establish age as verified by the parent.
i.j. If no supporting documents listed in subparagraphs ( a ) 1 - 8 (e)1.-8. above are available, a parent’s
notarized statement sworn affidavit of the child’s age accompanied by a certificate of age signed by
a public health officer or physician stating that the child’s age shown in the notarized statement affidavit
is true and correct may be accepted.
c.
d.
e.
f.
f.g.

2)

Documentation of Citizenship:
Each child receiving services must be a U.S. citizen or qualified alien. Verification of U.S. citizenship or a
qualified noncitizen status must be obtained for each child prior to authorizing school readiness services. The
coalition shall keep a record of at least one of the following supporting documents establishing citizenship:
a. U.S birth certificate.
b. An original or certified copy of the child’s U.S. birth record filed according to law with the appropriate
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public officer.
c. U.S. passport.
d. Lawfully admitted alien document (e.g. Forms I-94, I-94A, I-197, I-551 & I-766) with non-U.S.
passport.
e. Certificate of U.S. citizenship or naturalization.
f. For TANF children identified in Sections 1002.87(1)(a) F.S., (1)(d) and (1)(g), F.S., the child’s status as
a TANF recipient, as indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is
sufficient to establish the child’s citizenship.
g. For children identified in Sections 1002.841 (1) (a) – (d), F.S. 1002.87(1)(b) and (1)(e), F.S., the
Medicaid-eligible status, as indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is
sufficient to establish the child’s citizenship.
3)

Documentation of Residency:
Each applicant must submit verification of current residency to qualify for the program in the county in which
the applicant applied. The coalition shall keep a record of at least one of the following supporting documents
that shows the name and current residential address of a parent with whom the child resides:
a. Utility bill (electric, gas, water), cable, internet or landline home phone bill dated within 12 months of the
date the child application is submitted.
b. Pay stub from a current employer dated within 12 months of the date the child application is
submitted.
c. Current and signed residential rental agreement or receipt from rental payment dated within 12
months of the date the child application is submitted.
d. Government-issued document (e.g., Florida driver’s license, Florida identification card, property tax
assessment showing a homestead exemption), or
e. Military order showing that the child’s parent is a service member in the United States Armed
Forces and is assigned to duty and resides in Florida when the child attends the school readiness
program (e.g., permanent change of station).
f. For children identified in Section 1002.87, F.S., the child’s status as a TANF recipient, as indicated on
a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is sufficient to establish the child’s
residency.
g. For children identified in Sections 1 0 0 2 . 8 1 ( 1 ) ( a ) – ( d ) , F . S . 1002.87(1)(b) and (1)(e),
F.S., the child’s Medicaid-eligible status, as indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the
referring agency, is sufficient to establish the child’s residency.
h. If no supporting documents listed in subparagraphs (c)1.-7. above are available, a coalition may accept
a notarized statement provided by the child’s parent and a letter from a landlord or property owner
which confirms that the child resides at the address shown in the notarized statement.
i. If no supporting documents listed in subparagraphs (c)1.-7. above are available, for a homeless child
as defined in Section 1003.01, F.S., a coalition shall document residency based on other supporting
documents showing that the child is homeless and resides in Florida (e.g., letter from a shelter or a
notarized statement provided by the child’s parent).

4)

Documentation of Parent Status:
Each applicant must meet the definition of parent in subsection 6M-4.200 (1), F.AC. paragraphs 6M-4.200(1)(c)
and (e), F.A.C., and submit government-issued ID and documentation of guardianship. Additionally, theThe
coalition shall keep a record of at least one of the following supporting documents to verify the parental relationship:
a. A copy of the child’s birth certificate, which includes the parent’s name or maiden name, if
applicable.
b. A court order or other legal documentation that substantiates the adult’s relationship to the
child(ren).
c. A valid DCF or Workforce Child Care Authorization Form that bears the name of the child and the
parent.
d. Documentation the applicant is in receipt of relative caregiver payment or TANF benefits on
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behalf of the child.
e. AnA notarized statement provided affidavit sworn to or affirmed by the child’s parent.
f. Official public or non-public school records.
g. A notarized statement An affidavit from a medical professional.
5)

Documentation of Family Size:
Each applicant must identify and provide supporting documentation of each child and adult included in the school
readiness family size, in accordance with Section 1002.81(9), F.S.
a. Family size includes the parent(s) and the child(ren) currently residing togetherresiding together in the
same dwelling unit (persons who are parents of a child in common regardless of whether they have
been married and all children in their care) or person standing in loco parentis.
b. Children with a child care authorization who are in a licensed out-of-home placement or relative/nonrelative placement must be listed as a child only case in the statewide information system. A family
unit shall include an individual child referred or related sibling group referred in a licensed out-of-home
placement or relative/non-relative placement.
c. The family size for a family that includes a child(ren) in receipt of Relative Caregiver payment shall
only include the child(ren) in receipt of the Relative Caregiver payment.
d. The family size for a family that includes a child(ren) in receipt of TANF child only benefits shall only
include the child(ren) if the child resides with a guardian. If the child resides with a parent, the parent
must be included in the family size.
e. A teen parent will be considered a separate household, unless the teen and their child(ren) are
included in their parents School Readiness family size. Eligibility and income will be determined
consistent with the procedures for other households.
The coalition shall keep a record of at least one of the following supporting documents, as applicable, to establish
family size:
a. A statewide information system generated form or locally developed form documenting the applicant’s
family size (conflict with Family Portal- no local forms) including a statement from the parent certifying thtthat
the household information is true and correct , with supporting verification of each household member
(e.g. birth certificate, or government issued ID). In cases where the coalition suspects fraud, the coalition
may request additional documentation to establish family size.
b. For TANF families children identified in Sections 1002.81 (1) (a) – (f), F.S., 1002.87(1)(a), (1)(d),
and (1)(g), F.S., the child’s family size as a TANF recipient, as indicated on a child care authorization
submitted by the referring agency as verified by the parent, is sufficient to establish family size.
c. For children identified in Sections 1002.81 (1) (a) – (f), F.S. 1002.87(1)(b) and (1)(e), F.S., the child’s
family size on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency as verified by the parent,
is sufficient to establish family size.

6)

Documentation of Purpose for Care:
Each applicant must meet the purpose for care requirements of the program in accordance with Sections 1002.81(1),
(7), (16) and 1002.87(1), F.S. The coalition shall keep a record ofrecord of at least one of the following supporting
documents establishing purpose for care:
a. For children identified in Sections 1 0 0 2 . 8 1 ( 1 ) ( a ) - ( f ) , F . S . 1002.87(1)(b) and (1)(e), F.S.,
the child’s purpose for care, as indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the referring
agency, is sufficient to meet this requirement. If income documentation (earned and unearned) is
available during the initialthe initial and subsequent eligibility verification, it must be submitted at that
time by the family or the referring agency.
b. A child is eligible under the relative caregiver program category if, the guardian is in receipt of
Relative Caregiver Assistance payments from the Florida Department of Children and Families.
c. For children identified in Section 1002.87(1)(a), F.S., the child’s status as a TANF recipient, as
indicated on a child care authorization submitted by the referring agency, is sufficient to establish
purpose for care.
d. For income eligible families, purposefamilies, purpose for care is established byestablished by the
parent’sthe parent’s work schedule asschedule as verified on one of the income documents listed below

Page | 1

in subparagraph (4)(f)6.
e. Education. Each applicant requesting services in order to attend an approved educational activity in
accordance with Section 1002.81(16), F.S., shall provide an official school schedule and proof of
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enrollment from an accredited education institution. Use of educational activities as a purpose for care shall
be limited to GED programs, secondary education programs, technical or vocational programs, associate
of arts, associate of science, bachelor of artsBachelor of Arts, and bachelor of scienceBachelor of Science
programs.
f. Documentation for exemptions to work requirements due to disability or age:
i. Disability – In order to be exempt from work requirements due to disability, a parent must
submit documentation from a physician licensed under Chapter 458 or 459, F.S.459, F.S., or
a disability award letter from the U.S. Social Security Administration.
ii. Age – In order to be exempt from work requirements due to age, a parent must submit proof of
receipt of retirement income benefits from the U.S. Social Security Administrator or
documentation from a physician licensed under Chapter 458 or 459, F.S.
7)

Documentation of Income:
Each applicant must submit documentation of earned and unearned income in accordance with paragraphs:
(a)- (g),below), below. This applies to at-risk children identified in Section 1002.81(1), F.S., if available. If
income documentation is not available for at-risk children, the coalition shall still process the eligibility
determination under the at-risk child care authorization. All earned income and unearned income not excluded
by Section 1002.81(8), F.S, and employment, shall be documented.
a. All earned income and unearned income not excluded by Section 1002.81(8), F.S, and employment,
shall be documented.
b.a. For all applicants, other than those who are self-employed, each source of earned income, at a minimum,
shall be documented by hours of employment and rate of pay based on:
i.b. Four (4) weekly, two (2) biweekly, two (2) semi-monthly, or one (1) monthly pay stubs that are current
and consecutive, or
ii.c. A signed statement by the employer dated within 4 weeks of applying for SR child care funding, or
d. iii.
A signed contract for employment that has a termination date of not less than 9 months from the
date of applying for SR child care funding.
c.e. Each source of unearned income, as defined by Section 1002.81(15), F.S., shall be documented at a
minimum by:
i.f. Source documentation establishing receipt of unearned income such as, but not limited to, alimony,
social security benefits, supplemental security income, worker’s compensation benefits,
reemployment assistance, veteran’s benefits, retirement benefits, temporary cash assistance under
Chapter 414, F.S., and regularly received cash gifts.
g. For child support, verification from the child support enforcement office or a written statement from the
absent parent or household member.
ii.i. For varied amounts of unearned income, the parent must provide a minimum of four (4), two (2)
biweekly, two (2) semi-monthly, or one (1) monthly source of unearned income documentation.
d.h. Income Fluctuations:. For families that have irregular earnings (fluctuations) due to seasonal or
other types of work schedules such as retail employment during the holidays or tourism in the summer,
the coalition or contracted designee must:
i. Calculate the average income for the previous 12 months. The average must reflect income
changes that occur during the eligibility period, including situations in which a family had
monthly income above
85 percent of the State Median Income (SMI), as published in the Federal Register at
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2015-06-10/pdf/2015-14187.pdf, for part of the year and
lower income in other months.
ii. For instances where a family, upon redetermination, may not have 12 months of pay stubs, use an
employer verification statement that affirms the average annual income.
e.i. Self-Employment.: For purposes of income verification, self-employment is defined as work activities
that produce income that an individual usesindividual use to meet daily living expenses. The selfemployment activity must contribute to the applicant’s livelihood and the time and effort put into the
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ii.
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activity will indicate intent to make a profit. Passive or casual activities that can be more appropriately
qualified as “hobbies” or volunteer work do not meet this criterion.
i. i.
Self-employed applicants shall provide appropriate documentation sufficient to
determine a minimum of 20 hours worked per week and income, such as: business account
ledgers, written documentation from customers, contractors, or federal tax returns.
For initial eligibility determination, eligibility shall not be denied solely because the applicant makes

j.

8)

lessmakes less than the minimum wage. If an applicant makes less than minimum wage at initial
eligibilityinitial eligibility determination, the authorized eligibility period shall be twelve (12) months.
However, subsequent eligibility authorizations will be dependent on whether or not the participant can
document that self- employment activities generate consistent business gains. Once minimum wage
is established by self-employment activities, subsequent eligibility may continue to be authorized for
twelve (12) months.

Parent Acknowledgement:
a.
Each applicant must have a completed signed and dated Form OEL-SR 01, School Readiness
Application for each eligibility determination. Form OEL-SR 01, is adopted and incorporated by
reference in Rule 6M-4.300,
F.A.C. The signature and date may be electronic when the application is available in the statewide
system.
An acknowledgement of income and family size used to establish the family copayment in accordance with
Rule 6M-4.400, F.A.C., if applicable, shall be documented by every family applying for school readiness service,
including families of children identified in Section 1002.81(1), F.S. This acknowledgement shall be made
and documented at each determination of eligibility. The acknowledgement may be recorded on locally created
income worksheets that includes the information listed on the income worksheet generated by the statewide
information system or worksheets generated by the statewide information system, if available (Family Portal
generates all income worksheets based on functionality of statewide system).
Parent Access and Choice:
b.
Parent Access and Choice of all legally operating child care categories, unlimited access to his or her
child during normal hours of provider operation and whenever the child is in the provider’s care, andcare, and
School Readiness program terms and conditions are provided to families through the statewide Parental Rights
and Responsibilities/Terms and Conditions Form electronically in the Family Portal as part of the eligibility and
enrollment/redetermination process. Acknowledgement is achieved by the parent/guardian’s electronic
signature in the Family Portal.
9)
Temporary Interruption in Services:
A temporary interruption means interruption in the parents work or education activity with an intent to return to
that specific work or education activity. A temporary interruption in employment or education/training activity
includes:
a. Any time-limited absence from work for an employed parent due to reasons such as need to care for a
family member or an illness;
b. Any interruption in work for a seasonal worker who is not working between regular industry work
seasons;
c. Any student holiday or break for a parent participating in training or education;
d. Any other cessation of work or attendance at a training or education program that does not exceed
three (3) months’
e. Any change in age, including turning 13 years old during the eligibility period; and,
f. Any change in residency within the state.

Child Care Authorizations and Relative Caregiver Eligibility
a. In order for a child to be eligible for a child to be eligible to receive school readiness services pursuant
to section 1002.87 (1) F.S., a child care authorization or documentation the parent receives relative
caregiver payments must be issued by the appropriate agency.
At Risk and Protective Child Care Authorizations
a. Eligibility is based on the documented child care authorization from the Florida Department of Children
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b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

and Families (DCF) or its contracted service providers, DCFF-designated Lead Homeless Coalition
Continuum of Care agency or Certified Domestic Violence Center. “At Risk Child is defined in section
1002.81 (1), F.S.
Child care authorizations for at-risk and protective service categories shall be valid for the duration
determined by the referring entity. A child may continue to maintain eligibility under the at-risk or
protective service categories as long as there is a current and valid child care authorization. The parent
no longer maintains the current purpose for care upon the child care authorization’s expiration or upon
notification of termination from the referring agency to the coalition, whichever comes first.
At Risk or protective services parent with a valid child care authorization will be authorized for 12-months
of child care funding. Each time a child care authorization is renewed during the 12-month authorization
for child care funding, child care services will continue in increments defined by the referring agency. If
the child’s age exceeds the age limit during the 12-month authorization period, the child will continue to
receive services for the remainder of the 12-month period.
At the initial determination for at-risk child care authorizations, the coalition will inform the parent that
when the referral expires or is terminated by the referring agency, the parent will have three (3) months
to provide documentation to establish a purpose for care under another eligibility category to continue
receiving services for the remainder of the initial 12-month eligibility period. A family will not be limited to
a single three (3) month period to reestablish a purpose for care during the 12-month eligibility period.
If an additional referral is granted to the parent that extends the purpose for care beyond the initial 12month eligibility period, the coalition will authorize the parent for an additional 12-month period, subject
to available funding. The time that surpasses the initial authorization will be counted toward the
subsequent authorization period.
If the parent loses purpose for are anytime during the initial 12-month eligibility, the coalition shall provide
services for three (3) months, at which time the parent must reestablish purpose for care to remain
eligible. The time- period that surpasses the initial authorization will be counted toward the subsequent
authorization period, if the parent re-establishes purpose for care.

Relative Caregiver Program
a. A child may continue to maintain eligibility under the relative caregiver program category if upon closure
of the protective services case, the guardian is in receipt of relative Caregiver Assistance payments for
the child in need of school readiness from the Florida Department of Children and Families.
b. A child may continue to maintain eligibility under the relative caregiver category for up to 12-months for
initial and subsequent authorizations as determined by theethe coalition, as long as the parent is in receipt
of relative caregiver payments.
c. At the initial determination for relative caregiver eligibility, the coalition will inform the parent that when
receipt of relative caregiver payments ends the parent will have three (3) months to provide
documentation to establish purpose for care under another eligibility category to continue to receive
services. Purpose for care must be established no later than three (3) months after the receipt of relative
caregiver payments ends or upon termination of relative caregiver payments or whichever comes first. A
family will not be limited to a single three (3) month period to reestablish a purpose for care.
d. If a family loses purpose for care anytime during the initial 12-month eligibility period, the Coalition shall
provide services for three months at which time the parent must reestablish purpose for care to
remain eligible. The time period that surpasses the initial authorization period will be counted toward
the subsequent authorization period.
Welfare Transition Program
a. Eligibility is based on a documented child care authorization issued by DCF or the local workforce agency.
b. Temporary Cash Assistance parents must also maintain compliance with statutory welfare transition
program requirements by DCF or the local workforce referral agency, as monitored by the referring
agency.
c. Transitional Child Care/Non-Temporary Cash Assistance parents must also maintain compliance with
statutory welfare transition program requirements by DCF or the local workforce referral agency, as
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monitored by the referring agency.
d. All children eligible under the Temporary Cash Assistance, Temporary Cash Assistance Respite, and
Temporary Cash Assistance Applicant programs will be authorized for child care funding for theethe
period indicated by the referring agency’s child care authorization. The parent no longer maintains
purpose for care under this eligibility category upon child care authorization expiration or upon notification
of termination from the referring agency to the coalition, whichever comes first.
e. The coalition shall inform the parent and DCF or local workforce referral agency that when the child care
authorization expires or is terminated the parent will have three (3) months to provide documentation to
establish a purpose for care under another eligibility category. Purpose for care must be reestablished
no later than three (3) months after the child care authorization expires or upon notification of termination
from the referring agency to the coalition, whichever comes first. The time period that surpasses the
initial authorization will be counted toward the subsequent authorization period. A family will not be limited
to a single three (3) month period to reestablish purpose for care.
Income Based Eligibility Categories
Initial Eligibility Determination:.
a. Age of the child. The age limits of eligible children are set forth in section 1002.87(1), F.S. If a child’s age
exceeds the age limit during the 12-month authorization period, the child shall continue to receive
services for the remainder of the 12-month authorization period.
b. Family Income. The family’s income, as defined in section 1002.81(8), F.S., must be at or below 150
percent of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) for economically disadvantaged and 200 percent of the FPL
for Child Care Executive Partnership (CCEP) children for entry into the school readiness program. If 85
percent of the State Median Income (SMI) is less than 150 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the
SMI is the income threshold for entry into the school readiness program for economically disadvantaged.
If 85 percent of the SMI is less than 200 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the SMI is the income
threshold for entry into the school readiness program for CCEP children.
c. Assets. A family shall not have assets that exceed one million dollars (as certified by a member of such
family). This applies to all children funded with Child Care Development Block Grant funds.
d. Working Family. The family must also meet the definition of “Working Family” as defined by section
1002.81(16), F.S
e. Initial eligibility determinations for Economically Disadvantaged, Special Needs, and Child Care
Executive Partnership children will be authorized for 12-months of child care funding.
f. If the parent loses purpose for care anytime during the initial 12-month eligibility, the coalition shall
provide services for three (3) months, at which time the parent must reestablish purpose for care to
remain eligible. The time period that surpasses the initial authorization will be counted toward the
subsequent authorization period. A family will not be limited to a single three (3) month period to
reestablish a purpose of care during the 12-month eligibility period.
Maintaining Eligibility at Redetermination for non referral based families:
a. A family shall maintain eligibility and child care funding for school readiness services during a temporary
interruption in employment activity, as defined in paragraph (1)(k) of this rule, with an option to return to
that activity, not to exceed three (3) months. If the temporary interruption in employment exceeds three
(3) months, services will be considered suspended, and not reimbursed, until the parent’s employment
resumes. The child shall not be placed on the waiting list if the parent has verification that they are still
employed and returning to that employment. Care may be re-established for the remainder of the initial
12-month authorization upon resumption of employment and reevaluation of the remaining eligibility
factors.
b. A family shall maintain eligibility and child care funding for school readiness services during a temporary
interruption in the parent’s educational activity with an intent to return to the education activity at the next
available full semester or term, not to exceed three (3) months between a semester or term. If the
temporary interruption exceeds three (3) months, services will be considered suspended, and not
reimbursed, until the parent’s education enrollment resumes. The child shall not be placed on the waiting
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list if the parent has verification that they have enrolled in the next semester. Care may be re-established
for the remainder of the initial 12-month authorization upon resumption of education and reevaluation of
the remaining eligibility factors.
c. School readiness children shall not be terminated prior to the end of the 12-month eligibility period
based on a parent’s non-temporary interruption or cessation of employment, attendance at a job training
or education program. Parents shall be provided a three (3) month period to re-establish their purpose
for care. The 3-month period will start on the last day of verifiable employment/training/education for
working families or the last day of the referral period for at-risk families. If a parent does not establish a
purpose for care at the end of the three (3) month period, school readiness funding will be discontinued.
4)
d. Parents and providers must be notified if, as a result of any redetermination, a child is determined
ineligible for financial assistance within 10 calendar days.
Notification to Parents
The coalition shall notify the parents of their responsibility and the method to notify the coalition or contracted designee
within 10 calendarcalendars days of any change of circumstances related to:
1) Address;
2) Temporary/Non-temporary work or education status;
3) Family size;
4) Failure to maintain attendance at a job training or education program;
5) Income exceeds 85% of the state median income (SMI).
Payment Certificate
Upon determination of eligibility, a parent shall be given a payment certificate to submit to an eligible child care provider
to enroll the child in its school readiness program. The payment certificate shall at a minimum include the child(ren) for
whom a coalition authorized child care, the provider the family selected, signatures of both the beneficiary and school
readiness provider representative, the assessed parent copayment for each eligible child, the authorized hours of care
and the authorized begin and end dates for school readiness services.
Transfer of School Readiness Services
Eligible families shall continue to receive school readiness services during the 12-month eligibility period due to a
change in residence within the state to a different coalition service area.
a. The school readiness funding shall transfer to the coalition service area that the family relocates to.
Funding shall reflect the remaining balance of 12-month eligibility. Transferring families are subject to
the same document requirements found under subsection 6M-4.208(4), F.A.C. The coalition shall make
every effort to coordinate with the transferring coalition to obtain documents that would be valid
regardless of the location of the coalition such as birth certificates, shot records or proof of parental
relationship. Any documentation received because of new employment in the receiving coalition shall
not be used in increase a family’s copay.
b. The parent copayment may not be increased due to a transfer of services outside of the coalition service
area.
c. The coalition service area of transfer will be responsible for the redetermination of eligibility at the end
of the original 12-month authorization period.
d. If the family transfers during a three (3) month period to reestablish a purpose of care, the family must
reestablishmust reestablish a purpose of care by the end of the three (3) month period for services to
be continued in the new coalition service area.
Termination of Services
In accordance with the CCDBG Act of 2014, a child receiving CCDF funding SR assistance may not be terminated
from the program unless the family income exceeds the federal threshold of 85 percent of the State Median Income.
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Services shall be discontinued for a family prior to the end of the 12-month eligibility period under limited
circumstances. The family and provider will be notified of disenrollment at a minimum of two weeks prior to termination
of services or at the end of the current eligibility period, whichever comes first. The notification to the parent shall
include the reason for termination. Qualifying events for termination include:
a. Excessive unexplained absences that exceed 10 calendar days during a total month of attendance.
The coalition shall document three attempts to contact the family and the provider regarding
excessive absences prior to disenrollment.
b. Substantiated fraud or intentional program violation determined by the coalition or its designee
pursuant sections 1002.91 and 1002.84 (17), F.S.
c. A change in residency outside of the state of Florida.
d. Purpose of care is not reestablished at the end of a three (3) month period.
e. The family income exceeds 85% of the current state median income.
All redetermining Economically Disadvantaged, Special Needs and Child Care Executive Partnership children will be
authorized for 12-months of child care as funding allows.
Family Income:
.
The family’s income, as defined in Section 1002.81(8), F.S., must be at or below 150 percent of the
Federal Poverty Level (FPL) for economically disadvantaged and 200 percent of the FPL for Child Care
Executive Partnership (CCEP) children for entry into the school readiness program.
.

If 85 percent of the State Median Income (SMI) is less than 150 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the
SMI is the income threshold for entry into the school readiness program for economically disadvantaged. If
85 percent of the SMI is less than 200 percent of the FPL, then 85 percent of the SMI is the income
threshold for entry into the school readiness program for CCEP children.

a. Purpose for Care:
The family must meet the definition of “Working Family” as defined by Section 1002.81 (16), F.S.
9) Maintaining Eligibility During an Interruption in Employment Activities or Educational Activities:
a. A family shall maintain eligibility and child care funding for school readiness services during a temporary
interruption in employment activity, with an option to return to that activity, not to exceed three (3) months. A
temporary interruption in employment activity includes circumstances such as the parent’s seasonal
employment, school system-related employment or leave in compliance with the Family Medical Leave Act.
a. If the temporary interruption in employment exceeds three (3) months, services will be considered suspended,
and not reimbursed, until the parent’s employment resumes. The child shall not be placed on the waiting list if
the parent has verification that they are still employed and returning to that employment. Care may be re-
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established for the remainder of the initial 12 month authorization upon resumption of employment
and reevaluation of the remaining eligibility factors.
A family shall maintain eligibility and child care funding for school readiness services during a temporary
interruption in the parent’s educational activity with intent to return to the education activity at the next available
full semester or term, not to exceed three (3) months between a semester or term.
b. If the temporary interruption exceeds three (3) months, services will be considered suspended, and not
reimbursed, until the parent’s education enrollment resumes. The child shall not be placed on the waiting list if
the parent has verification that they have enrolled in the next semester. Care may be re-established for
the remainder of the initial 12 month authorization upon resumption of education and reevaluation of the
remaining eligibility factors.
b. School Readiness children shall not be terminated prior to the end of the 12 month eligibility period based on a
parent’s non-temporary interruption or cessation of employment, attendance at a job training or educational
program. Parents shall be provided a 3 month period to re-establish their purpose for care. The three month
period will start on the last verifiable employment/training/education for working families or the last day of the
referral period for at-risk families. If a parent does not establish a purpose for care at the end of the 3 month
period, school readiness funding will be discontinued.
b. Parents and providers will be notified if, as a result of any redetermination, a child is determined ineligible
for financial assistance within 10 calendar days.
9) Reporting Changes:
The Coalition will notify the parents of their responsibility and method to notify the Coalition within 10 calendar days
of any change in circumstances related to:
b.
b.
b.
b.
b.

Address,
Temporary/Non-temporary work or education status,
Family Size,
Failure to maintain attendance at a job training or education program,
Income exceeds 85% of SMI.

9) Transfer of School Readiness Services:
A family shall continue to receive school readiness services during the 12-month eligibility period due to a change in
residence within the state to a different coalition service area.
b. The school readiness funding shall transfer to the coalition service area that the family relocates to. Funding
shall reflect the remaining balance of 12-month eligibility.
b. The parent copayment may not be increased due to a transfer of services outside of the coalition service area.
b. The coalition service area of transfer will be responsible for the redetermination of eligibility at the end of the
original 12-month authorization period.
b. If the family transfers during a three (3) month period to reestablish a purpose of care, the family must
reestablish a purpose of care by the end of the three (3) month period for services to be continued in the
new coalition service area.
9) Termination and Disenrollment of School Readiness Services:
In accordance with the CCDBG Act of 2014, a child receiving CCDF funding SR assistance may not be terminated from
the program unless the family income exceeds the federal threshold of 85 percent of the State Median Income.
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Services shall be discontinued for a family prior to the end of the 12-month eligibility period under limited circumstances.
The family and provider will be notified of disenrollment at a minimum of two weeks prior to termination of services.
Qualifying events for termination include:
Excessive unexplained absences that exceed 10 calendar days during a total month of attendance.
At a minimum, theThe coalition shall will document 3 attempts to contact the family and the
provider regarding excessive absences prior to disenrollment.
c. Substantiated fraud or intentional program violation determined by the coalition or its designee
pursuant ss. 1002.91 and 1002.84 (17), Florida Statute.
c. A change in residency outside of the state of Florida.
c. Purpose of care is not reestablished at the end of a three (3) month period.
c. The family income exceeds 85% of the current state median income.

Children in CCDF funded eligibility categories must not be disenrolled due to a projected deficit. Children in non-CCDF
funded eligibility categories must not be disenrolled due to a projected deficit unless a deficit has been forecasted through
the end of the fiscal year and the fund management strategies have been addressed and implemented, as appropriate. If,
after implementation of fund management strategies, a deficit continues to be projected, making disenrollment a continued
possibility, no individual child or group of children shall be disenrolled due to a projected deficit before consulting
with and obtaining written approval from the Executive Director of OEL. The Coalition will abide by the procedures
for disenrollment as follows:
a. Written notification to OEL at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the initiation of formal consideration
by the board to disenroll a group of children from early learning programs due to a projected funds deficit.
b. Written notification to OEL at least five (5) business days prior to taking action to notify providers or families
of a determination to disenroll a child from early learning programs due to a projected funds deficit.
The notice to OEL must be submitted with a copy of the two most recent monthly analyses; and identify the enrollment priority group from which the coalition plans to disenroll children due to a projected
funds deficit and the number of children planned to be disenrolled within the enrollment priority group.
c. If a coalition disenrolls children from the school readiness program, the coalition must disenroll the children
in reverse order of the eligibility priorities beginning with children from families with the highest family
incomes.
b.
d. Written notice to any affected child’s parent or guardian at least two (2) weeks before the child is
disenrolled from the SR program due to a projected funds deficit, which includes the effective date of
the child’s disenrollment to provide adequate time for the parent to arrange alternative care for the child.
e. An at-risk child may not be disenrolled from the program without the written approval of the Child Welfare
Program Office of the Department of Children and Families or the community-based lead agency.
c.f. If a child is absent from the program for 5 consecutive days without parental notification to the program of
such absence, the school readiness program provider shall report the absence to the early learning
coalition for a determination of the need for continued care.
d. Written notice to any affected child’s SR provider at least two (2) weeks before the child is disenrolled
from the SR program due to a projected funds deficit, which includes the effective date of the child’s
disenrollment.
e. The continued initial enrollment of a child in a priority eligibility group in accordance with Section
1002.87(1)(a)(i), F.S.
Establishing enrollment priorities among the subsequent priority eligibility groups in descending order,
beginning with the highest enrollment priority, in accordance with Section 1002.87(1), F.S.
f.
g. Prohibiting the disenrollment of groups of children for a reason other than preventing a deficit or failure to
comply with eligibility requirements.
h. Permitting the disenrollment of children in order, pursuant to Section 1002.87(7), F.S. The policy may
allow for the disenrollment of a distinct subgroup within an enrollment priority (e.g., a school-age
1
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child older than a specified age).
Submitting a plan amendment, if applicable, and receiving written approval of the submitted plan
amendment from OEL prior to disenrollment of children.
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SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

School Readiness Service Priorities and Eligibility Policy
Child Eligibility
January 1, 2013 - Revised April 23, 2014, October 17, 2017, January 26, 2019

PURPOSE: Provide interpretive guidelines for applicable service categoriesservice categories under
Section 1 0 0 2 . 8 4 ( 7 ) , 1 0 0 2 . 8 5 ( 2 ) ( j ) , a n d 1002.87 (1), F.S.), F.S., the Florida
Administrative Code Chapter 6M-4 Office of Early Learning; School Readiness Program and the Office
of Early Learning (OEL) Standard Codes.
SCOPE: The Coalition policy is inclusive to all billing groups and eligibility categories as it relates to priority
eligibility as defined under Section 1002.87 F.S. requires the Coalition to assign priority in order. and 6M4 Office of Early Learning: School Readiness Program and within the priority changes as approved by the
Coalition board through local policy.
POLICY STATEMENT: The policy of the Coalition is that all school readiness child care subsidy service
categories are subject to enrollment priorities as defined by rule and local Coalition policy and dependent
on the availability of funding. The Coalition will provide services to eligible families residing in Seminole
County to the extent that funding and resources are available.
Community Assessment (SCPS and Head Start) must be attached. Coalitions shall identify local priorities
from subsection 1002.87 (1) ( c( )c) through information gained from completing the community assessment
The community assessment of local priorities within the county or multi-county region based on the needs of
families and provider capacity using available community data per 1002.85 (2) (j), F.S.
The community assessment shall not be more than three years old and must include, at a minimum, the
collection and analysis of the following information about the Coalition’s service area:
1. 1)
The demographic make-up of eligible children/families and unique populations;
2. 2)
Other child development and early learning programs that are serving eligible children,
including public and private programs and the approximate number of eligible children served by
each;
3. 3)
Data regarding the education and social service needs of eligible children and their
families, including children with disabilities and special needs; and
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4. 4)
Resources in the community that could be used to address the needs of children and
their families, including assessments of their available and accessibility.
CATEGORIES:
Referral/Non-Wait List Priority Service Categories:
Priority 1- Children younger than age 13 years of age from a family that includes a whose
parents who is receiving e temporary cash assistance and are subject to federal work
requirements.
Priority 2- At- risk children younger than age 9.
Referral service category families will be re-evaluated for continued care according to the child
care authorization dates on the Child Care Application received from the referring agency.
Waitlist Priority Service Categories:
Priority 3- ChildrenA child from birth to the beginning of the school year for which the child is eligible
for admission to kindergarten in a public school who is from a working family that is economically
disadvantaged, and may include such child’s eligible siblings, beginning with the school year in
which the sibling is eligible to begin 6th grade, provided that the first priority for funding an eligible
sibling in local revenues available to the Coalition for funding direct services may also be served.
Priority 4- Children from birth to kindergarten whose parents are transitioning from the work
program to employment.
Priority 54-Children who have special needs determined eligible as a student with a disability, has a
current individual education planeducation plan with a Florida school district, and is at least 3 years
of age but is not eligible for admission to kindergarten in a public school
Children from birth to kindergarten whose parents are transitioning from temporary cash
assistance to employment.
Priority 65- An at-risk child who is at least 9 years of age but younger than 13 years of age.
Those siblings in priority groups 1–3 are higher priority than other children 9-13 children in this
priority group.
Priority 76- Children younger than 13 whose parents are transitioning from the work program to
employment. Economically disadvantaged children kindergarten to 13. Priority is given to children
with a sibling in priority 3.
Priority 87- Economically disadvantaged children younger than 13. Priority is given to children who
have a younger sibling in the School Readiness Program under priority 3. Children younger than
13 whose parents are transitioning from the work program to temporary cash assistance to
employment.
Priority 8- Children who have special needs and current IEP from age 3 until they are eligible for
kindergarten.
Priority 9- Children concurrently enrolled in the Head Start Program and VPK, regardless of priorities
1-4.
4.
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Eligibility Determination and Redetermination:
Families that are not in a referral program will be evaluated no more frequently than every twelve months.
Families with referrals that are less than twelve months will be evaluated prior to the end of the referral for
eligibility in the economically disadvantaged priority groups. If determined eligible, the family will continue SR
services until the 12-month 12 month period is complete. At that time, the family may be revaluated for another
12 month12-month eligibility period.
Eligibility Procedures for Disenrollment:
Disenrollment is defined as removing, either temporarily or permanently, a child from participation in the SR
program.
If at the end of the referral, the family is not eligible for another priority group, the family will be given 90 days
(not to exceed 12 months for the current eligibility determination) of continued SR services before
disenrollment of a child from participation in the School Readiness program in accordance with 6M-4.200 (6),
FAC.
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SCHOOL READINESS/COUNTY SERVICES

Terms and Conditions for Financial Assistance
You have been determined eligible for school readiness services and must comply with the following terms and conditions to become
and/or remain eligible. By your initials and signature on this form, you understand fully and agree to the following terms and conditions.
I have the right to choose my child care provider. If I need assistance in choosing quality child care services, I will contact the
Early Learning Coalition of Seminole Child Care Resource & Referral at (407) 960-2468.
I have the right to choose from all available, legally operating child care arrangements and providers including: licensed centers,
licensed homes, registered home, faith-based care, school-based programs, in-home care, relative care, or other informal
arrangements and have access to my child(ren) anytime they are in care.
I have the right to a notification of any decision, including reductions in or termination of services.
I have the right to receive copies of the records of my information and those of my child(ren). These records will be protected by
confidentiality guidelines. No information will be released without my prior consent with the exception of records related to school
readiness payments that may be released to appropriate federal and state auditors.
I have the right to be treated with respect and receive services without being discriminated against because of ethnic
background, race, color, creed, national origin, sex, religious belief, disability, age or affiliation or belief.
I have the right to voluntarily submit my social security number with the understanding that non-submission does not eliminate
School Readiness services from being offered to my family under the Privacy Act of 1974.
I have the right to refuse services from the Coalition if I feel it is appropriate to do so.
I agree to notify the ELC’s Family Services Department in writing, within 10 days of any change, that could affect my eligibility
including, but not limited to:
• Employment/Educational Status: changes of employer/school, pay, work hours/work schedule/school schedule, loss of employment
or discontinuation of school
• Family Status: marriage, divorce, separation, parent of any child residing in the home, birth of child
• Income Change: begin receiving or stop receiving any income and other income changes
• Residence/Contact Info: address changes, phone numbers, etc.
• Maternity Leave
I agree to provide documents or information required by ELC within the designated time period realizing that my services may be
suspended or terminated otherwise. I understand that if I fail to recertify on or before the last day authorized or the services will be
terminated. If this occurs, I will be solely responsible for my child care costs and I must call to be placed on the waiting list (if eligible).
I have received information on the various types of child care choice available. I understand that some funding sources limit my
child care choices. I have had all child care choices explained to me and have made my choice of my own free will. I understand the
selected child care provider must allow me to visit my child(ren) while they are in care.
I agree to pay the assessed parent fee and any additional charges that I may incur. This parent fee is due whether or not the
child(ren) are in care and on ELC approved holidays. These charges may include but not be limited to late fees, returned check fees,
cost of care in excess of the Coalition maximum reimbursement rate, etc. I understand that it is my responsibility to
request/receive a receipt for parent fees paid to the provider and notify the ELC if I am denied a receipt. I further understand that
parent fees are not negotiable, as stated by the program and any action or attempt to have the parent fee lowered or waived by the
Provider will be considered a violation of Florida Statute 414.39.
I understand that as my school readiness provider will collect my assessed parent co-payment or graduated phase-out copayment. The amount of the co-payment or graduated phase-out co-payment which must be collected for each child is included
on my child care certificate. In the event that an assessed parent co-payment or graduated phase-out co-payment is changed by the
Coalition, the Coalition will send me and my provider written notice of the change. Only co-payment or graduated phase-out copayment changes from the Coalition are valid. My assessed parent co-payments or graduated phase- out co-payments are
automatically deducted from my provider’s monthly reimbursement.
I understand my school readiness provider must give me parent a receipt for each co-payment or graduated phase-out copayment made and retain receipt records for all child care co-payments or graduated phase-out co-payments. Upon request, the
provider will provide a current accounting and copy of co-payment or graduated phase-out co-payment receipt records to the Coalition.
I understand that at the end of my initial 12 month eligibility period, if my income is above 150% of Federal Poverty Level but at or
below 85% of the State Median Income, I have entered the graduated phase out of the program. I understand that as my family’s
income increases, my parent co-payment will continue to increase.
I understand that if my income exceeds 85% of State Median Income, my family will no longer be eligible for the program. My
services will be discontinued two weeks (14 calendar days) from the date of the notice as long as the 14 day period does not extend
beyond my family’s authorized period.
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SCHOOL READINESS/COUNTY SERVICES

Terms and Conditions for Financial Assistance (cont’d)
I understand that I cannot transfer my child until all parent fees are up to date. If I transfer my child prior to obtaining
authorization from the ELC, I will be responsible for the full cost of care until I obtain authorization.
I understand that my child(ren)’s attendance in child care is important and agree to report absences to the child care provider as
they occur. I understand that this program will pay for up to 3 undocumented absences and up to 7 documented absences each month
realizing I may be required to pay for days not paid by the Coalition. 10 or more absences could result in loss of the child care slot
and/or termination of my assistance, requiring me to re-apply to the Wait List.
I understand I or my designee must sign my child(ren) in and out each day they are in care using my or my designee’s full first and
last name and time of drop off/pick up. I further understand that if the Coalition monitors my provider’s attendance records and
determines that I have not complied with this requirement, the payment for those days will be disallowed and the provider has the right
to request full payment from me. I will Sign In and Out for my child only on the dates when they attend class at the selected Provider;
furthermore, if any dispute occurs related to this matter, I understand that I am responsible to notify the Coalition immediately in
writing for further investigation. Failure to report to the Coalition or failure to sign my child In and Out could result in the loss of
school readiness services temporarily or permanently, repayment of the services and/or referral to the Florida Department of Financial
Services for investigation.
I give consent for review/release/exchange of all information provided to determine my eligibility including, but not limited to,
contacting the current or previous employers for verification of employment information, etc. I agree that necessary information
concerning my child may be released to other appropriate agencies.
I give consent for all State and Federal funder agencies or funder personnel to review my record for evaluation or monitoring
purposes. In addition, I understand that agency records relating to the program may be public records under Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes.
I understand that this program receives funding from Government Agencies and that from time to time their representative may
request access to any or all Agency records relating to this program and/or the delivery of its services for the purposes of evaluating or
monitoring the program or delivery of service. I understand that any records provided to them shall become public records, may be
subject to any applicable state or federal exemptions, and be inspected by third persons.
I understand The Florida’s Office of Early Learning and the Early Learning Coalition have the right to initiate and/or receive data
either through direct contact or an automated data exchange process to establish the validity of household information provided by the
applicant/recipient to receive program benefits. This will include, but not necessarily be limited to, social security benefits, birth
dates and/or all sources of potential and reported earned and unearned income sources. (Employment records, unemployment benefits,
TANF, Child Support, etc.)
I understand the ELC and/or my chosen child care provider will provide routine and ongoing developmental and health screenings. I
give consent to these screenings with the understanding that I will receive the results and my child’s current child care provider will be
given a copy of the screening results. I give permission to the ELC and/or my child care provider to exchange information regarding
the above mentioned developmental and health screening results.
I understand that if I do not wish to have my child(ren) screened, I must complete form OEL-SR 24 – Parent Option to Decline Child
Screening and submit to ELC for my child(ren)’s file.
I understand that early learning services are based solely on client eligibility, availability of funds, and enrollment priorities.
These services are not an entitlement. I understand that if I am deemed ineligible for services through termination, suspension, etc., I may
have to go on a wait list and my eligibility for the wait list must be approved.
I understand that at any time I do not agree with a decision (i.e. decreased services, fees increased, terminated or denied)
regarding my child care funding, I have a right to appeal that decision. I must notify the ELC staff in writing of my request to appeal
and that I wish a supervisory review of my case within ten days of any detrimental decision regarding my case.
I understand that if the value of the public assistance or identification wrongfully received, retained, misappropriated, sought, or
used is of an aggregated value of $200.00 or more in any 12 consecutive months, based on Florida Statute 414.39, Title XXX, Social
Welfare, it is considered that such person commits a felony of the third degree, and may be punishable as provided in S. 775.082, S.
775.083, or S. 775084.
I certify that the information given in my application is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.
I understand that if I knowingly provide false information, hide information, pretend to be someone else, do not give all the information
needed about me or others, omit requested information, sign inaccurate attendance documents or fail to promptly report changes in
order to obtain benefits to which my child(ren) are not entitled, or to increase the benefits, I will be guilty of unlawful behavior (Florida
Statute 414.39, Title XXX, and Social Welfare). Then I can be required to pay back unauthorized subsidy payments and denied further
services. I will be liable for financial restitution and may be referred to the Florida Department of Financial Services for action and my
child care funding will be terminated. The ELC will investigate suspected fraud cases.
Parent/Guardian Signature

1

Date

ELC Staff Signature Date
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Community Coordinated Care for
Children, Inc. Head Start/Early Head Start
Program (4C) is funded to serve 941 infants,
toddlers, preschool aged children, and
pregnant women in Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties, Florida. The program offers
both Head Start and Early Head Start in 29
separate locations, offering direct services as
well as services through a child care
partnership. During the 2015-16 program year,
a total of 1,022 children and pregnant women
were served.
This Community Assessment is a tool to make
program decisions, to determine the types of
services most needed by families and children,
to locate resources available to meet those
needs, and to determine long- and short-term
program objectives. Head Start leadership staff
studies most important changes in the
communities and county on a regular basis.
However, the Community Assessment is the
formal and far-reaching process performed
every three years and updated annually.

Community Assessment Data Highlights
Population and Demographic Data. Population
growth continues to be a visible trend in Florida
and the 4C service area; from 2010 to 2015
growth ranged from 6.3 percent (Seminole
County) to 20.6 percent (Osceola County). Most
population growth is due to international and
domestic migration.
In Florida one in four residents is
Hispanic/Latino.
The
proportion
of
Hispanic/Latino residents in the 4C service area
ranges from 19.8 percent (Seminole County) to
51.0 percent (Osceola County). Orange
County’s black or African American population
is significantly larger, at 22.3 percent, when

Head Start promotes the school readiness of young children
from low-income families through agencies in their local
community. The Head Start program is authorized by
the Improving Head Start for School Readiness Act of 2007.
Head Start and Early Head Start programs support the
mental, social, and emotional development of children from
birth to age 5. In addition to education services, programs
provide children and their families with health, nutrition,
social, and other services. Head Start services are responsive
to each child and family's ethnic, cultural, and linguistic
heritage.
Head Start encourages the role of parents as their child's first
and most important teachers. Programs build relationships
with families that support positive parent-child
relationships, family well-being, and connections to peers
and community. Head Start began as a program for
preschoolers. Three- and 4-year-olds made up over 80
percent of the children served by Head Start last year.
Early Head Start serves pregnant women, infants, and
toddlers. Early Head Start programs are available to the
family until the child turns 3 years old and is ready to
transition into Head Start or another pre-K program. Early
Head Start helps families care for their infants and toddlers
through early, continuous, intensive, and comprehensive
services.
Local services are delivered by about 1,700 public and
private nonprofit and for-profit agencies. These agencies
receive grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS). Head Start agencies design services
for children and families that meet the needs of their local
community and the Head Start Program Performance
Standards. Some cities, states, and federal programs offer
funding to expand Head Start and Early Head Start to include
more children within their communities.
Both Head Start and Early Head Start programs offer a
variety of service models, depending on the needs of the
local community. Programs may be based in centers,
schools, or family child care homes. Early Head Start services
are provided for at least six hours per day, whereas Head
Start preschool services may be half-day (four hours) or fullday. Another program option is home-based services, in
which a staff person visits children once a week in their own
home and works with the parent as the child's primary
teacher. Children and families who receive home-based
services meet twice monthly with other enrolled families for
a group learning experience facilitated by Head Start staff.
https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/hslc/hs/about
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compared with Osceola County, 13.4 percent, and Seminole County, 12.3 percent.
Between 5.2 and 6.5 percent of the population in the 4C service area is below the age of 5. The median
age ranges from 34.4 to 39.1 years. Approximately two out of three households in Orange and Seminole
Counties, and three out of four households in Osceola County, are family households. In the 4C service
area almost 48,000 grandparents live with their grandchildren (under age 18), of which almost 15,000 are
responsible for the care of their grandchildren.
Socioeconomic Status. In Florida 86.9 percent of the adult population, age 25 or older, has a high school
degree or higher, and 27.3 percent have a bachelor’s degree or higher. In Osceola County, less than one
in five (18.0 percent) adults, age 25 and older, have a bachelor’s degree or higher, compared with 31.1
and 35.3 percent in Orange and Seminole Counties. At the end of the 2015-16 school year in Florida, 80.7
percent of students entering as ninth graders graduated from high school within four years; the
graduation rate for the same cohort in the 4C service area county schools was between 81.3 and 88.3
percent.
As of November 2016 the unemployment rate in Florida was 4.8 percent. In the 4C service area the
unemployment rates ranged from 4.2 percent (Seminole County) to 5.0 percent (Osceola County).
Florida’s median household income of $47,507 is lower than that of the U.S., which is $53,889. The median
household income in the 4C service area ranges from $44,254 (Osceola County) to $57,010 (Seminole
County). The median family income is higher for each geographic region, and ranges from $47,952
(Osceola County) to $68,725 (Seminole County).
According to the 2015 Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates, 15.8 percent of the total population and
23.4 percent of children, ages 0-17, in Florida lives in poverty. Child poverty for the 4C service area ranges
from 16.1 percent (Seminole County) to 27.5 percent (Osceola County). Approximately 287,000 children,
ages 0-4, live in poverty in Florida, of which 21,193 live in Orange County, 5,820 live in Osceola County,
and 3,631 live in Seminole County.
As of January 2017, 47,244 families in Florida received TANF benefits, of which 2,664 families were in
Orange County, 715 were in Osceola County, and 674 were in Seminole County. Florida’s total number of
families receiving TANF benefits reflected a 2.5 percent reduction when compared with the 48,445
families who received the benefit during the month of January 2016.
Economic Features and Trends. According to the Institute for Economic Competitiveness, the state of
Florida should benefit for the next four years with federal policies shifting toward a pro-growth position.
The forecast report also argues that the labor market in Florida will continue to show robust job creation,
and this has helped lift consumer sentiment and consumption spending in the state. The one area in the
state’s economy that has not recovered as rapidly is home equity, but hosing prices have been rising over
the past four years. The unemployment rate in the State of Florida has dropped from its recession-driven
peak level of 11.2 percent in January 2010, and stands at 4.8 percent as of October 2016.
Culture and Linguistic Characteristics. The cultural identity of many regions in the state of Florida is
influenced by changes in the population, particularly the growth of new residents moving in search of
economic opportunities and family reunification. Florida is a melting pot, as well as an international
crossroad in the U.S. Florida's public education system has identified more than 200 languages other than
WWW.NOLOCONSULTING.COM

7

Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
2017 Community Assessment
English spoken in the homes of students. As one of the Southern states, Florida has long been influenced
by Southern culture, although in South Florida and the urban Central Florida regions, Southern accents,
Southern food, and Southern culture have lost prominence.
In the state of Florida 26.8 percent of children, ages 5-17, and 19.5 percent of adults living in poverty, age
18 and older, speak Spanish as their primary language. The proportion of children, ages 5-17, in poverty
who speak Spanish as their primary language is higher in two of the three 4C service area counties: 31.8
percent in Orange County, 49.8 percent in Osceola County, and 18.4 percent in Seminole County.
Housing and Homelessness. In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties, one must earn $40,120 to afford
the rent of a two-bedroom home. This is almost the Poverty Guidelines for a family of eight, which is
$40,890. For those earning minimum wage ($8.55/hour), to afford the rent of a two-bedroom home, one
must work two full time jobs, or more than 96 hours per week. In Florida, more than 63,000 persons live
in public housing, of which 623 live in Orange and Seminole Counties (no data reported for Osceola
County); approximately 89 children under age 5 live in public housing in Orange and Seminole Counties.
During the 2016 point-in-time count, more than 24,000 homeless individuals were counted in the state of
Florida, of which 1,228 were in Orange County, 175 were in Osceola County, and 201 were in Seminole
County. The Florida Department of Education reports that more than 73,500 homeless students were
served in LEAs during the 2014-15 school year, of which 6,800 were served in Orange County schools,
4,672 were served in Osceola County schools, and 1,994 were served in Seminole County Schools.
Disabilities. According to the Florida Department of Education, during the 2015-16 school year, more than
366,000 children were enrolled in Programs for Exceptional Students (excluding gifted students), of which
more than 21,000 were enrolled in Orange County schools, more than 6,500 were in Osceola County
schools, and more than 8,700 in Seminole County schools.
During the same program year, 39,359 preschool age children, ages 3-5, with Individual Education Plans
(IEPs) were served in Florida Local Educations Agencies (LEAs), of which 2,167 were in Orange County
schools, 595 were in Osceola County schools, and 702 were in Seminole County schools.
Health and Wellness. According to data gathered by the Office on Women’s Health, Florida has relatively
low death rates due to stroke and diabetes, ranking 9th and 4th in the United States, respectively. However,
death rates due to diabetes are almost twice as high for black residents than for white residents. The state
ranks among the middle of the range of states with respect to heart disease and lung cancer.
Florida’s premature death rate (the years of potential life lost before age 75 per 100,000 residents) is
measured to be 6,800. Of the 67 counties, St. John’s County ranked 1st, with the best health outcomes (a
premature death rate of 5,300), while Gadsden County ranked 67th, with the worst health outcomes (a
premature death rate of 10,500). Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties rank 21st, 32nd, and 5th in health
outcomes, with premature death rates of 6,100, 6,100, and 5,600, respectively.
In the United States 5 percent of children under age 6 lack health insurance coverage; the rates in Florida
and the 4C service area are significantly higher. In Florida, Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties, 7, 9,
9, and 11 percent of children under age 6, respectively, lack health insurance coverage.
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The Florida Department of Health, Division of Public Health Statistics and Performance Management
reports that in 2015, 26.3 percent of WIC children, age 2 and older, in Florida are overweight or obese. In
the 4C service area between 24.3 and 25.0 percent of WIC children 2 and older are overweight.
Nutrition. As of December 2016, Florida was home to more than 1.7 million households (3.3 million
individuals) that receive food stamps, of which 172,670 households (349,613 individuals) reside in the 4C
service area.
The Florida School System’s Free and Reduced Lunch program provides meals to low-income children
while attending public school. During the 2015-16 school year 47.2 percent of students in Florida schools
were eligible for free or reduced priced meals. In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties 33.5, 38.8, and
49.2 percent of students were eligible for free or reduced priced meals, respectively.
In Florida, the food insecurity rate for children is 24.9 percent; this means that more than 1 million children
do not have consistent access to adequate food due to lack of money and other resources at times during
the year. In the 4C service area, more than 100,000 children experience food insecurity.
Licensed Child Care Programs. Based on data collected from Florida’s Office of Early Learning (OEL), as of
November, 2016 Florida enrolled a total of 158,036 children in its Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK)
Education Program during the 2016-17 program year. Of the more than 158,000 children enrolled, almost
20,000 were enrolled in the 4C service area; 12,287 in Orange County, 3,324 in Osceola County, and 4,058
in Seminole County.
Florida’s School Readiness Program offers financial assistance to low-income families for early childhood
education. During the 2016-17 program year, there were 8,058 School Readiness providers in the state of
Florida, of which 508 were in Orange County, 125 were in Osceola County, and 128 in Seminole County.
During the same program year, a total of 160,259 children were served by School Readiness programs in
the state of Florida, of which 48,659 were EHS-eligible infants and toddlers, and 49,811 were HS-eligible
preschool age children.

Identification of Issues and Recommendations
Based on the Comprehensive Community Assessment findings and the data studied for those counties
served by the Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc., the following are four broad and significant
issues affecting children and families served by the program:
1. Affordable Housing and Homelessness. Head Start parents identified the availability of affordable
housing as the 2nd highest ranking problem in their community (from a list of 20 indicators). One in five
parents/guardians felt that affordable housing is a “very serious problem.” In Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties those earning minimum wage ($8.55/hour) must work more than two full-time jobs,
or more than 96 hours per week, to afford a two-bedroom home at fair market rental value.
Recommendation: 4C Service Area presents an ideal opportunity for the Head Start’s staff to learn and
replicate the implementation of a measurable plans used by other nonprofit organizations and
government leadership (Florida Housing Coalition, Rethink Homelessness, Coalition for the Homeless,
Christian Service Center, Salvation Army, Central Florida Regional Commission on Homelessness,
McKinney-Vento Act in the schools and Mayor Dyer’s Homelessness Initiatives) with social impact that
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would increase the network with agencies and models to address housing challenges and homelessness.
Connections and partnerships would serve the program well in supporting homeless and unsheltered
families and children.
2. Economic Security: Focus on Jobs, Living Wage and Training. Head Start parents identified low wages,
lack of available jobs and living wage related issues (availability of affordable housing) as main problems
in their communities. Based on survey results, most parents feel that low wages and the availability of
jobs in the region are “very serious problems.” Moreover, key informants recommend a key top issue
priority to support adults in the service area is a focus on financial stability as a vital condition for many
young families.
Recommendation: Family services staff must focus on strengthening support to families that may have
jobs but not do not earn a living wage. The key is to strengthen partnerships with community colleges to
identify some of the most competitive job skills needed. The collaboration with local agencies and
community colleges could focus on providing ongoing learning and awareness opportunities to parents
about career opportunities and job skills programs. It is crucial to encourage parents to complete high
school and/or higher education courses through intensive family partnership and engagement activities.
Developing strong collaborative agreements with colleges and universities may also include setting up
grant writing and fundraising partnerships to support parents’ education, scholarships and other
resources needed to break barriers faced by parents to receive a higher education. It is an appropriate to
measure results of any collaboration efforts to establish accountability and focus on what is working to
increase the opportunities of parents’ obtainment of a better and/or living wage.
3. Service Area Population Change, Growth and Unique Transformation. The growth of the area’s
population is long-term and reflected in the growth of the 4C service area children. The overall population
in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties grew by 12.4, 20.6, and 6.3 percent from 2010 to 2015,
respectively.
Recommendation: Based on the need to assist in the acculturation process and success of new young
families moving to the region, particularly Osceola County, it is essential to help parents with pre-school
aged children to learn about the educational system and improve outcomes of children by strengthening
the capacity of parents to be informed and become confident leaders in the lives of their children.
4. Networking and Collaboration. Better collaboration was identified by experts and key informants
supporting the Community Assessment as a challenge to increase services to eligible children in the
county.
Recommendation: Each county faces similar challenges but these are not similar counties, based on
population changes and current initiatives by leadership. Building different 4C Advisory Groups (using key
informants, community leaders and experts) to address each county’s priority increases the opportunities
for the program to strengthen outreach and influence. These advisory groups may focus on different areas
or issues based on priorities (ex. single women issues, poverty related issues, assimilation needs,
affordable housing, etc.).
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STATE OF THE GRANTEE
Community Coordinated Care for Children (4C) embraces children as the nation’s greatest human asset.
It is an honor for 4C Head Start (HS) and Early Head Start (EHS) to have successfully operated its highquality, comprehensive early childhood development program for over two decades. 4C Early Head StartChild Care Partnerships (CCP) has operated its high-quality, comprehensive early childhood development
program for one year and has aligned with the Office of Head Start in its quest to ensure comprehensive
developmental services are delivered to all enrolled children and their families.
Since the program’s inception thousands of young children from low-income, culturally diverse families
have received quality services. 4C HS/EHS/CCP is committed to excellence and has placed into practice
systems designed to identify and benchmark such levels of performance in all service areas. The program
is a community asset providing services to vulnerable children and their families in the identified service
areas. Services provided to children include: health, disabilities, education, family engagement, nutrition,
mental health and school readiness. Family services are provided to families to assist them with goal
attainment in areas of their life which are most important to the family. The programs have documented
strengths and effective measures in place to overcome challenges.
All systems of management are linked into the annual planning process which is essential to the success
of HS/EHS/CCP programs. The process allows 4C to view, monitor, develop and evaluate progress towards
the program’s school readiness, training and technical assistance planning efforts as part of the overall
cycle. This well implemented stringent planning process has assisted the program in determining how
Self-Assessment and On-Going Monitoring are linked and how programming must differentiate between
the two. Planning of this magnitude will most assuredly assist 4C HS/EHS/CCP programs in the eradication
of program challenges, the achievement of program goals and the development of a Program of
Excellence.
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METHODOLOGY: THE COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS
This Community Assessment offers detailed information about numerous topics, as well as an
examination of the Head Start/Early Head Start service area’s strengths and barriers relative to early
childhood development. This is a comprehensive collection and analysis of key indicators to evaluate the
needs and characteristics of eligible Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C) Head Start/Early
Head Start children and families. This report not only fulfills 4C Head Start/Early Head Start’s federal
requirement, but it becomes an integral part of the program’s planning, implementation, and evaluation
process.
Every five years the program conducts a comprehensive collection and analysis of key indicators to
evaluate the needs and characteristics of eligible Head Start children and families. Every year after the
comprehensive analysis, a follow-up assessment becomes the latest baseline to identify current
community needs, design new plans, choose additional community partners, develop strategic
collaborations, evaluate progress of past interventions, and make relevant decisions about program
improvement changes expeditiously.
The Community Assessment methodology focuses on different levels of analysis. The following
components of the Community Assessment represent key methods utilized to complete this report:
1. Review of most recent secondary data on indicators that have an impact on the program and its
service delivery model(s). (Below we offer a rationale and brief description for the use of Census
Data: American Community Survey 5-year Estimates).
The Community Assessment includes all the necessary and required topics established by the Office of
Head Start. Data collection and analysis may include, but is not limited to, the Program Information Report
(PIR) data, family partnership agreements, child/family application data, child screening and outcomes
data, census data, local and state planning department reports, state department data, local interagency
committee reports, data from local school districts, child care resource and referral agencies, agencies
serving children with disabilities, health care providers, and social service providers.
2. Development and utilization of additional assessments, to include data observed or collected
directly from first-hand experience using such methods as attitude / perception surveys, key
informant interviews, community forums and/or focus group interviews.
The Head Start program staff identifies and puts into action other methods to collect data from different
sources and service areas. These include written parent needs assessment surveys, interviews with key
informants, and other telephone interviews with experts and individuals. The Parent Community Needs
Survey is administered to identify needs and strengths of eligible Head Start families in the service area
(see Appendix A: Parent Community Needs Survey). The Head Start program staff also identifies and
provides names of key informants to participate in interviews that will provide additional support to
secondary data analysis findings. These key informant interviews support data findings, generate
important implications and connections to program needs, and serve to generate strategic discussions in
relation to program improvement based on empirical data (see Appendix B: Key Informant Questions).

WWW.NOLOCONSULTING.COM

12

Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
2017 Community Assessment
This year’s Community Assessment enhances and updates recent program assessment efforts that
collected and reached groups of selected county and community experts and organizations. A consulting
team, Nolo Consulting, facilitated the Community Assessment process, which focused on promoting the
effective participation of all Head Start staff members, as well as helping in the identification and
organization of the best data sources to comply with Head Start Performance Standards. Prior to the
collection and analysis of the required data, consultants and the Head Start director agreed to strategic
priorities on data collection and analysis that are relevant to current issues and program priorities.
After completion of the data collection and analysis, leadership team members received a draft
Community Assessment report. This provided an opportunity for staff of the 4C Head Start/Early Head
Start program to ask questions, clarify information presented if needed, and offer additional feedback.
Finally, Policy Council members must review and approve the final version of the Community Assessment.
Census Data: American Community Survey 5-year estimate. A predominant data source (for population
and poverty statistics) used for this report is the U.S. Census Bureau’s 2015 American Community Survey,
5-year estimate. “The American Community Survey (ACS) is an ongoing survey that provides data every
year -- giving communities the current information they need to plan investments and services.
Information from the survey generates data that help determine how more than $450 billion in federal
and state funds are distributed each year.”i
In order to support local governments, communities, and federal programs, data was collected on the
following topics: age and sex, race and ethnicity, family and relationships, income and benefits, health
insurance, education, veteran status, disabilities, where you work and how you get there, and where you
live and how much you pay for some essentials.
Figure 1 is a chart describing the difference between 1-year, 3-year and 5-year estimates. Although the 5year estimate is the “least current” data set, it is the most reliable, and it allows for comparison and
analysis of all counties, townships. or census tracts, which are geographic levels necessary when
conducting an analysis of various populations, and/or other needs and indicators for Head Start programs.

SERVICE AREA DATA

Figure 1: U.S. Census Data: ACS 1-year, 3-year, 5-year Estimate Features
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Geography
Florida is in the Southeastern region of the United States, bordered by Alabama, Georgia, the Atlantic
Ocean, and the Gulf of Mexico. The state has the longest coastline in the contiguous United States. Florida
has a total area of 65,755 square miles, which makes it the 22nd largest state. With a population of more
than 19 million, Florida is the 8th most densely populated state in the country. The state is divided into 67
counties, the state capital is Tallahassee, and the largest city by population and area is Jacksonville, located
165 miles west of Tallahassee. The Community Coordinated Care of Children, Inc. Head Start/Early Head
Start program is funded to serve children in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties (Table 1).
County Seat
Area
Bordering
Counties

Cities /
Municipalities

Orange County
Orlando
1,003 sq. miles
(903 = land, 100 = water)
Seminole (north)
Volusia (northeast)
Brevard (east)
Osceola (south)
Poll (southwest)
Lake (west)
Apopka, Bay Lake, Belle Isle,
Eatonville, Edgewood, Lake
Buena Vista, Maitland,
Oakland, Ocoee, Orlando,
Windermere, Winter Garden,
and Winter Park

Osceola County
Kissimmee
1,506 sq. miles
(1,327 = land, 178 = water)
Orange (north)
Brevard (northeast)
Indian River (east)
Okeechobee (southeast)
Highlands (south)
Polk (west)
Lake (northwest)
Kissimmee, St. Cloud

Seminole County
Sanford
345 sq. miles
(309 = land, 36 = water)
Volusia (northeast)
Orange (south and west)
Lake (northwest)

Sanford, Oviedo, Altamonte
Springs, Winter Springs,
Casselberry, Lake Mary,
Longwood

Table 1: 4C Service Area Counties
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Population and Demographic Data
Population Growth and Change
Based on the 2010 Census, the total population of Florida was 18,801,310, up 17.6 percent from
15,982,378 in 2000. Census estimates from 2015 indicate that Florida’s population grew by an additional
7.8 percent (compared with 4.1 percent for the U.S.) from 2010 to 2015, reaching more than 20.2 million
residents. The population in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties grew by 12.4, 20.6, and 6.3 percent
from 2010 to 2015, respectively (Table 2, Fig 2).
United
States
308,745,538
321,418,820
4.1%

Total Population (2010 Census)
Population Estimate (Jul 1, 2015)
Percent Change

Florida

Orange
County
1,145,956
1,288,126
12.4%

18,801,310
20,271,272
7.8%

Osceola
County
268,685
323,993
20.6%

Seminole
County
422,718
449,144
6.3%

Table 2: Population Change 2010-15 (US Census)

2 0 1 0 - 1 5 P ercent P opul a t i on Cha nge
S ource: US Census
20.6%
12.4%

7.8%

4.1%
United States

6.3%

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Figure 2: Percent Population Change 2010-15 (US Census)

The five-year population change in the United States was mostly due to a natural increase (births minus
deaths), 57.9 percent, while in Florida the population change was mostly due to total migration (both
international and domestic migration), 86.0 percent. In the 4C service area the population change was
also mostly due to migration, between 67.8 and 79.2 percent (Fig 3).
2 0 1 0 - 1 5 P opul a t i on Cha nge
S ource: US Census
42.1%
86.0%
57.9%
12.3%
United States

Florida

67.8%

79.2%

69.1%

31.7%

19.5%

27.3%

Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Total Migration
Natural Increase

Figure 3: Natural Increase vs. Total Migration 2010-15 (US Census)
In demographics, the rate of natural increase is the crude birth rate minus the crude death rate of a population.
Net migration rate is the difference of immigrants and emigrants of an area in a period of time, divided (usually) per 1,000
inhabitants (considered on midterm population). A positive value represents more people entering the area than leaving
it, while a negative value means more people leaving than entering it.
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Approximately half of all persons who migrated into Florida moved from another state within the
contiguous United States (domestic migration); the other half emigrated from Puerto Rico or a country
outside of the U.S. (international migration). International migration into Orange County accounted for a
greater proportion of total net migration, 58 percent, while domestic migration accounted for a greater
proportion of total migration in Osceola and Seminole Counties, 53 and 64 percent, respectively (Fig 4).
T ot a l Mi gra t i on 2 0 1 0 - 1 5
S ource: US Census

52%

42%

48%

58%

Florida

Orange County

53%

64%

100%

United States

International

47%

Osceola County

36%
Seminole County

Domestic

Figure 4: International vs. Domestic Migration 2010-15 (US Census)

Cumulative Estimates of the Components of Population Change (April 1, 2010 – July 1, 2015)
Total
Natural
Vital Events
Net Migration
Population
Increase
Births
Deaths
Total International Domestic
Change
United States
12,660,715 7,325,826 20,782,904 13,457,078 5,334,889
5,334,889
(X)
Florida
1,466,649
179,728
1,129,845
950,117 1,261,155
610,495
650,660
Orange County
142,172
45,019
82,612
37,593
96,360
55,492
40,868
Osceola County
55,306
10,766
20,562
9,796
43,819
20,615
23,204
Seminole
26,426
7,202
23,362
16,160
18,261
6,636
11,625
County
Table 3: Cumulative Estimates of the Components of Population Change 2010-15 (US Census)

Although the overall population increased by 4.1 percent in the U.S. from 2010 to 2015, there are
significant differences in the percent increase for different races and ethnicities. For example, the white
population increased by only 2.4 percent, and the black population increased by 5.9 percent. The Asian
and bi-racial population (two or more) increased by 18.6 and 18.1 percent, respectively, in the U.S. from
2010-2015 (Fig -). The non-Hispanic/Latino population grew by 2.5 percent over the five-year period and
the Hispanic/Latino population increased by 12.1 percent (Fig 5).
In Florida, the biracial population grew the most, 24.6 percent while the Hispanic/Latino population grew
by 17.5 percent. The three counties in the 4C service area each experienced distinctive increases. For
example, the top two fastest growing races in Orange County were the biracial and Asian populations,
growing by 28.9 and 21.9 percent, respectively, from 2010-15. In Osceola County, the top two fastest
growing races were the biracial and American Indian Alaskan Native (AIAN) populations, growing by 32.5
and 30.3 percent, respectively. Note: although the AIAN population grew by 30.3 percent, the total
proportion of the population is still very low compared with other races and ethnicities.
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In Osceola County, the black or African American population has increased significantly, 28.4 percent,
compared with increases of 15.4 and 13.1 percent in Orange and Seminole Counties, respectively. In
Seminole County, the Native Hawaiian Pacific Islander (NHPI) population grew by 45.2 percent, and the
AIAN population grew by 22.4 percent (total populations remain small, however).
2 0 1 0 - 1 5 P ercent P opul a t i on Cha nge by Ra ce
S ource: US Census

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

White

2.4%

6.3%

10.2%

18.9%

Seminole County
4.1%

Black/AA

5.9%

10.7%

15.4%

28.4%

13.1%

AIAN

7.3%

13.4%

17.8%

30.3%

22.4%

Asian

18.6%

21.6%

21.9%

21.6%

18.6%

NHPI

12.7%

21.6%

18.6%

19.8%

45.2%

Two+

18.1%

24.5%

28.9%

32.5%

26.1%

Figure 5: Percent Population Change by Race 2010-15 (US Census)

The greatest distinction can be seen in the growth of the Hispanic/Latino population when compared with
the non-Hispanic/Latino population. In the 4C service area the Hispanic/Latino population grew by 22.8
to 34.5 percent, while the non-Hispanic/Latino population grew by only 2.8 to 8.3 percent (Fig 6).
2 0 1 0 - 1 5 P ercent P opul a t i on Cha nge by Et hni ci t y
S ource: US Census

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Hispanic/Latino

12.1%

17.5%

24.6%

35.4%

22.8%

Non-Hispanic/Latino

2.5%

5.0%

7.9%

8.3%

2.8%

Figure 6: Percent Population Change by Ethnicity 2010-15 (US Census)
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Racial and Ethnic Characteristics
Based on 2015 population estimates, almost one in four residents in Florida (24.5 percent) are
Hispanic/Latino. This far exceeds the Hispanic/Latino population in the United States (17.6 percent); the
Hispanic/Latino population in the 4C service area ranges from 19.8 percent (Seminole County) to 51.0
percent (Osceola County) (Fig 7).
Florida continues to be predominantly white (77.7 percent), though it has a larger black or African
American population than the U.S. (16.8 vs. 13.3 percent). The 4C service area counties are also
predominantly white (68.7 to 80.2 percent); Orange County has a large black or African American
population (22.3 percent) compared with Osceola and Seminole Counties (13.4 and 12.3 percent,
respectively) (Fig 8).
“White” refers to a person having origins
in any of the original peoples of Europe,
the Middle East, or North Africa.

2 0 1 5 P opul a t i on Es t i ma t es by Et hni ci t y
S ource: US Cens us

“Black or African American” refers to a
person having origins in any of the Black
racial groups of Africa.

United
States

Florida

Orange
County

Osceola
County

Seminole
County

Non-Hispanic/Latino

82.4%

75.5%

70.2%

49.0%

80.2%

Hispanic/Latino

17.6%

24.5%

29.8%

51.0%

19.8%

Figure 7: 2015 Population Estimate by Ethnicity (US Census)

2 0 1 5 P opul a t i on Es t i ma t es by Ra ce
S ource: US Cens us

“American Indian or Alaska Native” refers
to a person having origins in any of the
original peoples of North and South
America (including Central America) and
who maintains tribal affiliation or
community attachment.
“Asian” refers to a person having origins in
any of the original peoples of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, or the Indian
subcontinent, including, for example,
Cambodia, China, India, Japan, Korea,
Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands,
Thailand, and Vietnam.
“Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
Islander” refers to a person having origins
in any of the original peoples of Hawaii,
Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola
County

Seminole
County

Two+

2.6%

2.0%

2.6%

2.6%

2.6%

NHPI

0.2%

0.1%

0.2%

0.2%

0.1%

Asian

5.6%

2.8%

5.6%

3.0%

4.3%

AIAN

1.2%

0.5%

0.6%

0.8%

0.4%

Black/AA

13.3%

16.8%

22.3%

13.4%

12.3%

White

77.1%

77.7%

68.7%

79.9%

80.2%

Figure 8: 2015 Population Estimate by Race (US Census)

“Some Other Race” includes all other
responses not included in the White, Black
or African American, American Indian or
Alaska Native, Asian, and Native Hawaiian
or Other Pacific Islander race categories
described above. Respondents reporting
entries such as multiracial, mixed,
interracial, or a Hispanic or Latino group
(for example, Mexican, Puerto Rican,
Cuban, or Spanish) in response to the race
question are included in this category.
“Hispanic or Latino” refers to a person of
Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or
Central American, or other Spanish culture
or origin regardless of race.
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Not only is the Hispanic/Latino population in Florida and the 4C service area considerably larger than the
Hispanic/Latino population in the United States, the makeup of the Hispanic/Latino population in the
region is significantly different. While 63.9 percent of the United States’ Hispanic/Latino population is of
Mexican origin, in Florida only 14.3 percent of the Hispanic/Latino population is Mexican. One-fifth, 21.0
percent, are from Puerto Rico, 29.3 percent are Cuban, and 16.9 percent are from a country in South
America. The Hispanic/Latino population in the 4C service area counties is predominantly Puerto Rican,
48.9 to 59.1 percent (Fig 9).
Hi s pa ni c/L a t i no P opul a t i on
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
4.7%
6.0%
9.0%

3.3%

2.6%

2.2%

16.9%

15.3%

14.2%

3.2%
3.7%

5.6%

5.3%

10.9%

6.7%

9.2%

9.5%

4.3%

8.5%

4.3%

3.2%
17.6%
6.6%
5.2%

Other Hispanic/Latino

9.3%

South American
Central American

29.3%

Dominican
Cuban

49.2%

59.1%

63.9%

48.9%

21.0%

14.3%
United States

Florida

Puerto Rican
Mexican

12.1%
Orange County

5.7%

9.3%

Osceola County

Seminole County

Figure 9: Hispanic/Latino Population (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Sex and Age
U.S. Census data indicate that approximately 49.2 percent of the U.S. population is
male, and 50.8 percent is female; this is not significantly different for Florida and
the 4C service area. The youngest residents, those below age 5, make up 6.3
percent of the U.S. population, 5.5 percent of the population in Florida, and
between 5.2 and 6.5 percent of the population in the 4C service area. The median
age in Florida is higher than for the U.S. overall, 41.4, compared with 37.4 years.
The median age in the 4C service area ranges from 34.4 to 39.1 percent (Table 4).

Male
Female
Under 5 years
Median age (yrs)

United
States
49.2%
50.8%
6.3%
37.6

Florida
48.9%
51.1%
5.5%
41.4

Orange
County
49.1%
50.9%
6.3%
34.4

Osceola
County
49.2%
50.8%
6.5%
35.7

Seminole
County
48.4%
51.6%
5.2%
39.1

The "mean" is the
"average" (when
one adds all of the
values and then
divides by the
number of values).
The "median" is the
"middle" value in a
list of numbers
(found after the list
of numbers is
sorted in order).

Table 4: Population by Sex and Age (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Households
On average, approximately two out of three households (66.1 percent) in the United States are family
households. In Florida and Orange Counties, 64.4 percent of households are family households; 74.5
percent of Osceola County’s households are family households, and 66.5 of Seminole County’s households
are family households (Table 5).
Total households
United States
Florida
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

116,926,305
7,300,494
434,319
92,338
152,260

Family households
(families)
77,260,546
66.1%
4,699,888
64.4%
279,898
64.4%
68,786
74.5%
101,235
66.5%

Nonfamily households
39,665,759
2,600,606
154,421
23,552
51,025

33.9%
35.6%
35.6%
25.5%
33.5%

Table 5: Total Households (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Of the 678,917 households in the 4C service area, 18.5 to 21.8 percent are married-couple families with
children under the age of 18; 1.7 to 2.7 percent are families with a male householder (no wife present)
with children under age 18; and 6.6 to 10.0 percent are families with a female householder (no husband
present) with children under age 18 (Fig 10).
F a mi l y Hous ehol ds w i t h Ow n Chi l dren < Age 1 8
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
21.8%

19.4%

18.5%

18.8%

15.6%
7.1%
2.3%
Married-couple family

United States

2.1%

2.3%

2.7%

Orange County

8.9%

10.0%
6.6%

1.7%

Male householder, no wife present,
family
Florida

6.9%

Osceola County

Female householder, no husband
present, family
Seminole County

Figure 10: Households by Type (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
A family is a group of two people or more (one of whom is the householder) related by birth, marriage, or adoption and
residing together; all such people (including related subfamily members) are considered as members of one family. The
number of families is equal to the number of family households. However, the count of family members differs from the
count of family household members because family household members include any non-relatives living in the household.
A family household is a household maintained by a householder who is in a family (as defined above), and includes any
unrelated people (unrelated subfamily members and/or secondary individuals) who may be residing there. The number of
family households is equal to the number of families. The count of family household members differs from the count of family
members, however, in that the family household members include all people living in the household, whereas family
members include only the householder and his/her relatives. See the definition of family.
A nonfamily household consists of a householder living alone (a one-person household) or where the householder shares
the home exclusively with people to whom he/she is not related.
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Grandparents
An increasing number of children in the United States live in households headed by a grandparent. This trend is due to:
increasing numbers of single parent families, the high rate of divorce, teenage pregnancies, incarcerations of parents,
substance abuse by parents, illness, disability or death of parents, parental abuse or neglect. In many of these homes,
neither of the child's biological parents is present. In most cases, children taken care of by grandparents move in with them
as infants or preschoolers and remain with them for five years or more. These grandparents are a diverse group ranging in
ages from their thirties to their seventies. Many grandparents are ready to simplify their lives and slow down. Giving that up
and taking over the responsibilities of being a primary caregiver again can stir up many feelings including grief, anger, loss,
resentment and possibly guilt. The transition can be very stressful and the emotional and financial burdens can be
significant. Culture shock at having to deal with children and adolescents of a different generation can be great.
Grandparent-headed households have a significantly higher poverty rate than other kinds of family units.
--- American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

In Florida, more than 470,000 grandparents live with their grandchildren (under age 18), of which 33
percent are responsible for the care of their grandchildren. The majority, 40 percent, have been
responsible for their grandchildren for more than 5 years (Table 6, Fig 11). In the 4C service area almost
48,000 grandparents live with their grandchildren (under age 18), and almost 15,000 are responsible for
the care of their grandchildren.

Number of grandparents living with
own grandchildren under 18 years
Grandparents responsible for
grandchildren
Years responsible for grandchildren
Less than 1 year
1 or 2 years
3 or 4 years
5 or more years

United
States
7,203,712

Florida
471,561

Orange
County
28,366

Osceola
County
11,464

Seminole
County
8,089

2,685,185
(37%)

157,353
(33%)

9,453
(33%)

3,188
(28%)

2,240
(28%)

21%
22%
17%
40%

21%
22%
16%
40%

25%
18%
19%
38%

23%
34%
13%
30%

16%
25%
21%
38%

Table 6: Grandparents Living with and Responsible for Own Grandchildren (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Gra ndpa rent s Reps ons i bl e for Gra ndchi l dren by N umber of Y ea rs
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est

40%

40%

38%

30%

38%

13%

5 or more years

16%

19%

22%

22%

18%

21%

21%

25%

23%

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

17%

21%

3 or 4 years
1 or 2 years

34%
25%

Less than 1 year

16%
Seminole County

Figure 11: Grandparents Responsible for Grandchildren by Number of Years (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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The number of grandchildren under the age of 18 living with a grandparent householder in Florida exceeds
340,000. Approximately 46 percent of those children are under the age of 6; 31 percent are between the
ages of 6 and 11, and 22 percent are between 12 and 17 (Table 7). In the 4C service area combined, almost
34,000 grandchildren under the age of 18 live with a grandparent householder. In Orange and Osceola
Counties, 50 percent of grandchildren living with a grandparent householder are below age 6 (Fig 12).

Total Grandchildren < 18 Living
with Grandparent Householder
under 6 years
6 to 11 years
12 to 17 years

United
States
5,628,203
2,630,293
1,723,256
1,274,654

Florida
341,535

Orange
County
20,333

Osceola
County
7,604

Seminole
County
5,810

158,536
107,079
75,920

10,246
5,894
4,193

3,770
2,066
1,768

2,387
2,206
1,217

Table 7: Grandchildren <18 Living with a Grandparent Householder (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Ag e of Gra ndchi l den L i v i ng w i t h Gra ndpa rent Househol der
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
23%

22%

21%

23%

21%

31%

31%

29%

27%

38%

12 to 17 years
6 to 11 years
under 6 years

47%

46%

50%

50%

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

41%

Seminole County

Figure 12: Age of Grandchildren Living with Granparent Householder (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Socioeconomic Status
Education
Educational Attainment (Adults)
In the United States and Florida approximately 86 percent of the adult population over age 25 is at
minimum a high school graduate; in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties 87.6, 85.2, and 93.0 percent
of the adult population over age 25 has a high school degree or higher. The proportion of those with a
bachelor’s degree or higher is greatest in Osceola County, 35.5 percent (Table 8).

Percent high school graduate or higher
Percent bachelor's degree or higher

United
States
86.7%
29.8%

Florida

Orange
County
87.6%
31.1%

86.9%
27.3%

Osceola
County
85.2%
18.0%

Seminole
County
93.0%
35.3%

Table 8: Educational Attainment Population Age 25+ (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Figure 13 illustrates the educational attainment of adults in more detail; in Osceola County, the proportion
of adults with a graduate or professional degree is significantly lower (5 percent) when compared with
Orange County (10 percent) and Seminole County (12 percent). In a globally competing market, regions
and cities with high concentrations of well-educated populations are far more equipped to attract both
local and foreign businesses. These businesses assist in lowering unemployment rates, increase median
household incomes, and reduce the number of families living in poverty.
Educa t i ona l At t a i nment P opul a t i on Age 2 5 +
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
11%

10%

10%

5%

12%

13%
19%

8%

21%

17%

21%

10%

24%
Graduate or professional degree

9%
10%

23%

Bachelor's degree

12%

Associate's degree

21%
20%

Some college, no degree
22%

High school graduate (includes equivalency)
9th to 12th grade, no diploma

34%
28%

29%

Less than 9th grade

26%
24%

8%

8%

7%

6%

5%

5%

United States

Florida

9%
6%

5%
2%

Orange County Osceola County Seminole County

Figure 13: Educational Attainment Population Age 25+ (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

WWW.NOLOCONSULTING.COM

23

Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
2017 Community Assessment

Florida Department of Education
Florida’s reported total student membership in public schools during the 2016-17 program year reached
more than 2.8 million students, of which 200,674 are in Orange County, 63.301 are in Osceola County,
and 67,808 are in Seminole County (Table 9).ii Approximately 39 percent of students enrolled in Florida’s
public schools are white, 32.4 percent are Hispanic/Latino, and 22.3 percent are black or African American.
Most students in Orange and Osceola Counties’ schools are Hispanic/Latino, 39.8 and 59.8 percent,
respectively. Seminole County schools report the largest proportion of white students, 51.0 percent. Black
or African American students make up 26.1, 10.6, and 14.8 percent of Orange, Osceola, and Seminole
Counties’ schools, respectively (Fig 14).
White
Florida
Orange
Osceola
Seminole

1,089,438
53,376
15,117
34,583

STUDENT MEMBERSHIP PK-12: SCHOOL YEAR 2016-17
Hispanic
Black /
Two +
Asian
AIAN
/ Latino
AA
913,073
628,754
96,426
75,966
8,744
79,810
52,376
4,336
9,054
501
37,828
6,735
1,605
1,398
205
17,204
10,034
2,381
3,282
122

NHPI

Total

4,423
604
143
202

2,816,824
200,674
63,301
67,808

Table 9: Public School Student Membership by Race/Ethnicity (2016-17)

S t udent M embers hi p P K - 1 2 by Ra ce/Et hni ci t y: S chool Y ea r 2 0 1 6 - 1 7
S ource: F L Depa rt ment of Educa t i on

Florida

Orange

Osceola

Seminole

White

38.7%

26.6%

23.9%

51.0%

Hispanic / Latino

32.4%

39.8%

59.8%

25.4%

Black / AA

22.3%

26.1%

10.6%

14.8%

Two +

3.4%

2.2%

2.5%

3.5%

Asian

2.7%

4.5%

2.2%

4.8%

AIAN

0.3%

0.2%

0.3%

0.2%

NHPI

0.2%

0.3%

0.2%

0.3%

Figure 14: Public School Student Membership by Race/Ethnicity (2016-17)

English Language Learners (ELL) and Economically Disadvantaged
Florida Statutes define an English Language Learner (ELL) as "an individual who was not born in the United
States and whose native language is a language other than English; an individual who comes from a home
environment where a language other than English is spoken in the home; or an individual who is an
American Indian or Alaskan native and who comes from an environment where a language other than
English has had a significant impact on his or her level of English language proficiency; and who, by reason
thereof, has sufficient difficulty speaking, reading, writing, or listening to the English language to deny
such individual the opportunity to learn successfully in classrooms where the language of instruction is
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English" (section 1003.56(2). Economically disadvantaged students are those who are deemed eligible to
receive free or reduced price lunch.
In Florida’s public schools 273,605 students enrolled during the 2016-17 school-year are English Language
Learners (10.4 percent of the total student body). Due to the school district size, Orange County schools
report the highest number of ELL students, almost 29,000. However, Osceola County schools report the
highest proportion of ELL students, 19.7 percent (Table 10, Fig 15).
More than one-half of students in Florida public schools are classified as economically disadvantaged, 58
percent. In Orange County two-thirds of the student body is considered economically disadvantaged, 65.6
percent.
English Language Learners
294,309
28,980
12,453
3,421

Florida
Orange
Osceola
Seminole

Economically Disadvantaged
1,633,561
131,673
35,884
31,993

Table 10: Public School Student Membership (2016-17)

S t udent M em bershi p P K - 1 2 : S chool Y ea r 2 0 1 6 - 1 7
S ource: F L Depa rt ment of Educa t i on
65.6%

58.0%
14.4%

10.4%

19.7%

56.7%

47.2%

5.0%

English Language Learners

Economically Disadvantaged
Florida

Orange

Osceola

Seminole

Figure 15: Public School Student Membership (2016-17)

Graduation Rates
At the end of the 2015-16 school year in Florida, 80.7 percent of students entering as ninth graders
graduated from high school within four years; the graduation rate for the same cohort in the 4C service
area county schools were between 81.3 and 88.3 percent. iii Table 11 provides graduation rates for
students based on race/ethnicity as well as ELL and economically disadvantaged status.
Graduation Rates by Race/Ethnicity 2015-16
Total
White
Hispanic/Latino
Black /AA
Two +
Asian
AIAN
NHPI
English Language Learners
Economically Disadvantaged

Florida
80.7
85.1
79.5
72.3
82.7
91.9
76.5
84.7
62.0
74.4

Orange
81.3
88.9
80.8
70.3
86.7
93.1
90.3
76.5
68.7
77.0

Osceola
82.0
86.8
79.6
79.9
83.0
93.8
89.5
*
63.7
80.5

Seminole
88.3
91.5
84.6
78.6
86.2
95.0
100.0
100.0
74.1
80.8

Table 11: 2015-16 State and District Graduation Rates
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Employment Status and Income
Per
the
U.S.
Department of Labor,
Bureau
of
Labor
Statistics,
the
unemployment rate in
Florida (not seasonally
adjusted) in November
4C Service Area
2016 was 4.8 percent;
County
the
unemployment
rate for Orange and
Seminole Counties was
Hendry County
Florida: 4.7%
lower, at 4.3 and 4.2
Orange County 4.3%
Osceola County 5.0%
percent, respectively,
Monroe County
Seminole County 4.2%
while
the
unemployment rate for
Osceola County was Figure 16: Unemployment Rates by County (not seasonally adjusted), November 2016
higher, 5.0 percent (Fig
16). The lowest unemployment rate in Florida was measured in Monroe County, at 3.2 percent, while the
highest unemployment rate was measured in Hendry County at 9.1 percent.iv
Like the U.S. and Florida, approximately one--third, or 35 percent, of the civilian employed population,
age 16+, in Orange County is employed in management, business, science and arts occupations. In Osceola
and Seminole Counties, the proportion is 24 and 43 percent, respectively. Figure 17 illustrates the
proportion of the population that is employed in various occupations by county and/or state.
Occupa t i on of Ci v i l i a n Em pl oyed P opul a t i on Age 1 6 +
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
12%
9%

9%

9%

9%

7%

24%

27%

27%

18%

21%

22%

12%

7%
6%

9%

Production, transportation, and material
moving occupations

29%

Natural resources, construction, and
maintenance occupations

29%
16%

Sales and office occupations

26%

37%

34%

Service occupations
43%

35%

Management, business, science, and arts
occupations

24%

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County Seminole County

Figure 17: Occupation of Civilian Employed Population Age 16+ (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Figure 18 illustrates the industries in which the civilian employed population, age 16 and over, are
employed. In Orange County, an equal proportion is employed in arts, entertainment, and recreation and
accommodation, and food services (19 percent) and in educational services, health care and social
assistance (19 percent). In Osceola County one in four (25 percent) are employed in arts, entertainment,
and recreation and accommodation, and food services. In Seminole County, just over one in five (22
percent) are employed in educational services, health care and social assistance. Additionally, one in ten
(10 percent) of the population, age 16 and over, in Seminole County is employed in finance and insurance,
and real estate and rental and leasing industries, compared with 7 and 4 percent in Orange and Osceola
Counties, respectively.
Indus t ry of Ci v i l i a n Empl oyed P opul a t i on Age 1 6 +
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
5%
5%
10%

5%

3%

4%

4%

5%

4%

5%

5%

12%

Public administration

10%
19%
25%

Other services, except public administration
Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and
accommodation and food services

23%

22%

Educational services, and health care and social
assistance

21%
19%

Professional, scientific, and management, and
administrative and waste management services

18%
11%

Finance and insurance, and real estate and rental
and leasing

16%

13%

Information

14%
11%

7%
2%
5%

8%
2%
5%

7%
2%
5%

12%

4%
1%
6%

Transportation and warehousing, and utilities

10%

Retail trade

3%

Wholesale trade

4%
Manufacturing

13%
3%
10%

15%

13%

Construction

3%

2%
3%

3%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and
mining

3%
5%

6%

7%

2%

1%
Florida

United States

13%

5%

5%

6%
6%
5%
1%
0%
0%
Orange County Osceola County Seminole County

Figure 18: Industry of Civilian Employed Population Age 16+ (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Florida’s median household income of $47,507 is lower than that of the U.S., which is $53,889. The median
household income in the 4C service area ranges from $44,254 (Osceola County) to $57,010 (Seminole
County). The median family income is higher for each geographic region, and ranges from $47,952
(Osceola County) to $68,725 (Seminole County).
Median and mean household incomes are included to
ensure that comparisons are not misleading. Using the
mean household income alone, for example, will ignore
extreme values if the data is not symmetrically
distributed. It is a fact that more people earn low
salaries than high ones, because a fairly large
proportion of the population works part-time, so the
data will not be symmetrically distributed. Therefore,
the mean is not the best 'average' to use in this case
when comparing income across the state.
Income (in 2015 InflationAdjusted Dollars)
Median household income
Mean household income
Median family income
Mean family income
Per capita income

United
States
$53,889
$75,558
$66,011
$88,153
$28,930

The "mean" is the "average" (when one adds all of
the values and then divides by the number of values).
The "median" is the "middle" value in a list of
numbers (found after the list of numbers is sorted in
order).
Per capita income measures the average income
earned per person in a given area (city, region,
country, etc.) in a specified year. It is calculated by
dividing the area's total income by its total population.

Florida
$47,507
$67,975
$57,504
$79,510
$26,829

Orange
County
$47,943
$68,045
$56,447
$79,064
$25,411

Osceola
County
$44,254
$56,647
$47,952
$60,802
$19,165

Seminole
County
$57,010
$77,572
$68,725
$92,336
$29,162

Table 12: Household, Family and Per Capita Income (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Poverty
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services issues the
Federal Poverty Guidelines in the Federal Register annually. The
Poverty Guidelines for a family of four in 2016 is $24,300. Research
suggests that a family of four requires at least double that amount
to make ends meet. v The measurement only accounts for the
family’s annual gross income; it does not include other aspects of
economic status such as housing, debt, assets, or property. The
calculation used today was originally developed in the 1960s based
on the amount of money spent by families on food. The poverty
level was reached by multiplying that dollar amount (money spent
by families on food) times three. Today, families not only spend
Figure 19: 2016 Poverty Guidelines
approximately one-seventh of their annual income on food, but
the cost of childcare, transportation, and health care have increased drastically over the past 50 years.vi
Poverty in Florida. Per the 2015 Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE), 15.8 percent of the
population in Florida lives in poverty (more than 3.1 million individuals), and 23.4 percent of children, ages
0-17, live in poverty (more than 944,000 children). More than 280,000 Head Start and Early Head Start
eligible children, ages 0 to 4, live in poverty in Florida (Table 13, Fig 20). In the 4C service area the poverty
rate for the population overall ranges from 11.5 to 18.5 percent; the poverty rate for children, ages 0-17,
ranges from 16.1 to 27.5 percent. Note: The SAIPE does not estimate the number of children ages 0-4 in poverty
by county; 2015 ACS 5-year estimates from the U.S. Census Bureau are used in subsequent sections of this report.
Name

Poverty Est,
All Ages
46,153,077
3,129,061
196,882
59,226
51,205

United States
Florida
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

Poverty %,
All Ages
14.7
15.8
15.6
18.5
11.5

Poverty Est,
Age 0-17
15,000,273
944,415
64,759
21,913
15,229

Poverty %,
Age 0-17
20.7
23.4
22.6
27.5
16.1

Poverty Est,
Age 0-4
4,448,211
280,519
.
.
.

Poverty %,
Age 0-4
22.8
26.0
.
.
.

Table 13: Poverty (2015 SAIPE)

P opul a t i on i n P ov ert y
S ource: 2 0 1 5 S AIP E
27.5

14.7

15.8

15.6

20.7

18.5

23.4

22.6
16.1

11.5

Poverty Percent, All Ages
United States

Florida

Poverty Percent, Age 0-17
Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Figure 20: Poverty (2015 SAIPE)
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Poverty by Race/Ethnicity
Although the overall poverty rate (for all ages) in Florida is 15.8 percent, the poverty rate for black or
African Americans (who make up 17 percent of the population in the state) is 27.5 percent. The poverty
rate for Hispanic/Latino residents in the state (who make up 25 percent of the population in the state) is
21.6 percent (Fig 21). A significant disparity is seen in the poverty rates between the races and ethnicities
in each of the 4C service area counties. Note: Although the poverty rate for those who identify with a race
of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander (NHPI) is very high in both Osceola and Seminole Counties, the
proportion of the population is very small, 0.2 and 0.1 percent, respectively.
P ercent of P opul a t i on i n P ov ert y by Ra ce/Et hni ci t y
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est

White

Black/AA

AIAN

Asian

NHPI

Other

Two+

Hispanic

United States

12.7%

27.0%

28.3%

12.6%

21.0%

26.5%

19.9%

24.3%

Florida

14.0%

27.5%

23.7%

12.5%

22.4%

25.8%

19.5%

21.6%

Orange County

14.6%

25.9%

23.6%

13.7%

7.3%

25.9%

18.5%

23.1%

Osceola County

18.0%

23.4%

33.0%

11.0%

68.0%

28.6%

26.2%

24.2%

Seminole County

10.4%

21.6%

13.1%

11.1%

46.5%

25.5%

14.7%

17.2%

Figure 21: Poverty by Race/Ethnicity (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Poverty by Educational Attainment
Obtaining a higher level of education significantly impacts poverty rate; in Florida 28.3 percent of the
population with only a high school degree live in poverty, while 5.9 percent of the population with a
bachelor’s degree or higher live in poverty. In Osceola County 8.4 percent of the population with a
bachelor’s degree or higher live in poverty, compared with only 4.6 percent in Seminole County (Fig 22).
P ercent of P opul a t i on i n P ov ert y by Educa t i ona l At t a i nment
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est

Less than high school graduate

High school graduate (includes
Some college, associate's degree
equivalency)

Bachelor's degree or higher

United States

27.5%

14.3%

10.5%

4.5%

Florida

28.3%

16.1%

11.2%

5.9%

Orange County

28.1%

17.0%

12.4%

5.9%

Osceola County

26.9%

15.6%

14.2%

8.4%

Seminole County

22.0%

12.7%

9.8%

4.6%

Figure 22: Poverty by Educational Attainment (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Poverty by Employment Status
Like educational attainment, a significant difference is seen in poverty rates between employed and
unemployed individuals. Females, employed or unemployed, live in poverty at higher rates than their
employed or unemployed male counterparts in all geographic areas studied, except for Seminole County.
In Seminole County, unemployed males live in poverty at a rate of 29.9 percent, while unemployed
females live in poverty at a rate of 26.2 percent (Fig 23).
P ercent of P opul a t i on i n P ov ert y by Empl oyment S t a t us
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Employed Male

6.3%

7.1%

8.4%

8.8%

5.4%

Employed Female

8.4%

8.9%

10.0%

9.5%

6.7%

Unemployed Male

30.3%

33.1%

34.3%

25.2%

29.9%

Unemployed Female

36.4%

39.0%

37.0%

37.7%

26.2%

Figure 23: Poverty by Employment (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Families in Poverty
In the United States 11.3 percent of all families live in poverty, and 30.6 percent of families led by a single
female (no husband present) live in poverty. Poverty rates for families with related children under the age
of 18 are significantly higher. For example, in the U.S. families without children under age 18 live in poverty
at a rate of 6.2 percent, while families with 5 or more children under age 18 live in poverty at a rate of
45.8 percent. Also, four out of five families led by a single female, with five or more children under age 18
live in poverty, 82.8 percent.
In Florida families without children under age 18 live in poverty at a rate of 7.2 percent, while more than
one-half of families with five or more children under age 18 live in poverty, 57.5 percent. Like the U.S.,
more than four out of five families led by a single female, with five or more children under age 18, live in
poverty, 84.9 percent.
Table 14 provides poverty data for each of the 4C service area counties. It is notable that 96.2 and 90.4
percent of families led by single females, with five or more children under age 18, live in poverty in Orange
and Osceola Counties.
Families
United
States
Florida

All families
Married-couple families
Single female householder
All families
Married-couple families
Single female householder

11.3%
5.6%
30.6%
12.0%
6.6%
29.0%

# of Own Children of Householder <18
None
1 or 2
3 or 4 5 or more
6.2%
15.2%
27.3%
45.8%
3.9%
6.1%
14.7%
31.6%
15.9%
37.3%
64.6%
82.8%
7.2%
17.1%
31.4%
57.5%
4.9%
7.8%
17.5%
39.7%
16.2%
35.5%
64.2%
84.9%
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Families
Orange
County
Osceola
County
Seminole
County

All families
Married-couple families
Single female householder
All families
Married-couple families
Single female householder
All families
Married-couple families
Single female householder

13.6%
7.1%
30.0%
16.2%
10.2%
32.9%
8.3%
4.7%
21.7%

# of Own Children of Householder <18
None
1 or 2
3 or 4 5 or more
7.1%
17.9%
35.7%
62.9%
4.5%
8.2%
21.9%
41.1%
14.9%
35.9%
63.1%
96.2%
8.2%
22.2%
35.2%
57.7%
6.4%
11.5%
26.4%
44.0%
14.7%
42.6%
62.8%
90.4%
5.2%
11.2%
20.5%
51.3%
3.7%
5.5%
10.5%
30.4%
12.8%
25.7%
50.4%
71.4%

Table 14: Poverty for Select Family Characteristics (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Children in Poverty
According to 2015 Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) from the U.S. Census bureau, Florida
is home to approximately 280,519 children, ages 0-4, in poverty; SAIPE estimates for children in poverty,
ages 0 to 4, are not provided for individual counties, townships, or census tracts. To estimate children in
poverty in the 4C service area counties, poverty data from the 2015 ACS 5-year Estimate (B17001) are
used. These estimates use data from 2011 to 2015, and reflect a 2.2 percent greater number of children in
poverty: 280,519 vs. 286,782.
Table 15 provides information on child poverty for the United States, Florida, and the 4C service area
counties by race and ethnicity.

Children ages 0-4 in
Poverty
White
Black
AIAN
Asian
NHPI
Other
Two+
Hispanic
Non-Hispanic

United States

Florida
286,782

Orange
County
21,193

Osceola
County
5,820

Seminole
County
3,631

4,795,039
2,561,943
1,197,280
74,554
109,637
11,980
488,524
351,121
1,754,438
3,040,601

152,633
98,485
938
2,660
264
14,461
17,341
102,032
184,750

8,767
8,236
20
343
2,633
1,194
9,477
11,716

3,792
890
25
58
25
386
644
3,339
2,481

2,018
865
184
31
45
488
1,358
2,273

Table 15: Number of Children (0-4) in Poverty by Race and Ethnicity (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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As previously stated, 16.8 percent of Florida’s population is black or African American, yet 34.0 percent of
children, ages 0-4, in poverty are black or African American. A disparity exists for each of the 4C service
area counties; even though the black of African American population in those counties range from 12.3
percent (Seminole County) to 22.3 percent (Orange County), the proportion of children, age 0-4, in
poverty who are black or African American ranges from 15 to 39 percent (Fig 24).
Ra ci a l P roport i on of Chi l dren Ages 0 - 4 i n P ov ert y
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - Y ea r Est i m a t es
7%
10%

6%
5%

6%
12%

11%

13%

7%

1%

15%

34%

Two+
24%

25%
39%

Other
NHPI
Asian
AIAN

65%
53%

56%

53%

White

41%

United States

Florida

Orange County

Black

Osceola County

Seminole County

Figure 24: Racial Proportion of Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

The discrepancy between the general population and the proportion of children, ages 0-4, in poverty is
also seen for Hispanic residents. In Florida 36 percent of children, ages 0-4, in poverty is Hispanic (while
the overall Hispanic population is 24.5); in the 4C service area counties between 43 and 63 percent of
children, ages 0-4, in poverty is Hispanic, while 20 to 51 percent of the population overall is Hispanic (Fig
25).
Et hni cy P roport i on of Chi l dren Ages 0 - 4 i n P ov ert y
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - Y ea r Est i ma t es

63%

64%

55%

43%
63%
Non-Hispanic

37%

36%

United States

Florida

45%

Orange County

Hispanic

57%
37%
Osceola County

Seminole County

Figure 25: Ethnic Proportion of Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Federal Assistance Benefits
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) provides temporary cash assistance and employmentrelated services to enable families with children to become self-supporting. In Florida to qualify for the
program, one must be a resident of the state, either be pregnant or responsible for a child under 19 years
of age, a U.S. national, citizen, legal alien, or permanent resident, have low or very low income, and be
either under-employed (working for very low wages), unemployed, or about to become unemployed.vii
The Economic Self-Sufficiency program office in the Florida Department of Children and Families
administers the TANF Temporary Cash Assistance program.
As of January 2017, 47,244 families in Florida received TANF benefits, of which 2,664 families were in
Orange County, 715 were in Osceola County, and 674 were in Seminole County. Florida’s total number of
families receiving TANF benefits reflected a 2.5 percent reduction when compared with the 48,445
families who received the benefit during the month of January 2016.viii

Supplemental Security Income (SSI)
Supplemental Security Income, or SSI, provides monthly financial payments to low-income adults that are
blind, disabled, or age 65 and older. Disabled or blind children are also eligible to receive SSI benefits.
Families receiving SSI are categorically eligible for Head Start services, providing the family an additional
benefit and supportive resource. In 2015, 105,455 children under age 18 received SSI benefits in Florida,
of which 9,401 were in Orange County, 2,947 in Osceola County, and 1,732 in Seminole County (Table
16).ix
Number of SSI Recipients by Age - December 2015 (released October 2016)
Total
Age
Percent of SSI Precipients by
<18
18–64
65+
Source: www.ssa.gov
Florida
571,293 105,455 271,621 194,217

Orange
County

35,155

Osceola
County

10,646

Seminole
County

7,195

9,401

2,947

1,732

17,308

5,206

3,911

24%

23%

22%

49%

49%

54%

18%

27%

28%

24%

Florida

Orange County

Osceola
County

Seminole
County

26%

34%

59%

48%

15%
United States

8,446

2,493

Age

1,552

<18

18–64

65+

Table 16: Number of SSI Recipients by Age - December 2015 (released October 2016)
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Economic Features and Trends
Osceola, Orange, and Seminole Counties are included in the Orlando-Kissimmee-Stanford Florida
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). The Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area is the 26th
largest in the nation with a combined population of more than 2.3 million. The largest Florida counties by
population are Orange County, Seminole County, and Lake County. The largest places in OrlandoKissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area by population are Orlando, Alafaya, and Pine Hills.
Based on 2014 Census data values, households in Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area have a
median income that is higher than the average median income for the state of Florida. Comparatively, the
highest median income is for residents of Seminole County, follow by Orange County, and then
Osceola County.
The most common jobs in Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area by number of employees are
Administrative Supervisors; Retail Supervisors; and Executives. Compared with other metropolitan
statistical areas, Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area has an unusually high number of Art and
Design; Food and Serving Supervisors; and Janitorial Supervisors. The highest paid jobs in OrlandoKissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area, by median earnings, are Physicians & Surgeons; Lawyers and Law
Clerks; and Architects, Surveyors, and Cartographers.x
The most common industries in Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area by number of employees
are Retail trade; Healthcare and Social Assistance; and Accommodation and Food Service. Compared with
other metropolitan statistical areas, Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area has an unusually
high number of Arts, Entertainment, Recreation; Management of Companies and Enterprises; and
Administrative, Support, Waste Management Services. The highest paying industries in OrlandoKissimmee-Sanford, Florida Metro Area, by median earnings, are Utilities; Professional, Scientific, Tech
Services; and Management of Companies and Enterprises.
The Orlando-Kissimmee-Stanford MSA has numerous tourist attractions such as Walt Disney World,
Universal Studios, and SeaWorld. It is also home to the Orlando Magic professional basketball team and
a professional soccer team. Orlando hosts many conventions in some of the biggest hotels in the country,
and it is considered the US second largest convention center. The University of Central Florida is the
second largest university with more than 59,000 students. There are also other higher education
institutions in the Orlando-Kissimmee MSA.xi
According to the Institute for Economic Competitiveness, the state of Florida should benefit for the next
four years with federal policies shifting toward a pro-growth position. The forecast report also argues that
the labor market in Florida will continue to show robust job creation, and this has helped lift consumer
sentiment and consumption spending in the state. The one area in the state’s economy that has not
recovered as rapidly is home equity, but hosing prices have been rising over the past four years. The
unemployment rate in Florida has dropped from its recession-driven peak level of 11.2 percent in January
2010, and stands at 4.8 percent as of October 2016. After five years, well above the national rate of
unemployment, Florida’s October 2016 unemployment rate was below the national unemployment rate.xii
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Orlando-Kissimmee-Stanford area is expected to show moderate growth in most of the economic
indicators. Personal income growth is expected to average 6.1 percent annually, the highest of the 12
Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs) in the state of Florida. The real per capita income level is expected
to average $37,500. Average annual wage growth will be 3.7 percent. The average annual wage will be at
a level of $51,800. The Orlando MSA will see an average population growth of 2.2 percent, the second
highest of the MSAs studied in Florida. Gross Metro Product is expected to average at 125,887.73 million
dollars, the third highest of the MSAs studied.
Top Orlando-Kissimmee-Stanford Florida Metropolitan Statistical Area Employers, include the number of
employees arexiii:













Walt Disney World Resort 69,000
Orange County Public Schools 22,000
Florida Hospital (Adventist Health) 17,600
Universal Orlando (Comcast) – 17,300
Orlando Health – 14,310
University of Central Florida – 11,078
Seminole County Public Schools – 7,786
Orange County Government – 7,553
Darden Restaurants Inc. – 7,600
Osceola County Public Schools – 6,500
SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment – 6,032
Lockheed Martin Corporation – 5,774

One of the newest economic development projects includes the completion of a $75 million High School
in Kissimmee slated to be operational for the 2018-19 school year. This economic development initiative
is a STEAM-focused (science, technology, engineering, arts and math) program to provide career and
technical education programs including robotics, biomedical engineering, health sciences, cyber security,
and alternative energy, to prepare students in the area for high-wage market sectors. Currently, there are
also hotel expansion plans for Orlando, Lockheed Martin Orlando’s 7.1B fighter jet contract, and a $1
million incentive package for Deloitte (information technology company) to create jobs in Seminole
County.xiv
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Culture, Religion, and Linguistic Characteristics
Culture
The cultural identity of many regions in the state of Florida is influenced by changes in the population,
particularly the growth of new residents moving in search of economic opportunities and family
reunification. Florida is a melting pot, as well as an international crossroad in the U.S. Florida's public
education system has identified more than 200 languages other than English spoken in the homes of
students. As one of the Southern states, Florida has long been influenced by Southern culture, although
in South Florida and the urban Central Florida regions, Southern accents, Southern food, and Southern
culture have lost prominence.
One recent phenomenon influencing cultural changes in the state of Florida is the number of Hispanics of
Puerto Rican origin living in Florida. The Puerto Rican population has surpassed 1 million for the first time,
more than doubling the state’s Puerto Rican population over the past 14 years.xv The most recent analysis
of data from 2014 finds that the number of Puerto Ricans in Florida has increased 110 percent since 2000,
when their population was 479,000. This outpaces the state’s total population growth rate (24 percent),
as well as that of Hispanics overall (78 percent) during this period.
The trend comes as the island’s economic recession has led many residents of the U.S. territory to look
for opportunities on the U.S. mainland, and as more Puerto Ricans move to Florida from other states. The
population shift also marks an important change in where Puerto Ricans are choosing to live. New York
has long had the nation’s biggest Puerto Rican population on the mainland. However, Florida’s population
of Puerto Ricans has quickly risen since 2000, while the group’s population in the Empire State has stayed
relatively flat. What’s more, from 2005, a year before the island’s recession began, until 2013, New York
saw a net loss of Puerto Ricans to other states that was larger than Florida’s corresponding net gain. As a
result, about as many Puerto Ricans live in Florida today as in New York.
Puerto Ricans have primarily settled in Florida’s largest metro areas, with Orlando leading the way. In
2013, the Orlando-Kissimmee-Sanford Metro Region had the highest number of Puerto Ricans in the state,
at 314,000. That figure was up by 41,000 (15 percent) over the previous year, the largest increase in
number for any Florida metro area.

Religion
Based on the 2010 Association of Religious Data Archives (ARDA), Orange County’s full members, their
children, and others who regularly attended services for all religious groups was 482,253, accounting for
42.1 percent of the population.
Of all respondents to the
survey the largest religious
body (in terms of adherents)
was Evangelical Protestant
with 216,980, followed by
Catholics with 145,082 (Fig
26).xvi
Figure 26: Orange County Religious Traditions (2010)
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Osceola County’s full members, their children, and others who regularly attended services for all religious
groups was 98,652, accounting for 36.7 percent of the population. Of all respondents to the survey the
largest religious body (in term of adherents) was Catholics with 44,412, followed by Evangelical Protestant
with 36,206 (Fig 27).

Figure 27: Osceola County Religious Traditions (2010)

Seminole County’s full members, their children, and others who regularly attended services for all
religious groups was 172,072, accounting for 40.7 percent of the population. Of all respondents to the
survey the largest religious body (in term of adherents) was Evangelical Protestant with 73,592, followed
by Catholics with 67,501 (Fig 28).

Figure 28: Seminole County Religious Traditions (2010)

Language
In the United States more than one in four persons between the ages of 5 and 17, and one in five persons,
ages 18+, living in poverty speak Spanish as their primary language (26.8 and 19.5 percent, respectively).
In the state of Florida a higher proportion of the population in poverty speaks Spanish, 29.1 percent of
those ages 5 to 17, and 27.1 percent of those ages 18 and older. In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole
Counties, approximately 30, 50, and 20 percent of children, ages 5 to 17, and adults over the age of 18 in
poverty speak Spanish (Table 17).

Population with income in the past 12
months below poverty level
Age 5 to 17 years:
Speak only English
Speak Spanish
Speak other Indo-European languages
Speak Asian and Pacific Island languages

United
States
42,954,004
10,965,727
66.9%
26.8%
2.6%
2.0%

Florida
2,893,327

Orange
County
191,296

Osceola
County
52,326

Seminole
County
49,006

671,584
63.6%
29.1%
5.8%
0.8%

49,356
57.3%
31.8%
8.3%
1.9%

16,178
37.3%
49.8%
8.7%
0.0%

11,236
75.6%
18.4%
3.7%
1.5%
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Speak other languages
Age 18 years and over:
Speak only English
Speak Spanish
Speak other Indo-European languages
Speak Asian and Pacific Island languages
Speak other languages

1.7%
31,988,277
71.6%
19.5%
3.6%
3.6%
1.7%

0.8%
2,221,743
64.3%
27.1%
6.3%
1.5%
0.8%

0.8%
141,940
56.1%
32.8%
7.8%
2.2%
1.1%

4.2%
36,148
35.1%
57.7%
4.4%
1.0%
1.8%

0.8%
37,770
72.5%
20.4%
4.3%
1.8%
1.0%

Table 17: Languages Spoken by Population in Poverty (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Increased linguistic diversity contributes to the United States’ global competitiveness and our ability to integrate
culturally and economically. Speaking a parent’s native language other than English at home can have a positive
effect on children’s English literacy development, and bilingual language skills can positively affect children’s
educational achievement. The Census Bureau’s report, however, highlights a sobering statistic: millions of
residents of the United States are not proficient in the English language. In fact, the Census Bureau classifies five
percent of US households as linguistically-isolated. A linguistically-isolated household is one where no one in the
home above the age of 14 speaks English only or speaks a second language and speaks English well.

Based on the 2015 ACS 5-year estimates, in Florida, 6.8 percent of all households (of both natives and
the foreign born) were linguistically isolated, meaning that all persons, age 14 and over, in the
household were LEP (having limited English proficiency). Of Spanish-speaking households, however,
27.3 were linguistically isolated. Nationwide, 4.5 percent of households were linguistically isolated.
Of Spanish-speaking households, 23.1 percent were linguistically isolated (Table 18).
Percent limited English-speaking
households
All households
Households speaking -Spanish
Other Indo-European languages
Asian and Pacific Island languages
Other languages

United
States
4.5%

Florida
6.8%

Orange
County
7.9%

Osceola
County
10.5%

Seminole
County
3.0%

23.1%
15.6%
26.5%
17.2%

27.3%
18.4%
21.3%
14.9%

22.4%
20.7%
22.9%
15.5%

21.5%
14.3%
25.8%
13.5%

14.6%
8.3%
21.3%
7.6%

Table 18: Linguistic Isolation (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Linguistic isolation is greatest for households that speak Spanish and Asian/Pacific Island languages in the
4C service area; see Figure 29.
L i gui st i c Isol a t i on
S ource: 2 0 1 5 ACS 5 - yr est
22.4%

20.7%

25.8%

22.9%

21.5%
15.5%

21.3%
14.3%

13.5%

14.6%
8.3%

Orange County
Spanish

Osceola County

Other Indo-European languages

7.6%

Seminole County

Asian and Pacific Island languages

Other languages

Figure 29: Linguistic Isolation (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Housing and Homelessness
Fair Market Rent
According to the National Low Income Housing Coalition (NLIHC) in 2016, 34 percent of Florida’s
households were renters; the Fair Market Rent (FMR) for a two-bedroom home in Florida is
$1,038/month. In order to be able to rent a two-bedroom home, without exceeding 30 percent of one’s
income, a renter must earn $41,527 annually, yet the median income for a renter in Florida is $33,122.xvii
With a median income of $33,122 a renter is able to afford $828 for a home, $210 dollars less than the
fair market rental value of a two-bedroom home.
It is critical to point out that Head Start families do not earn wages
typical of an average renter in the state. The NLIHC considers those who
earn 30 percent of the annual median income (AMI) to have “extremely
low income.” For Florida this amount is $17,305, which is approximately
$1,300 more than the Poverty Guidelines level for a family of two. The
rent that someone with “extremely low income” can afford is only $433
per month, $605 less than the fair market value of a two-bedroom home
(Table 19).
Florida
% of total households that are renters (2010-2014)
Two bedroom FMR
Income needed to afford 2 bedroom FMR
Estimated renter household median income
Rent affordable at renter household median income
30% of AMI (Extremely Low Income)
Rent affordable at 30% of AMI
Rent affordable with full-time job paying min wage
Work hours per week at min. wage needed to afford
2 bedroom FMR

34%
$1,038
$41,527
$33,122
$828
$17,305
$433
$419
99

In Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties one must
earn $40,120 to afford the
rent of a 2-bedroom
home…this is almost the
Poverty Guidelines level for a
family of eight which is
$40,890!

Orange
County
44%
$1,003
$40,120
$34,069
$852
$17,340
$434
$419
96

Osceola
County
38%
$1,003
$40,120
$33,481
$837
$17,340
$434
$419
96

Seminole
County
30%
$1,003
$40,120
$38,936
$973
$17,340
$434
$419
96

Table 19: 2016 Out of Reach – Fair Market Rental Value vs. Income

In the 4C service area between 30 and 44 percent of households are renters. Rent affordable by a
household classified as “extremely low income” is $434 per month, approximately $570 less than the fair
market value of a two-bedroom home, which is $1,003. For those working a full-time job, earning
minimum wage, affordable rent is not more than $419, less than half of the fair market rental value of a
two-bedroom home (Fig 30).
The high cost of home ownership and rental units continues to make it difficult for low-income families
to access affordable housing. In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties those earning minimum wage
($8.55/hour) must work more than two full-time jobs, or more than 96 hours per week, to afford a twobedroom home at fair market rental value.

WWW.NOLOCONSULTING.COM

40

Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
2017 Community Assessment
F M R of 2 - Bedroom Home v s. Income
S ource: N L IHC
$1,038

$1,003

$1,003
$852

$828

$837

$434 $419

$433 $419

Florida

$1,003 $973

$434 $419

Orange County

$434 $419

Osceola County

Seminole County

Two bedroom FMR

Rent affordable at renter household median income

Rent affordable at 30% of AMI

Rent affordable with full-time job paying min wage

Figure 30: 2015 Out of Reach
Housing expenditures that exceed 30 percent of household income have historically been viewed as an indicator of a housing
affordability problem. The conventional 30 percent of household income that a household can devote to housing costs before
the household is said to be “burdened” evolved from the United States National Housing Act of 1937. The thirty percent rule
was considered a rule of thumb for the amount of income that a family could spend and still have enough left over for other
non-discretionary spending, it made its way to owner-occupied housing too.
http://www.census.gov/housing/census/publications/who-can-afford.pdf

Public Housing
According to the March 2016 Resident Characteristic Report, issued by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD), between August 2015 and November 2016 there were more than 28,000
households in Florida that reside in public housing, of which 267 households with a total of 623 individuals
live in Orange and Seminole Counties. The average annual income of households living in public housing
in Florida is $12,464; the average annual income in Orange and Seminole Counties is $13,486 and $17,123,
respectively. The majority of households living in public housing in the state of Florida, Orange, and
Seminole Counties are black or African American, 59, 65, and 53 percent, respectively (Table 20). An
estimated 9,755 children below age 5 live in public housing in Florida, of which 89 live in Orange and
Seminole Counties.xviii
Public Housing - Resident Characteristics Report (RCR)
Household
Ave. Annual
Members Households
Income
Florida
Orange County
Seminole County

63,734
534
89

28,160
237
30

$12,464
$13,486
$17,123

White

Black / African
American

39%
32%
43%

59%
65%
53%

Hispanic
or
Latino
29%
24%
33%

Under
Age 5
9,755
79
10

Table 20: Public Housing Resident Characteristics Report (2016)

NOTE: Public Housing Data for Osceola County was not available at the time of this assessement.
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Homelessness
Point-in-Time Count
Based on the 2015 Point-in-Time count,
homelessness declined in 33 states. Florida
experienced the greatest drop of homeless persons
counted. In Florida, the January 2015 Point-In-Time
count of the homeless population was 35,900, a
drop of 5,642 individuals from the 2014 count of
41,542, reflecting a 13.6 percent decrease. The
2016 Point-in-Time count continues to report a
decrease in people experiencing homelessness in
37 states. For the second year in a row, Florida
experienced the largest absolute decrease, 2,341
individuals, resulting in a homeless count of 33,559
individuals (Fig 31).

The Point-in-Time (PIT) count is a count of sheltered and
unsheltered homeless persons on a single night in January.
HUD requires that Continuums of Care conduct an annual
count of homeless persons who are sheltered in emergency
shelter, transitional housing, and Safe Havens on a single
night. Continuums of Care also must conduct a count of
unsheltered homeless persons every other year (oddnumbered years). Each count is planned, coordinated, and
carried out locally. The Housing Inventory Count (HIC) is a
point-in-time inventory of provider programs within a
Continuum of Care that provide beds and units dedicated
to serve persons who are homeless, categorized by five
Program Types: Emergency Shelter; Transitional Housing;
Rapid Re-housing; Safe Haven; and Permanent Supportive
Housing.

Figure 31: 2016 Point-In-Time Count

During the January 2015 count, almost 2,400 homeless unaccompanied youth under the age of 25 were
counted in Florida. Most homeless unaccompanied youth are young adults between the ages of 18 and
24; in Florida, this group accounted for 1,778 of the homeless count. According to the 2016 count, the
number of unaccompanied youth dropped to 2,094, a -11.7 percent change.
In 2015 HUD added a new reporting category for parenting youth: someone who is under age 25
identifying as the parent or legal guardian of one or more children, present with or sleeping in the same
place as that youth parent, and who is not in the company of someone over age 24.xix On January 2015,
315 homeless parenting youth were counted in the state of Florida; this number increased to 320 in
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January 2016. A total of 449 homeless children of parenting youth were counted in Florida in 2015; this
number also increased to 485, an 8.0 percent increase (Table 21).
Homeless Unaccompanied Youth (Under 25)
Homeless Unaccompanied Children (Under 18)
Homeless Unaccompanied Young Adults (Age 18-24)
Parenting Youth (Under 25)
Parenting Youth Under 18
Parenting Youth Age 18-24
Children of Parenting Youth

2015
2,371
593
1,778
315
10
305
449

2016
2,094
514
1,580
320
5
315
485

Percent Change
-11.7%
-13.3%
-11.1%
1.6%
-50.0%
3.3%
8.0%

Table 21: Florida Homeless Point-In-Time Count (2015)

FL-507 - Orlando/Orange, Osceola, Seminole Counties CoC
The Continuum of Care (CoC) Program is designed to promote communitywide commitment to the goal of ending
homelessness; provide funding for efforts by nonprofit providers, and State and local governments to quickly rehouse
homeless individuals and families while minimizing the trauma and dislocation caused to homeless individuals, families, and
communities by homelessness; promote access to and effect utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and
families; and optimize self-sufficiency among individuals and families experiencing homelessness. https://www.hudexchange.info

According to data collected by the Continuum of Care (CoC) covering Orange, Osceola, and Seminole
Counties, a total of 1,670 homeless persons were counted during the Point-in-Time count in January 2016,
a decrease of 20.9 percent from the 2,112 counted in January 2015 (Table 22). The number of homeless
persons dropped for each category, with the greatest proportional decrease for the chronically homeless,
(-50 percent) followed by parenting youth under age 25 (-46.3 percent).
Total Homeless
Homeless Individuals
Homeless People in Families
Chronically Homeless
Homeless Unaccompanied Youth (Under 25)
Homeless Unaccompanied Children (Under 18)
Homeless Unaccompanied Young Adults (Age 18-24)
Parenting Youth (Under 25)
Parenting Youth Under 18
Parenting Youth Age 18-24
Children of Parenting Youth

2015
2,112
1,392
720
212
119
0
119
41
0
41
53

2016
1,670
1,094
576
106
96
0
96
22
0
22
41

Percent Change
-20.9%
-21.4%
-20.0%
-50.0%
-19.3%
N/A
-19.3%
-46.3%
N/A
-46.3%
-22.6%

Table 22: Orlando/Orange, Osceola, Seminole Counties CoC Homeless Point-In-Time Count (2015)

Based on the Council of Homelessness 2016 Annual Report , of the 1,670 homeless persons counted, 1,228
were located in Orange County, 175 in Osceola County, and 210 in Seminole County.xx
The HUD definition of homelessness is narrower than those used by the Departments of Education (ED), Health and
Human Services (HHS), Labor, Justice, and Agriculture. HUD focuses primarily on homeless people on the streets, in
shelters, in vehicles, or in other places not meant for human habitation. The PIT count offers an important snapshot of
homelessness on a given night at one point in the year, with a particular focus on individuals. However, it does not
adequately estimate the number of individuals and family members who experience homelessness through the course of a
year— especially children. - http://www.homelesschildrenamerica.org/
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McKinney-Vento Act
McKinney-Vento is the primary piece of federal legislation dealing with the education of children and
youth experiencing homelessness in U.S. public schools. It was reauthorized as Title X, Part C, of the No
Child Left Behind Act in January 2002.
The McKinney-Vento program is designed to address the problems that homeless children and youth have
faced in enrolling, attending, and succeeding in school. Under this program, State Educational Agencies
(SEAs) must ensure that each homeless child and youth has equal access to the same free, appropriate
public education, including a public preschool education, as other children and youth. In addition,
homeless students may not be separated from the mainstream school environment.xxi
The McKinney-Vento Act defines “homeless children and youth” as individuals who lack a fixed, regular,
and adequate nighttime residence. The term includes –


Children and youth who are:
o

sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar
reason (sometimes referred to as doubled-up);

o

living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to lack of alternative adequate
accommodations;



o

living in emergency or transitional shelters;

o

abandoned in hospitals; or

o

awaiting foster care placement;

Children and youth who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not
designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings;



Children and youth who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard
housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings; and



Migratory children who qualify as homeless because they are living in circumstances described above.

Florida Homeless Education Program
The Florida Department of Education reports that more
than 73,500 homeless students were served in LEAs
during the 2014-15 school year, of which 6,800 were
served in Orange County schools, 4,672 were served in
Osceola County schools, and 1,994 were served in
Seminole County Schools.xxii
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The figure below offers an infographic from the Early Childhood Homelessness in the United States: 50State Profile report issued by the Administration of Children and Families in January 2016. The report
indicates that in Florida more than 71,000 children under the age of 6 were identified as homeless in
Florida.
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Transportation
Vehicle Ownership
Based on U.S. Census data, of the 7.3 million households in housing units, 7 percent do not have access
to a vehicle, 41 percent have access to one vehicle, 38 percent have access to two or more vehicles and
14 percent have access to 3 or more vehicles. In the 4C service area between 3 and 7 percent of
households in occupied housing units do not have access to a vehicle (Table 23).
VEHICLES AVAILABLE
Occupied housing units
No vehicles available
1 vehicle available
2 vehicles available
3 or more vehicles available

United
States
116,926,305
9%
34%
37%
20%

Florida
7,300,494
7%
41%
38%
14%

Orange
County
434,319
7%
40%
40%
14%

Osceola
County
92,338
6%
38%
40%
16%

Seminole
County
152,260
3%
36%
43%
17%

Table 23: Vehicle Ownership (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Public Transportation
Information below was taken directly from the following website: http://www.golynx.com/plantrip/riding-lynx/local-bus-service.stml
LYNX is proud to provide public transportation services for Orange,
Seminole, and Osceola Counties. Our 77 daily local bus routes (called
Links) provide more than 105,000 passenger trips each weekday
spanning an area of approximately 2,500 square miles with a resident
population of more than 1.8 million. Small portions of Polk and Lake Counties are served as well.
Other LYNX services include FASTLINK, a new weekday morning and afternoon commuter service designed
to provide quicker service by reducing stops along specific corridors; LYMMO, a free downtown Orlando
circulator; a commuter assistance Vanpool program; ACCESS LYNX paratransit Service; nine PickUpLine
community circulators; Xpress service from Osceola and Lake Counties; and the Road Rangers sponsored
by State Farm roadside assistance program on Interstate 4.
The NeighborLink (NL) is a flex-service aimed to make it easier for residents living less-populated areas to
make use of both local transportation and LYNX’ local bus system.
Service operates from 5:00 a.m. to 8 p.m. All service is available Monday through Saturday except in Buena
Ventura Lakes, Intercession City/Campbell City, Maitland and North Kissimmee where rides are available
Monday through Friday.
Residents in the designated area must call 407-244-0808 at least two hours before they want to leave
their home and schedule a pickup time. A NeighborLink vehicle will pick you up and bring you back, if
needed. The NL operator will provide transportation anywhere within the designated service area or to a
LYNX local bus stop.
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Disabilities
U.S. Census
Data from the U.S. Census Bureau indicate that 12.1 percent of the civilian non-institutionalized
population in the United States and 12.9 percent in Florida, have a disability. The rate in Orange County
is lower than the U.S. and Florida, 9.9 percent. The proportion of the population under age 5 with a
disability in the county is also lower than in the U.S. or Florida, 0.4 percent, compared with 0.8 percent
and 0.7 percent, respectively (Table 24).
Population with a
Disability by Age
United States
Florida
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

Under 5
years
159,879
0.8%
8,060
0.7%
428
0.6%
71
0.4%
154
0.7%

5 to 17
years
2,853,439
5.3%
159,608
5.4%
11,648
5.7%
4,663
8.2%
3,438
4.8%

18 to 34
years
4,218,974
5.8%
224,968
5.5%
17,197
5.1%
5,542
7.8%
5,051
5.0%

35 to 64
years
15,766,614
12.9%
949,981
12.5%
49,452
10.5%
16,915
14.6%
16,842
9.4%

65 to 74
years
6,330,993
25.5%
449,631
22.8%
19,083
25.8%
6,745
30.4%
6,867
20.0%

75 years
and over
9,271,999
50.2%
761,388
47.1%
25,865
50.2%
7,554
54.7%
12,113
49.0%

Table 24: Disability Characteristics (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)
The nation’s special education law is called the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, or IDEA. IDEA
defines the term “child with a disability” in order to make special education and related services available
to children with disabilities in public schools and Head Start programs. That definition includes specific
disability terms, which are also defined by IDEA.xxiii
According to the IDEA Data Center, in 2015 (most recently available data) more than 39,000 children, ages
3 to 5, received special education assistance in Florida. The majority of children received special education
for a developmental delay (49.5 percent), followed by a speech or language impairment (35.1 percent),
and autism (9.4 percent) (Table 25). More than 13,000 infants and toddlers, ages 0 to 3, were served by
Early Intervention programs, of which those ages 2 to 3 make up almost 60 percent.xxiv
IDEA Part B: Assistance for Education of All Children with Disabilities
All Disabilities

39,359

Autism

3,687

9.4%

Deaf-blindness

7

0.0%

19,467

49.5%

72

0.2%

438
644

1.1%
1.6%

Developmental
delay
Emotional
disturbance
Hearing impairment
Intellectual disability

Multiple disabilities
Orthopedic
impairment
Other health
impairment
Specific learning
disability
Speech/language
impairment
Traumatic brain injury
Visual impairment

-

0.0%

IDEA Part C: Early
Intervention
Total
13,056

244

0.6%

Birth-1

1,538

11.8%

765

1.9%

1 to 2

3,824

29.3%

84

0.2%

2 to 3

7,694

58.9%

13,816

35.1%

18
117

0.0%
0.3%

Table 25: 2015 IDEA Part B Child Count [Ages 3-5] and Part C Child County [Ages 0-3]
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Florida Department of Education
According to the Florida Department of Education, during the 2015-16 school year, more than 366,000
children were enrolled in Programs for Exceptional Students (excluding gifted students), of which more
than 21,000 were enrolled in Orange County schools, more than 6,500 were in Osceola County schools,
and more than 8,700 in Seminole County schools (Table 26). The majority of children were diagnosed
with a specific learning disability, followed by speech impairments and language impairments (Fig 32).xxv
EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT DATA BY EXCEPTIONALITY SCHOOL YEAR 2015-16, SURVEY 2 as of 11/13/15
DISTRICT
AUTISM SPECTRUM DISORDER
DEVELOPMENTALLY DELAYED
DEAF OR HARD OF HEARING
DUAL-SENSORY IMPAIRED
ESTABLISHED CONDITIONS
EMOTIONAL/BEHAVIORAL DISABILITY
HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND
INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY
LANGUAGE IMPAIRED
OTHER HEALTH IMPAIRED
ORTHOPEDICALLY IMPAIRED
SPECIFIC LEARNING DISABILITY
SPEECH IMPAIRED
TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURED
VISUALLY IMPAIRED
Total

FLORIDA
33,777
19,715
4,332
82
214
15,865
2,426
25,373
42,660
32,502
2,818
137,114
47,343
548
1,404
366,173

ORANGE
2,317
1,481
251
*
*
615
84
1,541
1,990
2,584
257
9,046
1,151
36
34
21,387

OSCEOLA
810
401
57
*
21
255
60
626
542
512
57
2,696
467
13
30
6,547

SEMINOLE
1,052
305
75
*
19
396
*
474
855
516
47
3,864
1,120
10
25
8,758

Table 26: Exceptional Student Data (2015-16)

Ex cept i ona l S t udent Da t a by Ex cept i ona l i t y 2 0 1 5 - 1 6
F l ori da Depa rt ment of Educa t i on
44.1%

42.3%

41.2%

37.4%

SPECIFIC LEARNING DISABILITY
FLORIDA

ORANGE

OSCEOLA

SEMINOLE

Figure 32: Exceptional Student Data (2015-16)

Pre-K Enrollment. Based on data received from the Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services,
Florida Department of Education, during the 2015-16 school year 39,359 preschool children, ages 3-5,
with Individual Education Plans (IEPs) were served in Florida Local Educations Agencies (LEAs), of which
2,167 were in Orange County schools, 595 were in Osceola County schools, and 702 were in Seminole
County schools.
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Health and Wellness
Health Disparities Profile
According to data gathered by the Office on Women’s Health, Florida
has relatively low death rates due to stroke and diabetes, ranking 9th
and 4th in the United States, respectively. However, death rates due to
diabetes are almost twice as high for black residents than for white
residents. The state ranks among the middle of the range of states
with respect to heart disease and lung cancer (Table 27).xxvi

All cause
Heart disease
Coronary heart disease
Total cancer
Colorectal cancer
Lung cancer
Stroke
COPD
Diabetes–related

The
2015 Health
Disparities
Profiles examines
key
health
indicators at the state level for
different
racial
and
ethnic
populations in each of the 50 states,
the District of Columbia, Guam,
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin
Islands.

White

Black

Hispanic

AIAN

Asian/PI

694.3
155.4
114.2
167.7
13.6
50.6
29.4
121
44.3

788.9
185.4
133.3
169.2
18.5
36.7
50
63.4
87.6

525.8
126.6
91.5
120.7
12.7
24
25.2
64.8
40.9

270
62.9
46.7
49.6
*
*
*
*
31.3

313.9
66.1
50
79
9.9
16.2
22.1
23.6
26.7

State
Total
669.9
153
111.8
158.7
13.8
44.5
30.7
106.4
47.3

State
Rank
9
20
29
16
16
27
9
17
4

Table 27: 2015 Health Disparities Profile: Death Rates Per 100,000 Population

Health Professional Shortage Areas
A Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) is a geographic region, a population group or health care facility that has received a designation
by the Federal government as having a shortage of health professionals. HPSAs may be designated as having a shortage of primary medical
care, dental or mental health providers. They may be urban or rural areas, population groups or medical or other public facilities.

In the United States as of June 19, 2014, there are 6,100 designated Primary Care HPSAs, 4,900 Dental
HPSAs, and 4,000 Mental Health HPSAs. A Primary Care HPSA is based on a physician-to-population ratio
of 1 to3,500, a Dental HPSA is based on a dentist-to-population ratio of 1 to5,000, and a Mental Health
HPSA is based on a psychiatrist-to-population ratio of 1 to 30,000. xxvii The 4C service area has 14
designated Dental Health HPSAs, eight designated Mental Health HPSAs, and 12 designated Primary Care
HPSAs (Table 28).
County Name

HPSA Name

Designation Type

Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

Dental Health
Health Care Center for the Homeless, Inc.
Community Health Centers, Inc.
Low Income - Alafaya
Low Income - North Winter Park
Low Income - Parramore
Low Income - Pine Hills
Low Income - Southwest Orange
Low Income - Hoffner
Low Income - South Winter Park
Low Income - Apopka
Low Income - Winter Garden/Ocoee
Primary Care Medical Services of Poinciana
Central Florida Family Health Center

Comprehensive Health Center
Comprehensive Health Center
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
Comprehensive Health Center
Comprehensive Health Center
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County Name
Seminole County

HPSA Name
Low Income - South Winter Park
Mental Health
Orange County
Community Health Centers, Inc.
Orange County
Health Care Center for the Homeless, Inc.
Orange County
Central Florida Reception Center
Orange County
Low Income-Orange County
Orange County
Orange
Osceola County
Primary Care Medical Services of Poinciana
Seminole County
Central Florida Family Health Center
Seminole County
Low Income-Central Seminole County
Primary Care
Orange County
Community Health Centers, Inc.
Orange County
Health Care Center for the Homeless, Inc.
Orange County
Low Income - Oak Ridge - Orange
Orange County
Low Income-Alafaya
Orange County
Low Income - Apopka/Winter Garden
Orange County
Low Income - Pine Hills
Orange County
Low Income - Parramore
Osceola County
Primary Care Medical Services of Poinciana
Osceola County
Low Income/Migrant Farmworker - Osceola County
Osceola County
Osceola
Seminole County
Central Florida Family Health Center
Seminole County
Low Income - Sanford
Table 28: Health Professional Shortage Areas (4C Service Area)

Designation Type
HPSA Population
Comprehensive Health Center
Comprehensive Health Center
Correctional Facility
HPSA Population
Single County
Comprehensive Health Center
Comprehensive Health Center
HPSA Population
Comprehensive Health Center
Comprehensive Health Center
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
HPSA Population
Comprehensive Health Center
HPSA Population
Single County
Comprehensive Health Center
HPSA Population

Medically Underserved Areas
Medically Underserved Areas/Populations are areas or populations designated by HRSA as having too few primary care providers, high
infant mortality, high poverty or a high elderly population. The IMU scale is from 0 to 100, where 0 represents completely underserved
and 100 represents best served or least underserved. Under the established criteria, each service area found to have an IMU of 62.0 or
less qualifies for designation as an MUA.

Based on data collected from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Health Resources and
Services Administration, Orange County has four Medically Underserved Population designations, with
scores between 54.2 and 61.7. The county also has three Medically Underserved Areas that are designated
by a Governor’s Exception (these are designated based on a state plan approved by the Health Resources
and Services Administration which allows clinics to become certified as Rural Health Clinics) Osceola and
Seminole Counties each have one Medically Underserved Area designation, with a score of 50.4 and 49.45,
respectively (Table 29). xxviii
County Name
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County
Orange County

Service Area Name

Low Income - Pine Hills
Low Income - Parramore
Low Income - North Winter Park
Low Income - South Winter Park
Low Income - Alafaya Service Area
Low Income - Hoffner Service Area
Low Income - Apopka/ Winter
Garden Area
Osceola County
Osceola County
Seminole County
Seminole Service Area
Table 29: Medically Underserved Areas (4C Service Area)

Designation Type

Score

Medically Underserved Population
Medically Underserved Population
Medically Underserved Population
Medically Underserved Population
Medically Underserved Area – Governor’s Exception
Medically Underserved Area – Governor’s Exception
Medically Underserved Area – Governor’s Exception

54.20
61.70
58.50
61.50
0.00
0.00
0.00

Medically Underserved Area
Medically Underserved Area

50.40
49.45
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County Health Rankings
The County Health Rankings are based on a model that
focuses on the factors, which if improved, can make
communities healthier places to live. Its health outcomes
measure mortality and morbidity, or the length of time
people live and the way people feel when they are alive.
Health factors, which affect health outcomes, are measured
on the following: health behaviors, clinical care, social and
economic factors, and physical environment.xxix

The County Health Rankings is a collaboration
between the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation
and the University of Wisconsin Population
Health Institute that measures the health of
nearly all counties in the nation and rank them
within states. The Rankings are compiled using
county-level measures from a variety of
national and state data sources. These
measures are standardized and combined using
scientifically informed weights.

Florida’s premature death rate (the years of potential life lost before 75 per 100,000 residents) is
measured to be 6,800. Of the 67 counties, St. John’s County ranked 1st with the best health outcomes (a
premature death rate of 5,300), while Gadsden County ranked 67th with the worst health outcomes (a
premature death rate of 10,500). Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties rank 21st, 32nd, and 5th in health
outcomes with premature death rates of 6,100, 6,100, and 5,600, respectively.
Table 30 provides information on select health outcomes and health factors for Florida and the 4C service
area as a whole. Each item is hyperlinked to the original source for additional explanation and data source.
Florida
Health Outcomes
Premature death
Poor or fair health
Poor physical health days
Poor mental health days
Low birthweight
Health Factors
Health Behaviors
Adult smoking
Adult obesity
Food environment index
Physical inactivity
Access to exercise opportunities
Excessive drinking
Alcohol-impaired driving deaths
Sexually transmitted infections
Teen births
Clinical Care
Uninsured
Primary care physicians
Dentists
Mental health providers
Preventable hospital stays
Diabetic monitoring
Mammography screening
Physical Environment
Air pollution - particulate matter
Drinking water violations
Severe housing problems
Table 30: 2016 County Health Rankings

6,800
18%
3.9
3.9
9%

18%
25%
7.1
24%
92%
17%
29%
415.1
34
24%
1,390:1
1,820:1
690:01:00
55
85%
68%
11.4
23%

Orange
21
6,100
18%
3.9
3.8
9%
21
18
16%
24%
7.0
23%
98%
20%
28%
565.9
32
31
24%
1,230:1
2,210:1
540:01:00
62
84%
62%
53
10.9
Yes
25%

Osceola
32
6,100
23%
4.4
4.2
8%
40
30
19%
29%
7.6
27%
90%
18%
25%
387.9
38
59
27%
2,150:1
3,610:1
880:01:00
85
84%
56%
59
10.7
Yes
26%

Seminole
5
5,600
15%
3.7
3.8
8%
3
10
15%
25%
7.4
21%
99%
19%
28%
325.9
21
16
19%
1,290:1
1,780:1
630:01:00
64
86%
64%
50
11.0
Yes
20%
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Health Insurance
Based on U.S. Census data, approximately 13 percent of the U.S. civilian non-institutionalized population
lacks health insurance. Florida, Orange, and Osceola Counties’ uninsured populations are significantly
higher at 18, 20, and 22 percent, respectively. In Seminole County 15 percent of the population lacks
health insurance. Of those with health insurance in Florida and the 4C service area, 26 to 35 percent
receive public coverage (Table 31).
In the United States 5 percent of children under age 6 lack health insurance coverage; the rates in Florida
and the 4C service area are significantly higher. In Florida, Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties 7, 9,
9, and 11 percent of children under age 6, respectively, lack health insurance coverage.xxx
HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE
Civilian noninstitutionalized population
With health insurance coverage
With private health insurance
With public coverage
No health insurance coverage
Civilian noninstitutionalized population
under 6 years
No health insurance coverage

United
States
311,516,332
87%
66%
32%
13%
23,994,335
5%

Florida
19,335,250
82%
59%
35%
18%
1,301,509

Orange
County
1,217,194
80%
60%
27%
20%
92,417

Osceola
County
298,835
78%
52%
34%
22%
23,071

Seminole
County
434,616
85%
68%
26%
15%
27,868

7%

9%

9%

11%

Table 31: Health Insurance Coverage (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)

Fertility/Birth Rates
According U.S. Census data, the birth rate per 1,000 women, ages 15 to 50, in the U.S. is 53. The birth rate
per 1,000 women, ages 15 to 50, in Florida is lower, 48. In the 4C service area the birth rate per 1,000
women, ages 15 to 50, is highest in Osceola County, 57, and lowest in Seminole County, 42. Overall, the
birth rate for women, ages 20 to 34, is highest in all geographic regions studied; the highest rate is in
Osceola County, 115 (Table 32).
Birth Rate per 1,000
Women
15 to 50 years old
15 to 19 years old
20 to 34 years old
35 to 50 years old

United States

Florida

53
19
93
25

48
17
83
24

Orange
County
49
17
75
30

Osceola
County
57
24
115
17

Seminole
County
42
14
73
23

Table 32: Fertility (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Birth by County, Age and WIC Participation
In 2015 more than 224,000 infants were born in the state of Florida, of which 16,718 were born in Orange
County; 4,183 were born in Osceola County; and 4,554 were born in Seminole County. Table 33 provides
the number of births by county, by the mother’s age range, and WIC participation status. For example, in
Orange County, 4.9 percent of all births were to women, ages 15-19; 3.9 percent were births to women,
ages 15-19, who were WIC recipients. Figure 33 on the following page provides a visual graph of the
proportion of births per geographic region by age range to women who were WIC recipients at the time
of birth.
2015 Resident Births
http://www.floridacharts.com/FLQuery/Birth/BirthRateRpt.aspx
Florida
Orange
0-14
Yes
107
0.05%
8
0.05%
No
22
0.0%
0
0.0%
Unknown
1
0.0%
0
0.0%
Total
130
0.06%
8
0.05%
15-19
Yes
9,577
4.3%
659
3.9%
No
2,336
1.0%
160
1.0%
Unknown
43
0.0%
4
0.0%
Total
11,956
5.3%
823
4.9%
20-24
Yes
32,478
14.5%
2,360
14.1%
No
15,447
6.9%
970
5.8%
Unknown
118
0.1%
6
0.0%
Total
48,043
21.4%
3,336
20.0%
25-29
Yes
32,421
14.5%
2,353
14.1%

30-34

35-39

40-44

45 +

No
Unknown
Total
Yes
No
Unknown
Total
Yes
No
Unknown
Total
Yes
No
Unknown
Total
Yes
No
Unknown
Total

Total

33,767
230
66,418
21,996
38,189
189
60,374
10,345
19,354
122
29,821
2,515
4,435
33
6,983
142
393
4
539
224,273

15.1%
0.1%
29.6%
9.8%
17.0%
0.1%
26.9%
4.6%
8.6%
0.1%
13.3%
1.1%
2.0%
0.0%
3.1%
0.1%
0.2%
0.0%
0.2%

2,360
13
4,726
1,690
3,049
10
4,749
882
1,583
5
2,470
206
361
5
572
8
25
1
34
16,718

14.1%
0.1%
28.3%
10.1%
18.2%
0.1%
28.4%
5.3%
9.5%
0.0%
14.8%
1.2%
2.2%
0.0%
3.4%
0.0%
0.1%
0.0%
0.2%

Osceola
0
0.0%
1
0.02%
0
0.0%
1
0.02%
243
5.8%
67
1.6%
2
0.0%
312
7.5%
681
16.3%
337
8.1%
1
0.0%
1,019
24.4%
679
16.2%
545
1
1,225
479
550
1
1,030
198
275
1
474
38
73
1
112
2
8
10
4,183

13.0%
0.0%
29.3%
11.5%
13.1%
0.0%
24.6%
4.7%
6.6%
0.0%
11.3%
0.9%
1.7%
0.0%
2.7%
0.0%
0.2%
0.0%
0.2%

Seminole
1
0.02%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
1
0.02%
116
2.5%
43
0.9%
0.0%
159
3.5%
470
10.3%
279
6.1%
0.0%
749
16.4%
539
11.8%
850
1
1,390
294
1,065
3
1,362
164
549
2
715
34
129
163
4
11
15
4,554

18.7%
0.0%
30.5%
6.5%
23.4%
0.1%
29.9%
3.6%
12.1%
0.0%
15.7%
0.7%
2.8%
0.0%
3.6%
0.1%
0.2%
0.0%
0.3%

Table 33: 2015 Resident Births
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In Florida just under 50 percent of women who gave birth in 2015 were WIC recipients, 48.9 percent. In
Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties, 48.8, 55.5, and 35.6 percent of women who gave birth in 2015
were WIC recipients. Children born to women, ages 20-24, and 25-29 (who are also WIC recipients), made
up between 22 and 32 percent of all births in 2015 (Fig - ).
2 0 1 5 Resi dent Bi rt hs by Age: W IC Reci pi ent s
S ource: w w w .fl ori da cha rt s. co m
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Total

Orange

Osceola

Seminole

45 +

0.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.1%

40-44

1.1%

1.2%

0.9%

0.7%

35-39

4.6%

5.3%

4.7%

3.6%

30-34

9.8%

10.1%

11.5%

6.5%

25-29

14.5%

14.1%

16.2%

11.8%

20-24

14.5%

14.1%

16.3%

10.3%

15-19

4.3%

3.9%

5.8%

2.5%

0-14

0.05%

0.05%

0.0%

0.02%

Figure 33: 2015 Resident Birth by Age: WIC Recipients

WWW.NOLOCONSULTING.COM

55

Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc. (4C)
2017 Community Assessment

Obesity
According to The
State of Obesity:
Better Policies for a
Healthier
America
xxxi
2016 , Florida has
the 35th highest adult
obesity rate in the
nation, 26.8 percent.
The highest rates of
obesity continue to
be seen for those
ages 45-64 (32.1
percent), and among
black
or
African Figure 34: State of Obesity, 2015 Report
American residents
(35.3 percent) (Fig 34).
The report also found that in 2014, 13.1 percent of 2- to 4-year-old WIC participants were obese, ranking
the state 41st in the nation; 13.4 percent of Florida’s 10- to 17-year-olds were obese, raking the state 38th;
and 12.3 percent of high school students were obese, ranking the state 27th (Fig 35).

Figure 35: Childhood Obesity, 2014 Data

The Florida Department of Health, Division of Public Health Statistics and Performance Management
reports that in 2015 26.3 percent of WIC children, age 2 and older, in Florida are overweight or obese. In
the 4C service area between 24.3 and 25.0 percent of WIC children, age 2 and older, are overweight.xxxii
WIC children >= 2 who are overweight or obese, 2015
County
Rate (%)
Florida
26.3
Orange County
24.3
Osceola County
25.0
Seminole County
24.5
Table 34: WIC Children >=2 Overweight or Obese (2015)
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Oral Health
Dental disease is the most common chronic illness for children in the United States. Poor oral health in
children and adults can lead to many health problems ranging from tooth loss and gum disease to
digestion problems and inflammation of major organs due to infection. Dental disease, decayed teeth,
and/or missing teeth also affect self-esteem.
According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), more than one-quarter of children
have tooth decay in baby teeth before entering kindergarten. By age 19, 68 percent of youth have
experienced tooth decay in permanent teeth. As of 2014, 83 percent of children, ages 2 to17, visited the
dentist in the past year, and approximately 62 percent of adults, ages 18 to64 and 65 and over, visited a
dentist in the past year.xxxiii
Childhood tooth decay disproportionately affects low-income families and racial or ethnic minorities. The
rate of untreated dental caries in children from families with incomes below the poverty level is double
that of non-poor children. xxxiv Access to affordable dental care is often the number one obstacle for lowincome families. Based on data provided by the Florida Department of Health, Public Health Dental
Program, from 2010-12 (most recent data available), only 26.1 percent of low-income persons in the state
have access to dental care. In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties, 24.7, 26.3, and 24.5 percent of
low-income persons, respectively, have access to dental care.xxxv
The Health Professional Shortage Area data on pages 49-50 reports the number of areas within each
county that received a HPSA designation based on a ratio of 1 to 5,000 (dentists to population). Table 35
illustrates the total number of dentists by county, and a rate of dentists to 100,000 residents. In the 4C
service area there are between 27 and 56 dentists per 100,000 residents.xxxvi

Table 35: Access to Dentists (2015)
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Nutrition
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)
As of December 2016, Florida was home to more
than 1.7 million households (3.3 million individuals)
that receive food stamps, of which 172,670
households (349,613 individuals) reside in the 4C
service area (Table 36 ).xxxvii
Food Stamp Clients (December 2016)
Households
Florida
1,759,551
Orange County
113,584
Osceola County
35,513
Seminole County
23,573

Individuals
3,315,735
228,006
74,315
47,292

Table 36: Food Stamp Clients (December 2016)

Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
The January 2017 report indicates that average
monthly WIC participation in Florida in 2016
reached 453,400. xxxviii Approximately one-half of
WIC recipients in Florida are children (230,105), and
one-quarter each is women (110,496) and infants
(112,799).

National School Lunch Program
The Florida School System’s Free and Reduced
Lunch program provides meals to low-income
children while attending public school. During the
2015-16 school year 47.2 percent of students in
Florida schools were eligible for free or reduced
priced meals (Table 37).xxxix In Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties, 33.5, 38.8, and 49.2 percent of
students were eligible for free or reduce priced
meals, respectively.

The Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) is an agency of the
United States Department of Agriculture established in
1969. FNS works to end hunger and obesity through the
administration of 15 federal nutrition assistance programs
including WIC, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP), and school meals. The program’s mission is to
increase food security and reduce hunger by providing
children and low-income people access to food, a healthful
diet and nutrition education in a way that supports
American agriculture and inspires public confidence. No
American should have to go hungry.
The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)
(formerly known as the Food Stamp Program) is designed
to alleviate hunger and malnutrition by increasing the
purchasing power of low-income households. SNAP offers
nutrition assistance to millions of eligible, low-income
individuals and families and provides economic benefits to
communities. SNAP is the largest program in the domestic
hunger safety net. The Food and Nutrition Service works
with State agencies, nutrition educators, and neighborhood
and faith-based organizations to ensure that those eligible
for nutrition assistance can make informed decisions about
applying for the program and can access benefits. FNS also
works with State partners and the retail community to
improve program administration and ensure program
integrity.
The special supplemental nutrition program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC) is a federal program providing
support to low-income pregnant, nursing and non-nursing
postpartum women and children, ages 0 to 5. The program
is designed to provide supplemental foods, nutrition
education, and referrals for health care services.
The National School Lunch Program is a federally assisted
meal program operating in public and nonprofit private
schools and residential child care institutions. It provides
nutritionally balanced, low-cost or free lunches to children
each school day. The program was established under the
National School Lunch Act, signed by President Harry
Truman in 1946.

National School Lunch Program Free and Reduced Price Eligibility Report (2015-16)
District & School
Total Members
#Free
#Reduced Priced
FLORIDA
2,794,975
1,207,289
112,511
Orange County
197,400
59,402
6,677
Osceola County
62,099
21,708
2,394
Seminole County
67,259
28,860
4,256

Percent Free/Reduced
47.2%
33.5%
38.8%
49.2%

Table 37: 2015-16 National School Lunch Program Report
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Food Insecurity
Food deprivation and its measure are often referred to as Food Insecurity. The
USDA defines food insecurity as meaning “consistent access to adequate food is
limited by a lack of money and other resources at times during the year.” In the
U.S., more than one in five children live in a household in which they do not always
know where they will find their next meal.
An estimated 15.3 million children under the age of 18 in the U.S. live in homes that are unable to
consistently access enough and nutritious foods, a rate of 20.9 percent.xl In Florida 16.2 percent of the
total population lives without access to enough and nutritious foods. The food insecurity rate for children
is even higher, 24.9 percent, or more than 1 million children.

Figure 36: U.S. and Florida Food Insecurity (2014)

In Orange County the overall food insecurity rate is 16.0 percent, and the child food insecurity rate is 22.9
percent; this accounts for more than 63,000 children who are food insecure in the Head Start service area
of Orange County (Fig 37).

Figure 37: Orange County, FL Food Insecurity (2014)
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In Osceola County, the overall food insecurity rate is 11.8 percent, and the child food insecurity rate is
23.0 percent; this accounts for more than 17,000 children who are food insecure in the Head Start service
area of Osceola County (Fig 38).

Figure 38: Osceola County, FL Food Insecurity (2014)

In Seminole County, the overall food insecurity rate is 13.4 percent, and the child food insecurity rate is
20.7 percent; this accounts for almost 20,000 children who are food insecure in the Head Start service
area of Seminole County (Fig 39).

Figure 39: Seminole County, FL Food Insecurity (2014)
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Food Deserts
Food deserts are defined as “urban neighborhoods and rural towns without ready access to fresh, healthy,
and affordable food. Instead of supermarkets and grocery stores, these communities may have no food
access, or are served only by fast food restaurants and convenience stores that offer few healthy,
affordable food options.” A 1-mile marker is used in densely populated urban areas, while a 10-mile
marker is used in more sparsely populated rural areas. In the United States it is estimated that 23.5 million
people live in food deserts, of which 13.5 million are low-income families.xli
The USDA, Treasury, and HHS have defined a food desert as a census tract with a substantial
share of residents who live in low-income areas that have low levels of access to a grocery
store or healthy, affordable food retail outlet. Census tracts qualify as food deserts if they
meet low-income and low-access thresholds:
1. They qualify as "low-income communities," based on having: a) a poverty rate of 20 percent or greater,
OR b) a median family income at or below 80 percent of the area median family income; AND
2. They qualify as "low-access communities," based on the determination that at least 500 persons and/or
at least 33 percent of the census tract's population live more than one mile from a supermarket or large
grocery store (10 miles, in the case of non-metropolitan census tracts).
FOOD ACCESS RESEARCH ATLAS (click on title for interactive map)

On the above map, areas shaded in green are low-income census tracts where a significant number or share of residents is
more than 1 mile (urban) and 10 miles (rural) from the nearest supermarket. Areas shaded in yellow are low-income census
tracts where a significant number of households have low vehicle access or a significant number or share of residents are
more than 20 miles from the nearest supermarket.
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Child Welfare
Fostering Court Improvement is a non-profit organization dedicated to the philosophy that "anything
worth doing is worth measuring." The organization works with existing data from the Adoption and Foster
Care Analysis and Reporting System (AFCARS) and the National Child Abuse and Neglect Data Systems
(NCANDS) to create reports covering child maltreatment and foster care in order to facilitate discussions
among local decision makers and organizations.
Florida is one of eight states that make data accessible to the general public. Data is available by judicial
district, county, and child welfare region. Based on data collected, from October 2014 to September 2015,
22,506 children in Orange County were subject to maltreatment reports; 16,420 of those reports were
investigated. In Osceola County 5,045 children were subject to maltreatment reports; 3,741 of those were
investigated. In Seminole County 6,898 children were subject to maltreatment reports, and 5,660 of those
were investigated (Table 29).xlii Table 38 and Figure 40, illustrate the state rank of victim reports by
specific abuse for each of the 4C service area counties. A lower ranking indicates a higher rate of victim
reports. For example, the rank of victim reports of sexual abuse is higher in Osceola County (32), with a
rate of 0.5 reports per 10,000 individuals, compared with Seminole County (63), with a rate of 0.2 reports
per 10,000 individuals.
Orange, Osceola and Seminole County Children Subject of Maltreatment Reports (duplicated)
October 2014 – September 2015
Orange
Osceola
Seminole
Count
Rate Rank
Count Rate Rank Count
Rate Rank
Children Subject of Maltreatment
22,506 62.5
41 5,045 50.5
59.5
6,898 56.0
53
Reports
Children Subject of Maltreatment
16,420 45.6
50 3,741 37.4
59.5
5,660 45.9
49
Investigations
Victim Reports
2,529
7.0
49.5
525
5.2
57.5
968
7.9
36
Victim Reports of Neglect
1,104
3.1
49
237
2.4
57.5
565
4.6
28.5
Victim Reports of Physical Abuse
231
0.6
32
58
0.6
32
65
0.5
41.5
Victim Reports of Sexual Abuse
158
0.4
45
47
0.5
32
29
0.2
63
Victim Reports of Other Abuse
1,036
2.9
39
183
1.8
58
309
2.5
47.5
*Rate Per 10K, **Rank (high=1 to low = 67)
Table 38: Children Subject of Maltreatment Reports (2014-15)

Chi l dren S ubject of Ma l t rea t ement Report s (2 0 1 4 - 1 5 )
S t a t e Ra nk
ht t p://fost eri n g cou rt i m pr ov em ent .o rg /
49.5

57.5

49
36

Victim Reports

63

57.5
28.5

32

32

41.5

45
32

Victim Reports of Neglect Victim Reports of Physical Victim Reports of Sexual
Abuse
Abuse
Orange

Osceola

58
39

47.5

Victim Reports of Other
Abuse

Seminole

Figure 40: Children Subject of Maltreatment Reports (2014-15)
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Children in foster care are categorically eligible for Head Start services, regardless of the foster families’
incomes. As of September 2016, there were 978 children in foster care in Orange County, 348 in Osceola
County, and 411 in Seminole County. Table 39 lists the average daily children in care and the total children
served from October 2015 to September 2016.
According to the Kids Count Data Center, roughly 39 percent of children in foster care in Florida are
between the ages of 1 and 5, and 9 percent are under 1 year. Applying the same estimate, we can
approximate that 1,450 children, ages 0-5, were served in foster care in 4C service area from October
2015 – September 2016.
Children in Foster Care (During October 2015 through September 2016)
Orange County
Osceola County
Count Rate Rank Count Rate Rank
Children in Care on September 30 2016
978
31 59.5
348
40
50
Average Daily Children in Care
972 31.5
62
356 41.2
51
Total Children Served in Foster Care
1,730 N/A
7
539
N/A
23
During October 2015 - September 2016

Seminole County
Count Rate Rank
411
39 52.5
449 43.2
49
768
N/A
16

Table 39: Children in Foster Care (2015-16)
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Licensed Child Care Programs
Data from 2016 State Factsheet, which reflects 2015 calendar year data.
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Florida Office of Early Learning
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (VPK)
Based on data collected from Florida’s Office of Early Learning (OEL), as
of November 2016 Florida enrolled a total of 158,036 children in its
Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK) Education Program during the 2016-17
program year. Of the more than 158,000 children enrolled, almost
20,000 were enrolled in the 4C service area; 12,287 in Orange County,
3,324 in Osceola County and 4,058 in Seminole County.xliii
Note: The “unpaid and paid enrollment” in Table 40 refers to whether
the child care provider has received payment for the services or not. The
program is free to all 4-year-olds regardless of family income.
VPK Eligibility and Enrollment Data
(2016-2017 VPK Program Year Report Current as of 11/2016)

Florida
Orange
Osceola
Seminole

Unpaid

Paid

1,338
138
120
21

156,698
12,149
3,204
4,037

Total
Enrollments
158,036
12,287
3,324
4,058

Eligible
Not Enrolled
11,045
1,192
320
308

Table 40: VPK Eligibility and Enrollment Data (2016-17)

DEFINITION: Florida was one of
the first states in the country to
offer free prekindergarten for all
4-year-olds regardless of family
income.
The
Voluntary
Prekindergarten (VPK) Education
Program prepares early learners
for success in kindergarten and
beyond. Children must live in
Florida and be 4 years old on or
before September 1 of the current
school year to be eligible. The
program helps build a strong
foundation for school using
educational materials that are
geared to various stages in a
child’s development. Parents can
choose from different educational
settings and various program
options. Private child care
centers, public schools and
specialized instructional services
providers offer VPK.

The majority of children served in the VPK program are served by private
child care centers, followed by public schools and faith-based providers; see Table 41.
T
VPK Children Served by Provider Type
(2016-2017 VPK Program Year Report Current as of 11/2016)
Faith-Based
Family Child
Private
Providers Care Providers
Centers
Florida
27,127
554
124,601
Orange
2,591
34
10,043
Osceola
602
28
2,019
Seminole
1,128
0
2,972

Private
Schools
2,089
104
50
161

Public
Schools
30,403
2,053
1,129
930

Total Children
Served
156,698
12,149
3,204
4,037

Table 41: VPK Children Served by Provider Type (2016-17)

School Readiness Program
Florida’s School Readiness Program offers financial assistance to low-income families for early childhood
education. During the 2016-17 program year, there were 8,058 School Readiness providers in the state of
Florida, of which 508 were in Orange County, 125 were in Osceola County, and 128 in Seminole County.
During the same program year, a total of 160,259 children were served by School Readiness programs in
the state of Florida, of which 48,659 were EHS-eligible infants and toddlers, and 49,811 were HS-eligible
preschool age children (Table 42).
In 4C’s service area a combined 5,274 infants and toddlers, ages 0-2, and 5,340 preschool children, ages
3 and 4, were enrolled in School Readiness programs. In Osceola County, one in five children served in
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School Readiness programs are 3 years of age, 21.0 percent, compared with 17.6 percent in Orange
County, and 15.6 percent in Seminole County (Fig 41).
School Readiness Enrollments
(2016-2017 State Fiscal Year Report Current as of 11/2016)
Infant Toddler
2 Yr
3 Yr
Florida
Orange
Osceola
Seminole

7,754
631
80
94

17,575
1,444
258
232

23,330
1,906
317
312

25,188
1,956
431
308

4 Yr

5 Yr

24,623
1,942
387
316

9,090
1,248
133
107

School
Age
52,261
1,956
445
606

Special
Needs
429
11
0
0

Total*
160,259
11,094
2,051
1,975

Table 42: School Readiness Enrollments (2016-17)

2 0 1 6 - 1 7 S chool Rea di ness Enrol l ment s by Age
F l ori da Offi ce of Ea rl y L ea rni ng

Florida

Orange

Osceola

Infant

4.8%

5.7%

3.9%

Seminole
4.8%

Toddler

11.0%

13.0%

12.6%

11.7%

2 Yr

14.6%

17.2%

15.5%

15.8%

3 Yr

15.7%

17.6%

21.0%

15.6%

4 Yr

15.4%

17.5%

18.9%

16.0%

5 Yr

5.7%

11.2%

6.5%

5.4%

Figure 41: School Readiness Enrollments (2016-17)
Families with low incomes in Florida who are trying to work or get training to work may be eligible for school readiness help.
The School Readiness Program offers financial assistance to low-income families for early child education and care so families
can become financially self-sufficient and their young children can be successful in school in the future. Services vary based
on individual need and range from extended day to extended year and school age care in some instances. The program takes
into account a child’s physical, social, emotional and intellectual development; involves parents as their child's first teacher;
prepares children to be ready for school; and gives parents information about child development and other topics of
interest. School readiness programs provide developmental screenings for children and referrals to health and educational
specialists, and work in cooperation with other programs for young children such as Head Start, Early Head Start and the VPK
program.

Children Potentially Needing Childcare
Based on U.S. Census data, in Florida there are 837,114 children under the age of 6 whose parent(s) are
in the labor force, meaning they potentially need childcare; more than 94,000 reside in the 4C service area
(Table 43).
United States
Florida
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

Children Under Age 6, parent(s) in labor force
14,990,421
837,114
62,586
14,728
16,999

Table 43: Children Under Age 6, parent(s) in labor force (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION OF ELIGIBLE CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
Based on the 2015 American Community Survey (5-year estimates), there are approximately 286,782
children, ages 0-4, living in poverty in Florida, of which 21,193 are in Orange County, 5,820 are in Osceola
County, and 3,631 are in Seminole County. Table 44 provides the estimated number of EHS- and HS-ageeligible children living in poverty by geographic region.

Children ages 0-4 in Poverty
Est 0-2
Est 3-4

United States

Florida

4,795,039
2,877,023
1,918,016

286,782
172,069
114,713

Orange
County
21,193
12,716
8,477

Osceola
County
5,820
3,492
2,328

Seminole
County
3,631
2,179
1,452

Table 44: Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
ZIP Code Tabulation Areas (ZCTAs) are generalized areal representations of United States Postal Service (USPS) ZIP Code
service areas. The USPS ZIP Codes identify the individual post office or metropolitan area delivery station associated with
mailing addresses. USPS ZIP Codes are not areal features but a collection of mail delivery routes. – US Census Bureau

Ten zip code tabulation areas (ZCTAs) in the 4C service area each have more than 1,000 children, ages 04, living in poverty; nine are located in Orange County, and one in Osceola County (Table 45). Figures 42
and 43 illustrate the number of children in poverty by ZCTA, as well as the location of the 4C centers
(yellow dots on the map).
ZCTA
32839
32808
32822
34741
32703
32811
32810
32805
32828
32818
32807
32809
34744
34743
32771
34761
32792
34769
34759
34787
32825
32824
34746
34758
32806

Children
ages 0-4
in Poverty

Est
0-2

Est
3-4

ZCTA

1,971
1,869
1,614
1,578
1,488
1,370
1,338
1,177
1,036
1,009
983
903
801
707
685
662
622
606
581
562
539
538
517
503
461

1,183
1,121
968
947
893
822
803
706
622
605
590
542
481
424
411
397
373
364
349
337
323
323
310
302
277

788
748
646
631
595
548
535
471
414
404
393
361
320
283
274
265
249
242
232
225
216
215
207
201
184

32746
32829
32712
32766
32812
34772
32826
32757
32707
32773
32708
32837
32765
32817
34786
32804
32714
32819
34747
32750
34771
32751
32821
32835
32701

Children
ages 0-4
in Poverty

Est
0-2

Est
3-4

404
374
371
341
336
316
310
296
294
293
290
271
254
240
225
212
208
207
202
180
177
176
169
162
132

242
224
223
205
202
190
186
178
176
176
174
163
152
144
135
127
125
124
121
108
106
106
101
97
79

162
150
148
136
134
126
124
118
118
117
116
108
102
96
90
85
83
83
81
72
71
70
68
65
53

ZCTA

Children
ages 0-4
in Poverty

Est
0-2

Est
3-4

32836
128
77
51
32789
81
49
32
32833
66
40
26
32730
61
37
24
33896
60
36
24
32820
48
29
19
32801
43
26
17
33848
35
21
14
32832
34
20
14
34739
29
17
12
34773
22
13
9
32803
21
13
8
34760
20
12
8
32779
16
10
6
34734
16
10
6
32827
14
8
6
32709
32732
32798
32814
32830
32831
Table 45: Children Ages 0-4 in
Poverty by ZCTA (2015 ACS 5-Year
Estimates)
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Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty in Orange and Seminole Counties

Figure 42: Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty in Orange and Seminole Counties (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty in Osceola County

Figure 43: Children Ages 0-4 in Poverty in Osceola County (2015 ACS 5-Year Estimates)
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CHARACTERISTICS OF HS/EHS FAMILIES (2016 PIR)
Grant #

Center Name

Center Address

City

State

Zip

04CH4732

5th Avenue (HS/EHS)
2580
Altamonte-(HS) 2591

419 S Park Ave

Sanford

FL

32771

Center
Type
HS/EHS

525 Pineview St

FL

32701

HS

Baker Drive- (HS) 2491
Dreaming Big (HS)-2470
Kids Castle-(EHS) 2503
Lawton-(HS) 2596
Light Years Ahead (HS /
EHS) 2586
Midway-2597
North Street-(HS) 2598
Orlando Day Nursery
(EHS) 3493
Palm Plaza- (HS / EHS)
2492
Pine Crest-(HS) 2594
Pine Hills Preschool (EHS)
3494
Pregnant Women-(EHS)
3533
Rio Grande (EHS) 3490
UCP Downtown (EHS)
3470
UCP Pine Hill Preschool
(EHS) 3483
All About Kidz (CCP) 2502
Apopka Child Academy
(CCP) 3409
Dream Big (CCP) 3407
Early Education
Station(CCP) 3405
Frontline Outreach (CCP)
3404
God Creation (CCP) 3402
Golden Bear (CCP) 3408
Kidz Castle CCP 2503
My Destiny Academy
(CCP) 3403
Orlando Day Nursery
(CCP) 3412
Pine Hill Preschool CCP 3494
Rising Star Of Apopka
(CCP) 2503

3500 Baker Dr
1301 Kevstin Dr
2536 S Elm Ave
188 S Lake Jessup Ave,
398 Douglas Ave

Altamonte
Springs
Kissimmee
Kissimmee
Sanford
Oviedo
Altamonte
Springs
Sanford
Longwood
Orlando

FL
FL
FL
FL
FL

34741
34744
32773
32765
32714

HS
HS
EHS
HS
HS/EHS

FL
FL
FL

32771
32750
32801

HS
HS
EHS

2234-2236 East Irlo
Bronson Memorial Hwy
405 W 27th St
627 N Pine Hills Rd

Kissimmee

FL

34744

HS/EHS

Sanford
Orlando

FL
FL

32773
32808

HS
EHS

3500 W Colonial Dr

Orlando

FL

32808

EHS

1264 S Rio Grande Ave
4680 Lake Underhill Rd

Orlando
Orlando

FL
FL

32805
32807

EHS
EHS

5800 Golf Club Pkwy

Orlando

FL

32808

EHS

387 W Broadway St
170 E Magnolia St

Oviedo
Apopka

FL
FL

32765
32703

EHS
EHS

6151 Silver Star Rd
1780 Mercy Dr

Orlando
Orlando

FL
FL

32808
32808

EHS
EHS

3000 C R Smith St

Orlando

FL

32805

EHS

2405 E Kaley Ave
421 S Goldenrod Rd
2536 S Elm Ave
1235 W Michigan St

Orlando
Orlando
Sanford
Orlando

FL
FL
FL
FL

32806
32822
32773
32805

EHS
EHS
EHS
EHS

626 Lake Dot Cir

Orlando

FL

32801

EHS

627 N Pine Hills Rd

Orlando

FL

32808

EHS

1455 S 17-92

Longwood

FL

32750

EHS

04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04CH4732
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012
04HP0012

2255 Right Way St
900 North St
626 Lake Dot Cir
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The following graphs illustrate select 2016 Program Information Report (PIR) data, comparing Community
Coordinated Care for Children, Inc., Head Start and Early Head Start data with data for programs in Florida,
Region IV, and the United States.
HEAD START

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C
(04CH4732)

744,051
837,657
42,837

145,228
161,972
8,232

32,358
36,220
1,806

436
453
25

TOTAL Funded Enrollment
Cumulative Enrollment (Total)
Total Classes Operated
EARLY HEAD START
TOTAL Funded Enrollment
Cumulative Enrollment (Total)
Cumulative Enrollment (Children)
Pregnant Women
Total Classes Operated

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C
(04CH4732)

CCP
(04HP0012)

147,433
205,395
190,752
14,643
11,572

26,826
34,297
32,090
2,207
2,864

7,282
9,908
9,272
636
792

225
373
305
68
24

280
196
196
0
26

Enrollment Eligibility
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United
States

Income btw 100-130% of
Poverty

4%

3%

2%

0%

Income btw 100-130% of
Poverty

3%

2%

Over Income

6%

5%

2%

0%

Over Income

4%

3%

Homeless Children

4%

2%

2%

4%

Homeless Children

6%

Foster Children

2%

1%

0%

0%

Foster Children

Receipt of Public Assistance

13%

9%

9%

17%

Income Eligibility

71%

80%

84%

78%

Region IV Florida

4C

CCP

1%

0%

0%

2%

2%

0%

4%

4%

1%

2%

3%

2%

1%

1%

0%

Receipt of Public Assistance

13%

11%

11%

17%

2%

Income Eligibility

71%

79%

81%

79%

96%

Children with Disabilities
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

Children with an IEP
12.5%

Children with an IFSP
11.9%

10.6%

12.5%
9.9%

10.7%

9.2%

10.7%
2.6%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP
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Ethnicity of Children and Families
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

38%
63%

65%

67%

84%

85%

75%

66%

74%

15%

25%

34%

26%

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

62%
37%
United States

Region IV
Hispanic/Latino

35%

33%

16%

Florida

4C

United States

Non-Hispanic/Latino

Hispanic/Latino

Non-Hispanic/Latino

Race of Children and Families
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

United States

Region IV

Florida

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

4C

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

Unidentified Race

3%

2%

4%

0%

Unidentified Race

3%

3%

3%

0%

0%

AIAN & NHPI

3%

1%

0%

1%

AIAN & NHPI

2%

1%

0%

1%

0%

Other Race

7%

3%

3%

0%

Other Race

8%

2%

1%

0%

0%

Asian

2%

1%

1%

0%

Asian

2%

1%

1%

0%

1%

Biracial

10%

5%

5%

8%

Biracial

10%

7%

6%

6%

5%

Black

31%

57%

53%

33%

Black

29%

60%

60%

63%

74%

White

43%

31%

33%

58%

White

46%

27%

28%

30%

20%

Languages Spoken by Children and Families
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

E Asian

1.1%

0.3%

0.2%

1.3%

0.0%

0.0%

Mid Eastern/S Asian

1.2%

0.6%

1.3%

0.0%

0.0%

0.4%

Caribbean

0.2%

0.7%

2.3%

4.0%

7.1%

0.3%

0.2%

C/S Am and Mex

0.2%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.0%

11.4%

22.8%

40.0%

Spanish

21.4%

10.3%

15.6%

20.1%

7.7%

85.8%

70.5%

57.6%

English

73.2%

87.2%

79.6%

74.0%

83.7%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

E Asian

1.2%

0.2%

0.2%

1.8%

Mid Eastern/S Asian

1.2%

0.4%

0.6%

Caribbean

0.4%

1.1%

5.1%

C/S Am and Mex

0.2%

0.1%

Spanish

22.8%

English

71.7%
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Families
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
Two Parent Families

59.1%

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

Single Parent Families

Two Parent Families

71.7%

67.5%

64.9%

60.2%

40.9%

28.3%

32.5%

35.1%

39.8%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United States

Single Parent Families

75.8%

74.5%

78.2%

89.5%

24.2%

25.5%

21.8%

10.5%

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

Of the number of two-parent families, the number in which the parent/guardian figures are best described
as:
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

Other

0.3%

0.3%

0.3%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Foster parents

3.2%

3.1%

0.8%

0.0%

0.0%

4.0%

Relatives

0.5%

0.8%

0.4%

0.0%

0.0%

1.4%

2.0%

Grand Parents

1.9%

2.7%

1.5%

1.4%

0.0%

97.5%

94.0%

Parents

94.1%

93.1%

97.0%

98.6%

100.0%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

Other

0.7%

0.2%

0.2%

0.0%

Foster parents

2.1%

2.0%

0.6%

Relatives

0.7%

0.9%

0.3%

Grand Parents

2.4%

3.1%

Parents

94.2%

93.7%

Of the number of single-parent families, the number in which the parent/guardian figures are best
described as:
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

United
States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

Other

0.4%

0.3%

0.3%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Foster parent

1.3%

0.7%

0.5%

0.0%

0.0%

1.8%

Relative

0.5%

0.6%

0.5%

2.4%

0.7%

1.7%

1.1%

Grand Parent

1.6%

1.7%

1.4%

1.2%

4.8%

3.8%

4.1%

3.6%

Father

2.2%

1.7%

2.0%

1.2%

2.8%

92.0%

93.0%

93.5%

Mother

94.0%

95.0%

95.3%

95.3%

91.7%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

Other

0.4%

0.3%

0.4%

0.0%

Foster parent

0.9%

0.6%

0.3%

Relative

0.6%

0.7%

0.4%

Grand Parent

2.4%

2.6%

Father

4.5%

Mother

91.2%
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Employment
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

15.9%

17.4%

13.9%

19.5%

16.3%

15.8%

16.1%

15.5%

62.0%

63.2%

65.9%

59.7%

59.9%

59.1%

58.2%

64.8%

22.1%

19.4%

20.2%

20.8%

23.8%

25.2%

25.7%

19.7%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

5.9%
52.9%

Both Parents Employed

One Parent Employed

Both Parents Not Working

2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

Both Parents Employed

One Parent Employed

41.2%
CCP

Both Parents Not Working

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
8.3%

44.7%

46.8%

42.5%

42.0%

45.4%

44.8%

42.8%

39.2%

55.2%

53.2%

57.5%

58.0%

54.6%

55.2%

57.2%

60.8%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

91.7%

Parent Employed

Parent Not Working

Parent Employed

CCP

Parent Not Working

In Training or School
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

80.0%

79.3%

79.7%

65.1%

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

76.0%

56.3%

76.9%

35.3%

78.7%
35.3%

16.0%
3.9%
United States

17.6%
3.2%
Region IV

Both Parents in Training/School

17.4%
2.9%
Florida

One Parent in Training/School

26.8%
8.1%

18.0%
5.9%

4C

United States

Neither Parent in Training/School

2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

18.9%
4.3%
Region IV

Both Parents in Training/School

39.4%
17.9%
3.4%
Florida

One Parent in Training/School

4.2%
4C

29.4%
CCP

Neither Parent in Training/School

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
26.9%

84.6%

85.6%

86.2%

72.5%

77.1%

80.7%

79.9%

64.3%
73.1%

15.3%

14.4%

13.8%

United States

Region IV

Florida

Parent in Training/School

27.5%

22.9%

19.3%

20.1%

4C

United States

Region IV

Florida

Parent Not in Training/School

Parent in Training/School

35.7%
4C

CCP

Parent Not in Training/School
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Educational Attainment
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

24.5%

25.1%

44.9%

49.6%

31.3%

46.7%

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System

32.7%

25.6%

25.4%

29.6%

29.4%

27.2%

34.4%

42.8%

48.2%

47.2%

46.9%

54.3%

22.4%

23.3%

22.9%

18.9%

16.3%

19.8%

17.9%

16.6%

6.2%

4.9%

4.9%

9.9%

6.8%

5.7%

5.0%

6.7%

13.0%
5.6%

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

BA/MA

AA

HS/GED

<HS

Ba/Ma

AA

HS/GED

<HS

Of the total number of all families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian completed:
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
49.4%

22.4%
5.2% 6.3%

7.9% 9.8%

8.3% 9.2%
2.3% 1.5% 2.9%

1.9% 1.2% 2.5%

United States

Region IV
Grade level in school

HS/GED

12.2%

Florida
AA

BA/MA

9.9%

2.3% 1.2% 3.8%

6.1%

4C

Job training, professional certificate, license

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
41.4%

25.8%

6.1% 7.2%

2.2% 1.3% 3.0%

United States

11.1%
7.1%
2.2% 1.6% 4.1%

14.8%
10.3%
2.8% 1.4%

Region IV
Grade level in school

Florida
HS/GED

AA

BA/MA

24.7%

24.1%

13.5%
4.9%

6.7%

3.4%

6.1%

4C

7.4%
2.5%
CCP

Job training, professional certificate, license
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Public Assistance
2016 Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1
0

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

Receiving SNAP Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

48.3%

49.5%

51.9%

43.8%

Receiving SNAP Benefits - # of families at
enrollment

51.5%

56.1%

61.4%

38.8%

Receiving SSI Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

7.0%

8.3%

9.5%

14.6%

Receiving SSI Benefits - # of families at enrollment

7.0%

8.3%

9.5%

14.6%

Receiving TANF Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

10.4%

5.8%

4.4%

11.3%

Receiving TANF Benefits - # of families at
enrollment

10.4%

5.8%

4.4%

11.3%

Receiving WIC Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

44.6%

34.5%

36.2%

38.8%

Receiving WIC Benefits - # of families at enrollment

49.7%

41.4%

44.3%

53.2%

2016 Early Head Start PIR Data
Source: Head Start Enterprise System
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1
0

United States

Region IV

Florida

4C

CCP

Receiving SNAP Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

49.5%

53.9%

55.7%

43.9%

39.5%

Receiving SNAP Benefits - # of families at
enrollment

53.5%

61.0%

62.5%

27.6%

33.3%

Receiving SSI Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

8.0%

9.2%

11.5%

18.1%

10.5%

Receiving SSI Benefits - # of families at enrollment

7.9%

9.2%

11.3%

18.1%

10.5%

Receiving TANF Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

12.5%

7.0%

6.4%

8.3%

5.6%

Receiving TANF Benefits - # of families at
enrollment

12.7%

7.1%

6.6%

8.3%

6.2%

Receiving WIC Benefits - # of families at end of
enrollment year

63.5%

57.8%

57.7%

59.2%

56.8%

Receiving WIC Benefits - # of families at enrollment

71.0%

67.1%

67.1%

47.5%

64.2%
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2016-2017 Work, School and Training Schedules
The following three charts illustrate the proportion of families who are employed (full time or part time),
attending school, unemployed and disabled or retired. For those families who applied to the program, but
remained on the waitlist at the time of this assessment, 12 (EHS), 15 (HS), and 11 (CCP) percent of families
were employed full time. Full time employment is significantly higher for those families who were enrolled
into the program, 34 (EHS), 49 (HS) and 47 (CCP) percent. Six percent of both EHS and HS families obtained
full time employment after enrolling their child(ren) into the 4C program.
2 0 1 7 Empl oyment a nd S chool /T ra i ni ng
F a mi l i es on W a i t l i st for 4 C P rogra m
1%
11%

3%

5%
34%

Disabled/Retired

57%

Unemployed

10%
77%
39%

Attending school

8%

Part time (<35 hrs)

17%

Full time (35 hrs+)

12%

15%

11%

EHS

HS

CCP

2 0 1 7 Empl oyment a nd S chool /T ra i ni ng
F a mi l i es Enrol l ed i n 4 C P rogra m
3%

6%

24%

26%

15%

3%

3%
6%
14%
Disabled/Retired
30%

18%

Unemployed
Attending school

23%

Part time (<35 hrs)
49%

47%

HS

CCP

34%

EHS

Full time (35 hrs+)

2 0 1 7 Empl oyment a nd S chool /T ra i ni ng
F a mi l i es Enrol l ed i n 4 C P rogra m
6%

6%

Employed Full Time After Enrollment

4%
1%

2%

Employed Part Time After Enrollment
0%

EHS

Enrolled in School after Enrollment

HS
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STRENGTHS AND NEEDS OF ELIGIBLE CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
Parent Community Needs Surveys Results
Characteristics
In order to collect primary data from
Ra ce/Et hni ci t y of Respondent s
Head Start parents and guardians, a
0.9% 0.9%
1.2%
Parent Community Needs Survey
was distributed in English and
10.4%
Spanish to all families enrolled at the
Black/African American
time of the Community Assessment
Hispanic
(see Appendix A for a copy of the
48.6%
White/Caucasian
survey in English). A total of 468
Other
surveys were completed and
Asian/Pacific Islander
returned. Of those who responded
46.2%
Native American
to the survey, 48.6 percent indicated
their race/ethnicity to be African
American, 46.2 percent Hispanic or
Latino, and 10.4 percent white. The
remaining 4.2 percent was split among those selecting ‘other,’ Asia/Pacific Islander, and Native American.
Approximately 43.8 percent of respondents were employed full-time at the time of the survey, 25.4
percent were employed on a part-time or seasonal basis, and 22.5 percent were unemployed or not
working. Just over 8 percent of respondents were in job training or school, 5.9 percent were full-time
homemakers, and 1.9 percent were disabled.
Current Empl oy ment S t a t us of S urv ey Respondent s
43.8%

25.4%

22.5%
8.1%

Employed full-time Employed parttime/seasonal

Unemployed/not
working

In job
training/school

5.9%

Full time
homemaker

1.9%

1.4%

Disabled

Other

Although more than 70 percent of respondents indicated having a checking or savings account,
approximately 1 out of 3 parents/guardians do not have a checking or savings account.
More than 30 percent of respondents indicated not having a computer at home, and one in four does not
have an internet connection (26.0 percent). However more than nine out of ten Head Start parents or
guardians do have a mobile phone with text capability.
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Do you have a computer
at home?

Do you have an internet
connection at home?

Do you have a mobile
phone with text
capability?
No,
4.3%

No,
26.0%

No,
32.2%
Yes,
67.8%

Yes,
74.0%

Yes,
95.7%

Perception of Problems in the Community
Survey takers were given a list of 20 items and asked to rate each on a scale of 1 to 5 to indicate how
serious of a problem they found each item to be in their city or town. The scale provided was as follows:
(1) Not a Problem (2) Somewhat (3) Problem (4) Serious Problem (5) Very Serious Problem.
According to those who responded to the survey low wages and availability of affordable housing were
the most significant problems in their community, rating each a 2.67 and 2.53, respectively. Availability of
jobs, public safety/crime, and affordable child care before and after school hours were among the top five
issues for survey respondents.
How s eri ous of a probl em do you feel ea ch of t he fol l ow i ng i t ems i s i n
y our Ci t y /T ow n? (S ca l e 1 [not a probl em] - 5 [v ery seri ous probl em])
Low wages

2.67

Availability of affordable housing

2.53

Availability of jobs

2.44

Public safety/crime

2.39

Affordable child care during before and after school hours

2.39

Note: Incidence of low wages was rated a 5 (very serious problem) by one out of four respondents (26.1
percent), and availability of affordable housing was rated a 5 (very serious problem) by one out of five
respondents (20.7 percent).
How serious of a problem do you feel each of the following items is in your City/Town?
Scale:(1) Not a Problem (2) Somewhat (3) Problem (4) Serious Problem (5) Very Serious Problem
Percent Who Rated
Rating
Answer Options
Low wages
Availability of affordable housing
Availability of jobs
Public safety/crime
Gang activity
Incidence of drug and alcohol abuse
Affordable child care during before and after school hours
Utility costs (heating, electricity, water)
Domestic Violence
Child abuse and neglect

Average

Item a 5 “Very
Serious Problem”

2.67
2.53
2.44
2.39
2.13
2.19
2.39
2.19
2.09
2.07

26.1%
20.7%
17.0%
14.9%
14.2%
13.9%
13.0%
12.3%
11.5%
11.4%
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How serious of a problem do you feel each of the following items is in your City/Town?
Scale:(1) Not a Problem (2) Somewhat (3) Problem (4) Serious Problem (5) Very Serious Problem
Percent Who Rated
Rating
Answer Options
Incarceration of parents
Child health issues (obesity, exposure to lead, asthma)
Access to health care
Availability and access to public transportation
Services for children with disabilities
Access to public assistance (WIC, Food Stamps - SNAP, TANF)
Availability of job training
Availability of adult education (GED, ESL, etc.)
Quality of public education in your city or town
Availability of recreation for families (parks, church programs, membership organizations)

Average

Item a 5 “Very
Serious Problem”

2.04
2.13
1.85
1.98
1.95
1.81
1.98
1.91
1.85
1.73

10.5%
10.3%
9.7%
9.2%
8.4%
7.8%
7.6%
7.3%
6.3%
4.5%

Poverty. The top three reasons for poverty in the community according to survey respondents were low
wages, high housing costs, and insufficient jobs.
Please select the top THREE reasons you feel are the primary causes of poverty in your City/Town.
Answer Options
Response
68.3%
Percent
Wages are too low
68.3%
57.0%
Housing costs are too high
57.0%
Not enough jobs
31.3%
31.3%
Lack of child care
26.3%
People don't want to work
23.8%
Lack of education/training
18.8%
Health care costs are too high 17.1%
Utility costs are too high
14.8%
Wages are too low
Housing costs are too
Not enough jobs
Lack of job skills
12.6%
high
Lack of transportation
10.9%

Family Needs
The majority of survey takers (452 out of 468) responded to the question asking if they or someone in
their immediate family experienced a time in the past year where they needed a particular service or
experienced particular situations related to inadequate income (see chart below). Approximately 42
percent indicated that they or someone in their family had at one point within the last year needed to see
a dentist but could not afford to; 36.3 percent within the last year could not pay the rent, 35.7 percent
needed to see a doctor but could not afford to; 32.2 percent stated that they or someone in their family
had looked for work but could not get a job, and 31.9 percent needed to buy medicine but could not
afford to.
More than one-quarter stated they had lost a job and had utilities cut off. One out of five respondents
stated they needed to buy food but could not afford to do so, and one out of ten went hungry.
Additionally, even though “only” 8.8 percent of survey respondents indicated that they or someone in
their immediate family had been evicted in the past year, this translates to 36 persons.
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Ha s t here been a t i me i n t he l a st yea r w hen you or someone i n your
i mmedi a t e fa mi l y: (Answ er = Y ES )
Needed to see a dentist but couldn't afford to?

41.5%

Could not pay the rent?

36.3%

Needed to see a doctor but couldn't afford to?

35.7%

Looked for work but could not get a job?

32.2%

Needed to buy medicine but couldn't afford to?

31.9%

Lost a job?

26.3%

Had utilities turned off? (Couldn't pay)

26.0%

Needed food but couldn't afford to buy it?

21.3%

Needed assistance but did not receive it?

19.2%

Could not pay mortgage or taxes?

14.7%

Had utilities turned off? (Landlord failed to pay)

11.9%

Went hungry?

10.1%

Been evicted?

8.8%

Had home condemned?

3.7%

What are the 2 or 3 most important things that you believe will improve your household’s quality of
life? The overwhelming majority of responses (of 295 respondents) were related to employment (22
percent) and wages (20 percent). These top two responses to improve quality of life were followed by
education (12 percent) and financial/budgeting assistance (8 percent). The table below lists the top 10
answers provided by survey respondents, accounting for approximately 82 percent of all responses.
Top ten responses
1 Job - other/better
2 Wages - better
3 Education/better
4 Financial/budgeting assistance
5 Communication

6
7
8
9
10

Family quality time
Child care
Housing/affordable
Church
Language - ESL

Communication and Kindergarten Registration
The overwhelming majority of respondents, 96.4 percent, indicated they are satisfied with the
communication between themselves and their child’s teacher. In addition to the reasons listed in the chart
below, 1.6 percent of survey respondents stated they were not satisfied with the communication, citing
reasons such as: you have to ask, they don’t tell you what’s going one and lack of communication between
parents who drop off in the morning and pick up in the afternoon.
Are you satisfied with the communication between you and your child's teacher?

Answer Options
Yes
No, because...My teacher does not speak my preferred language
No, because...I do not have time
No, because...The teacher does not have time
No, because...Other (please specify)

Response Percent
96.4%
1.6%
0.7%
0.7%
1.6%
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Ninety-four percent (a total of 441 respondents) answered the question regarding kindergarten
registration. Almost half, 47.2 percent, feel they are very knowledgeable and do not need help with the
process; 35.4 percent are knowledgeable but do not know where to start with kindergarten registration,
and 17.5 percent have no knowledge of the process at all.
W i t h reg a rds t o K i nderga rt en regi st ra t i on, a re you:
47.2%
35.4%
17.5%

Very knowledgeable (do not need help with Knowledgeable (you know that registration
the process)
needs to happen but do not know how to
start)

Not knowledgeable (need/interested in a
workshop on registration needs and
processes)

Services in the Community
Survey takers were asked to rate community services in their county and/or to state “don’t know” if they
did not use the service or had no knowledge of the service. The best rated services in the county were
English as a Second Language (ESL) services, while the most poorly rated services were locations that offer
mental health services.
How g ood a re t hese serv i ces i n our count y?
English as a Second Language (ESL) services
Check cashing services
GED/Adult High School services

32

169

151

43

167

150

21

98

165

161

82
107

Job training at community colleges

33

162

155

96

Life skills or tutoring

32

165

149

101

Classes to get a better job

71

156

Places to help you pick the jobs you want to do

62

174

Credit counseling and credit repair

88

140

133
120
113

92
92
111

Places that teach people how to make a budget and save money

72

148

112

117

Places that teach about saving for retirement

77

141

108

124

Bad

Average

Good

Don't know

Other Programs Used the Most. When asked, besides Head Start, what other agencies are used most
often, the majority of respondents indicated they use WIC (Women, Infants and Children), Food Stamps
and the 4C Head Start/Early Head Start program.
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Key Informants
As a strategic step to supplement secondary data findings, the Community Coordinated Care for Children,
Inc. staff identified a group of key informants and invited them to offer answers to questions that provide
additional insight into the communities and families served by the agency in their service area. Key
informants, leaders and experts who were invited to respond to the community assessment represented
the following partners and area agencies: State Government, Orange County Head Start, Children's Home
Society of Florida, Private Medical clinic, Orange Blossom Family Health, and the Children's Home Society
of Florida.
The questions and summary of responses collected follow:
1. What do you see as the top priority issues affecting early childhood development (0-4-year-old children)
during the next four years in your city and/or community?
Key Informants identified several top priorities affecting early childhood development in the next four
years:
a) About half of the informants indicated that the county has limited access to affordable and quality
child care. According to one respondent, daycare and pre-school programs have limited
connections in the county and this gap has a negative effect to many children.
b) There is a need to build an inclusive learning environment for all children. For those with learning
and physical needs, to gifted children and all those in between.
c) Stable housing is a challenge for many residents in the county.
d) Financial stability is vital for many young families in the county.
e) There are healthcare needs, including access and affordability.
f) Infant mental health should be a top priority.
g) Dental health needs: getting children to a dentist by age one, securing that children see a dentist
at least yearly, and providing preventive dental health to young children and their parents.
h) Increase parental knowledge of child development and parenting skills.
i) Increase access to computers and Wi-Fi to enable children to learn basic work skills required of
them right as they are entering Kindergarten.
2. What do you see as the top priority issues affecting education for adults during the next four years in
your county and/or state?
Informants identified the following priority issues affecting education of adults in Orange, Osceola and
Seminole Counties:
a) Willingness of adults in the counties to want to continue their education. In some cases, the benefit
of continuing education does not outweigh the cost and commitment.
b) Many adults are unaware of what is available in the community.
c) The county must work on motivating adults to continue to be well informed and competent lifelong
learners. Adult education is a social, cultural and a political phenomenon nowadays. The idea of
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lifelong learning is becoming the starting point of social paradigm of education. Education is
implementing not only at school institutions but also during the whole life.
d) The challenge for many working adults is to have a convenient work schedule that would allow
them the opportunity to attend school.
e) Affordability, time, and job stability are indispensable.
f) Many adults are challenge by obtaining student loans and then the student debt.
g) There is limited accessibility of education due to transportation and cost.
3. What do you perceive to be the number one priority issue or concern for the city and/or community
leaders during the next four years? (i.e. environmental, economic, health, and social).
Respondents identified several issues of concern and listed how many of these must be addressed by
leaders in the area. The following is a list of exact responses collected:
a) Determine what types of services are most needed by families and children and to find resources
available to meet those needs.
b) Improving quality and reducing inequality services for all individuals.
c) Safety: to provide learning environments that avoid injuries to children, staff, partners &
community; Effectiveness, to provide high quality services based on scientific knowledge to all who
could benefit and refrain from providing services to those not likely to benefit (avoid underuse and
overuse, respectively); Efficiency, to avoid waste, including waste of time, equipment, supplies,
ideas, and energy; Equity, to provide services that does not vary in quality because of personal
characteristics such as gender, ethnicity, geographic location, and socioeconomic status; Citizencenteredness, to provide services that is respectful of and responsive to individual preferences,
needs, and values, ensuring that the individual values guide all decisions; Economics, many issues
occur when the people in the community; are not able to take care of the families with low wages.
There are some many individuals that live in impoverished communities that lack resources. Most
of the time the people that live in these communities are unaware of any agencies that can offer
any resources to them.
d) Job Stability
e) School Zoning and requirements for all educational institutions across the board (Primary school
age children) that embarks on excellence for all students not just some because they may live and
area. We are a technology driven society and the students need the materials to compete at school
and at home - both- or it does no good.
f) It is difficult to focus on one issue as a priority as they are interconnected. City and community
leaders need to have a planned approach to focus on multiple key issues to address economic, social
and environmental concerns.
g) Economic, health, education
h) Health
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4. In your opinion, what are the top two to three strengths of your city and/or community?
The following six themes and resources is a summary of those identified as the two strengths in the service
area:
a) Tourism and hospitality.
b) Growing in diversity and redevelopment of communities.
c) Growing in community resources available to families. We have a large variety of resources for lowincome families and people are genuinely willing to help others for the most part.
d) Family, Faith and Community involvement.
e) Participation in housing first to facilitate housing for the chronically homeless.
f) Head Start and Early Head Start.
5. What is the status (reputation) of early childhood education and services in your city and/or community?
Please explain.
The following is a list of exact responses collected:
a) Early childhood education is look upon as daycare/baby-sitting program. The community is not
knowledgeable of the high quality comprehensive services provided to low income families. There
are very few schools that offer the services.
b) Early Childhood Education centers, despite if they are HS/EHS/4C/Private/etc., have a mixed
reputation. Those that have a higher reputation tend to be those that have loving staff. Regulations
are important, but as a parent who knows what to look for in a center (compliance-wise), I will still
bypass a center who follows all the regulations if I don't believe the staff will treat my child with love
and respect.
c) It’s great. I reside in an area where the income medians or on the higher end of the financial
spectrum- therefore the programs are up to par and getting everything they need.
d) While we have quality early childhood education programs and services, there is still a need to reach
children and families that don't access/use the services. There should be additional programs to
keep up with population growth.
e) Head Start programs provide a very positive influence.
f) Early childhood education is highly sought after and short in supply. The demand for quality ECE is
constantly growing in our community and we need more centers to support this.
6. Please offer any additional advice regarding community partnership and involvement that could be
beneficial to the Head Start Leadership in your city and/or community.
The following is a list of exact recommendations and comments from Key Informants about Community
Coordinated Care for Children, Inc.:
a) Stronger community partnerships. Community partnerships are essential to ensuring that all
children and families have what they need to be at their best. No one organization can provide
everything every child/family needs so building partnerships in the community is the only way for
HS/EHS to ensure that we are providing the best services possible. Community partnership is the key
for making a difference in our community. My advice would be to focus on building and
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b)
c)

d)
e)

f)

strengthening relationships with other resources in the community and ensure families have the
knowledge of HS community partnerships.
Better coordination of services to prevent duplication and to address the needs of families.
All Early childhood programs must consciously invest in each other to ensure once children transition
to private/public school they are successful. Public & Private Schools & Community leaders must
embrace & support Head Start which will evidently impact the services provided to the children &
families. Overall goal is to equipped children & families to be positive productive citizens of the
community.
Offer awareness in the community. Be the voice for the families that are unable to speak for
themselves.
Community and leadership reaching out to the parents of the participating educational institution
(schools-daycares-Head Start) to see or determine if any additional resources-be it financial or
technological are required for the students to excel, bloom and blossom in a productive atmosphere.
Especially since children spend most of their day at school
We are very pleased to partner with Head Start to provide dental services and education to the
Head Start children.
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RESOURCES, COLLABORATIVE/FORMAL AGREEMENTS AND PARTNERSHIPS
Name of
Program/Partner
Education
Teaching
Strategies

Address

City

State

Zip

Phone
Number

Services Provided by
Partner to Program

4500 East-West
Highway, Suite 300

Bethesda

MD

20814

1-800-6373652

Valencia College

1800 S Kirkman Rd

Orlando,

FL

32811

Early Learning
Coalition of
Orange County
Health
Choices Targeted
Case
Management
Program (TCM)
Heart of Florida
United Way

1940 Traylor Blvd.

Orlando,

FL

32804

407-2995000
407-8416607

Professional
Development for adult
learning theory
Continuing Professional
Education
Training Materials Class
interactions for
infant/toddler care

170 Bloxham Ave

Orange
City

FL

32763

1-888-4602226

Provide Health Services
for children and
Families

1940 Traylor Blvd.

Orlando,

FL

32804

407-8350900

Health Development
Behavior and learning
from young children

4898 E. Irlo
Bronson Memorial
Hwy, 2nd Floor

St. Cloud,

FL

34771

407-8913054

Mental Health
Counseling, Speech and
Language Services

400 E. South St.

Orlando

FL

32801

407-8367650

Youth Nutritional
Afterschool Meal
Program

3545 Lake Breeze
Drive

Orlando,

FL

32808

407-2984180

Recruit, orient, enroll
volunteers in the
program

Mental Health
Carrousel
Therapy and
Behavioral
Nutrition
Help Save a Child

Other
Foster
Grandparents
Program of
Central FL
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IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Based on the Comprehensive Community Assessment findings and the data studied for those counties
served by the Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc., the following are four broad and significant
issues affecting children and families served by the program:

1. Affordable Housing and Homelessness. Head Start parents identified the availability of affordable
housing as the 2nd highest ranking problem in their community (from a list of 20 indicators). One in five
parents/guardians felt that affordable housing is a “very serious problem.” In Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties those earning minimum wage ($8.55/hour) must work more than two full-time jobs,
or more than 96 hours per week, to afford a two-bedroom home at fair market rental value.
Recommendation: 4C Service Area presents an ideal opportunity for the Head Start’s staff to learn and
replicate the implementation of a measurable plans used by other nonprofit organizations and
government leadership (Florida Housing Coalition, Rethink Homelessness, Coalition for the Homeless,
Christian Service Center, Salvation Army, Central Florida Regional Commission on Homelessness,
McKinney-Vento Act in the schools and Mayor Dyer’s Homelessness Initiatives) with social impact that
would increase the network with agencies and models to address housing challenges and homelessness.
Connections and partnerships would serve the program well in supporting homeless and unsheltered
families and children.

2. Economic Security: Focus on Jobs, Living Wage and Training. Head Start parents identified low wages,
lack of available jobs and living wage related issues (availability of affordable housing) as main problems
in their communities. Based on survey results, most parents feel that low wages and the availability of
jobs in the region are “very serious problems.” Moreover, key informants recommend a key top issue
priority to support adults in the service area is a focus on financial stability as a vital condition for many
young families.
Recommendation: Family services staff must focus on strengthening support to families that may have
jobs but not do not earn a living wage. The key is to strengthen partnerships with community colleges to
identify some of the most competitive job skills needed. The collaboration with local agencies and
community colleges could focus on providing ongoing learning and awareness opportunities to parents
about career opportunities and job skills programs. It is crucial to encourage parents to complete high
school and/or higher education courses through intensive family partnership and engagement activities.
Developing strong collaborative agreements with colleges and universities may also include setting up
grant writing and fundraising partnerships to support parents’ education, scholarships and other
resources needed to break barriers faced by parents to receive a higher education. It is an appropriate to
measure results of any collaboration efforts to establish accountability and focus on what is working to
increase the opportunities of parents’ obtainment of a better and/or living wage.
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3. Service Area Population Change, Growth and Unique Transformation. The growth of the area’s
population is long-term and reflected in the growth of the 4C service area children. The overall population
in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties grew by 12.4, 20.6, and 6.3 percent from 2010 to 2015,
respectively.
Recommendation: Based on the need to assist in the acculturation process and success of new young
families moving to the region, particularly Osceola County, it is essential to help parents with pre-school
aged children to learn about the educational system and improve outcomes of children by strengthening
the capacity of parents to be informed and become confident leaders in the lives of their children.

4. Networking and Collaboration. Better collaboration was identified by experts and key informants
supporting the Community Assessment as a challenge to increase services to eligible children in the
county.
Recommendation: Each county faces similar challenges but these are not similar counties, based on
population changes and current initiatives by leadership. Building different 4C Advisory Groups (using key
informants, community leaders and experts) to address each county’s priority increases the opportunities
for the program to strengthen outreach and influence. These advisory groups may focus on different areas
or issues based on priorities (ex. single women issues, poverty related issues, assimilation needs,
affordable housing, etc.).
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APPENDICES
A: Parent Community Needs Survey
B: Key Informant Questions
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Appendix A: Parent Community Needs Survey
The local Head Start Program is interested in your opinion about programs and services for families in the county. Your ideas and
experience help us serve families better. This survey will take about 20 minutes to complete. This survey is confidential, all of
your answers will be grouped together. We will use this information to understand top problems facing families serviced by the
Head Start Program.
Part A: (1) How serious of a problem do you feel each of the following items is in our county? (Please circle your response.)
Scale: (1) Not a Problem (2) Somewhat (3) Problem (4) Serious Problem (5) Very Serious Problem
ITEM RATING
1. Access to health care
2. Availability of Affordable housing
3. Affordable child care during before and after school hours
4. Availability of recreation for families (parks, church programs, membership organizations)
5. Quality of public education in our county
6. Availability of adult education (GED, ESL, etc.)
7. Availability of job training
8. Utility costs (heating, electricity, water)
9. Services for disabled children
10. Low wages
11. Availability of jobs
12. Public safety/crime
13. Availability and access to public transportation
14. Incidence of drug and alcohol abuse
15. Gang activity
16. Child health issues (obesity, exposure to lead, asthma)
17. Incarceration of parents
18. Access to public assistance (WIC, Food Stamps, Medicaid, Work First, TEA & Work Pays)
19. Domestic violence
20. Child abuse and neglect

Circle ONE
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
2

3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3
3

4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4

5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

(2) Please mark (X) the top THREE reasons you feel are the primary causes of poverty in our county.
X
Reason
X
Reason
1. Not enough jobs
10. Low social security/SSI payments
2. Wages are too low
11. Unemployment benefits are too low
3. Lack of job skills
12. Housing costs are too high
4. Lack of education/training
13. Health care costs are too high
5. Lack of child care
14. Utility costs are too high
6. Lack of transportation
15. Non-payment of child support
7. People can’t work (too old, ill, disabled)
16. Immigration status
8. People don’t want to work
17. Other (specify)
9. Lack of public assistance payments
(3) Has there been a time in the last year when you or someone in your immediate family: (Mark X to answer: Y / N)
Y
N
Y
N
1. Needed to see a dentist but couldn’t afford to?
8. Had utilities turned off? (Landlord failed to pay)
2. Needed to see a doctor but couldn’t afford to?
9. Could not pay mortgage or taxes?
3. Needed to buy medicine but couldn’t afford to?
10. Been evicted?
4. Needed food but couldn’t afford to buy it?
11. Had home condemned?
5. Went hungry?
12. Looked for work but could not get a job?
6. Could not pay the rent?
13. Lost a job?
14. Needed assistance but did not receive it?
7. Had utilities turned off? (Couldn’t pay)
If yes, what type of assistance: _______________
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(4) How good are these services in our county?
GED/Adult High School services
English as a Second Language (ESL) services
Life skills or tutoring
Job training at community colleges
Places to help you pick the jobs you want to do
Classes to get a better job
Places that teach people how to make a budget and save money
Credit counseling and credit repair
Check cashing services
Places that teach about saving for retirement

Bad

Average

Good

Don’t know

(5) With regards to Kindergarten registration, are you:
Very knowledgeable (do not need help with the process)
Knowledgeable (you know that registration needs to happen but do not know how to start)
Not knowledgeable (need/interested in a workshop on registration needs and processes)
(6) Are you satisfied with the communication between you and your child's teacher?
Yes
No (if no, why?)
My teacher does not speak my preferred language
I do not have time
The teacher does not have time
Other reason(s) (please specify):
(7) Besides the Head Start, list the top 2 service agencies that you or your neighbors use the most?
________________________________________________/_______________________________________________________
(8) What are the 2 or 3 most important things that you believe will improve your household’s quality of life?
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Disability Services:
Do you have access to disability services for your child?
Do you know where to go for disability services?
Do you see Head Start as an option to receive disability services?

Yes / No
Yes / No
Yes / No

Part B: We would like to know some general information. Your identity and answers will be CONFIDENTIAL and we are not
asking for your name. (Mark your answers with an X)

Ethnicity/Race:
(Check all that apply)
Asian/Pacific Islander
Black/African American
Native American
White/Caucasian
Other
Hispanic

What is your current employment
status? (Check all that apply)
Employed full-time
Unemployed/not working
Employed part-time/seasonal
Disabled
Retired
Full time homemaker
In job training/school
Other:

Y

N

Do you have a bank/credit union
account (checking or savings)?
Do you have a computer at home?
Do you have an Internet
connection at home?
Do you have a mobile phone with
text capability

Thank you for completing this survey!
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Appendix B: Key Informant Questions
Key informants from the following areas/subject matter expertise are needed: education, health and
nutrition, mental health, childcare, social services, transportation, communication, housing and disability
services.
Key Informant Interview Questionnaire
As a leader and expert in your county and state, we value your input and feedback to the following openended questions. Your answers are confidential and will be added to the answers of other key informants.
Our objective is to study and use your input in order to design a more relevant plan that assist low income
families. This survey will take you between 20-30 minutes to complete. Thank you for taking time to share
your knowledge with us!

1. What do you see as the top priority issues affecting early childhood development (0-4 years old
children) during the next four years in your city and/or community?

2. What do you see as the top priority issues affecting education for adults during the next four years in
your city and/or community?

3. What do you perceive to be the number one priority issue or concern for the city and/or community
leaders during the next four years? (i.e. environmental, economic, health, social, and others) Please
explain.

4. In your opinion, what are the top two to three strengths of your city and/or community?

5. What is the status (reputation) of early childhood education and services in your city and/or
community? Please explain.

6. Please offer any additional advice regarding community partnership and involvement that could be
beneficial to the Head Start Leadership in your city and/or community
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C OMMU NITY C OORD INATED C ARE FOR CH ILDR EN
Head Start combines services such as Education, Early Childhood
Development, Health, Nutrition, Mental Health, Disability Services, Family
Support Services, and Parental Involvement with the goal of enhancing your
child’s life and building a strong family unit. Through these services, Head
Start hopes to empower your child with the confidence to excel in school
and achieve self-sufficiency as an adult.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Based on the 2017 Comprehensive Community Assessment findings and the data studied for those counties served
by the Community Coordinated Care for Children, Inc., the following are four broad and significant issues affecting
children and families served by the program:
1. Affordable Housing and Homelessness. Head Start parents identified the availability of affordable housing as
the 2nd highest ranking problem in their community (from a list of 20 indicators). One in five parents/guardians felt
that affordable housing is a “very serious problem.” In Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties those earning
minimum wage ($8.55/hour) must work more than two full-time jobs, or more than 96 hours per week, to afford a
two-bedroom home at fair market rental value.
Recommendation: 4C Service Area presents an ideal opportunity for the Head Start’s staff to learn and replicate the
implementation of a measurable plans used by other nonprofit organizations and government leadership (Florida
Housing Coalition, Rethink Homelessness, Coalition for the Homeless, Christian Service Center, Salvation Army,
Central Florida Regional Commission on Homelessness, McKinney-Vento Act in the schools and Mayor Dyer’s
Homelessness Initiatives) with social impact that would increase the network with agencies and models to address
housing challenges and homelessness. Connections and partnerships would serve the program well in supporting
homeless and unsheltered families and children.
2. Economic Security: Focus on Jobs, Living Wage and Training. Head Start parents identified low wages, lack
of available jobs and living wage related issues (availability of affordable housing) as main problems in their communities. Based on survey results, most parents feel that low wages and the availability of jobs in the region are
“very serious problems.” Moreover, key informants recommend a key top issue priority to support adults in the service area is a focus on financial stability as a vital condition for many young families.
Recommendation: Family services staff must focus on strengthening support to families that may have jobs but not
do not earn a living wage. The key is to strengthen partnerships with community colleges to identify some of the
most competitive job skills needed. The collaboration with local agencies and community colleges could focus on
providing ongoing learning and awareness opportunities to parents about career opportunities and job skills programs. It is crucial to encourage parents to complete high school and/or higher education courses through intensive
family partnership and engagement activities. Developing strong collaborative agreements with colleges and universities may also include setting up grant writing and fundraising partnerships to support parents’ education,
scholarships and other resources needed to break barriers faced by parents to receive a higher education. It is an
appropriate to measure results of any collaboration efforts to establish accountability and focus on what is working
to increase the opportunities of parents’ obtainment of a better and/or living wage.
3. Service Area Population Change, Growth and Unique Transformation. The growth of the area’s population
is long-term and reflected in the growth of the 4C service area children. The overall population in Orange, Osceola,
and Seminole Counties grew by 12.4, 20.6, and 6.3 percent from 2010 to 2015, respectively.

3
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IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Recommendation: Based on the need to assist in the acculturation process and success of new young families
moving to the region, particularly Osceola County, it is essential to help parents with pre-school aged children
to learn about the educational system and improve outcomes of children by strengthening the capacity of parents to be informed and become confident leaders in the lives of their children.
4. Networking and Collaboration. Better collaboration was identified by experts and key informants supporting the Community Assessment as a challenge to increase services to eligible children in the county.
Recommendation: Each county faces similar challenges but these are not similar counties, based on population
changes and current initiatives by leadership. Building different 4C Advisory Groups (using key informants,
community leaders and experts) to address each county’s priority increases the opportunities for the program to
strengthen outreach and influence. These advisory groups may focus on different areas or issues based on priorities (ex. single women issues, poverty related issues, assimilation needs, affordable housing, etc.).

4
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I. Introduction
The Community Coordinated Care for Children,
Inc. Head Start/Early Head Start Program (4C) is
funded to serve 941 infants, toddlers, preschool aged
children, and pregnant women in Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole Counties, Florida. The program offers both
Head Start and Early Head Start in 35 separate
locations, offering direct services as well as services
through a child care partnership. During the 2016-2017
program year, a total of 1,229 children and pregnant
women were served.

•

social service needs of Head Start-eligible children
and their families.
Resources in the community that could be used to
address the needs of Head Start-eligible children
and their families, including assessments of their
availability and accessibility.

Every five years the program conducts a
comprehensive collection and analysis of key indicators
to evaluate the needs and characteristics of eligible
Head Start children and families. Every year after the
comprehensive analysis, a follow-up assessment
becomes the latest baseline to identify current
This Community Assessment is a tool to make program
community needs, design new plans, choose additional
decisions, to determine the types of services most
community partners, develop strategic collaborations,
needed by families and children, to locate resources
evaluate progress of past interventions, and make
available to meet those needs, and to determine long
relevant decisions about program improvement changes
and short-term program objectives. Head Start leaderexpeditiously.
ship staff studies most important changes in the communities and county on a regular basis. However, the
Community Assessment is the formal and far-reaching This is the first update to the full 2017 Community
process performed every five years and updated annu- Assessment. This update reflects data from the 2016
census data, updated federal poverty guidelines, U.S.
ally.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics data,
public assistance data, and other data as needed. Parent
Needs Surveys were also completed for 2017.

II. Methodology
In accordance with the Federal Head Start Act,
Community Coordinated Care for Children conducted a
full Community Assessment in January 2017 which
provided the following information:
• Demographic make-up of Head Start-eligible
• children and their families, including their
• estimated number, geographic location, and racial,
ethnic, and linguistic composition.
• Other child development and child care programs
that are serving Head Start- eligible children, including
publicly-funded state and local preschool programs,
and the approximate number of Head Start-eligible
children served by each.
• The estimated number of children with disabilities
birth to age five, including the types of disabilities
and relevant services and resources provided to
these children by community agencies.
• Data regarding the education, health, nutrition and

5
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III. Community Coordinated Care for Children Head Start/Early Head Start/Early
Head Start CCP
Community Coordinated Care for Children (4C) operates the grantee program,
which includes Head Start, Early Head
Start, and Early Head Start Child Care
Partnerships. All systems of management
are linked into the annual planning process which is essential to the success of
HS/EHS/CCP programs.

Early Head StartCCP, 280, 30%
Head Start

Head Start, 436,
46%

Early Head Start
Early Head Start- CCP

The process allows 4C to view, monitor,
develop and evaluate progress towards
Early Head Start,
the program’s school readiness, training
225, 24%
and technical assistance planning efforts
as part of the overall cycle. This well implemented stringent planning process has
assisted the program in determining how
Self-Assessment and On-Going Monitoring are linked and how programming must differentiate between the two. Planning of this magnitude will most
assuredly assist 4C HS/EHS/CCP programs in the eradication of program challenges, the achievement of program
goals and the development of a Program of Excellence.
The cumulative enrollment for program year 2016-2017 was 535 for Head Start, 416 for EHS, which includes
pregnant women served, and 278 for EHS-CCP. Of the cumulative enrollment:

2 0 1 6 -2 0 17
2016-2017
CU MU L ATI
VE EN
R OL L MEN T
CUMULATIVE
ENROLLMENT
Under 1

1 year old 2 years old 3 years old 4 years old Pregnant Woman
2 years
old
3 years old
4 years old

Pregnant Woman

96

106

106

76

76

69
69

54
13

13

54

96

100

100

100

100

93

93

255

255267

1 year old
267

Under 1

H E A D S HTEAD
AR
TT
S TAR

6

E A R L YE ARHL YEHA
S T A RT
EADDS TART

E A R LE ARYL YHH EAD
E AS TART
D - SCPPT A RT - C P P
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R A CE A N D ETHN I CI TY
2 0 1 6 -2 0 17
American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Black or African American

Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander

White

Biracial/Multi-Racial

N O N - H I S P AN I C
O R N O N - L A T I NO
ORI GI N

H EAD S TAR T

N O N - H I S P AN I C
O R N O N - L A T I NO
ORIGIN

H I S P A NI C O R
L A TI N O O R IG IN

E A R L Y H E A D S T A RT

1
1

17
7

53
3

6

20

23

H I S P A NI C O R
L A T I N O O R IG IN

2

1
4

19

1

12

29

37

H I S P A NI C O R
L A T I N O O R IG IN

1

1

3
3

21

29

102

170

174

232

258

Other

N O N - H I S P AN I C
O R N O N - L A T I NO
ORI GI N

E A R L Y H E A D S T A RT - C C P

Primary Language at home
2016-2017
400
300
305

298
200

219

217

100
1 2

16

1

84 1 11

13

2

1

34

17

4

1

0
Head Start

7

Early Head Start

English

Spanish

Native Central American

Caribbean Languages

Middle Eastern and South Asian Languages

East Asian Languages

Native North American/Alaskan

Pacific Island Languages

European/Slavic Languages

African Languages

Other :anguages

Language Unspecified

Early Head Start-CCP

2 1
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2016-2017 CUMULATIVE
ENROLLMENT
100
80

24
23

1
60
40

1
68

8
2

59

20

30

0
Head Start
Public Assistance

8

Early Head Start
Foster Care

Early Head Start-CCP
Homeless
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Population growth and change
Based on the 2010 Census, the total population of Florida was 18,801,310, up 17.6 percent from 15,982,378 in
2000. Census estimates from 2016 indicate that Florida’s population grew by an additional 9.6 percent
(compared with 4.7 percent for the U.S.) from 2010 to 2016, reaching more than 20.6 million residents.

Total Population (2010 Census)

F L O R I DA
ORANG E
C OUN TY

268,685
336,015

422,718
455,479

UNI TED
S TATES

Population Estimates (July 1, 2016)

1,145,956
1,314,367

18,801,310
20,612,439

308,745,538
323,127,513

2 0 1 0 -2 0 16 POPU LATI ON GR OWTH ESTI MATE
SOU R CE: U . S. CEN SU S

S EMI NOL E
COUNTY

OSCEOL A
C OUN TY

The population in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties grew by 14.7, 25.1, and 7.8 percent from 2010 to
2016, respectively

9

United States

Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

Seminole County

Total Population (2010 Census)

308,745,538

18,801,310

1,145,956

268,685

422,718

Population Estimates (July 1, 2016)
Percent Change

323,127,513

20,612,439

1,314,367

336,015

455,479

4.7

9.6

14.7

25.1

7.8

2015

2016

Percent Increase

Orange

1,288,126

1,314,367

2.04%

Osceola

323,993

336,015

3.71%

Seminole

449,144

455,479

1.41%
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IV. Demographics
Geography
Florida is in the Southeastern region of the United States, bordered by Alabama, Georgia, the Atlantic
Ocean, and the Gulf of Mexico. The state has the longest coastline in the contiguous United States. Florida
has a total area of 65,755 square miles, which makes it the 22nd largest state. With a population of more than
19 million, Florida is the 8th most densely populated state in the country. The state is divided into 67 counties, the state capital is Tallahassee, and the largest city by population and area is Jacksonville, located 165
miles west of Tallahassee. The Community Coordinated Care of Children, Inc. Head Start/Early Head Start
program is funded to serve children in Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties.

County Seat
Area

10

Orange County
Orlando
1,003 sq. miles
(903 = land, 100 = water)

Bordering Counties

Seminole (north)
Volusia (northeast)
Brevard (east)
Osceola (south)
Poll (southwest)
Lake (west)

Cities / Municipalities

Apopka, Bay Lake, Belle
Isle, Eatonville,
Edgewood, Lake Buena
Vista, Maitland,
Oakland, Ocoee,
Orlando, Windermere,
Winter Garden, and
Winter Park

Osceola County
Kissimmee
1,506 sq. miles
(1,327 = land, 178 =
water)
Orange (north)
Brevard (northeast)
Indian River (east)
Okeechobee (southeast)
Highlands (south)
Polk (west)
Lake (northwest)
Kissimmee, St. Cloud

Seminole County
Sanford
345 sq. miles
(309 = land, 36 = water)
Volusia (northeast)
Orange (south and west)
Lake (northwest)

Sanford, Oviedo, Altamonte Springs,
Winter Springs,
Casselberry, Lake Mary,
Longwood
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Projected Population
Cumulative Estimates of the Components of Population Change (April 1, 2010 – July 1, 2015)
Total
Population
Change

Natural
Increase

Vital Events

Net Migration

Births

Deaths

Total

International

Domestic

12,660,715

7,325,826

20,782,904

13,457,078

5,334,889

5,334,889

(X)

1,466,649

179,728

1,129,845

950,117

1,261,155

610,495

650,660

Orange County

142,172

45,019

82,612

37,593

96,360

55,492

40,868

Osceola County

55,306

10,766

20,562

9,796

43,819

20,615

23,204

Seminole County

26,426

7,202

23,362

16,160

18,261

6,636

11,625

United States
Florida

In demographics, the rate of natural increase is the crude birth rate minus the crude death rate of a population.
Net migration rate is the difference of immigrants and emigrants of an area in a period of time, divided
(usually) per 1,000 inhabitants (considered on midterm population). A positive value represents more people
entering the area than leaving it, while a negative value means more people leaving than entering it.

Annual Estimates of the Components of Population Change (July 1, 2015 – July 1, 2016)
Total
Population
Change

Natural
Increase

Vital Events
Births

Deaths

Total

International

Domestic

2,230,895

1,231,732

3,977,745

2,746,013

999,163

999,163

(X)

367,525

21,308

222,793

201,485

325,986

118,831

207,155

Orange County

29,503

8,523

16,721

8,198

21,161

11,078

10,083

Osceola County

12,987

2,105

4,296

2,191

10,482

4,310

6,172

Seminole County

6,757

1,021

4,553

3,532

5,553

1,330

4,223

United States
Florida

Data Source: US Census ACS 2016 1 year estimates Migration

11

Net Migration
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Age, Gender, Race and Ethnicity
Criteria
Under 5 years
Median age
Female persons
Male persons
White alone
Black or African
American alone
American Indian
and Alaska Native
alone
Asian alone
Native Hawaiian
and other Pacific
Islander
Some Other Race
Two or more races
Hispanic or Latino

Florida
1,094,213 (5.5%)
41.6
10,193,189
(51.1%)
9,741,262 (48.9%)
14,747,196
(76.2%)
3,114,841 (16.1%)

Orange County
79,047 (6.3%)
34.5
638,422 (50.8%)

Osceola County
18,801 (6.5%)
35.7
147,458 (50.9%)

Seminole County
22,809 (5.3%)
38.9
223,403 (51.7%)

617,633 (49.2%)
780,991 (65.1%)

141,991 (49.1%)
220,205 (76.1%)

208,732 (48.3%)
345,365 (79.9%)

249,396 (20.8%)

32,506 (11.2%)

49,538 (11.5%)

59,121 (0.3%)

3,079 (0.3%)

799 (0.3%)

733 (0.2%)

490,833 (2.5%)
12,128 (0.1%)

60,313 (5%)
1,493 (0.1%)

7,690 (2.7%)
211 (0.1%)

17,336 (4%)
320 (0.1%)

484,274 (2.5%)
453,399 (2.3%)
4,517,191 (23.3%)

67,762 (5.6%)
37,207 (3.1%)
337,871 (28.2%)

17,699 (6.1%)
10,339 (3.6%)
138,512 (47.9%)

6,585 (1.5%)
12,259 (2.8%)
78,917 (18.3%)

Households
Total Households
United
States
Florida
Orange
County
Osceola
County
Seminole
County

Family Households

116,926,305

77,260,546

66.1%

39,665,759

33.9%

7,300,494
434,319

4,699,888
279,898

64.4%
64.4%

2,600,606
154,421

35.6%
35.6%

92,338

68,786

74.5%

23,552

25.5%

152,260

101,235

66.5%

51,025

33.5%

United States
Florida
Orange County
Osceola County
Seminole County

Total Households
117,716,237
7,393,262
444,852
93,324
156,216

Source: US Census ACS 5 year estimates 2011-2015

12

Nonfamily Households

Total Nonfamily Households
40,107,408
2,633,407
158,008
24,003
52,688
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Employment
Per the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau
of Labor Statistics, the unemployment rate
in Florida (seasonally adjusted) in November 2017 was 3.6 percent, lower than the
4.8 percent in November 2016. The unemployment rate in October 2017 for Orange
and Seminole Counties was lower, at 3.1
and 3 percent,
respectively, while the
unemployment rate for
Osceola County was higher, 3.6 percent.

What are the basic concepts of employment
and unemployment?
The basic concepts involved in identifying the
employed and unemployed are quite simple:
People with jobs are employed.
People who are jobless, looking for a job, and
available for work are
unemployed.

9,219,488

I N DU STR Y OF EMPLOYMEN T
2 0 1 5 -2 0 16
Florida

Orange County

Osceola County

The labor force is made up of
the employed and the unemployed.

Seminole County

T O T A L E M P L O YE D

13

MANAG EMENT

E D U C A T I ON AL
SER VI C ES

31,039

15,040

1,219,269

AR TS,
E N T E R T A I N ME N T,
A N D R E C R E AT IO N

70,366

6,489

15,358

296,785

48,565

18,719

10,280

696,414

51,632

549

771

437

7,689

225,551

156,190

654,308

People who are neither employed nor unemployed are not
in the labor force.

H E A L T H CA RE A N D
S O C I A L A S SI ST A NC E
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Income (in 2016 InflationAdjusted Dollars)

United States

Florida

Orange
County

Osceola
County

Seminole
County

Median household
income

$57,617

$50,860

$51,335

$51,436

$61,311

Mean household income

$81,346

$72,784

$73,013

$61,195

$81,857

Florida’s median household income of $50,860 is lower than that of the U.S., which is 57,617. The median
household income in the 4C Head Start/Early Head Start service area ranges from $51,335 (Osceola County) to
$61,311 (Seminole County). The mean family income is higher for each geographic region, and ranges from
$61,195 (Osceola County) to $81,857(Seminole County)
Median and mean household incomes are included to ensure that comparisons are not misleading. Using the mean
household income alone, for example, will ignore extreme values if the data is not symmetrically distributed.

Adult Literacy
Those who complete higher levels of education are more likely to achieve economic success than those who do
not. Most importantly, parents’ education attainment is the key indicator for predicting children’s educational attainment in the future. Educational enhancement helps reduce the likelihood of caregivers unemployment, hence
reducing stress and providing access to greater resources that will benefit young children. The following tables
shows the educational attainment for the total service area for residents ages 25 and over, and overall school enrollment.
Data Source: US Census ACS 2016 1 year estimates Educational Attainment

EDU CATI ON A L ATTA I N MEN T

14

Osceola County

Seminole County

5.6
5.2
4.8
5.7
2.5

7.5
7.6
7.5
8.6
4.2

27.5
29.2
25.7
33.6
23.4

21
20.6
19.5
23.5
21.3

Orange County

8.2
9.6
10.5
9.9
12.9

Florida

18.8
17.8
21.3
13.3
24.1

11.5
10
10.6
5.4
11.8

United States
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Poverty
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
issues the Federal Poverty Guidelines in the Federal
Register annually. The Poverty Guideline for a family
of four in 2017 is $24,600. Research suggests that a
family of four requires at least double that amount to
make ends meet. The measurement only accounts for
the family’s annual gross income; it does not include
other aspects of economic status such as housing, debt,
assets, or property.
The calculation used today was originally developed in
the 1960s based on the amount of money spent by families on food. The poverty level was reached by multiplying that dollar amount (money spent by families on
food) times three. Today, families not only spend approximately one-seventh of their annual income on
food, but the cost of childcare, transportation, and
health care have increased drastically over the past 50
years.
Children in Poverty. According to the 2016 Small
Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) from the
Poverty in Florida. Per the 2015 Small Area Income
U.S. Census bureau, Florida is home to approximately
and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE), 15.8 percent of the
255,991, less than the 280,519 in 2015, children, ages 0
population in Florida lives in poverty (more than 3.1
-4, in poverty; SAIPE estimates for children in poverty,
million individuals), and 23.4 percent of children, ages ages 0 to 4, are not provided for individual counties,
0-17, live in poverty (more than 944,000 children).
townships, or census tracts. To estimate children in
More than 280,000 Head Start and Early Head Start
poverty in the 4C Head Start/Early Head Start service
eligible children, ages 0 to 4, live in poverty in Florida area counties, poverty data from the 2016 ACS 1-year
In the 4c Head Start/Early Head Start service area the
Estimate (B17001) are used..
poverty rate for the population overall ranges from 11.5
to 18.5 percent; the poverty rate for children, ages 0-17,
ranges from 16.1 to 27.5 percent.

Families in poverty. In Florida families without children under age 18 live in poverty at a rate of 7.2 percent, while more than one-half of families with five or
more children under age 18 live in poverty, 57.5
percent. Like the U.S., more than four out of five
families led by a single female, with five or more
children under age 18, live in poverty, 84.9 percent.

15
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Public Assistance
TANF
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
provides temporary cash assistance and employmentFood Stamps/SNAP
related services to enable families with children to beThe Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
come self-supporting. In Florida to qualify for the pro(SNAP) (formerly known as the Food Stamp Program)
gram, one must be a resident of the state, either be
is designed to alleviate hunger and malnutrition by
pregnant or responsible for a child under 19 years of
increasing the purchasing power of low-income houseage, a U.S. national, citizen, legal alien, or permanent
holds. SNAP offers nutrition assistance to millions of
resident, have low or very low income, and be either
eligible, low-income individuals and families and prounder-employed (working for very low wages), unemvides economic benefits to communities. SNAP is the
ployed, or about to become unemployed. The Ecolargest program in the domestic hunger safety net.
nomic Self-Sufficiency program office in the Florida
Department of Children and Families
administers the TANF Temporary Cash
HOU S EHOLDS RECEI VI N G S N A P B EN EF I TS
Assistance program.

Supplemental Security
Income (SSI)

Female, no husband present

F L O R I DA

O R A N G E C O U NT Y

O S C E O L A C O UN TY

3,417

765

2,413

6,964

563

4,941

24,415

4,641

12,442

52,836

184,146

As of January 2017, 47,244 families in
Florida received TANF benefits, of
which 2,664 families were in Orange
County, 715 were in Osceola County,
and 674 were in Seminole County.
Florida’s total number of families
receiving TANF benefits reflected a 2.5
reduction when compared with the
48,445 families who received the benefit
during the month of January 2016.

Male, no wife present

267,724

Married Couple

S E M I N O L E C O U NT Y

Data Source: US Census ACS 2016 1 year estimates
Supplemental Security Income, or SSI, provides
monthly financial payments to low-income adults that SNAP Benefits
are blind, disabled, or age 65 and older. Disabled or
blind children are also eligible to receive SSI benefits.
Families receiving SSI are categorically eligible for
Head Start services, providing the family an additional
benefit and supportive resource.
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Housing
According to the National Low Income Housing Coalition (NLIHC) in 2016, 34 percent of Florida’s
households were renters; the Fair Market Rent (FMR) for a two-bedroom home in Florida is $1,038/
month. In order to be able to rent a two-bedroom home, without exceeding 30 percent of one’s income,
a renter must earn $41,527 annually, yet the median income for a renter in Florida is $33,122. With a
median income of $33,122 a renter is able to afford $828 for a home, $210 dollars less than the fair
market rental value of a two-bedroom home.
According to the National Low Income Housing Coalition (NLIHC) in 2017, 35 percent of Florida’s
households were renters; the Fair Market Rent (FMR) for a two-bedroom home in Florida is $1,075/
month. In order to be able to rent a two-bedroom home, without exceeding 30 percent of one’s income,
a renter must earn $43,007 annually, yet the median income for a renter in Florida is $32,157. With a
median income of $32,157 a renter is able to afford $804 for a home, $271 dollars less than the fair
market rental value of a two-bedroom home.
Head Start families do not earn wages typical of an average renter in the state. The NLIHC considers
those who earn 30 percent of the annual median income (AMI) to have “extremely low income.” For
Florida this amount is $17,880, which is approximately $1,640 more than the Poverty Guidelines level
for a family of two. The rent that someone with “extremely low income” can afford is only $447 per
month, $628 less than the fair market value of a two-bedroom home.

17
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Homelessness
McKinney-Vento
McKinney-Vento is the primary piece of federal
legislation dealing with the education of children
and youth experiencing homelessness in U.S. public
schools. It was reauthorized as Title X, Part C, of
the No Child Left Behind Act in January 2002.
The McKinney-Vento program is designed to address the problems that homeless children and
youth have faced in enrolling, attending, and succeeding in school. Under this program, State Educational Agencies (SEAs) must ensure that each
homeless child and youth has equal access to the
same free, appropriate public education, including a
public preschool education, as other children and
youth. In addition, homeless students may not be
separated from the mainstream school environment.

The McKinney-Vento Act defines “homeless children and youth” as individuals who lack a fixed, regular, and
adequate nighttime residence. The term includes –
• Children and youth who are:
o sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason
(sometimes referred to as doubled-up);
o living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to lack of alternative adequate accommodations;
o living in emergency or transitional shelters;
o abandoned in hospitals; or
o awaiting foster care placement;
• Children and youth who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed
for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings;
• Children and youth who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing,
bus or train stations, or similar settings; and
• Migratory children who qualify as homeless because they are living in circumstances described above.

18
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Homelessness continued
Over the past five years, homelessness in Florida has declined steadily, from 47,862 identified as homeless in
January 2013 to 32,109 in January 2017, a reduction of about 33 percent. This trend, which mirrors national
outcomes, is likely the result of (1) economic improvement and job growth, and (2) increasing investments to
improve homeless response systems.
The 2016 PIT count results indicate important decreases in homelessness from 2013 to 2017.

•

Overall homelessness decreased by 33

percent.

•

Veteran homelessness decreased by 49

percent.

•

Chronic homelessness decreased by 47

percent.

•

Family homelessness decreased by 43

percent.

Data Source: Council on Homeless,
Homelessness Report 2017

The Point-in-Time (PIT) count is a count of sheltered and
unsheltered homeless persons on a single night in January.
HUD requires that Continuums of Care conduct an annual
count of homeless persons who are sheltered in emergency
shelter, transitional housing, and Safe Havens on a single
night. Continuums of Care also must conduct a count of
unsheltered homeless persons every other year (oddnumbered years). Each count is planned, coordinated, and
carried out locally. The Housing Inventory Count (HIC) is a
point-in-time inventory of provider programs within a
Continuum of Care that provide beds and units dedicated to
serve persons who are homeless, categorized by five
Program Types: Emergency Shelter; Transitional Housing;
Rapid Re-housing; Safe Haven; and Permanent Supportive
Housing.

Point in Time Counts
1,522
1,228

175
ORANGE COUNTY

OSCEOLA COUNTY
2016

19

239

2017

210

313

SEMINOLE COUNTY
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Homelessness continued
Unaccompanied Youth and Children
For 2015-2017, the breakdown of youth and children experiencing homelessness was reported as follows:
FLORIDA

2015

2016

2017

Homeless Unaccompanied
Youth (Under 25)
Homeless Unaccompanied
Children (Under 18)

2,371

2,094

2,019

593

514

421

Homeless Unaccompanied
Young Adults (Age 18-24)

1,778

1,580

1,598

Transportation
Public Transportation
Lynx
One of the primary public transportation options in Central Florida is LYNX. Lynx is part of the Central Florida Regional Transportation Authority, providing public transportation for people from Orange, Osceola, and
Seminole counties. The State of Florida also established Transportation Disadvantaged Program, which is
administered by LYNX to provide the necessary transportation to people for medical, educational and employment purposes.

Sunrail
SunRail has the potential to transform area commutes by letting riders get a jump on the workday with a
smooth train ride that includes wireless Internet access, work tables and power outlets available during trips to
and from the office. At $2 per one-way ticket (plus $1 for every county line crossed) commuting by train is
more affordable than by car. But most commutes don’t end at the station. Tickets allow seamless transfers between SunRail trains and the LYNX and Votran buses. The rail system is in its second phase and will add
transportation to Osceola County, along with Volusia, Seminole and Orange Counties. One thing to note is
that SunRail currently does not run on the weekends, and hours are focused on providing transportation for
commuters.
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Disabilities
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).
The nation’s special education law is called the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, or IDEA.
IDEA defines the term “child with a disability” in order to make special education and related services
available to children with disabilities in public schools
and Head Start programs. That definition includes specific disability terms, which are also defined by IDEA.
According to the IDEA Data Center, in 2015 (most
recently available data) more than 39,000 children,
ages 3 to 5, received special education assistance in
Florida. The majority of children received special education for a developmental delay (49.5 percent), followed by a speech or language impairment (35.1 percent), and autism (9.4 percent). More than 13,000 infants and toddlers, ages 0 to 3, were served by Early
Intervention programs, of which those ages 2 to 3
make up almost 60 percent.

The Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
(IDEA) is a law ensuring services to children with
disabilities throughout the nation. IDEA governs
how states and public agencies provide early intervention, special education and related services
to more than 6.5 million eligible infants, toddlers,
children and youth with disabilities.
Children and youth (ages 3-21) receive special
education and related services under IDEA Part B.
Infants and toddlers with disabilities (birth-2) and
their families receive early intervention services
under IDEA Part C.

IDEA Part C: Early
Intervention

IDEA Part B: Assistance for Education of All Children with Disabilities
All Disabilities
Autism

21

39,359 Percent
Multiple disabilities
3,687
9.4% Orthopedic impairment

0
244

0.0%
0.6%

Total
Birth-1

13,056
1,538

11.8%

Other health
0.0% impairment

765

1.9%

1 to 2

3,824

29.3%

84

0.2%

2 to 3

7,694

58.9%

13,816

35.1%

18

0.0%

117

0.3%

Deaf-blindness

7

Developmental delay

19,467

Emotional disturbance

72

Hearing impairment

438

1.1% Traumatic brain injury

Intellectual disability

644

1.6%

Specific learning
49.5% disability
Speech/language
0.2% impairment

Visual impairment
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Foster Care

Children in foster care are categorically eligible for Head Start services, regardless of the foster families’ incomes.
Youth are categorized as being in foster care if they entered prior to the end of the current fiscal year and have not
been discharged from their latest foster care spell by the end of the current fiscal year. As of September 2016, there
were 978 children in foster care in Orange County, 348 in Osceola County, and 411 in Seminole County. Table 39
lists the average daily children in care and the total children served from October 2015 to September 2016.
According to the Kids Count Data Center, roughly 40 percent of children in foster care in Florida are between the
ages of 1 and 5, and 9 percent are under 1 year. Applying the same estimate, we can approximate that 1,450 children, ages 0-5, were served in foster care in 4C service area from October 2015 – September 2016.

Number of
Children
Served in
Foster Care

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Florida

47,759

41,048

35,571

33,322

34,013

34,868

33,290

33,245

36,843

39,243

Data Source: Kids Count Data Center
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Child Care Availability

2017 State Child Care Facts in the State of:

P O PULATIO N

F LORIDA

U NITED S TATE S

Total residents
Children age birth to 4 years

19,645,772
1,080,253

316,515,021
19,896,133

Children age birth to 4 years
living in poverty

286,782

4,795,039

1,557,999
1,797,786
660,748
565,824

28,728,645
33,732,757
11,039,498
8,761,164

Children age 5 to 11
Total fam ilies with children
Single parent families
Fam ilies in poverty
C HILDREN UNDE R AGE 6
POTE N TIALLY IN NEED O F C HILD
CARE

Children in two-parent fam ilies,
both parents in labor force
Children in single-parent
fam ilies, parent in the labor
force
Total children under age 6
potentially needing child care
N UMBER O F W ORKING
M OTHERS

F LO RID A

U NITED S TATE S

427,000

8,602,634

410,114

6,387,787

F LORID A

Num ber of center-based child care programs
Percent of centers nationally accredited
Do faith-based program s need to be
regulated?
Num ber of regulated faith-based program s
Num ber of fam ily child care (FCC) hom es
Percent of FCC hom es nationally accredited
Num ber of school-aged care programs
Percent of licensed programs with slots for
school-aged children
Percent of licensed programs with slots for
ONLY school-aged children
Num ber of other regulated child care centers
Num ber of other regulated FCC hom es

N UMBERS , INCOME , AND
SUPPOR T OF TH E CHILD CAR E

837,114

F LORIDA

14,990,421

U NITED S TATE S

W ith infants under one year

134,865

2,500,737

W ith children under age 6 only

307,699

5,610,490

W ith children age 6 to 17 only
W ith both children under age 6
AND children age 6 to 17
Married working m others

853,567

14,807,850

231,381

6,856,516

800,916

14,328,033

Single working m others

425,422

6,842,084

S P ACES IN C HILD C ARE P ROG RAMS

F LORIDA

Total spaces/slots
Percent of spaces in child care center
program s*
Percent of total spaces in licensed FCC
hom es
Percent of total spaces in school-age care
program s
Percent of total spaces in other programs
Percentage spaces/slots of licensed program s
Percent of licensed spaces for infants
Percent of licensed spaces for toddlers
Percent of licensed spaces for preschoolaged children
Percent of licensed spaces for school-aged
children

710,366
90%
4%
6%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Child care workers (in
centers)
Average annual incom e of
child care workers
Total paid early childhood
workforce 4

CCR&R C ON TACTS

6,150
17%
No
NR
3,362
2%
11,145
62%
4%
2,659
NR

F LO RID A

U NITED
S TATES

35,760

573,430

W ORKFORCE 3

*Does not include school-aged programs

23

T YPES O F C HILD C ARE

$21,610

$22,310

NA

2.2 m illion

URL

Florida Office of Early
Learning CCR&R State
Network Office

www.floridaearlylearning.com

Child Care Aware® of
Am erica

http://usa.childcareaware.org
www.childcareaware.org
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Cost of Care for Young Children
Center

Accredited Center

FCC

Accredited FCC

$12,000
$9,942
$10,000
$8,000

$9,158

$9,006

$8,894

$8,462

$8,107

$7,700

$7,991

$7,270

$7,028

$7,493
$6,523

$6,000
$4,000
$2,000
$0
Infant

Toddler

Four-Year-Old

Cost of Care for School-Age Children
Before-/After-School
$3,500

Part-Time Summer

Full-Time Summer
$3,325

$3,309

$3,000
$2,500
$2,000
$1,371
$964

24

$1,297
$995
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Resources and Collaborations
Name of Program/
Partner

Address

City

State

Zip

Phone
Number

Services Provided by
Partner to Program

Teaching
Strategies

4500 East-West
Highway, Suite 300

Bethesda

MD

20814

1-800-6373652

Professional
Development for adult
learning theory

Valencia College

1800 S Kirkman Rd

Orlando,

FL

32811

407-2995000

Continuing Professional
Education

Early Learning
Coalition of
Orange County

1940 Traylor Blvd.

Orlando,

FL

32804

407-8416607

Training Materials Class
interactions for infant/
toddler care

Choices Targeted
Case Management
Program (TCM)

170 Bloxham Ave

Orange
City

FL

32763

1-888-4602226

Provide Health Services
for children and Families

Heart of Florida
United Way

1940 Traylor Blvd.

Orlando,

FL

32804

407-8350900

Health Development
Behavior and learning
from young children

4898 E. Irlo Bronson Memorial
Hwy, 2nd Floor

St. Cloud,

FL

34771

407-8913054

Mental Health
Counseling, Speech and
Language Services

400 E. South St.

Orlando

FL

32801

407-8367650

Youth Nutritional
Afterschool Meal
Program

3545 Lake
Breeze Drive

Orlando,

FL

32808

407-2984180

Recruit, orient, enroll
volunteers in the
program

Education

Health

Mental Health
Carrousel
Therapy and
Behavioral
Nutrition
Help Save a Child

Other
Foster
Grandparents Program of Central FL

25
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Center

26

Address

Enrollment

Altamonte HS

525 Pineview Street, Altamonte 32701

17 – 1 classroom

Coqui Academy

2401 S. Park Ave Sanford 32771

17 – 1 classroom

Fifth Ave. HS**

419 S. Park Ave, Sanford 32771

28 – 2 classrooms

Fifth Ave. EHS

419 S. Park Ave, Sanford 32771

16 – 2 classrooms

Kids Castle EHS

2536 South Elm Ave., Sanford 32773

14 – 2 classrooms

North Street HS**

900 North Street, Longwood 32750

71 - 4 classrooms

th

Pine Crest HS

405 27 Street, Sanford 32773

34 – 2 classrooms

Lawton HS

188 S. Lake Jessup Ave, Oviedo 32765

15 – 1 classroom

Light Years Ahead EHS

398 Douglas Ave., Altamonte 32714

8 – 1 classroom

Midway HS**
Pregnant Mothers EHS

2255 Rightway Ave., Sanford
1485 S. Semoran Blvd., Suite 1402 Winter Park

36– 2 classrooms
Varies – up to 24 total

Center

Address

Enrollment

A Gateway Rising EHS

3323 Westland Dr., Orlando 32818

12 – 1 classroom

First Steps Kids Academy
UCP – Downtown

2876 S. Alafaya Trail Orlando 32828

6 – I classroom

4680 Lake Underhill Rd., Orlando 32807

8 - 1 classroom

UCP – Pine Hills

5800 Golfclub Pkwy., Orlando 32808

7 - 1 classroom

Orlando Day EHS
Pine Hills Preschool
Rio Grande EHS

626 Lake Dot Circle, Orlando 32801
627 N. Pine Hills Road, Orlando 32808
1264 S. Rio Grande, Orlando 32805

16 – 2 classrooms
14 – 2 classrooms
48 - 6 classrooms

Pregnant mothers EHS

1485 S. Semoran Blvd., Suite 1402 Winter Park

Varies – up to 24 total

Center

Address

Enrollment

Baker HS**

3500 Baker Drive, Kissimmee 32741

77 – 4 classrooms

Ericka Montoya EHS

967 Gascony Court, Kissimmee 34759

12 – 1 classroom

Little Angels EHS

1609 Eola Court, Kissimmee 34741

12 – 1 classroom

Naomi Helligar EHS

2361 North Smith Street 34744

12 – 1 classroom

Palm Plaza HS**

2234 E. Irlo Bronson, Kissimmee 34744

77 – 4 classrooms

Palm Plaza EHS

2234 E. Irlo Bronson, Kissimmee 34744

16 – 2 classrooms

Dreaming Big HS**
Pregnant Mothers EHS

1301 Kevstin Drive, Kissimmee 34744
1485 S. Semoran Blvd., Suite 1402 Winter Park

64– 4 classrooms
Varies – up to 24 total
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Center
All About Kidz of Oviedo
Kids Castle Childcare
Rising Star – Longwood
Teddy Bear FCC
Center
Apopka Child Academy
Dream Big
Early Education Station
Frontline Outreach
Golden Bear Academy
Hartage FCC
My Destiny Academy
Pine Hills Preschool
We Love Kids Learning
Center
Center
Kids Palace Academy

27

Address
387 W. Broadway St, Oviedo 32765
2536 South Elm Ave., Sanford 32773
1455 South 17-92, Longwood 32750
174 Jay Drive, Altamonte Springs 32714
Address
170 E. Magnolia St., Apopka 32703
6151 Silver Star Rd., Orlando 32808
1780 Mercy Drive, Orlando 32808
3000 C.R. Smith St., Orlando 32805
421 S. Goldenrod Rd., Orlando 32822
4862 Indialantic Dr., Orlando 32808
1235 W. Michigan St., Orlando 32805
627 N. Pine Hills Road, Orlando 32808
5301 Goddard Ave. Orlando, FL 32810

Enrollment
12 – 2 classrooms
8 – 1 classroom
11 – 2 classrooms
12 – 1 classroom
Enrollment
20 – 4 classrooms
8 – 1 classroom
26 – 4 classrooms
40 – 5 classrooms
24 – 3 classroom
12 – 1 classroom
17 – 3 classrooms
21 – 3 classrooms
16-2 Classrooms

Address
1336 E. Vine Street Kissimmee FL, 34744

Enrollment
8- 1 classroom
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Parent Needs Survey Results
In order to collect primary data from Head Start/Early Head Start parents and guardians, a Parent Community
Needs Survey was distributed in English and Spanish to all families enrolled at the time of the Community
Assessment.

Race/Ethnicity of Respondents
0%
29%

1%

61%

11%
8%

Asian/Pacific Islander

African American/Black

Native American

White/Caucasian

Other

Hispanic/Latino

Employment Status of Respondents
Employed Full time

5%2%
15%

Employed Part time

35%

Unemployed/Not working
Fulltime Homemaker
Disabled

18%

In job training/school

25%

Retired
Other

28
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Parent Needs Survey Results

Do you have internet connection at
home?

Do you have access to a computer at
home?
23%
Yes
No

47%

77%

Yes

53%

No

Do you have a mobile phone with
text capability?

9%
Yes
No

91%

29
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Parent Needs Survey Results

DO YOU HAVE A CCESS TO:

100%
80%
60%

Health Care

Affordable housing

Affordable child care before/after school hours

Adult education

Job training

services for children with disabiliites

Availability and access to public transportation

Public Assistance (WIC, Food Stamps, Medicaid)

87%

82%
64%
59%
51%49%

57%

49%
37%
36%
36%
33% 35%

33%

40%

14%15%18%

17%

12%

20%

1% 3% 5%

0%
Yes

No

N/A

DO YOU HAVE CONCERNS ABOUT:
Yes
75%
55%
42%

30

77%

N/A
81%

80%

80%

59%
40%
20%

3%

No

1%

5%

15%

8% 13% 6% 13% 7% 14% 6%

6%

1%
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Parent Needs Survey Results

HAS THERE BEEN A TIME IN THE LAST YEAR WHEN
YOU:
Yes

76%

23%

No

91% 91% 93% 93% 94%
85% 87% 85%
81% 86% 86% 81% 85%

17% 13% 13% 17% 14%

9%

9%

7%

7%

5%

15% 13% 15%

Have you or anyone you know
recently relocated due to the
Hurricanes?

14%
Yes
No

86%

31
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SUMMARY

After comparing the 2017 Comprehensive Community Assessment findings and the Community Assessment
Update 2018 findings, along with the data studied for those counties served by the Community Coordinated
Care for Children, Inc., there have been no major changes in the community. The following four broad and
significant issues continue to affect children and families served by the program:

1. Affordable Housing and Homelessness.
2. Economic Security: Focus on Jobs, Living Wage and Training.
3. Service Area Population Change, Growth and Unique Transformation.
4. Networking and Collaboration.
Community Coordinated Care for Children’s Head Start/Early Head Start program will continue to follow the
recommendations provided for the significant issues in the 4C service areas. (Referenced on pages 3-4)
In addition to these four significant issues, Community Coordinate Care for Children’s Head Start/Early Head
Start program would like to focus on:
1. Recruitment of children in the Foster Care system. The number of children in foster care that are served
by 4C does not reflect the number of children currently in the foster care system. More children can be
served with recruitment efforts.
Recommendation: As a focus area of the Office of Head Start, it is important for 4C to serve children in the
Foster Care system. In order to serve more children in Foster Care, 4C must network , collaborate, and partner
with various entities of the Foster Care system.
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SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Sliding Fee Co-Payments and Fee Waiver Policy
School Readiness Child Eligibility
January 1, 2013, Revised November 3, 2014, Revised October 17, 2017, January 24, 2019

PURPOSE: To provide written guidance for Family Service staff for implementing a sliding fee scale and policies on
applying the waiver or reduction of fees based on 6M-4.400, s. 1002.84(8), F.S., (s.1002.85(2) (c) ©5., F.S.).
PROCEDURES:
1. Sliding fee and parent co-payments apply only to school readiness programs. The sliding fee scale
establishes a co-payment for parents based upon their ability to pay.
2. Health and Human Services revises the Federal Poverty Levels (FPL) annually in the Federal Register. The
Coalition bases its sliding fee scale on the income thresholds from the most current Office of Early Learning
release of the federal poverty level.
3. The Coalition will determine the date to begin implementation of the new fee schedule. Coalition will ensure
that the child’s parent and child care providers are notified of any changes to respective co- payment the
next time the child’s eligibility status is re-evaluated.
4. Per Rule 6M-4.400, FAC, the Coalition’s sliding fee scale is set at a level that provides economically
disadvantaged families equal access to the care available to families whose income is high enough not to
qualify for financial assistance for school readiness services. The total amount of a family’s copayment for
services based upon the sliding fee scale may not exceed 10 percent of the family’s income, regardless of the
number of children in care during the 12 months of eligibility. The Coalition’s sliding fee scale is submitted for
approval to the Office of Early Learning prior to implementation.
5. If a child is authorized for part time care, the parent shall be assessed a part time co-payment. If a child is
authorized for full time care, the parent shall be assessed a full time co-payment. A parent with two or more
children receiving school readiness services may receive a co-payment discount for the second and any
subsequent child in their care based on the coalition’s approved sliding fee scale. When a discount is applied,
the youngest child must be assessed a full co-payment based on the approved sliding fee scale and the hours
of care needed.
6. When a child’s normal schedule of care is based on the school year schedule and the child is authorized school
readiness part time care during the school year and attends a full time day at the school readiness program on
a school holiday or school closure, the parent shall pay the part-time co-payment. During the summer break, if
a child attends full time, the parent shall pay the full time co-payment.
7. 7.Prior to enrollment at the child care provider, the Family Portal coalition will issue a Parental pPayment
certificate for electronic signature by the parent, child care provider and ELC Counselor to certify enrollment
to the parent to submit to w i t h an eligible school readiness provider. The Coalition notifies the parent
during the eligibility interview that additional fees charged by the provider may apply. <- Conflict with 6M4.400 – process is not inclusive of forms in the Family Portal and face to face interviews have been
eliminated. If a child is enrolled with more than one provider, a copayment must be assessed for each
authorized provider.
8. 8.The co-payment for which the family is responsible for is subtracted from the provider’s reimbursement, prior
1|P age
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to payment by the Coalition. Collection of the family’s required co-payment for school readiness services is
the responsibility of the school readiness provider in accordance with Section 1002.84(8) F.S. The provider
should provide written notice of the parent co-payment due date. The parent co-payment should be collected
within 10 calendar days of the provider’s payment due date. The provider must give the parent a receipt for
each co-payment.
payment.
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9.
9.The provider shall document outstanding parent co-payment balances. The provider shall provide
written notification to the parent of outstanding co-payment balances within fifteen calendar days of the
provider’s payment due date. The notification should be provided to the Coalition on at least a monthly
basis as long as there is a balance. Outstanding parent copayments will be subject to the provider’s
payment policies as acknowledged and agreed upon by the parent. The acknowledgement should be
documented by the
provider. If the provider intends to take action, in accordance with its policy that includes disenrolling the
child from the provider site, the provider shall notify the Coalition at least five calendar days prior to
disenrollment.
10.
10. A family may submit documentation at any time during the eligibility authorization period to
decrease the co- payment. During graduated phase out, the family shall report any changes in family
size or income to the Coalition within ten (10) calendar days. The Coalition shall adjust the family’s copayment based on the reported information and shall notify the family and provider of any changes within ten
(10) calendar days.
11.10.
11.At the end of the initial 12 month eligibility period at redetermination the Coalition will re-evaluate
the family’s eligibility. If the family’s income is above 150 percent of the FPL, but at or below 85 percent
of the State Median Income (SMI), the family will enter the graduated phase out. The parent shall be
assessed a co- payment that is based on the approved sliding fee scale. As the family’s income
increases the co- payment shall gradually increase based on the approved sliding fee scale.
12.11.
12.During the initial eligibility period or during graduated phase out, if the family’s income
exceeds 85% of SMI, the family is no longer eligible for the program. The Coalition will notify the family
that they are no longer eligible to receive school readiness. Services will be discontinued two weeks (14
calendar days) from the date of the notice as long as the two-week period does not extend beyond the
family’s authorized eligibility period.
13.12.
13.A parent co-payment shall not be increased during the initial 12 month eligibility period.
The amount of co- payment assessed will remain in effect for the family’s authorized eligibility period,
unless:
• The parent or referring agency requests and the Coalition grants a fee waiver request;.
• An incorrect payment was assessed by the Coalition, program participant error or program participant fraud
resulting in corrective action to reduce or increase the family’s co-payment; or.
• Co-payment during graduated phase out may be increased or decreased based on the family’s income
and size.
14.13.
14.The Coalition will not take action to recover an incorrect co-payment made to the Coalition
error. Once the error is discovered, the Coalition must correct the error and apply the corrected payment.
In cases where overpayment is caused by an incorrect co-payment resulting from parent error or parent fraud,
the Coalition will attempt to recover overpayment and document attempts. If unsuccessful, the Coalition will
notify the Office of Early Learning and submit documentation necessary in accordance with the Coalition’s
approved anti-fraud plan.
14. 15.A family may not transfer his or her child to another school readiness program provider until the family
has submitted documentation from the current school readiness provider to the Coalition stating that the
parent has satisfactorily fulfilled the co-payment obligation related to the school readiness program.
Satisfactory fulfillment of the co-payment is defined as immediate payment of the outstanding co-payment
obligation or establishment of a repayment plan for the outstanding co-payment obligation. All transfers shall
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be approved by the Coalition.
15.
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16.15.
16.The Coalition may waive co-payments on a case by case basis for families participating in an At
Risk program as defined in Section 1002. (1), F. S. On a case-by-case basis, a fee may be waived for an
at risk child regardless of the family’s income. Under the standard process for waiving a fee for an atrisk child, the written documentation requesting the fee waiver at initial authorization for care and at each
redetermination. The Request to Reduce or Waive Co-Payment Form is completed by the referring At Risk
worker and includes supporting documentation for review to reduce or waive the co-payment by the
Coalition. If approved, the co-payment is reduced or waived in the Family Portal.
17.16.
17.In addition, on a case-by-case basis, a temporary fee waiver can be approved for a child in a
family whose income does not exceed 100 percent of the FPL and whose family experiences a natural
disaster or an event that limits the parent’s ability to pay under the following documented circumstances:
• Parent(s) are in prison.
• Parent(s) are in the hospital or residential treatment facility.
• Parent(s) are unable to work due to illness or incapacitation.
• Parent(s) are homeless or living in a shelter.
• Parent(s) experience an emergency (i.e. natural disaster, fire, etc.)
• Parent(s) participation in a parenting class.
18.17.
Fees for licensed foster parents may be waived, providing the child’s parents meet the criteria above.
A shelter order is required from the referring agency in order to waive the parent co-payment. The information
must be documented on the foster parent waiver form and placed in the eligibility file.

EXHIBITS: Sliding fee schedule (most recently adopted)
Parent Terms and Conditions Form Family Portal
Request to Reduce or Waive Co-Payment
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Sliding Fee Scale for

Seminole

Effective date

July 1, 2018

Coalition

Florida's Office of Early Learning
SLIDING FEE SCHEDULE
DAILY F E E

------- Annual Gross Income - Number of persons in Family -------

========= =============
FPL as indicated
unless exceeds
1
2
3
4
85% SMI
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------0
0
0
0
50%FPL
6,070
8,230
10,390
12,550
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------6,071
8,231
10,391
12,551
75%FPL
9,105
12,345
15,585
18,825
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------9,106
12,346
15,586
18,826
12,139
16,459
20,779
25,099
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------FP L
12,140
16,460
20,780
25,100
14,164
19,204
24,244
29,284
---------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------14,165
19,205
24,245
29,285
85% SMI
27.50
13.75
16,187
21,948
27,708
33,468
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------6.30
3.15
16,188
21,949
27,709
33,469
85% SMI
31.50
15.75
150%FPL
18,210
24,690
31,170
37,650
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------7.10
3.55
18,211
24,691
31,171
37,651
85% SMI
35.50
17.75
18,918
25,650
32,381
39,113
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------7.90
3.95
18,919
25,651
32,382
39,114
39.5
19.75
19,626
26,609
33,593
40,577
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------8.70
4.35
19,627
26,610
33,594
40,578
85% SMI
43.50
21.75
20,333
27,569
34,804
42,040
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------9.50
4.75
20,334
27,570
34,805
42,041
47.50
23.75
21,041
28,528
36,016
43,503
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------10.30
5.15
21,042
28,529
36,017
43,504
85% SMI
51.50
25.75
21,749
29,488
37,227
44,967
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------11.10
5.55
21,750
29,489
37,228
44,968
55.50
27.75
185%FPL
22,459
30,451
38,443
46,435
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------11.90
5.95
22,460
30,452
38,444
46,436
85% SMI
59.50
29.75
23,370
31,686
40,002
48,318
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------12.70
6.35
23,371
31,687
40,003
48,319
63.5
31.75
200%FPL
24,280
32,920
41,560
50,200
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------13.50
6.75
24,281
32,921
41,561
50,201
85% SMI
67.50
33.75
26,101
35,389
44,677
53,965
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------14.30
7.15
26,102
35,390
44,678
53,966
85% SMI
71.50
35.75
27,922
37,858
47,794
57,730
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------15.10
7.55
27,923
37,859
47,795
57,731
75.50
37.75
85% SMI
30,181
39,467
48,753
58,039
----------------- -------------------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------Parents receiving hourly care pay up to the part time fee.
Note: 10% Parent Fee was calculated using 260 days.
Refer to 6M-4.400, F.A.C.
Income
85% State Median Income:Upper threshold for eligibility
Full-Time
----------------2.30
11.50
----------------3.10
15.5
----------------3.90
19.5
----------------4.70
23.50
----------------5.50

Part-Time
----------------------1.15
5.75
----------------------1.55
7.75
----------------------1.95
9.75
----------------------2.35
11.75
----------------------2.75

5
-------------0
14,710
-------------14,711
22,065
-------------22,066
29,419
-------------29,420
34,324
-------------34,325

6
7
8
---------------- --------------- ---------------0
0
0
16,870
19,030
21,190
---------------- --------------- ---------------16,871
19,031
21,191
25,305
28,545
31,785
---------------- --------------- ---------------25,306
28,546
31,786
33,739
38,059
42,379
---------------- --------------- ---------------33,740
38,060
42,380
39,364
44,405
49,445
---------------- --------------- ---------------39,365
44,406
49,446

39,229
44,989
50,749
56,509
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------39,230
44,990
50,750
56,510
44,130
50,610
57,090
63,570
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------44,131
50,611
57,091
63,571
45,845
52,577
59,309
66,041
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------45,846
52,578
59,310
66,042
47,560
54,544
61,528
68,512
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------47,561
54,545
61,529
68,513
49,276
56,511
63,747
70,982
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------49,277
56,512
63,748
70,983
50,991
58,478
65,966
73,453
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------50,992
58,479
65,967
73,454
52,706
60,445
68,184
75,924
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------52,707
60,446
68,185
75,925
54,427
62,419
70,411
78,403
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------54,428
62,420
70,412
78,404
80,094
56,634
64,950
73,266
81,582
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------56,635
64,951
73,267
81,583
58,840
67,480
76,120
84,760
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------58,841
67,481
76,121
84,761
78,353
63,253
72,541
81,829
91,117
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------63,254
72,542
81,830
91,118
67,326
76,612
67,666
77,602
87,538
97,474
-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------67,667
77,603
87,539
97,475

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
---------------- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------0
0
0
0
0
0
0
23,350
25,510
27,670
29,830
31,990
34,150
36,310
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------23,351
25,511
27,671
29,831
31,991
34,151
36,311
35,025
38,265
41,505
44,745
47,985
51,225
54,465
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------35,026
38,266
41,506
44,746
47,986
51,226
54,466
46,699
51,019
55,339
59,659
63,979
68,299
72,619
---------------- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------46,700
51,020
55,340
59,660
63,980
68,300
72,620
54,485
59,525
64,565
69,605
74,645
79,686
84,726
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------54,486
59,526
64,566
69,606
74,646
79,687
84,727
90,541
92,283
62,270
68,030
73,790
79,551
85,311
91,071
96,832
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------62,271
68,031
73,791
79,552
85,312
91,072
96,833
87,059
88,800
90,541
70,050
76,530
83,010
89,490
95,970 102,450
108,930
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------70,051
76,531
83,011
89,491
95,971 102,451
108,931
85,318
72,773
79,504
86,236
92,968
99,700 106,432
113,164
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------72,774
79,505
86,237
92,969
99,701 106,433
113,165
75,495
82,479
89,463
96,446
103,430 110,414
117,397
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------75,496
82,480
89,464
96,447
103,431 110,415
117,398
83,577
78,218
85,453
92,689
99,925
107,160 114,396
121,631
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------78,219
85,454
92,690
99,926
107,161 114,397
121,632
80,940
88,428
95,915
103,403
110,890 118,378
125,865
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------80,941
88,429
95,916
103,404
110,891 118,379
125,866
81,836
83,663
91,402
99,142
106,881
114,620 122,359
130,099
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------83,664
91,403
99,143
106,882
114,621 122,360
130,100
86,395
94,387
102,379
110,371
118,363 126,355
134,347
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------86,396
94,388
102,380
110,372
118,364 126,356
134,348
89,898
98,214
106,530
114,846
123,162
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------89,899
98,215
106,531
114,847
123,163
93,400 102,040
110,680
119,320
127,960
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------93,401 102,041
110,681
119,321
127,961

131,478
139,794
--------------- --------------------131,479
139,795
136,600
145,240
--------------- --------------------136,601
145,241

100,405 109,693
118,981
128,269
137,557 146,845
156,133
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------100,406 109,694
118,982
128,270
137,558 146,846
156,134
107,410 117,346
127,282
137,218
147,154 157,090
167,026
---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------107,411 117,347
127,283
137,219
147,155 157,091
167,027

-------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- ---------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- --------------------2018 Poverty Level (FPL) effective January 26, 2018
LIHEAP IM 2017-03 State Medican Income Estimates

Please answer the following questions:
(1) If there is a sibling discount what is the percentage? 50% Sibling Discount
(2) If any family pays more than 10% of their gross income for child care, please complete and attach the justification form that explains how the fees will not limit parent access to services.
(3) Describe at what points during the year school age schedules are adjusted. For example, beginning of summer, end of summer, spring break, etc. (School Year Calendar, Summer, Winter and Spring Break)

SCHOOL READINESS/COUNTY SERVICES

Request to Reduce or Waive Co-Payment
Rule 6M-4.400(1)(a), FAC requires each family receiving School Readiness services to be assessed a copayment based on family size and family income according to the sliding fee scale included in the
coalition’s approved school readiness plan.
1. A coalition may, on a case-by-case basis, waive the copayment for an at-risk child.
2. A coalition may, on a case-by-case basis, temporarily waive the co-payment for a child whose family’s
income is at or below 100 percent of the federal poverty level during the duration of special circumstances
that limits the parent’s ability to pay the co-payment. A special circumstance is any event that temporarily
reduces the parent’s ability to pay the required co-payment according to (6M-4.400 (2)) for the duration of
the special circumstances, including one of the following:
1. Child’s parents/guardians are
incarcerated/prison;
3. Child’s parents/guardians are unable to
work due to illness or incapacitation;
5. Child’s parents/guardians experience a
natural disaster (storm, earthquake, etc.);
7. Child’s parents/guardians participating in a
parenting class/program;

2. Child’s parents/guardians are in the hospital or
residential treatment;
4. Child’s parents are homeless or living in a
shelter;
6. Child’s parents/guardians experience an
emergency situation such as a fire or robbery;
8. Foster Parent; Child is in protective
custody/court ordered (Copy of court
order/shelter must be attached.)

Parent/Guardian Name:_
Request for:

Co-Payment Reduction

Reason #:

Co-Payment Waiver

(A copy of justification documentation must accompany request.)

Referring Worker:
Phone #:

Email:

ELC USE ONLY:
Request approved:

Not approved:

Co-Payment Reduced:

Co-Payment Waived:

Created 1/24/2019

Attachment II.F. Child Screenings

SUBJECT:

Child Age-Appropriate Developmental Screenings

CATEGORY:

Early Intervention

DATE:

July 1, 2013, Revised 12/10/13, Revised 4/28/14 Revised
6/5/2014, Revised 7/1/2017, Revised 6/22/2018, Revised
1/30/19/

PURPOSE: To identify children with developmental concerns through Early Intervention services by use of
the Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ)-3.
PROCEDURES: School Readiness (S R) providers complete annual screenings for children without an
option to decline form, completed by the parent or guardian) ages 6 weeks to age of kindergarten
eligibility. Screenings are conducted to distinguish a need and to connect families with early intervention
services.
1. Parents/guardians receive information about screenings with their Family Services Eligibility
Enrollment Specialist during the enrollment process of School Readiness Program in the online single
point of entry also known as the Family Services Portal.. During their initial eligibility appointment, the
parent signs either the “New Enrollment Request Form” or the “Parent Option to Decline Form” to
indicate their decision on not participating in the developmental screening. Parents/guardians will
elect to either give consent or decline consent for screening on the Parental Rights and
Responsibilities/Terms Conditions Form in the Family Services Portal during the eligibility and enrollment
process. A copy of the appropriate form is given to the SR provider indicating the parent’s consent
as well as the exact due date for each child’s screening.
a. The Tableau Review and Screening Report is pulled monthly from EFS M o d t h a t i s
d e s ig n e d t o p r o v id e t h e l is t o f n e w l y e n ro l le d c h i ld r e n wh o se p a r e n t s
c o n se n t e d o r d e c l in e d co n se n t t o d e v e lo p m e n t a l s c re e n in g . Based on
the information available on the Tableau Review and Screening Report generated
from EFS Mod, Coalition will notify the SR Providers through the Coalition’s
Sharefile of the parent/guardians that did not give consent to the ASQ-3
developmental screenings to be completed by the child care provider or Coalition
staff.
b. The Coalition will track the parent/guardians that declined consent for the developmental
screenings.
1.c. A parent’s screening decision remains in effect if a child changes SR provider within an
early learning coalition’s service delivery area.
2. The initial ASQ-3 screening is conducted with the parents/guardians or SR provider of newly enrolled
and reenrolled school readiness children. The Coalition will coordinate with the parents or SR
providers to complete the initial screening for each child aged six weeks to age of kindergarten
eligibility. Children shall be screened no later than 45 days after: his or her enrollment in the
School Readiness program or subsequent enrollment after being terminated or withdrawn from
the School Readiness program. If a child, aged six weeks to age of kindergarten eligibility, is
again enrolled in the School Readiness program after prior termination or withdrawal, the coalition
will determine if the child has to be screened in accordance with the subsequent screening
intervals, no later than 45 calendar days after subsequent. The initial ASQ-3 screening is conducted
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with the parents/guardians of newly enrolled and reenrolled school readiness children at the
Coalition office with the exception of at risk foster children (BG1 -13) and at risk family supports
(BG1- FAM). Staff is available to assist parents during the screening and results are provided
to the parent following the eligibility appointment. The SR provider is notified in writing that a 45
day ASQ-3 has been completed at the Coalition office by receipt of documentation attached to the
child’s SR certificate of eligibility.
3. Children enrolled in foster care and family supports eligibility are screened by the SR provider
within 45 days of enrollment. The SR provider is notified by receipt of the “New Enrollment ASQ
Request Form” attached to the SR Certificate of Eligibility with instructions for completion due date.
4.3. Subsequent annual screenings are conducted by SR providers based during the child’s birth
month. Every child will be screened annually by the last day of the child’s birth month.
5.4. Upon completion of screenings, the ASQ-3 is submitted to the Coalition using the Family Access
Page for initial enrollment, re-enrollment and annual screenings.
6.5. The Coalition takes the following actions to maintain results, dates of screenings and follow up with
SR providers:
a. The Tableau Review and Screening Report s is are pulled monthly from EFS Mo d t h a t
i s d e s i g n e d t o p r o v id e t h e l i s t o f n e w ly e n ro l l e d ch i l d re n w h o se p a re n t s
c o n se n t e d t o d e ve l o p m e n t a l s c r e e n in g . all newly nrolled, transferred and
terminated children to determine required screenings.
b. The Tableau Enrollment SR Birthday Report that is designed to provide a list of children
including their birthdays to provide a list whose parents consented to developmental
screening. is pulled monthly EFS enrollment reports are pulled monthly to indicate children
with birthdays in the month for annual screenings.
c. As ASQ-3 screenings are submitted through the Family Access Page staff cross checks
the child according to the information available on the Tableau Reports generated
from EFS Mod and inputs the correlating data into the “Developmental Screening Tracking
Report”.
d. Staff generates the ASQ 3 Screening Results Report from Brooks to determine
the screenings completed by the provider. sorts the “Developmental Screening
Tracking Report” monthly to indicate outstanding screenings to include on the “Provider
Reminder Form Outstanding ASQ-3”. Staff submits the “Provider Reminder Form
Outstanding ASQ-3” form to the SR provider via Coalition’s Share File.-Based on the
accuracy of the monthly Tableau reports reflecting accurate enrollment data, reports will be
cross referenced to determine children that were not screened by the SR child care program.
e. Failure to submit the ASQ-3 within 10 days after receipt of the “Provider Reminder Form
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Outstanding ASQ-3” results in a non-compliance letters sent to the provider via Coalition’s
Share File.
f. The SR provider has the option to submit an explanation for why the screening was not
completed (i.e. child never started, discontinued care or has been absent) to avoid a
noncompliance letter.
6. Screening results including developmental handouts are given to parents/guardians in one of the
following ways:
7.a. ASQ-3 Summary Result Letter is created and submitted to the SR Providers through the
Coalition’s Sharefile. It’s the responsibility of the SR provider to give the ASQ-3 Summary
Result Letter to the parent/guardian for signature acknowledging receipt of the ASQ-3
results. The SR Provider uploads the signed and dated ASQ-3 Summary Result Letters
into the Coalition’s Sharefile
a.b. The developmental handouts are accessible to the SR providers through the
Coalition’s Sharefile. Through the SR provider via Coalition’s Share File It’s the
with the responsibility of the SR provider to give results the developmental handouts
to the parent/guardian along with the ASQ-3 Summary Result Letter for signature
acknowledging receipt of the ASQ-3 results and developmental handouts. . The SR
Provider uploads the signed and dated ASQ-3 Summary Result Letters into the
Coalition’s Sharefile
c. Sent to the parent via mail.
d. Coalition staff is available to explain the screening results if requested by the parent.
b.
c. Provided following the eligibility appointment at the Coalition.
8.7. The Child Development Specialist will follow-up with any child in the below cut off range.
Individualized supports will be initiated offered within 60 calendar days afterof the completed
screening, for children who show concerning screening results.. I n d i v i d u a l i z e d s u p p o r t s
i n c l u d e , a t m i n i m u m , o n e o f t h e f o l l o w i n g : These actions include but are not limited
to:
a. Additional screening or assessment;Observation and/or assessment of the child can be
conducted;
b. Individualized learning plans;
c. Suggested developmental activities for parents or providers;
d. Observations and accomodationsaccommodations in the early learning programs;
e. Parent education; or.
a.f. Referrals to early interventions services or specialized care.
b. Referrals to community resources for development.
c. Assistance in contacting resources, as needed.
d. Parent conferences.
e. Suggested developmental activities for parents and/or providers.
9.8. All follow-up procedures including referrals will be notified in writing to the parent/guardian and/or
SR provider (with the responsibility to notify parents/guardians) including the areas of concern
including local contact information for appropriate referral agencies.
10. The Child Development Specialist will offer assistance to the parent of a child who receives a referral
via phone in in contacting the appropriate referrals agencies . A l l r e s p o n s e s w i l l b e
when providing a referral to parents/guardians. The parent/guardian’s choice for this service will
be noted in the “Developmental Screening Tracking Report”.
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Attachment II.G. Program Assessment

SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Program Assessment
Implementation Procedures
January 26, 2019

Purpose:
Procedures for implementing the Coalition’s School Readiness program assessment for
potential and current providers to be eligible to deliver the SR Program as required by
(1002.82(2)(n); 1002.85 and 1002.88 (1)(h), F.S.)
Registration Procedures:
1. At least 60 calendar days prior to a contract execution or renewal, a provider must notify
the coalition of their desire to provide School Readiness services in the upcoming year.
(Renewals attend SR renewal meeting in April. New providers would attend quarterly
new owner orientation meeting.)
2. Upon coalition’s request, the provider shall register their current classrooms, directors,
instructors and care levels assigned to classrooms in the OEL-defined system as defined
in Form OEL-SR 740.
3. Providers must give consent in the OEL-defined system to coalition staff or a third –party
contractor to administer a program assessment for each selected classroom.
4. Providers that do not register their information on classrooms, instructors, directors and
care levels in the OEL-defined system and do not consent for coalition staff or a thirdparty contractor to administer a program assessment for selected classrooms will not be
eligible for a contract to provide School Readiness services.
5. Program assessments adopted by s. 1002.82 and defined in 6M-4.740, F.A.C., will be
provided by the coalition annually.
6. Coalition staff or third-party observers that meet the reliability and certification
requirements of a CLASS observer as adopted in Rule 6M-4.740, F.A.C. and identified in
Form OEL-740 will conduct program assessments.
7. All observations will be conducted based on the expectations for observations and
recorded in the OEL-defined system under the guidance of the Program Assessment
Requirements Handbook, Form OEL-SR 740. At the completion of all observations at a
provider the composite score will be calculated, and the provider will be sent an email to
log into the OEL-defined SRPA system and review their program assessment composite
score.
8. For all new providers that request participation in the SR Program for 2019-20 contract
year and subsequent years that have not previously provided SR Program services or have
had a one-year lapse in providing SR Program services, a program assessment must be
conducted prior to execution of the School Readiness Contract. The provider must meet
the contract minimum threshold on the program assessment to be eligible to participate in
the School Readiness Program.
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9. In the event of transfer of ownership, the provider will be considered a new provider and
must execute a new School Readiness Contract per Rule 6M-4.610 (4), F.A.C. the new
provider must have a program assessment conducted meeting the contract minimum
threshold within 90 days of the transfer of ownership and the execution of a new School
Readiness Contract. The new provider may request to retain the most recent program
assessment score from the prior owner without having to conduct a new assessment if the
provider can provide documentation to the coalition that it has retained 80% of personnel
as defined in Forms OEL-SR 6202, OEL-SR 6204 and OEL-SR 6206 as incorporated by
reference in Rule 6M-4.620, F.A.C. prior to scheduling a program assessment or when
contacted by the early learning coalition to schedule assessment. Examples of acceptable
documentation include current payroll time sheets and evidence in CARES of monitored
personnel during pre-contractual health and safety inspection.
10. Providers will receive a program assessment composite score adopted through guidance
in Rule 6M-4.470 (5).
11. Providers need to have a Contract Minimum Threshold which is the minimum score
pursuant to s. 1002.82(2)(n), F.S. and defined in 6M-4.741, F.A.C., that a provider must
achieve on the program assessment tool to be eligible to contract for the School
Readiness Program.
12. In accordance with rule 6M-4.740, F.A.C. providers that meet the Contract Minimum
Threshold score but do not meet the Quality Improvement Threshold shall be placed on a
Quality Improvement Plan, in accordance with the School Readiness Contract, for 12
months. The Quality Improvement Threshold is a program assessment composite score of
3.00 (rounding two decimals)
13. Providers that have been on a Quality Improvement Plan for 12 months and do not meet
or exceed a 3.00 (rounding to two decimals) composite program assessment score at the
next annual program assessment will have their School Readiness contract terminated by
the coalition in accordance with rule 6M-4.740, F.A.C.
14. Beginning with the 2019-20 School Readiness contract year and subsequent years,
providers who have not previously been placed on a Quality Improvement Plan that have
program assessment results that fall below a 3.00 (rounding to two decimals) composite
program assessment score, as defined in rule 6M-4.740, F.A.C., but meet the contract
minimum threshold will be placed on a Quality Improvement Plan for 12 months pursuant
to rule 6M-4.740, F.A.C.
15. ELC staff will notify each provider in writing needing a Quality Improvement Plan and set
up a meeting to assess the needs of their program and identify at least one strategy but no
more than two of the identified quality strategies, MMCI training, Early Childhood
Training System (ECTS) or Professional Development. The selected staff required to
participate in the Quality Improvement Strategies will be identified and benchmark
performance goals will be established in writing. This QIP will be given to the Director, a
copy will be uploaded in the EFS MOD Document Library Management system and a copy
will be uploaded to the provider file in the S-drive.
16. ELC staff will coordinate and schedule MMCI training and ECTS. ELC staff will validate
the provider’s required staff professional development progression for each benchmark.
Training schedules will be sent to providers via email and in the EFS MOD Document
Library Management.
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17. Providers that achieve a program assessment result as identified in Rule 6M-4.741(3),
F.A.C., shall have a program assessment conducted biennially.
18. Providers that have been determined ineligible to contract based on program assessment
scores may request one additional assessment that meets the requirements in Form OELSR 740 for selected classrooms to be conducted at the providers expense by an observer.
The new Composite Program Assessment Score must meet the minimum threshold for
the provider to be eligible for a School Readiness contract.
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Attachment II.H. Use of Observation-Based Child Assessment

SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Use of Observation-Based Child Assessment
Implementation Procedures for Voluntary Participation Solicitation
Revised January 26, 2019

Purpose:
Procedures for soliciting the voluntary participation of observation-based child assessments
as required by (1002.85(2)(c)6, F.S.)
Procedures:
1. The coalition will identify School Readiness providers that are using an OEL identified
observation-based assessment that is valid, reliable and developmentally appropriate for
use at least three times per year. School Readiness providers that are using an OEL
identified observation-based assessment with lead staff being reliable in assessment will
be supported for continued implementation through opportunities for technical assistance,
opportunities for staff training, and classroom support materials.
2. The ELC will survey providers for those wishing to use an observation-based child
assessment.
3. The coalition will host quarterly trainings on Teaching Strategies Gold online to educate
providers that are interested in using observation-based child assessment. These providers
will be given face to face training in the Objectives and Developmental Learning Domains
of Teaching Strategies. They will be guided to attain Interrater Reliability and supported
through the purchase of classroom materials.
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Attachment III.C. Inclusive Early Learning Programs

SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Inclusive Early Learning Programs
School Readiness Child Enrollment
Revised January 30, 2019

Inclusive Early Learning Programs:
The coalition must submit a description of its quality activities for inclusive early learning
programs. (s. 1002.85(2)(d)3, F.S.) The coalition’s description of quality activities should
align with what is reported in the most recent projected budget. (s. 1002.89(6), F.S.)
Quality Activities and Services:
The ELC of Seminole’s Inclusion Specialist will conduct the following activities to promote
inclusive child care in Seminole County:
• Provide technical assistance activities, including screenings, assessments, and
observations, and other general strategies (e.g. brainstorming strategies/techniques with
teachers).
• Promote Warm Line services by Inclusion Specialist making referrals to community
agencies, assisting families with contacting and communicating with specialists, and
working with families to understand child development and developmental concerns.
• Provide school readiness families with information on the Ages and Stages Questionnaire
(ASQ-3) and any follow up procedures should there be concerns for development,
information on developmental milestones, and developmental activities. parent can engage
child in as part of the eligibility appointment.
• Provide technical assistance and training to child care providers regarding the ASQ-3.
• ELC stores screening results pulled from Family Access to correlate with EFS enrollment
information to ensure school readiness children age 6 weeks to Kindergarten eligibility
receive ASQ-3 developmental screenings by the provider where the child is enrolled.
• Attend community-based events and reach out to families in the community to promote a
healthy early learning start.
• Conduct Vision/Hearing Screenings with a Welch Allyn Spot Vision Screener and Welch
Allyn Next Generation OAE Hearing Screener.
• Assist families with obtaining Voluntary Prekindergarten Specialized Instruction Services
(VPK-SIS).
o Promote an implementation of consultation model with programs serving children
with special needs and their families.
▪ For Families:
o Provides consultation and on-site technical support to parents while conducting
online Ages and Stages Questionnaire. Provide the parents with ASQ summary
and developmental activities.
o Conduct observations and provide consultation, strategies, and ideas to parents as
to the best practices and techniques to improve the environment for a special
needs child that support learning success.
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SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Infant and Toddler Early Learning Programs
School Readiness Child Enrollment
Revised January 30, 2019

Infant and Toddler Early Learning Programs:
The coalition must submit a description of its quality activities for infant and toddler early learning with its SR
Program plan. (s. 1002.85(2)(d)2., F.S.) A SR Program plan a coalition submits must include a detailed
description of the coalition’s quality activities and services for infant and toddler early learning. Coalitions must
limit activities to (s. 1002.89(6)(b), F.S.)
The coalition’s description of quality activities should align with what is reported in the most recent projected
budget. (s. 1002.89(6), F.S.)

Quality Activities and Services:
The ELC of Seminole provides the following services to enhance infant and toddler care:
• For Providers:
o Conduct CLASS trainings
▪ Each of the providers assessed on the CLASS Infant and Toddler tools will received a
summary report along with a quality improvement plan outlining strengths and areas of
potential growth
▪ MMCI (Making the Most of Classroom Interactions ) Infant/Toddler
▪ Use my Teachstone Learning Resources to enhance teacher-child interactions in the Infant
and Toddler classrooms.
o Conduct Infant and Toddler CLASS assessment for all SR providers.
▪ Each of the providers assessed on the CLASS Infant and Toddler tools will received a
summary report an assessment summary report. along with a quality improvement plan
outlining strengths and areas of potential growth
o Strategies for quality enhancements based on CLASS assessments in partnership with Early Head
Start.
▪ Have reflections and feedback Activities with INF/TOD teachers.
▪ Discuss and plan goals with action steps with INF/TOD teachers.
▪ Coach with focused observation and support activities with INF/TOD teachers.
o Training to improve lesson planning for intentionality and focus on Florida Early Learning and
Developmental Standards: Birth to Kindergarten
▪ Teaching Strategies Gold Training to support teachers in the implementation of child
assessment tool.
▪ Early Literacy Training to enhance listening skills, language skills, and vocabulary
acquisition.
▪ STEAM training – Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math to develop critical
thinking skills.
▪
Social Emotional Training to focus on responsive care giving.
▪
Mind in The Making trainings - 7 essential life skills that every child needs The Seven
Essential Life Skills That Every Child Needs.
▪ Trauma Informed Care for child care professionals.
▪ Upon completion of voluntary training, teachers are provided with quality learning
materials to support strategies learned during the above-mentioned courses.
o Early Learning Florida Courses selections INF/TOD focus.
▪ Communities of Practice (CoP) to engage in Infant and Toddler teachers to enhance
quality care.
o Encourage Early Learning Performance Funding project providers participation.
• For Families of Infants/Toddlers:
o Available Infant/Toddler VROOM resources online and Coalition office.
o Community Events Distributions of VROOM resources.
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SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Quality Improvement Strategies
School Readiness Child Enrollment
Revised March 7, 2019

Quality Improvement Strategies:
The Coalition will provide the following services to enhance the quality in early learning
programs and to use in the program assessment Quality Improvement Plan for applicable early
learning programs, to be in compliance with (s. 1002.85(2)(d)4., F.S.). The tiered strategies
listed below are prioritized in order to first provide a firm foundation in the CLASS tool, then
build upon teachers’ skills to include more advanced professional development and reflective
practices as participants become more comfortable and proficient in effective teacher-child
interactions.
1. MMCI Training: MMCI PreK 24-hour course or the MMCI Infant/Toddler 24hour course:
• 24-hour course and additional twelve (12) hours of self-study during the project
term provided by the Coalition’s or its delegate’s MMCI Specialist.
• This strategy is required for instructors that have not previously completed a
MMCI Infant/Toddler or MMCI PreK training.
2. Early Childhood Training System (ECTS) Courses:
• Coalition will notify the Provider regarding the approved ECTS courses including
course registration, course start and course end dates.
• Prior to the course registration deadline, the Coalition will provide the Provider
with registration codes based on the instructor’s/director’s care level (infant,
toddler, or preschool).
• Each selected instructor/director will complete two Early Childhood Training
System courses facilitated by the ELC. Course options include taking an online
course alone, with TA coaching support and/or as a member of a coalitionsponsored Community of Practice.
• This strategy is available for instructors that have successfully completed a MMCI
Infant/Toddler and/or MMCI PreK training.
3. Professional Development:
• Each selected instructor/director shall register in the Florida Early Care and
Education Professional Development Registry, generate a professional
development plan in the registry and complete the required progression along the
career pathway.
• Contingent upon the availability of funds, Coalition will offer scholarships for
approved instructors/directors that meet the Coalition’s requirements for the
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•

instructor/directors to work towards earning either their Staff Credential,
Advanced Credential, Formal EC Degree or EC Specialization.
This strategy is available for instructors that have previously achieved Mastery in
four or more courses in the Early Childhood Training System.

4. 20-Hours of IACET- or OEL-approved Training:
• Coalition will notify the Provider regarding the approved 20-hours of IACETor OEL-approved training of Mind In The Making, including course registration,
course start and course end dates.
• This strategy is available for instructors that have earned either their Staff
Credential, Advanced Credential, Formal EC Degree or EC Specialization by
generating a professional development plan and completing the required
progression along the career pathway in the Florida Early Care and Education
Professional Development Registry.
5. Coalition Approved Strategy:
• Coalition will notify the Provider regarding the approved 20-hours of the OELapproved training of Mind In The Making, including course registration, course
start and course end dates.
• This strategy is available for instructors that have earned either their Staff
Credential, Advanced Credential, Formal EC Degree or EC Specialization by
generating a professional development plan and completing the required
progression along the career pathway in the Florida Early Care and Education
Professional Development Registry.
6. Certified Coaching Visits
• Each selected classroom will participate in 20 hours of certified coaching provided
by the ELC or its delegate.
• Coalition will identify this strategy for instructors that have successfully
completed strategies 1- 5.
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Attachment V.A.1. Monitoring Plan and Procedures
Early Learning Coalition of Seminole

Policy:

School Readiness
Monitoring
Procedures/Plan

Effective
Date:

December

Revision Date:
Revised by:

November 11, 2017,
January 30, 2019
M. Seda, COO

, 2017

Board Approval Date:

Pending

PURPOSE: The Coalition will monitor all SR program providers in accordance with its plan, or in
response to a parental complaint, to verify determine that the standards prescribed in ss. 1002.82, and
1002.88, F.S. are being met using the standard monitoring tool adopted by the Office of Early Learning.
Providers that the coalition determines to be high-risk shall be monitored more frequently. The Coalition will
monitor providers more frequently monitor providers the Coalition determines higjhhigh- risk based on
substantial findings of law violations in accordance with s. 1002.85 (2) (h), F.S. for other concerns such as
parental complaints, non-compliant DCF inspection reports or suspected fraud.
Scope:
The procedure applies to the monitoring of (SR) School Readiness Providers. Process:
A. Tier 1 Compliance Tracking/Desk Review (Monitoring Schedule) Seminole County Coalition will
annually monitor each of the SR program providers for Tier 1 compliance with a Tier 1
Tracking log. The tracking log includes the current listing of all contracted SR providers and all the items
below for each SR program provider:
1. Date of submission of School Readiness Contract Documents in accordance with Rule 6M4.610, FAC.
2. Date of completion and submission of Health and Safety Checklists (for license- exempt, nonpublic schools, and informal providers) in accordance with Rule 6M-4.620, FAC.
3. Conducting Developmental Screenings (if applicable) in accordance with Rule 6M-4.720, FAC.
4. Date of completion and submission of annual CCR&R Provider Updates in accordance
with Rule 6M-9.300(5), FAC.
5. Accurate completion of monthly enrollment/attendance certifications in accordance with Rule
6M-4.500(2), FAC. *Compliance or Finance designated staff will request one month’s sign
in and out sheets for the providers not identified in the random sample, this will include all
SR children enrolled for that month. The sign in and out sheets will be reviewed and reconciled
against the provider submitted Enrollment/ Attendance Certifications. This review will occur at
the Coalition, by Compliance or Finance designated staff member. Once the attendance
monitoring is completed the provider will be sent notification in writing of any findings and
Compliance or Finance designated staff will update the Tier 1 spreadsheet.
6. Use of statewide information system as applicable.
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B. Tier 2 Compliance using the monitoring tool form OEL-SR 20M, Attachment A as reference,
Compliance staff will monitor a random sample of the contracted SR program providers on an
annual basis (monitoring schedule) and shall provide the OEL SR 20M Report Notice of NonCompliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring which include all elements required to be
monitored. The sample is representative of all provider types funded by the coalition and include
no less than the number of providers included in Attachment B-Minimum Annual Sample Size.
The sample providers are identified by using Excel. Providers previously identified as “high risk” will
be added to the list of providers that are sampled for annual monitoring.
Refer to the Statewide Provider Contract Monitoring Tool for the School Readiness Program, Form
OEL-20M, with Attachment A through D. Requirements identified in the tool will be the guideline for all
School Readiness monitoring.
Preparation
Prior to the unannounced monitoring visit, the Compliance Specialist reviews provider data in Statewide
Information System, and shall pre-populate the SR provider’s information to the OEL SR 20M to the
Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring to ensure there are not any
discrepancies or expired requirements. In addition, the Specialist checks the DCF website to confirm
the date of the last conducted inspection. The previous SR Program Monitoring report may be reviewed for
comparison as needed. SR Enrollment report is printed to confirm the number of enrolled SR children. This
report is used to verify attendance and collect sign-in/out sheets for the current and previous month and
to establish the sample of children to be reviewed on site.
On Site
Upon arriving, the Specialist explains the intent and scope of the visit and provides the owner/director
with a list of the required documents that will be reviewed. The School Readiness Monitoring Tool will
be utilized as reference to review the SR site for compliance with the Florida Statewide School Readiness
Provider Contract and a Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring an OEL SR
20M will be issued accordingly.
The provider must offer a research-based, developmentally appropriate curriculum. The Specialist
validates use of the curriculum listed within the SR contract by observing the books, lesson plans, learning
center materials, and displays in the classroom. Interactions between the teacher and children are also
observed and are noted on the form along with any technical assistance regarding developmentally
appropriate practice.
Corrective Action Required Corrective Action
Plans
If observations of noncompliance are made by coalition monitoring staff using either Tier
1 or Tier 2 monitoring, the coalition will require a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) be developed and
implemented. The Coalition may require CAP and/or contract status change based on observations of
noncompliance by other Coalition staff, parental complaints or DCF reports. If such changes are made, the
coalition will notify the provider in writing. The notice will identify the specific requirement(s) which the
provider failed to
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meet and describe how the provider failed to meet each requirement. In addition, the notice will provide
a detailed description of any required corrective action and a deadline for submission of the corrective
action, the notice will state that the provider may request a review of the findings of noncompliance.
Upon determining that the provider has satisfactorily completed the corrective action, the coalition
will notify the provider in writing. Providers with a change in contract status will be monitored more
frequently then semi-annually. The frequency will be based on the severity on the noncompliance.
Attendance Verification
Sign in and out sheets of the children identified in the sample size will be reviewed and reconciled
against the provider submitted enrollment/ attendance certifications. This review will occur on-site or
at the Coalition, by Compliance or Finance designated staff member. Once the sample attendance
monitoring is completed the Provider will be notified via Provider Portal.
Maintain Records for Five (5) Years
The Specialist will give the provider request a list of five (5) child names determined as enrolled
from 5 years prior. The provider will have 3 calendar days to produce child care child records
(including payment certificates, sign in and sign out documentation, enrollment and attendance
certifications, documentation to support excused absences and proof of parent co-payments) to include
children who were terminated or who were enrolled and paid for 5 years prior to the date of the onsite visit.
This request will be made via correspondence to the provider. The provider is reminded that all SR
documents are required to be mainained for a minimum of five (5) years.
Record Verification
A Record Verification form is also completed and signed by the provider after the monitoring. This
form states the date range of the attendance collected as well as the number of sign-in/out pages
scanned. Any insurance documentation gathered is also noted on this form and is signed and dated
by the authorized SR representative. The provider is reminded that all SR documents are required to be
maintained for a minimum of five (5) years.
SR Program Risk Assessment
A provider that has eight or more findings on Attachment A will be considered high risk. The coalition will
monitor providers identified as “high risk” more frequently semi-annually. Follow up monitoring will
evaluate, at a minimum, the criteria that were found to be non-compliant in the previous monitoring.
Completion
After the visit, the Specialist discusses the findings (if any) with the SR Director/Owner, explains any
findings and gives the provider a deadline for a CAP, if required. timeline in which the monitoring will be
closed.
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Effective
Date:

School Readiness
Corrective Action Plan
and/or School Readiness
Contract Status Level
Change

Revision Date:

December

Board Approval Date:

, 2017

Revised by:

November 14, 2017,
January 29, 2019
M. Seda, COO
Pending

This procedure establishes a consistent framework for Quality and Compliance Staff to follow when
requiring a Corrective Action Plan (CAP). and a School Readiness Contract Status Level Change. To
establish the guidelines of changing the School Readiness Contract Status from FULL to
CORRECTIVE ACTION NOTICE (CAN), CAN WITH FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES, PROBATIONARY
OR TERMINATED.
Process:
•

Providers are monitored utilizing the OEL School Readiness Provider Monitoring Tool as
reference. If observations of noncompliance are made by coalition monitoring staff using either
Tier 1 or Tier 2 monitoring, the coalition shall require a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) be
developed and implemented by the provider program provider.

•

The Coalition may require a CAP and/or contract status change based on observations of
noncompliance by other Coalition staff, parental complaints or DCF Family Services
Counselors. If such changes are made, the coalition will notify the provider in writing.

•

Upon determination that a Provider is non-compliant, the Specialists complete the Contract Status
Change form, attach the Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring
which include all elements required to be monitored, other documentation of the non-compliance
issues, if any, and acquire the necessary supervisory signatures.

•

The coalition will notify the provider in writing. The notice will identify the specific requirement(s)
which the provider failed to meet and describe how the provider failed to meet each
requirement. In addition, the notice will provide a detailed description of any required corrective
action and set a deadline for completion of the corrective action(s). Finally, the notice must state
that the provider may request a review of the findings of non-compliance.

•

Include a copy of the School Readiness Contract Levels and the Due Process Procedures
(Exhibit 5) in the mailing to the provider.

•

Note the contract status change, issues of non-compliance, and CAP deadlines in the Statewide
Provider Portal. All documentation shall be available in the Compliance Monitors folder of the
document library management section of the Coalition and Provider Services Portal. Provider
Document’s Library.

•

Any provider placed on CAN with Financial Consequences status will remain that status for a
minimum of 30 days, and will only be restored to FULL or CAN upon successful completion of
their CAP and a subsequent monitoring visit from the Coalition.
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•

Any provider placed on PROBATIONARY status will remain that status for a minimum of
thirty (30) days and a maximum of six (6) months.
•

The provider shall be notified and reminded of the Eligibility pursuant to the
successful completion of terms of existing corrective action plans. or probation.

o The Provider, p er contract ual obligat ion had agreed t o success fully compl ete
cor rec tive a cti on or term s of pr obation due to noncompliance determinations from prior
or current Contract, as applicable, fo r the duration of this Contract.
o Noncompliance, Probation and Termination referencing to Paragraph - 56.
Noncompliance Determination.
▪

“a. Corrective Action Notice. If COALITION determines PROVIDER has failed to
comply with the provisions governing the SR Program as described in paragraph
5, or the requirements of this Contract, and COALITION concludes that
corrective action will resolve the failure to comply, COALITION must notify
PROVIDER in writing. (“Corrective action” means implementation of specific
action(s) designed to correct the failure to meet a specific requirement.) The
notice must identify the specific requirement(s) which PROVIDER failed to
meet and describe how PROVIDER failed to meet each requirement. In
addition, the notice must provide a detailed description of any required
corrective action and set a deadline for completion of the corrective action. Finally,
the notice must state that PROVIDER may request a review of the determination
as described in paragraph 64. Upon determining that the PROVIDER has
satisfactorily completed the corrective action, the COALITION shall notify the
PROVIDER in writing. If the PROVIDER has not satisfactorily implemented its
corrective actions by the end of this CONTRACT, the PROVIDER will still be
held accountable for implementing the remainder of the corrective actions accepted
under the previous contract if the PROVIDER remains eligible to deliver the School
Readiness Program and executes a new CONTRACT with the COALITION.”

▪

“b. Probation. If COALITION concludes that PROVIDER has received a
corrective action notice for the same violation two or more times or have had
multiple corrective action plans within the contract year or if the corrective action
plan is not completed within the prescribed timelines, PROVIDER shall be
placed on probation for a period up to six (6) months. Probation may include one
or more of the following conditions: training or staff development, monitoring or
technical assistance by COALITION or submission of documentation related to the
violation. COALITION must notify PROVIDER in writing of the terms and duration
of the probation, including required timelines. The terms of the probation must
correlate to the basis of
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the corrective action. If the PROVIDER has not satisfactorily completed the
terms of its probation by the end of this CONTRACT, the PROVIDER will still be
held accountable for the terms of the probation of the previous contract if the
PROVIDER remains eligible to deliver the School Readiness Program and
executes a new CONTRACT with the COALITION.”
o 57. Termination for Cause.
▪

“a. Basis of Termination for Cause. PROVIDER agrees that COALITION has
the right to terminate this Contract for cause at any time. The following are grounds
for termination for cause: (a) Action, or lack of action, which threatens the
health, safety or welfare of children; (b) The material failure to comply with one
or more of the terms of this Contract, including,

▪

Form OEL-SR 20 (October 2016) Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract
6M-4.610, F.A.C. Page 13 of 26

▪

but not limited to, failure to implement corrective action or comply with the
terms of probation as described in paragraph 56 above; (c) The refusal to accept
any notice described under this Contract which COALITION is required to send to
PROVIDER; or (d) Reasonable or probable cause for COALITION to suspect
that fraud has been committed by PROVIDER as described in paragraph 63.”

•

Update the provider Leader Board and the Tier 2 spreadsheet.

•

Upon determining that the provider has satisfactorily completed the CAP, the coalition shall
notify the provider in writing. of the School Readiness Contract status change.

•

Providers who have not satisfact orily compl eted the CAP may hav e th eir contract suspe nded ,
di sall owing payment for SR children w i t h h e l d until the CAP has been implemented.

•

If provider has continued noncompliance or fails to implement the CAP the SR contract may be
terminated “for cause” as described above in the SR20 Contract, paragraph 66..

•

If no CAP is received or approved then provider contract will be terminated and Revocation of
Eligibility may occur a. In accordance with s. 1002.88(2), F.S., if PROVIDER’s Contract is
terminated under paragraph 56., 57., or 58., COALITION may revoke PROVIDER’s eligibility to
deliver the School Readiness Program for a period of five (5) years. The only statutorily authorized
period of revocation is five (5) years (s.1002.88(2), F.S.).
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

VPK

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

IN

N/A

N/A

SR
MONITOR
DATE

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

N/A

10/12/2017

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

LORI

KETTY

1

20

PROVIDER NAME

ADDRESS

CITY

FIRST NAME

LAST
NAME

PENDING ISSUES

4C HEADSTART FIFTH AVENUE(Fifth Avenue Heart Start)

419 S PARK AVENUE
MAILING: 3500 W COLONIAL DRIVE

SANFORD
ORLANDO

MARLENE

WILLIAMS

LONGWOOD
ORLANDO

BRIDGET

HOPE CRANFORD IS MAIN
WYNN JONES CONTACT FOR 4C

HOPE CRANFORD IS MAIN
CONTACT FOR 4C

VPK

LB

N/A

N/A

N/A

NN

LORI

KETTY

3

60

4C HEADSTART NORTH STREET - No longer VPK Provider

900 NORTH STREET, 1ST BAPTIST
CHURCH OF ALTAMONTE
MAILING: 3500 W COLONIAL DRIVE

VPK
VPK
SR/VPK
SR
SR/VPK
VPK

IN
PJO
LB
IAP
IN
LB

N/A
N/A
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A

N/A
N/A
KETTY
IVONNE
KETTY
N/A

N/A
N/A
12/7/2017
CLOSED
1/10/2018
N/A

10/12/2017
1/11/2018
1/30/2018
NN
11/3/2017
NN

LORI
LORI
LORI
N/A
ISABEL
LORI

KETTY
PAULA
KETTY
N/A
KETTY
IVONNE

1
5
1
N/A
1
1

20
36
20
N/A
20
20

4C HEADSTART-MIDWAY
A KIDS GYM LLC
A TOT S WORLD III
ABUELAS DAY CARE INC - CLOSED Business
ALL ABOUT KIDZ OF OVIEDO
ALL SOULS CATHOLIC SCHOOL

2255 RIGHTWAY ST
MAILING: 3500 W COLONIAL DRIVE
1495 EVANS STREET #400
480 W. STATE ROAD 434
3451 HOLLIDAY AVE
387 W BROADWAY ST
810 S OAK AVENUE

SANFORD
ORLANDO
OVIEDO
WINTER SPRINGS
APOPKA
OVIEDO
SANFORD

KATE
JENNIFER
SANDRA
JOSELINE
SAKINA
MARYALICE

ILOJIOLE
WINSTON
HANYAK
PENA
AZIM
MORAN

VPK
VPK
VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK

IN
PJO
IAP
IAP
PJO
LB
IAP

N/A
N/A
N/A
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL

N/A
N/A
N/A
IVONNE
PAULA
KETTY
KETTY

N/A
N/A
N/A
No Children
11/3/2017
1/19/2018
11/16/2017

9/26/2017
1/12/2018
10/30/2017
10/10/2017
10/18/2017
1/30/2018
9/20/2017

LORI
LORI
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL

KETTY
PAULA
IVONNE
IVONNE
PAULA
KETTY
KETTY

1
3
3
2
1
1
1

11
60
60
40
11
11
11

ALTAMONTE CHRISTIAN SCHOOL
AMAZING EXPLORERS ACADEMY
ANNUNCIATION CHILD CARE CENTER
BEAR LAKE MONTESSORI ACADEMY
BEAUTIFUL MINDS ACADEMY LLC - P M
BRIGHT FUTURES PRESCH AND CHILDCARE CTR
CENTRAL FLORIDA ACADEMY

482 OSCEOLA ST
1288 SANCTUARY DR
970 MONTGOMERY ROAD
3320 E SR 436 SUITE 1020
143 COLOMBA RD
1500 SHEPARD RD
1622 WEST AIRPORT BLVD

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
OVIEDO
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
APOPKA
DEBARY
WINTER SPRINGS
SANFORD

SHELAGH
ERIKA
PHYLLIS
TAHERA
SANDRA
RHODA
ODETTE

ALSAMMAN
SEGER
MCCABE
BHOJANI
RODRIGUEZ
ROMIMORA
HERNANDEZ

SR
SR/VPK
VPK
VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK
VPK

IAP
IAP
LB
PJO
IAP
IAP
LB
IAP

ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A
N/A
ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A
N/A

IVONNE
IVONNE
N/A
N/A
IVONNE
IVONNE
N/A
N/A

11/8/2017
NN
12/13/2017 11/3/2017
N/A
11/13/2017
N/A
10/27/2017
11/14/2017 11/1/2017
1/12/2018
NN
N/A
NN
N/A
10/5/2017

N/A
ISABEL
LORI
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI
LORI

N/A
IVONNE
IVONNE
PAULA
IVONNE
IVONNE
IVONNE
KETTY

N/A
1
1
5
1
2
1
2

N/A
20
20
100
20
40
20
31

CHILDREN OF PROMISE DEV LEARNING CTR - P M
CHILDTIME LEARNING CENTER #309
CHOICES IN LEARNING CHARTER SCHOOL
CHRISTIAN CHILD CENTER OF WEKIVA
CHUCK AND KERRYS HOUSE
CITY CHURCH ACADEMY
COMMUNITY ALLIANCE PRESCHOOL
COMMUNITY CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL

330 HARBOUR ISLE WAY
1500 SWANSON DR
1100 E STATE ROAD 434
211 WEKIVA SPRINGS LANE
234 CONCORD DR
650 E AIRPORT BLVD
4815 E. LAKE DRIVE
4921 S US HIGHWAY 17 92

LONGWOOD
OVIEDO
WINTER SPRINGS
LONGWOOD
CASSELBERRY
SANFORD
WINTER SPRINGS
CASSELBERRY

SHARON
NATALIE
LORETTA
KATHRYN
KERRY A
CHANDRA
KAREN
KIMBERLY AN

SR/VPK
VPK

IAP
PJO

ISABEL
N/A

IVONNE
N/A

1/12/2018
N/A

9/22/2017
1/30/2018

ISABEL
LORI

IVONNE
PAULA

1
3

20
42

COQUI ACADEMY
CREATIVE INSPIRATION JOURNEY SCHOOL LLC

2401 S PARK AVE
780 E STATE ROAD 434

SANFORD
WINTER SPRINGS

SHEILA
PATRICIA

SR/VPK

IAP

ISABEL

IVONNE

12/8/2017

11/7/2017

ISABEL

IVONNE

1

11

EAGLES NEST INTERNATIONAL CHURCH - P M

851 EAST STATE ROAD 434

LONGWOOD

ELIZABETH

VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK

IN
PJO
IAP
LB
IN
PJO
IN

N/A
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
N/A
N/A
N/A

9/27/2017
N/A
11/29/2017 11/9/2017
12/15/2017 10/31/2017
12/18/2017 11/1/2017
9/25/2017
N/A
10/10/2017
N/A
N/A
NN

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
PAULA
IVONNE

5
1
1
1
4
2
2

55
11
20
20
80
40
22

EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER FUM
EARLY LEARNING CHILDCARE - P M
FIRST FRIENDS OF CHULUOTA INC - P M
FIRST STEPS OF LEARNING CAMP SEMINOLE
FIRST YEARS PRESCHOOL
FOREST LAKE EDUCATION CENTER
FRIENDS PRESCHOOL ACADEMY

263 KING STREET
159 EAST WILBUR AVENUE
141 W 4TH ST
390 PINEY RIDGE RD
45 W BROADWAY ST
1275 LEARNING LOOP
327 WILMA STREET

OVIEDO
LAKE MARY
CHULUOTA
CASSELBERRY
OVIEDO
LONGWOOD
LONGWOOD

MELODY
LAWANDA
MICHELLE
ODILIA (Dee)
SHANNON
DIANNE
JEANNETTE

LOST VPK FOR 5 YEARS
JOHNSON
BOYKIN
New Director
FROMME
CHRISIEN
HARMELING
Sometimes needs assistance.
STORY
WALKER
BOVE SANDERS
Michelle, Asst. calls a lot and she
needs guidance.
NAZARIO
MARQUIS
Pastor Misty Beik only one who will
sign contracts. Beth-Director many
times needs guidance.
LEWIS
1 class missed VPK AP3
BOYINGTON submission deadline.
Needs intensive assistance.
WALKER
PLAGIANOS
BERRIOS
CHAMBLEY
Needs intensive assistance.
TENORIO
FRIEND

Z:\2017-18 Providers for Compliance & Quality Improvement Team

HOPE CRANFORD IS MAIN
CONTACT FOR 4C

New Director.
NEW PROVIDER. Not in OEL
portal yet as of 7/12/2017

Center 3 yrs old; needs coaching
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

SR
MONITOR
DATE

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

PROVIDER NAME

ADDRESS

CITY

FIRST NAME

LAST
NAME

VPK
VPK
VPK
SR/VPK
VPK

IAP
IN
PJO
PJO
PJO

N/A
N/A
N/A
ISABEL
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
PAULA
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
11/7/2017
N/A

9/26/2017
NN
NN
10/27/2017
1/23/2018

LORI
ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
LORI

IVONNE
KETTY
PAULA
PAULA
PAULA

2
1
2
2
1

22
11
31
22
11

GO PLAY
GRACE UNITED METHODIST CHURCH PRESCHOOL
GRACEKIDS ACADEMY INC
GROWING TREE LEARNING CENTER
GYMNASTICS USA LONGWOOD

482 EAST ALTAMONTE DRIVE
499 NORTH COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
1767 WEST STATE ROAD 434
900 DODD RD
400 GOLD MEDAL COURT

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
LAKE MARY
LONGWOOD
CASSELBERRY
LONGWOOD

ROBIN
JOANNE
SANDY
JOYCE
AYANA

BRANT
GROCE
MCMILLEN
SEGER
WIGGIINS

SR

IN

ISABEL

KETTY

TBD

NN

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

HALL FAMLY DAY CARE HOME

104 N SUNLAND DR

SANFORD

ZYHEART

HALL

VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK

IN
IN
PJO
PJO
LB
IN

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

10/27/2017
NN
10/24/2017
1/16/2018
NN
NN

LORI
ISABEL
LORI
LORI
LORI
ISABEL

KETTY
KETTY
PAULA
PAULA
KETTY
PAULA

2
4
3
3
3
1

40
80
60
51
51
20

HAPPY FACES PREP SCHOOL 2 INC
HAPPY FACES PREP SCHOOL INC
HEATHROW CHRISTIAN ACADEMY AT MARKHAM WO
HOLY CROSS LUTHERAN ACADEMY LAKE MARY
HOLY CROSS LUTHERAN ACADEMY SANFORD
HOWELL BRANCH ACADEMY

1373 BUNNELL RD
3612 MCNEIL RD
5210 MARKHAM WOODS ROAD
780 NORTH SUN DRIVE
5450 HOLY CROSS COURT
4605 HOWELL BRANCH RD

APOPKA
APOPKA
LAKE MARY
LAKE MARY
SANFORD
WINTER PARK

ALICIA
KAREN
CHERYL
LISA
ELAINE
FIONA

HERNANDEZ
HARTMAN
BECK
MANGUS
GONZALEZ
PARSONS

SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK

IN
IAP
IAP

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

IVONNE
IVONNE
IVONNE

1/17/2018
1/17/2018
2/7/2018

10/30/2017
11/10/2017
10/25/2017

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

IVONNE
IVONNE
IVONNE

2
1
2

40
20
40

KID CITY USA ALTAMONTE (Formerly Mastery)
KID CITY USA ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
KID CITY USA LAKE MARY

841 DOUGLAS AVE
480 FRUITLAND STREET
2720 W. LAKE MARY BLVD

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
LAKE MARY

TAMIRA
JANE
MARSHA

VIDEON
BORDER
TAYLOR

VPK

IN

N/A

N/A

N/A

NN

ISABEL

PAULA

2

40

KID CITY USA LONGWOOD

935 WEKIVA SPRINGS RD

LONGWOOD

CAROLYN

SMITH

PENDING ISSUES

Contact Owner Carlos Noguero
New Director; New to Program
NEW PROVIDER. Family Child
Care.
NEW PROVIDER. OEL Portal
account activated 7/12/2017.
May have to reinitiate contract.
Cooperative Director

Name change. Pre-dated short
forms, missed VPK AP3 submission
deadline. CDC visit.

Director wants to do well, does well
with specific step by step directions.
Maria Young, owner wants to be
the one to be in contact even
though she has Michelle Marquez,
Director.
Needs assistance.
3rd Director Recently; Awaiting
updates in Profile and VPK Appl;
main contact is Bianca Lord

SR/VPK
SR/VPK

IAP
PJO

LORI
LORI

IVONNE
PAULA

11/29/2017 11/16/2017
11/9/2017 9/20/2017

LORI
LORI

IVONNE
PAULA

2
1

40
11

KID CITY USA LONGWOOD EAST - P M
KID CITY USA MAITLAND

382 W SR 434
MAILING: P O BOX 471503
290 MAITLAND AVE

LONGWOOD
LAKE MONROE
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS

MICHELLE
ZACHIRA

MARQUEZ
PEREZ

SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK

PJO
LB
LB
IAP
IAP
PJO
IAP
PJO

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
IVONNE
PAULA
KETTY
PAULA

1/10/2018
NN
1/31/2018 9/28/2017
12/1/2017
NN
12/7/2017
NN
12/13/2017 11/14/2017
11/15/2017
NN
11/20/2017
NN
11/16/2017 11/7/2017

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
KETTY
IVONNE
PAULA
KETTY
PAULA

1
2
1
2
1
3
1
2

11
40
20
31
20
51
11
22

KID CITY USA OVIEDO
KID CITY USA SANFORD-POP Lori
KID CITY USA WINTER PARK INC
KID CITY USA WINTER SPRINGS
KID E NATION INC
KIDDIE ACADEMY OF LONGWOOD AND LAKE MARY
KIDDY CATS ACADEMY - PM
KIDS ARK DEVELOPMENT CENTER

204 Alexandria Blvd
2720 W 25TH ST
3650 HOWELL BRANCH RD
1015 WILLA SPRINGS DR
824 EXECUTIVE DR
905 LONGWOOD HILLS RD
360 SOUTH MELLONVILLE AVENUE
1238 BUNNELL RD

OVIEDO
SANFORD
WINTER PARK
WINTER SPRINGS
OVIEDO
LONGWOOD
SANFORD
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS

DEBBIE
MARISOL
JESSICA
JENNIFER
STEPHANIE
KARINA
CATHERINE
MARIA E V DE

MESSENGER
ACOSTA
BARRETT
STODTKE
SORRENTINO
RODRIGUEZ Stay on top of any requests.
ROLLOCK
Needs intensive assistance.
MONZON

SR/VPK

IAP

ISABEL

KETTY

12/1/2017

10/3/2017

ISABEL

KETTY

1

11

KIDS CAROUSEL

SR

LB

LORI

KETTY

11/29/2017

NN

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

SR/VPK

IN

ISABEL

IVONNE

2/28/2018

11/10/2017

ISABEL

IVONNE

1

11

Z:\2017-18 Providers for Compliance & Quality Improvement Team

WINTER PARK
SANFORD
MAILING: DELTONA

CHERYL D

KIDS CASTLE 6920 2536 ELM AVE

1527 HERON WOOD PL
2536 S ELM AVE
MAILING: 174 GARFIELD RD

KIDS FIRST STEPS-POP Isabel

191 NORMANDY ROAD

CASSELBERRY

DAISY

JENNINGS

Jessica, VPK Teacher is the one
who goes to the Statewide Provider
Portal and upload documents
needed or information.

RENITRA ANN JARRELLS
MORALES

Needed CAP for VPK in multiple
areas.
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

SR
MONITOR
DATE

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

PROVIDER NAME

ADDRESS

CITY

FIRST NAME

LAST
NAME

PENDING ISSUES

SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK

IAP
IN
PJO
PJO

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL

IVONNE
KETTY
PAULA
KETTY

2/28/2018
12/6/2017
1/9/2018
1/31/2018

10/31/2017
9/20/2017
NN
11/8/2017

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL

IVONNE
KETTY
PAULA
KETTY

2
2
4
1

31
40
80
20

KIDS R KIDS 2 OVIEDO
KIDS WORLD (POP-Isabel) - P M
KIDTOWN USA
KIDZ R KIDZ ACADEMY

315 ALAFAYA WOODS BOULEVARD
7800 S HIGHWAY 17 92
1460 TUSKAWILLA RD
2617 S FRENCH AVE

OVIEDO
FERN PARK
WINTER SPRINGS
SANFORD

SHARON
ALKA
CYNDI
RONDA

BUXBAUM
REHANI
MORGAN
LUMAS

SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK
SR/VPK

PJO
LB
IN
IAP

ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A
ISABEL

PAULA
PAULA
N/A
IVONNE

2/16/2018 10/18/2017
11/13/2017 11/13/2017
N/A
NN
2/14/2018 10/30/2017

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

PAULA
PAULA
PAULA
IVONNE

1
1
1
2

20
11
20
40

KIDZ ROCK EARLY LEARNING CENTER
KIDZKARE PRESCH & CHILD CARE CTR-LATE A M
KINDER KAMPUS INC
KINDERCARE 2654 SR 434 W 0969 8745 (#969)

SANFORD
SANFORD
WINTER SPRINGS
LONGWOOD

KIMBERLY
VIRGINIA
SHERRIE
RACHEL

PARKER
MILLER
ARTERBURN
HALL

SR/VPK

PJO

ISABEL

KETTY

ISABEL

KETTY

1

20

KINDERCARE ALAFAYA WOODS

6641 WEST STATE ROAD 46
2581 S SANFORD AVE
640 E SR 434
2654 STATE ROAD 434 W
300 ALAFAYA WOODS BLVD
MAILING: ATTN LOAN TRAN.
650 HOLLADAY
ST 1400

OVIEDO
PORTLAND, OR 97232

RACHEL D

BASHAM

KinderCares need assistance.

KINDERCARE LAKE MARY BLVD #1109

910 WEST LAKE MARY BLVD
MAILING: ATTN LOAN TRAN.
650 HOLLADAY
ST 1400

SANFORD
PORTLAND, OR 97232

SUSAN

LIPTAK

KinderCares need assistance.

WINTER SPRINGS
PORTLAND, OR 97232
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
LAKE MARY

LYNNETTE
ANGELA
MARY
CONNIE

LINEHAN
ALLEN
CARTER
WITTMAN

KinderCares need assistance.
Needs intensive assistance.

SR/VPK

PJO

ISABEL

PAULA

2/7/2018

11/28/2017

NN

10/2/2017

ISABEL

PAULA

2

31

Room arrangement.

Work at their own pace; usually
needs follow-up.
Pop center.

SR/VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK

PJO
PJO
PJO
PJO

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A

PAULA
PAULA
PAULA
N/A

11/20/2017
11/30/2017
11/30/2017
N/A

10/3/2017
NN
NN
1/16/2018

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI

PAULA
PAULA
PAULA
PAULA

2
1
1
2

31
11
11
31

KINDERCARE SPRING VILLAS PT
KINDEROO LEARNING ACADEMY - P M
LA PETITE ACADEMY 7489 ALTAMONTE SPRING
LA PETITE ACADEMY 7493LAKE MARY

1024 SPRING VILLAS POINT
MAILING: ATTN LOAN TRAN.
650 HOLLADAY
ST 1400
389 SPRING OAKS BLVD
500 STATE ROAD 434
3850 LAKE EMMA RD

VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK

IAP
PJO
IAP
IN
LB
IN
LB
IAP

N/A
ISABEL
ISABEL
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
PAULA
IVONNE
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
9/28/2017
11/20/2017 11/14/2017
1/29/2018 10/18/2017
N/A
NN
N/A
10/19/2017
N/A
NN
N/A
1/17/2018
N/A
1/17/2018

LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
LORI
LORI

IVONNE
PAULA
IVONNE
KETTY
PAULA
PAULA
IVONNE
IVONNE

3
1
2
2
3
1
3
2

60
11
40
31
60
20
60
31

LADYBIRD ACADEMY 2 TIMACUAN
LADYBIRD ACADEMY AT WINTER SPRINGS
LADYBIRD ACADEMY OF LAKE FOREST
LADYBIRD ACADEMY OF WEKIVA SPRINGS
LADYBIRD ACADEMY OVIEDO
LAKE MARY CHILD CARE
LAKESIDE FELLOWSHIP UMC PRESCHOOL
LEGACY ACADEMY FOR CHILDREN

185 TIMACUAN BLVD
282 W STATE ROAD 434
700 LAKE FOREST BLVD
470 E. LAKE BRANTLEY DRIVE
1650 ALAFAYA TRAIL
875 WALLACE COURT SUITE 1001
305 SOUTH ORANGE BOULEVARD
3050 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY

LAKE MARY
OVIEDO
SANFORD
LONGWOOD
OVIEDO
LAKE MARY
SANFORD
LAKE MARY

BRITNEY
TRACIA
BRYANNA
ANGELA
EVELYN
LISA
MARTHA
CHERYL

SR/VPK
SR/VPK

PJO
PJO

LORI
LORI

PAULA
KETTY

11/28/2017
1/16/2018

10/5/2017
9/26/2017

LORI
LORI

PAULA
KETTY

1
2

11
22

LIFE IN COLORS ACADEMY
LIGHT YEARS AHEAD CHILD CARE CENTER

IN
LB
N/A

ISABEL
N/A
ISABEL

KETTY
N/A
KETTY

11/9/2017
N/A
TBD

NN
NN

N/A
LORI
ISABEL

N/A
IVONNE
KETTY

N/A
1
1

N/A
11
11

LITTLE ACORNS CHILD CARE
LITTLE FLOWER ACADEMY
LITTLE LORDS AND LADIES CHRISTIAN ACADEMY

FERN PARK
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
SANFORD
MAILING: DELTONA
CASSELBERRY
OVIEDO

JUANA
CONSUELO

SR
VPK
SR/VPK

555 SEMORAN BLVD
398 DOUGLAS AVE
630 RIVERVIEW AVENUE
MAILING: 174 GARFIELD ROAD
980 SOUTH EAGLE CIRCLE
2230 ALAFAYA TRAIL

Best way to communicate by email,
so it will be supporting doc.
WILLIAMS
JAMES
DUNIGAN
MANISCALCO New Director.
BERRIOS
BALL
Will be moving in October
PACHECO
MCLEOD
1-year old center; Sonia Flores is
main contact; needs assistance.
IRIZARRY
GIL

SALINA
JASON
LESLIE

JONES
SMITH
CARNEIRO

Has had parent compliants.

VPK
VPK

PJO
LB

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

10/23/2017
NN

ISABEL
LORI

PAULA
KETTY

1
2

20
22

800 WEST LAKE MARY BLVD
891 S R 434 EAST

SANFORD
LONGWOOD

LARYSA
KATHY

SR/VPK

IAP

ISABEL

IVONNE

2/21/2018

NN

ISABEL

IVONNE

2

22

LIVE OAK MONTESSORI SCHOOL
LONGWOOD CHRISTIAN ACADEMY AND PRESCHOOL
LONGWOOD COMMUNITY PRESCHOOL & ACADEMY
(formerly Metro Kids)

New Provider
Director questions much, but is
cooperative. ("don't take it
DRUZHYNINA personally")
STEAR

220 E WILDMERE AVE

LONGWOOD

CHRISTINE

ROSALES

Most of the time needs guidance.
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

SR
MONITOR
DATE

SR/VPK
SR
SR/VPK

IAP
IAP
IAP

ISABEL
ISABEL
ISABEL

IVONNE
KETTY
KETTY

VPK
VPK
VPK

LB
IN
IAP

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

SR/VPK

IN

ISABEL

PAULA

1/17/2018

SR/VPK
VPK
VPK
SR/VPK
SR/VPK

PJO
LB
IN
PJO
PJO

ISABEL
N/A
N/A
ISABEL
LORI

SR
SR

PJO
PJO

VPK

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

PROVIDER NAME

ADDRESS

CITY

FIRST NAME

LAST
NAME

PENDING ISSUES
Probably by the end of July Celia
will no longer be the Center
Director.

ISABEL
N/A
ISABEL

IVONNE
N/A
KETTY

2
N/A
2

40
N/A
22

MEADOWS ACADEMY
MERTHIES LEARNING CENTER INC
MY LITTLE CASTLE DAYCARE

5779 N RONALD REAGAN BLVD
1611 MERTHIE DR
919 E. ORANGE AVE

SANFORD
SANFORD
LONGWOOD

CELIA
MARILYN
ANGELICA

RAMEY
MARTIN
COTTO

NN
10/23/2017
11/16/2017

LORI
ISABEL
LORI

IVONNE
IVONNE
IVONNE

2
1
6

22
20
66

NEW COVENANT PRESCHOOL
NO LIMITS EARLY LEARNING CENTER
NORTHLAND EARLY LEARNING CENTER

800 TUSKAWILLA ROAD
P O BOX 950328
530 DOG TRACK ROAD

WINTER SPRINGS
LAKE MARY
LONGWOOD

SUSAN
VANESSA M
PAMELA

HORTON
CUCCIA
ANDERSON

10/4/2017

ISABEL

PAULA

4

80

O2B KIDS 10

995 N SR 434 SUITE 601

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS

KELLIE

TELLEZ

PAULA
N/A
N/A
PAULA
PAULA

12/13/2017 9/27/2017
N/A
NN
N/A
NN
1/12/2018 9/20/2017
11/1/2017 11/16/2017

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI

PAULA
IVONNE
PAULA
PAULA
PAULA

4
1
2
1
1

80
20
40
20
20

O2B KIDS 9
OAK ARBOR CHRISTIAN SCHOOL AND CHILD CARE INC
OVIEDO MONTESSORI SCHOOL
PARK AVENUE CHILD CARE AND LEARNING CENT
PEE WEE RANCH CHILD CARE

1175 OVIEDO MALL BLVD
1902 LONGWOOD LK MARY RD
261 SOUTH CENTRAL AVENUE
2700 S PARK AVE
210 S WAYMAN STREET

OVIEDO
LONGWOOD
OVIEDO
SANFORD
LONGWOOD

DELORES
JENNI
KAREN
KELLY
DANIELLE

LORI
LORI

PAULA
PAULA

12/6/2017
2/1/2018

NN
NN

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

PEE WEE RANCH II
PETERSON PATRICIA

304 S WAYMAN STREET
1325 SUMMERLIN AVE

LONGWOOD
SANFORD

LB

N/A

N/A

N/A

10/24/2017

LORI

KETTY

3

51

PRIMROSE SCHOOL OF LAKE MARY HEATHROW

1200 S. ORANGE BLVD

SANFORD

DEBORAH
PATRICIA
JENNIFER
SIERRA

VPK
VPK
VPK

LB
PJO
IAP

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

10/30/2017
1/12/2018
11/13/2017

LORI
LORI
LORI

PAULA
PAULA
IVONNE

2
3
3

40
51
51

PRIMROSE SCHOOL OF LONGWOOD
PRIMROSE SCHOOL OF OVIEDO
PRIMROSE SCHOOL OF WINTER SPRINGS

2615 WEST STATE ROAD 434
1933 WEST COUNTY ROAD 419
90 HERITAGE PARK STREET

LONGWOOD
OVIEDO
WINTER SPRINGS

TERESA
KAREN
DIANA

VPK

LB

N/A

N/A

N/A

10/24/2017

LORI

KETTY

2

40

RAINBOW CHILDCARE OF HEATHROW

1032 AAA DRIVE

LAKE MARY

NANCY

No response at all for VPK.
TARIFA
HEISELMAN
NELSON
Follow-up is recommended.
WOODS
BATCHELLER
Usually Danielle Batcheller
responds for both I & II.
COLLINS
Needs intensive assistance.
PETERSON
Unqualified VPK Instructor, Teacher
change notification.
CRUZ
Teacher change notification,
Attendance verification. New Dir
MILLER
BEDNAR
PALEN
Unqualified VPK Instructor, Teacher
change notification.
RIZZO

SR
VPK

PJO
LB

LORI
N/A

PAULA
N/A

1/31/2017
N/A

NN
8/17/2017

N/A
LORI

N/A
IVONNE

N/A
1

N/A
20

RESCUE DAY CARE
RHMC MOTHERS MORNING OUT

1315 S SUMMERLIN AVENUE
1525 WEST STATE RD 434

SANFORD
LONGWOOD

SR/VPK
VPK
SR
SR/VPK
SR/VPK
VPK

LB
LB
LB
IAP
PJO
IN

ISABEL
N/A
LORI
ISABEL
LORI
N/A

IVONNE
N/A
IVONNE
IVONNE
PAULA
N/A

12/4/2017 10/11/2017
N/A
9/28/2017
12/18/2017
2/7/2018
11/2/2017
2/16/2017 10/5/2017
N/A
9/21/2017

ISABEL
LORI
N/A
ISABEL
LORI
LORI

IVONNE
IVONNE
N/A
IVONNE
PAULA
KETTY

1
2
N/A
1
2
4

11
22
N/A
11
31
44

RISING STAR OF APOPKA CC & ACADEMY II - P M
RIVERWALK CHRISTIAN ACADEMY
RIVERWALK CHRISTIAN CHILD CARE
ROYAL ACADEMY C 9796
ROYAL ACADEMY PRESCHOOL INC
SANLANDO CHRISTIAN SCHOOL

1455 S 17 92

LONGWOOD

801 WEST 22ND STREET
1001 GREENWOOD BLVD
295 OXFORD RD
1894 WEST STATE ROAD 434

SANFORD
LAKE MARY
FERN PARK
LONGWOOD

DEBORAH
DONNA
ELIZABETH
(LIZ)
DARLENE
DARLENE
DAIANA
SARA
ERICA

SR/VPK

IAP

ISABEL

IVONNE

Z:\2017-18 Providers for Compliance & Quality Improvement Team

2/23/2018
NN
11/14/2017
12/13/2017 10/11/2017

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

2/23/2018

9/22/2017

ISABEL

IVONNE

1

11

SEMINOLE KIDS ACADEMY

801 E 25TH ST

SANFORD

TARA

VPK CONTRACT SUBMITTED
7/11/2017

NEW PROVIDER. No answer at all
for VPK.

WYNN
OWENS

Needs intensive assistance.

POLULUCH
CLARK
CLARK
QUINTERO
HENEIN
HOLLOWAY

Owner is Kimberly English
New Provider

TROMBETTI

Tara Trombetti is never at the
Center, who is in charge is
Kenyatta Little.
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

SR
MONITOR
DATE

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

PROVIDER NAME

ADDRESS

CITY

FIRST NAME

LAST
NAME

PENDING ISSUES
NEW PROVIDER. Mia has
experience with both programs.
Owned other locations with both
programs.
Teacher change notification,
Attendance verification and VPK
AP3.

SR/VPK

IN

ISABEL

IVONNE

11/2/2017

10/11/2017

ISABEL

IVONNE

1

11

SMALL WONDERS ACADEMY

900 SILKWOOD CT

LONGWOOD

MIA

FIORUCCI

VPK

LB

N/A

N/A

N/A

LORI

KETTY

6

120

ST LUKES LUTHERAN SCHOOL

2025 W. STATE ROAD 426

OVIEDO

ILEANA

BARBARI

VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK
VPK

IN
IAP
LB
PJO
LB

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

10/19/2017
Didn't
enroll 4
10/9/2017
NN
10/30/2017
NN

ISABEL
ISABEL
LORI
LORI
LORI

PAULA
IVONNE
KETTY
PAULA
KETTY

1
2
3
1
2

20
40
60
20
22

ST MARKS KINDERGARTEN INC
ST MARY MAGDALEN CHILD CENTER
ST PETER S PRESCHOOL AND KINDERGARTEN
STEPPING STONES EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER
STS PETER PAUL EARLY LEARNING CENTER

1021 PALM SPRINGS DRIVE
710 SPRING LAKE RD
700 RINEHART ROAD
2132 WEST STATE RD 434
5300 OLD HOWELL BRANCH ROAD

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
LAKE MARY
LONGWOOD
WINTER PARK

CAROL
ELISA
WENDY
JILL
NERY

CZWORNOG
STEINER
BERGHANE
RIGGS
NAYA

SR/VPK
VPK

PJO
LB

LORI
N/A

PAULA
N/A

2/1/2018
N/A

10/27/2017
NN

LORI
LORI

PAULA
KETTY

1
2

20
22

SUPER KIDS ACADEMY WEKIVA
SWEETWATER CHRISTIAN PRESCHOOL

211 S HUNT CLUB BLVD
3800 WEKIVA SPRINGS ROAD

APOPKA
LONGWOOD

JAICY
LARRA

GUERRERO
JAHNKE

ISABEL
LORI
ISABEL
N/A
LORI

KETTY
KETTY
PAULA
N/A
IVONNE

1
1
1
N/A
3

11
20
20
N/A
42

SWEETWATER EPISCOPAL ACADEMY 5 years Revocation
SWEETWATER KIDS ACADEMY INC
SWEETWATER OAKS NURSERY SCHOOL
TEDDY BEAR CHILD CARE HOME
THE DOUBLE R PRIVATE SCHOOL

251 E. LAKE BRANTLEY DRIVE
418 NORTH CENTRAL AVENUE
885 FOX VALLEY DRIVE
174 JAY DRIVE
725 COUNTRY SCHOOL TRAIL

LONGWOOD
OVIEDO
LONGWOOD
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
CHULUOTA

NADIA
MARION
ESTHER
ODALIS
TRUDIE

ISABEL

KETTY

2

22

THE LAKE MARY ACADEMY AND MUSIC LLC

560 WELDON BLVD

LAKE MARY

RENAE

PROVIDER LOST VPK
CONTRACT FOR PERIOD OF 5
HUTAGALUNG YEARS; ELIGIBLE 10/23/2022
HUGGINS
LARSSON
GONZALEZ
FLUHARTY
Needed CAP for ratios and group
size.
HAMILTON

VPK
SR/VPK
VPK
SR
VPK

IN
PJO
IN
IAP
IAP

N/A
LORI
N/A
LORI
N/A

N/A
KETTY
N/A
IVONNE
N/A

N/A
2/7/2018
N/A
2/14/2018
N/A

Contract
Terminated
10/19/2017
NN
NN
1/11/2018

VPK

IN

N/A

N/A

N/A

10/25/2017

VPK
VPK

IAP
IAP

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

10/24/2017
10/26/2017

LORI
LORI

IVONNE
IVONNE

3
1

51
20

THE LEARNING EXPERIENCE
THE NEIGHBORHOOD PRESCHOOL

7095 COUNTY ROAD 46A
301 MARKHAM WOODS ROAD

LAKE MARY
LONGWOOD

STEPHANIE
JULIE

LOPEZ
YOUNG

SR/VPK

PJO

ISABEL

PAULA

12/12/2017

9/27/2017

ISABEL

PAULA

1

11

THINK N PLAY

2751 TUSKAWILLA RD

OVIEDO

BETTY

WRIGHT

VPK

IN

N/A

N/A

N/A

NN

LORI

PAULA

2

40

TUSKAWILLA MONTESSORI ACADEMY

1625 MONTESSORI PT

OVIEDO

TERRY

DELONG

VPK

IAP

N/A

N/A

N/A

9/25/2017

ISABEL

IVONNE

3

60

TUSKAWILLA PRESBYTERIAN SCHOOL

3600 WEST STATE ROAD 426

OVIEDO

DEBORAH

HARNED

VPK
SR/VPK
VPK

PJO
IAP
IN

N/A
ISABEL
N/A

N/A
KETTY
N/A

N/A
1/19/2018
N/A

1/12/2018

LORI
ISABEL
ISABEL

PAULA
KETTY
KETTY

2
1
7

40
20
140

TWIN RIVERS MONTESSORI ACADEMY
UCP OF CENTRAL FLORIDA SEMINOLE CAMPUS
UNIVERSITY CARILLON EARLY LEARNING CNTR

1270 LOCKWOOD BLVD
1221 WEST COLONIAL DRIVE 300
1395 CAMPUS VIEW COURT

OVIEDO
ORLANDO
OVIEDO

BELINDA
MARIFE
JANET

PADILLA
GOMEZ
EDWARDS

Z:\2017-18 Providers for Compliance & Quality Improvement Team

NN

Jaicy recently new at Super Kids,
but not new to our programs.

VPK CONTRACT INITIATED
7/11/2017. Stephanie Lopez is the
one who upload in the Statewide
Provider Portal. Always late for any
response.
Upcoming Change in Ownership
7/31/17
Also owns Twin Rivers Montessori.
Clara Dawkins is the one who
upload in the Statewide Provider
Portal.
Main contact is owner Terry
DeLong (also owns Tuskawilla
Montessori).
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2017-18 Provider List
Monitoring Schedule

PROGRAM

SR ELC
SR ELC
COALITION QUALITY COMPLIANCE
STAFF
STAFF
STAFF
2017-18
2017-18
2016-17

SR
MONITOR
DATE

VPK
MONITOR
DATE
(NN=Not
Needed)

VPK ELC
VPK ELC
QUALITY COMPLIANCE
MAX VPK
STAFF
STAFF
# VPK CHILDREN
2017-18
2017-18
CLASSES ENROLLED

SR/VPK
IAP
ISABEL
KETTY
11/20/2017
NN
ISABEL
KETTY
VPK
IN
N/A
N/A
N/A
10/26/2017
LORI
IVONNE
VPK
IAP
N/A
N/A
N/A
11/13/2018
LORI
IVONNE
NOTE: CENTER NAMES IN THIS FONT SHOULD BE MONITORED EARLY IN THE YEAR.

Staff

Ketty
Paula
Ivonne
Totals

VPK High SR Only
Volume
(3+ classes)
11
11
10
32

4
4
3
11

SR/VPK

1
1
7

11
20
77

PROVIDER NAME

WEE THE PEOPLE PRESCHOOL AND CHILDCARE
WEKIVA CHILDRENS ACADEMY
WILLOW CREEK PRESCHOOL

ADDRESS

708 S ELM AVE
2270 SAND LAKE RD
4725 EAST LAKE DRIVE

CITY

SANFORD
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS
WINTER SPRINGS

FIRST NAME

DEANNA
SHERA
SANDRA

LAST
NAME

PLYLER
ALDRIDGE
SCHOLL

PENDING ISSUES
Director wants to do well, does well
with specific step by step directions.
New Provider.

VPK Only
Admin Days of the Month - IAP: 6, 11, 21, 26 / PJO & KG: 5, 10, 20, 25

20
21
21
62

11 SR Only Providers
71 VPK Only Providers
133 VPK Total Providers
144 Total Providers
32 Providers with 3+ Classrooms

Z:\2017-18 Providers for Compliance & Quality Improvement Team

23
24
24
71

Need for VPK Monitoring Visit:
New Provider
New Director
If POP
Not monitored previous year
CAP previous year, unless minor
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Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring
Provider Name:
Arrival Time:

Provider Address:
Departure Time:

Last Monitor Date:
# of findings at last monitor:

The Early Learning Coalition of Seminole has identified that you are out of compliance in one or more of the areas identified below. Coalition staff is responsible for assigning a date in which compliance must be achieved. For
each item checked, it is required that a specific action be taken by the identified due date listed.

Area(s) of Non-Compliance

1.
2.
3.
4.

DCF SR Hea lth and Safety Inspections:
Yes
No
Date:
Ownership information does not match signed contract. Contract Paragraphs #6 and 63
Provider is no t licensed or legally operating. Criterion HS/QC. Contract Paragraph #7
Provider fai led to provide child care services at address on School Readiness Contract. Criterion HS/QC. Contract
Paragraph # 1
Provider did not enroll children in accordance with services established on the child care certificate. Criterion HS/QC.
Contract Paragraph #8

Due Date
for
correction

Action Required

Were there findings? What were the numbers? If so, have they been corrected?

6.

Provider fai led to provide a healthy and safe environment. * Criterion HS. Contract Paragraph #11(a)

Provider will show documentation of new ownership and when transfer took place.
Provider will show documentation that center is licensed or legally operating.
Does the contract address match the physical address? If not, provider will need to provide explanation
for the discrepancy.
Missing or incorrect certificates for the following child(ren);
Provider will submit missing Certificate of Enrollment with an explanation of how missing or misplaced
certificates will be avoided in the future.
Review DCF H&S Report. Any H&S issues observed onsite?

7.

Provider did not maintain the required staff to child ratio. * Criterion HS. Paragraph #11(b)

If not in ratio, Provider will need to show documentation of staff to child ratio training(s).

8.

Provider fai led to (1) obtain and (2) implement a State-approved developmentally appropriate curriculum. Criterion QC.
Contract #1 3
Provider fai led to use a character development program identified in the School Readiness contract. Criterion QC.
Contract Pa ragraph #14
Provider fai led to provide unlimited access to parents. Criterion HS. Contract Paragraph #24
Daily sign-in/out sheets were not completed in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1) -(4), FAC). * Criterion QC (only if the
discrepancy results in questioned cost). Contract Paragraph #20

(1) Provider will

5.

9.
10.
11.

12.

Monthly enrollment/attendance Certifications are not completed in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1)-(4), FAC). *
Criterion QC (only if the discrepancy results in questioned cost). Contract Paragraph #48

13.

Provider fai led to report absences in accordance with rule. * Criterion QC (only if the discrepancy results in questioned
cost). Contr act Paragraph #21
Provider fai led to abide by the provisions of Rilya Wilson Act. * Criterion HS. Contract Paragraph #22

14.

NNC 2017-18 SR Monitor

have to show documentation of purchase of their selected State-approved curriculum.
Provider will submit the next 2 weeks of lesson plans to the coalition.
Provider will submit the next 2 weeks of lesson plans to the coalition, showing character development.

(2)

At the time of this monitor there have been no complaints from parents regarding access to their child.
Provider will complete Daily sign-in/outs sheets in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1) -(4), FAC). Provider
will submit documentation that the provider met with parent(s) that was not signing in accordance with
rule (6M-4.500(1) -(4), FAC). Provider and parent will sign and date the (template form).
Provider will complete monthly enrollment/ attendance in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1) -(4), FAC).
If provider submitted attendance late, provider will submit statement that they have reviewed and
understand Contract Paragraph #48.
If provider did not use correct attendance codes, provider will submit statement that they have
reviewed and understand the appropriate codes used when filling out monthly attendance.
If Provider did not sign attendance, provider will submit statement that they understand that they must
sign each monthly attendance.
Provider will submit documentation of notification to the ELC of Seminole that the provider did not have
parent contact for the child who was absent for five (5) consecutive days.
Provider will abide by the provisions of Rilya Wilson Act. Seminole County Providers need to notify
Community Based Care of Central FL at Rilya.Wilson@cbccfl.org or by fax 321-800-4415. Provider will
submit documentation that e-mail or fax was sent. If applicable, provider will submit documentation of
daily contact from parent regarding excused absences.
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Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring
15.
16.
17.

Provider failed to provide access to facility in a timely manner. Criterion QC. Contract Paragraph #34
Provider failed to provide access to records in a timely manner. Criterion QC. Contract Paragraph #35
Provider failed to protect child and family data. Criterion HS. Contract Paragraph #36

18.

Provider failed to have staff complete confidentiality agreements. Criterion HS/QC. Contract Paragraph #36

19.
20.

Provider failed to maintain current attendance records. * Criterion QC. Contract Paragraphs # 20 & 36
Provider failed to maintain historical child records for five years. * Criterion HS/QC. Contract Paragraph #37

21.

Provider failed to comply with compensation and funding requirements related to (1) private pay rates, (2) rate and
fees, and (3) co-payment collection. * Criterion QC. Contract Paragraphs # 40,43,44, 45, and 46(a)(b)(c)

Provider will provide access to facility in a timely manner.
Provider will provide access to records in a timely manner.
Provider will submit documentation on the procedure(s) in place to maintain confidentiality of child and
family data.
Staff will complete confidentiality agreements and it will be kept in employee file onsite. Provider will
submit documentation on training to staff on child and family confidentiality.
Provide an explanation as to why current attendance records were not available.
Provide an explanation as to why records for last five (5) years were not available. Provide a plan on
procedures implemented to avoid future reoccurrences.
(1) Provide an explanation with supporting documentation as to why the provider did not report the
revision of private pay rate no later than the close of business on the day of the change.
(2) Provide

an explanation with supporting documentation as to why the provider did not offer a written
notice of any fees it charges and the difference between the private pay rate and SR reimbursement,
prior to the parent enrolling his/her child.
(3) Provide

an explanation with supporting documentation as to why the provider did not have an
accurate method for documenting and collecting the required copayment and issuing receipts to
parents.
22.

A formal discrimination complaint was made against the provider. Criterion HS/QC. Contract Paragraph #55

23.

Provider failed to report unusual incidents in a timely manner (verbal and written). Criterion HS/QC. Contract
Paragraph #70

24.

Provider did not have proof of Worker’s Compensation/Unemployment Compensation Insurance. Contract Paragraph
#19
Provider failed to maintain or report insurance changes in accordance with rule. Criterion HS/QC. Contract Paragraph
#75 – OEL-SR 20L (Paragraph 3(a)(b)), OEL-SR 20LE (Paragraph 3(a)(b)), or OEL-SR 20FFN (Paragraph 3(a)(b))

25.

Provider will submit documentation showing it comply with terms 45 C.F.R. § 98.47 (SR paragraph 55)
Provide an explanation as to why the provider did not report unusual incidents timely manner. Verbally:
Report by the close of business day on the date of the incident. Written: Report by the third (3rd) close of
business day from the date of the incident.
Provider will upload current Worker’s Compensation to the OEL Statewide Provider Portal. Document
will need to be uploaded to the Provider Profile – Documents Tab.
Provider will submit documentation of current insurance to the OEL Statewide Provider Portal.
Document will need to be uploaded to the Provider Profile – Documents Tab.

Is Provider considered High-Risk? Yes
No
Total High-Risk * occurrences:
Total Non-compliance occurrences: If eight or more, provider is high-risk.

Additional Notes (if needed)

NNC 2017-18 SR Monitor
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Notice of Non-Compliance for School Readiness Program Monitoring
After interview with the Provider there are no concerns at this time.
After interview with the Provider, Technical Assistant was given as to best practice regarding….
SR Contract Paragraph 56 (b) “If COALITION concludes that PROVIDER has received a corrective action notice for the same violation two or more times or have had multiple corrective
action plans within the contract year or if the corrective action plan is not completed within the prescribed timelines, PROVIDER shall be placed on probation for a period up to six (6)
months. Probation may include one or more of the following conditions: training or staff development, monitoring or technical assistance by COALITION or submission of documentation
related to the violation. COALITION must notify PROVIDER in writing of the terms and duration of the probation, including required timelines.”
The monitor may perform a follow-up monitoring to determine compliance. If you do not comply within the time period identified, the Coalition has the authority to place your program
on probation, withhold payment for services or terminate your participation as a School Readiness provider. If you have any questions regarding this Notice of Non-Compliance, please
contact the Specialist (listed below).
Monitor Signature:

Contact Information:

Provider Authorized Representative, Printed Name, Signature and Date

Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
280 Hunt Park Cove, Longwood, FL 32750-7567
Specialist Direct Office Phone Line:

References:

• All items marked as an area of non-compliance require a written explanation on provider letter head
stationary, signed and dated.
• Supporting documentation may include, but not limited to, any of the following: copy of letters provided to
parents, flyers, published private rate sheets, teacher roster, DCF Logs, food program attendance, lesson plans,
pictures, invoices, receipts, parent and employee handbook, welcome packet, copy of copayment receipts.
• A copy of this Monitor will be uploaded to the Document Library Management section of the OEL Statewide
Provider Portal, in the Compliance Monitors folder. Your Corrective Action Plan and all supporting
documentation should also be uploaded to this folder by the due date.
NNC 2017-18 SR Monitor
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL
A. Monitoring Requirements
A coalition administers the School Readiness Program through the service delivery of a school readiness (SR) program provider.
An early learning coalition shall monitor all SR program providers, regardless of provider type (including school district SR programs), in accordance with its plan,
or in response to a parental complaint, to verify that the standards prescribed in ss. 1002.82, and 1002.88, F.S. are being met using a standard monitoring tool
adopted by the Office of Early Learning. Providers that the coalition determines to be high-risk, as defined in section D below, shall be monitored more frequently.
This does not prohibit a coalition from monitoring a provider more frequently for other concerns such as parental complaints or suspected fraud.
B. Tier 1 Compliance Tracking/Desk Review
A coalition shall annually monitor each of its SR program providers for Tier 1 compliance with a locally developed tracking log. The tracking log shall include the
items below for each SR program provider:
1. Date of submission of School Readiness Contract Documents in accordance with Rule 6M-4.610, FAC.
2. Date of completion of most recent Health and Safety Checklists (for all school readiness providers in accordance with Rule 6M-4.620, FAC.
3. Conducting Developmental Screenings (if applicable) in accordance with Rule 6M-4.720, FAC.
4. Date of completion and submission of annual CCR&R Provider Updates in accordance with Rule 6M-9.300(8), FAC.
5. Accurate completion of monthly enrollment/attendance certifications1 in accordance with Rule 6M-4.500(2), FAC.
6. Use of statewide information system as applicable.
C. Tier 2 Compliance
Using the monitoring tool form OEL-SR 20M, Attachment A, the coalition shall monitor a random sample of all of its contracted SR program providers, regardless
of provider type (including school district SR programs) on an annual basis. The sample should be representative of all provider types (including school district
SR programs) funded by the coalition and include no less than the number of providers included in Attachment B –Minimum Annual Sample Size. The coalition
will include its random sampling process in its school readiness provider monitoring plan. For multi-county coalitions, the sample size is calculated using the
total number of contracted providers among all counties in the coalition’s service area. High risk providers, as defined in section D below, that are not captured in
the random sample will be added to the list of providers that are sampled for annual monitoring. The coalition’s monitoring plan may be developed to monitor
100% of its SR program providers annually.
D. SR Program Risk Assessment
A provider that has eight or more findings on Attachment A will be considered high risk. Additionally, using Attachment A, if 15 percent or more of the child files
in the selected sample result in questioned cost, that provider will be considered high risk. For example, if three out of 20 files result in questioned cost, that
provider will be considered high risk.
The coalition shall monitor providers determined to be high risk more frequently than annually. Frequency of monitoring for providers determined to be high risk
shall be identified in the coalition’s monitoring plan. All follow up monitoring shall evaluate, at a minimum, the criteria that were found to be non-compliant in the
previous monitoring. For criteria in Attachment A that evaluate a sample of children’s files for compliance, a 10 percent error rate or higher will be applied to

1

The intent is to annually monitor all providers for attendance (reconciling enrollment/attendance certifications with sign-in/sign-out logs), however, this does not have to be done
every month for each provider. The details of a coalition’s post attendance monitoring shall be included in the coalition’s monitoring plan submitted with the coalition’s school
readiness plan.
Form OEL-SR 20M
Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Monitoring Tool –
March 2017
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL
determine if the non-compliance observations will count as a high-risk indicator. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the
error rate percentage.
If an SR program provider has no findings for three consecutive years, the coalition may select to monitor the SR program provider using form OEL-SR 20M,
Attachment A on a biennial basis.
Historical monitoring results (prior to the execution of the statewide school readiness provider contract) may be used by a coalition to determine risk level when
developing the coalition’s monitoring plan.
E. SR Children Sample Size
For Tier 2 monitoring, the coalition shall monitor a sample of at least twenty-five percent of a SR program provider’s SR child files. If the SR program provider
has less than 20 SR children, the sample will be 4 SR child files. If the SR program provider has 4 or less SR children, all SR child files will be reviewed. The
sample should be representative of classrooms, billing groups and age of children. The percentage of SR child files to be reviewed is based on the total number of
SR children enrolled with a SR program provider during the month of the monitoring engagement. For example, if the provider’s actual child enrollment count is
65, 16 children should be the sample selected for review. When applying the 25% for the sample, please round to the nearest whole number.
F. Corrective Action Plans
If observations of noncompliance are made by coalition monitoring staff using either Tier 1 or Tier 2 monitoring, the coalition shall require a Corrective Action
Plan (CAP) be developed and implemented by the school readiness program provider. The coalition must notify the provider in writing. The notice must identify
the specific requirement(s) which the provider failed to meet and describe how the provider failed to meet each requirement. In addition, the notice must provide a
detailed description of any required corrective action and set a deadline for completion of the corrective action. Finally, the notice must state that the provider may
request a review of the findings of noncompliance. Upon determining that the provider has satisfactorily completed the corrective action, the coalition shall notify
the provider in writing.

Form OEL-SR 20M
Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Monitoring Tool –
March 2017
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL
– Tier 2
Attachment A
Table of Contents
I. PARTIES AND TERMS OF THE CONTRACT ..................................................................................................................... 5
1. Not transferred/assigned contract
II. . PROVIDER ELIGIBILITY .............................................................................................................................................. 5
1. Provider type and services (informational)
2.

Licensed or legally operating

III. ROVIDER RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................................................................................................... 6
1. Child care
2.

Healthy and safe environment (for 2.a through 2.c, select the provider type that applies)

3.

Developmentally appropriate curriculum

4.

A character development program

5. Unlimited parental access
6.

Daily sign-in/sign-out sheets

7.

Enrollment/Attendance Certifications

8.

Reporting absences

9.

Rilya Wilson Act (s. 39.604, F.S.)

IV. ACCESS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 10
1. Access to facility
2.

Access to records

V. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS, DATA AND CONFIDENTIALITY......................................................................... 10
1. Family data and confidentiality agreements
2.

Attendance record maintenance

3.

Maintain records for five years

VI. COMPENSATION AND FUNDING ............................................................................................................................. 11
1. Private pay rate
2.

Rates and Fees for Parents

3.

Military Subsidies

4.

Parent copayment collection

5.

Head Start Agencies

6.

Title 20 Schools

VII. NONDISCRIMINATION.............................................................................................................................................. 12
1. Discrimination
VIII. NOTIFICATION ................................................................................................................................................................. 12
1. Timely unusual incident reporting
2.

Written notification of incident

Form OEL-SR 20M – Tier 2
Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Monitoring Tool – Attachment A
March 2017
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X. MONITORING REVIEW ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS................................................................................................. 14
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor: _

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

I. PARTIES AND TERMS OF THE CONTRACT
Provider Name (I-1):
Location Address (I-1):
Provider EIN (I-1):

Dates of Contract (I-3):

1. Not transferred/assigned contract
Assessment activity - Does the ownership information match who is listed on the contract? If they match, then they are in compliance.
Yes
(I-6)
N/A

No

Did the provider obtain written approval of the coalition if it transferred or assigned its contract to another entity, corporation, or owner?

Notes:

II. PROVIDER ELIGIBILITY
1. Provider type and services (informational)
(check all that apply) (II-7 and III-18)
Child care facility

Faith-based child care provider

Full-time

Family day care home

Informal child care provider

Part-time

Large family child care home

Before-school

Extended-day

Public school or nonpublic school

After-school

Extended-year

2. Licensed or legally operating
Assessment activity 1. Access the DCF Child Care Administration, Regulation and Enforcement System (CARES) website or local licensing inspection reports and conduct a
provider search for the provider in question.
Form OEL-SR 20M
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

2. To determine if a private after school program or private summer camp, exempt from licensing, is legally operating, review level two background
screenings for all center personnel. Review the provider’s contract for the operating status and review the provider’s final reimbursement report to
verify that only children who are 5 years of age on or before September 1 and older are receiving service.
3. Review the Division of Public Assistance Fraud (DPAF) Dispositions Report available on the OEL coalition zone to verify that the provider, or an
owner, officer, or board director thereof, has not been convicted of, found guilty of, or pled guilty or nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication,
public assistance fraud pursuant to s. 414.39, F.S., within the last five (5) years and is not acting as the beneficial owner for someone who has been
convicted of, found guilty of, or pled guilty or nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, public assistance fraud pursuant to s. 414.39, F.S., within
the last five (5) years.
4. Verify that the provider is not on the United States Department of Agriculture National Disqualified List nor does the provider share an officer or
board director with a provider that is on the United States Department of Agriculture National Disqualified List.
5. Verify that informal providers meet state and federal requirements to be an eligible provider.
6. Verify that provider has successfully or in the process of successfully completing previous corrective actions or terms of probation due to
noncompliance determinations from a prior contract.
7. Verify that provider or an owner, officer, or board director thereof, has not had their eligibility to provider School Readiness services revoked. For
multi-site PROVIDERS, such as corporate chains or school districts, eligibility revocation is per site and not all locations unless specifically
determined otherwise by the coalition.
Yes

No

Is the provider licensed or legally operating? (Verification needed) (II-7)

License /Licensed Exempt ID:

Expiration Date:

If no, explain:
Notes:

III. PROVIDER RESPONSIBILITIES
1. Child care
Assessment activity 1. Does written address match physical address? If yes, provider is in compliance. If not, provider is not in compliance.
2. Has mail been returned by the carrier indicating wrong address? If it has then not in compliance. If it has not, then in compliance.
Yes
No
Did the provider enroll SR children in accordance with the services established by the coalition on the childcare (payment) certificate
indicating authorized hours of care and are the sampled children at the physical location identified on the enrollment/attendance certification form? (IIIForm OEL-SR 20M
Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Monitoring Tool – Attachment A
March 2017
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITIO N
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

8, 9) For sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward the high risk assessment
identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
2. Healthy and safe environment (for 2.a through 2.c, select the provider type that applies)
Health and Safety requirements are specifically addressed in each provider type attachment. (III-11)
* If any violations are observed while conducting onsite visit, report observations to DCF or local licensing agency.
a. Licensed Provider, Licensed-Exempt Provider, Faith-Based Provider (religious-exempt), and Registered Providers Responsibilities
Assessment activity - View a copy of their most recent DCF or local licensing agency inspection report, Form OEL-SR-6201.
Yes
No
Is the provider providing a healthy and safe environment pursuant to s. 402.305(5), (6), and (7), as applicable, and as verified pursuant to
Rule 6M-4.620(2)(a), FAC?
Notes:

b. Public and Non-Public Schools Responsibilities
Assessment activity - View a copy of their most recent DCF or local licensing agency inspection report, Form OEL-SR-6203.
Yes

No

Is the provider providing a healthy and safe environment pursuant Rule 6M-4.620(2)(b), FAC?

c. Informal, Large Family Child Care Home, and Family Day Care Home Provider Responsibilities
Assessment activity - View a copy of their most recent DCF or local licensing agency inspection report, Form OEL-SR-6205.
Yes

No

N/A

Is the provider providing a healthy and safe environment pursuant to Rule 6M-4.620(2)(c), FAC?

Notes:

3. Developmentally appropriate curriculum
Yes
No
N/A
Is the provider using an approved Developmentally Appropriate Curriculum (as it specified in OEL-SR 20 and Attachment C of Form
OEL-SR 20M)? (III-13)
Curriculum used:

Edition or date:

Curriculum used:

Edition or date:

Curriculum used:
Character Development Program included in curriculum? Yes

No

N/A

Edition or date:
For school age programs only
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

4. A character development program
Yes
No
Is the provider using the character development program as it identified in OEL-SR 20? (III-14)
N/A For school age programs only
Program used:

Edition or date:

5. Unlimited parental access
Yes
No
Does the provider afford parents unlimited access to their children during normal hours of provider operation when children are in the care
of the provider? (III-24)
ATTENDANCE REPORTING
Month(s) validated for attendance
6. Daily sign-in/sign-out sheets
Assessment activity - Review sign-in/sign-out logs for children in sample. Some non-compliance observations may not result in questioned cost but will
require technical assistance.
Yes
No
Are the parent sign-in/sign-out daily attendance forms completed in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1)-(4), FAC)? (III-20) For sampled files,
if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward the high risk assessment identified in section D
above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
Yes
No Did the observation result in a disallowed cost? Indicate amount
Indicate any discrepancies found (including disallowed costs): (VII-51)

7. Enrollment/Attendance Certifications
Assessment activity - Review enrollment/attendance certifications for children in sample and compare to the sign-in/sign-out forms. Observe and record
attendance in each classroom sample and then compare them to the sign in sheets to make sure the sign in sheets are accurately reflecting children present.
Some non-compliance observations may not result in questioned cost but will require technical assistance.
Yes

No

Are the provider’s monthly enrollment/attendance certifications completed in accordance with rule (6M-4.500(1)-(4), FAC)? (III-20) For
sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward the high risk
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITIO N
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Yes

No

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

assessment identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the error rate
percentage.
Did the observation result in a disallowed cost? Indicate amount

Indicate any discrepancies found (including disallowed costs): (VII-51)

8. Reporting absences
Assessment activity - Review sign-in/sign-out log for children in sample. From the selected sample, determine which children were absent. Once a
determination has been made, ask the provider for documentation that supports communication with DCF or the parent concerning absences as applicable.
Determine if procedures were followed to substantiate compliance with attendance reporting.
Yes
No
If applicable, did the provider notify the coalition if a child was absent for five (5) consecutive days with no contact from parent by the close of
the fifth (5th) day, according to rule? (III-21) For sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this
criterion that will count toward the high risk assessment identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require
corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
N/A

9.

Rilya Wilson Act (s. 39.604, F.S.)
When an at-risk child has an unexcused absence or seven consecutive days of excused absences, the school readiness provider shall notify the Department of
Children and Families or community-based lead agency and the early learning coalition.
Assessment activity - Review sign-in/sign-out log for at-risk children in sample. From the selected sample, determine which children were absent. Once a
determination has been made, ask the provider for documentation that supports communication with DCF or the parent concerning absences as applicable.
Determine if procedures were followed to substantiate compliance with attendance reporting.
Yes
No
If applicable, did the provider abide by the provisions of the Rilya Wilson Act for each at-risk child under the age of school entry by
documenting any notification contact made with the DCF or community-based agencies’ case manager? (III-22) For sampled files, if the
error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward the high risk assessment identified in
section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
N/A
Indicate any discrepancies found:
_
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

Notes:
IV. ACCESS
1. Access to facility
Yes
No
Does the provider allow coalition staff (contractor or sub-contractor) or OEL staff immediate access to facility per contract? (V-34)
Immediate is defined in the context of what someone would see as reasonable time
to grant access to the site. Monitoring staff should take into consideration eating time and staff available (without disrupting normal operations and
teacher/student ratios), etc.
2. Access to records
Yes
No
Does the provider allow coalition staff (contractor or sub-contractor) or OEL staff immediate access to records per contract? (V-35)
Immediate is defined in the context of what someone would see as reasonable time to grant access to the site. Monitoring staff should take into
consideration eating time and staff available (without disrupting normal operations and teacher/student ratios), etc.
Notes:

V. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS, DATA AND CONFIDENTIALITY
1. Family data and confidentiality agreements
Assessment activity - Review confidentiality agreements signed by provider staff.
Yes
No
Does provider protect child & family data and have staff complete confidentiality agreements in accordance with provider contract? (VI-36)
The monitor should select a sample of staff to review during on-site visits.
2. Attendance record maintenance
Yes
No
Does the provider maintain records of sampled children, including sign in and sign out documentation, enrollment and attendance
certifications, documentation to support excused absences and proof of parent co-payments for children funded by the SR program per
contract? (VI-37) For sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward
the high risk assessment identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the
error rate percentage.
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

3. Maintain records for five years
Assessment activity - Review sample of 5 child records (including payment certificates, sign in and sign out documentation, enrollment and attendance
certifications, documentation to support excused absences and proof of parent co-payments) to include children who were terminated or who were enrolled and
paid for 5 years prior to the date of the onsite visit
Yes
No
N/A
Does the provider maintain the above mentioned records for audit purposes for a period of five (5) years from the date of the last
reimbursement request for that fiscal year or until the resolution of any audit findings or any litigation related to this Contract,
whichever occurs last? (VI-37) For sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion
that will count toward the high risk assessment identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require
corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
Yes

No

Did the observation result in a disallowed cost? Indicate amount

Indicate any discrepancies found (including disallowed costs): (VII-51)
Notes:
VI. COMPENSATION AND FUNDING
1. Private pay rate
Assessment activity - Review most recent provider CCR&R update or other provider communication regarding private pay to the coalition and compare to
what the provider currently reports as its private pay rate.
Yes
No
Did the provider report changes to the coalition to its private pay rate no later than the close of business on the day of the change? (VII-43)
Yes
No
Is the provider’s rates for SR services equal to or less than the provider’s private pay rate?
2. Rates and Fees for Parents
Assessment activity - Review private pay information that the provider gives to parents. Verify that a list of fees is available to parents and if applicable the
type of written notice given if there is a different between the private pay rate and the SR rate. Parents of children in the sample may also be interviewed.
Yes
No
Did the provider provide the parent with a list of any fees it charges and, if applicable, written notice of the difference between the private pay
rate and SR reimbursement, prior to the parent enrolling his/her child? (VII-44)
3. Military Subsidies
Assessment activity - Review sampled children for military affiliation.
Yes
No N/A
Did the provider notify the coalition if it received military subsidy payments through or from the Child Care Aware of America©
(formally NACCRRA) or any legal successor organizations, on behalf of any child enrolled in the provider’s SR program? (VII-45)
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

4. Parent copayment collection
Assessment activity - Review documentation that validates parent copayment collection by provider for children in sample.
Yes
No
Does the provider have a method for documenting and collecting the required copayment and issuing receipts to parents? (VII-46) For
sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher, this will constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward the high risk assessment
identified in section D above. All non-compliance observations will still require corrections, regardless of the error rate percentage.
5. Head Start Agencies
Assessment activity - Review sampled children sign in/sign out log for evidence that children attended above and beyond the scheduled Head Start program
hours.
Yes
No N/A
If applicable, is the provider’s Head Start program in addition to and not in substitution for its school readiness program? (VII-52)
6. Title 20 Schools
Assessment activity - Review sampled children sign in/sign out log for evidence that children attended above and beyond the scheduled public school program
hours.
Yes
No N/A
If applicable, is the provider’s public school program in addition to and not in substitution for its school readiness program? (VII-53)
Notes:

VII. NONDISCRIMINATION
1. Discrimination
Yes
No Has the coalition received any formal complaints regarding this provider related to discrimination against children on the basis of race, national
origin, ethnic background, sex, religious affiliation, or disability or regarding discrimination against staff persons on the basis of religion? (IX-55)
VIII. NOTIFICATION
1. Timely unusual incident reporting
Yes
No
Did the coalition verify that the provider reported unusual incidents on file during the visit to the coalition by no later than the close of business
on the day of the incident? An unusual incident is defined in Form OEL-SR 20 (October 2016) at number 70 as incorporated by reference in Rule
6M-4.610, FAC. (XI-70)
N/A
2. Written notification of incident
Yes
No
Did the provider submit a written report of the incident on file during the visit to the coalition within three business days? (XI-70)
N/A
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

Notes:

IX. Insurance
1. Worker’s compensation insurance
Yes
No
N/A
Waiver
(if applicable, obtain a copy of the waiver)
Does the provider have Workers’ Compensation insurance that covers the term of the contract? (III-19)
2. Reemployment assistance insurance
Yes No N/A
Does the provider have Reemployment assistance insurance that covers the term of the contract? (III-19)
3. General liability insurance
Yes
No
Did the coalition verify that the provider maintained general liability insurance (including transportation insurance if applicable) and provided
the coalition with written evidence of coverage? (OEL-SR20 L, FFN, LE)
N/A
4. Homeowner’s liability insurance or homeowner’s insurance policy (for informal providers)
Yes
No
Did the coalition verify that the provider maintained home owner’s insurance and provided the coalition with written evidence of coverage?
(OEL-SR20 FFN )
N/A
5. Insurance changes
Assessment activity - Verify proof of insurance. If provider demonstrates current insurance information then they are compliant.
Yes
No
Did the provider submit advance written notice of cancellation or changes to insurance coverage a minimum of ten (10) calendar days to the
coalition? (OEL-SR20 L, FFN, LE )
N/A
Notes:
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

Program Year:

X. MONITORING REVIEW ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Follow-up required? Yes

No

Date Due:

Description of follow-up required: (if additional space is needed, use Overall Compliance Observations section)

Acknowledged
by:
Printed Name and Title of
Coalition Representative

Signature of Coalition Representative

Date

Printed Name and Title of SR
Program Provider Representative

Signature of SR Program Representative

Date

Acknowledged
by:
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STATEWIDE SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER CONTRACT MONITORING TOOL – Tier 2
Attachment A
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF SELECT COALITION
Coalition Staff/Monitor:

Monitoring Date:

OVERALL COMPLIANCE OBSERVATIONS
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Program Year:

ATTACHMENT B – MINIMUM ANNUAL SAMPLE SIZE FOR PROVIDERS
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# of Providers

Minimum Sample Size

# of Providers

Minimum Sample Size

<20
30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65
70
75
80
85
90
95
100
110
120
130
140
150
160
170
180
190
200
210
220
230
240
250
260
270
280
290
300
325
350
375
400
425
450

75%
25
28
31
34
37
38
39
40
42
44
47
50
53
56
58
62
65
68
70
72
74
76
78
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
93
95
98
100
102
103

475
500
525
550
575
600
625
650
675
700
725
750
775
800
900
1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,500
4,000
4,500
5,000
5,500
6,000
6,500
7,000
7,500
8,000
8,500
9,000
9,500
10,000
11,750
12,500
13,750
15,000
16,750
17,500
18,750
>20,000

106
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
116
117
117
118
119
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
144
145
146
148
150
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ATTACHMENT C – SCHOOL READINESS CURRICULUM APPROVAL PROCESS – MONITORING
CRITERIA
Section 1002.88 (1) (f), Florida Statutes, requires school readiness providers to “Implement one of the curricula approved
by the office that meets child development standards.” The information below is a guide for monitoring curriculum use
and implementation.
Requirements
Examples of Indicators
Results
Selection may be verified by:
Providers must select the approved
version, year, or edition list on the
• Written attestation from provider
most current Approved School
• Copy of purchase receipt
Readiness Curricula List.
• Visual confirmation
A copy of the curriculum should
• Visual confirmation
remain on-site at the provider and be
accessible to teachers.
Curriculum Implementation
Examples of Indicators
Lesson plan review:
Review lesson plan and/or interview
for evidence of curriculum
• Are learning activities
implementation to ensure alignment to
representative of all early learning
the Florida Early Learning and
domains?
Developmental Standards: Birth to
• Are activities both child guided
Five.
and teacher guided?
• Does the schedule allow for a
variety of learning experiences
including play, large group, small
group, and outdoor time?
• Are there opportunities for
flexibility?
Interview/observation:
If a lesson plan is not available for
review, implementation may be
• Talk about the curriculum you use.
verified though interview and
• How does the curriculum meet the
or/observation.
needs of children in your program?
• How do you think the curriculum
promotes learning for young
children?
• How do the children respond to the
curriculum?
• Tell me about the training you
have received on this curriculum?
• How do you involve families?
Additional Comments:

Follow-up Required:
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ATTACHMENT D – SCHOOL READINESS PROVIDER MONITORING CHART

Risk Indicator

SR Program Risk Assessment

Enter x for each area
of non-compliance*
NA

#1

I. PARTIES AND TERMS OF THE CONTRACT
a. Not transferred/assigned contract
II. PROVIDER ELIGIBILITY
a. Provider type and services (informational)

#2

b. Licensed or legally operating

#3

III. PROVIDER RESPONSIBILITIES
a. Child care*

#9
#10
#11

b. Healthy and safe environment
c. Developmentally appropriate curriculum
d. A character development program
e. Unlimited parental access
f. Daily sign-in/sign-out sheets*, disallowed cost indicator
g. Enrollment/Attendance Certifications*, disallowed cost
indicator
h. Reporting absences*
i. Rilya Wilson Act*

#12

IV. ACCESS
a. Access to facility

#13

b. Access to records

#14

V. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS, DATA AND
CONFIDENTIALITY
a. Family data and confidentiality agreements

#4
#5
#6
#7
#8

#15
#16

b. Attendance record maintenance*
c. Maintain records for five years*, disallowed cost
indicator
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NA

Comments

#22

VI. COMPENSATION AND FUNDING
a. Private pay rate
b. Rates and Fees for Parents
c. Military Subsidies
d. Parent copayment collection*
e. Head Start Agencies
f. Title 20 Schools

#23

VII. NONDISCRIMINATION
a. Discrimination

#24
#25

VIII. NOTIFICATION
a. Timely unusual incident reporting
b. Written notification of incident

#17
#18
#19
#20
#21

IX. Insurance
a. Worker’s compensation insurance
#26

b. Reemployment assistance insurance
#27
#28
#29

c. General liability insurance (or Homeowner’s liability
insurance, informal providers only)
d. Insurance changes
X. MONITORING REVIEW
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS TOTAL NUMBER OF OVERALL COMPLIANCE
OBSERVATIONS

Note:
A provider that has seven or more findings as assessed by this
monitoring tool, will be considered high-risk, (.25 x 29 =~ 7).
Additionally, if 15 percent or more of the files for risk
indicators 8, 9, and 16 in the selected sample result in a
disallowed cost, that provider will be considered high-risk. .
For example, if three out of 20 files result in questioned cost,
that provider will be considered high-risk.
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Total # -

Percentage of Questioned Cost -

*For sampled files, if the error rate is 10% or higher for risk
indicators 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, and 20, this will
constitute a finding for this criterion that will count toward
the high risk assessment identified in section D above. All
non-compliance observations will still require corrections,
regardless of the error rate percentage.

For assistance with reading or understanding tables , graphs or any portion of this document, please contact the Office of Early Learning
at 1-866-357-3239.
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Attachment V.A.2 Monitoring: Progressive Enforcement

SUBJECT:
CATEGORY:
DATE:

Progressive Enforcement
Monitoring Plan and Procedures: Noncompliance, Probation, Termination
Revised January 26, 2019

Policy Statement:
If a school readiness program provider fails or refuses to comply with this part or any contractual
obligation of the statewide provider contract under s. 1002.82(2)(m), the coalition may revoke the
provider’s eligibility to deliver the school readiness program or receive state or federal funds under this
chapter for a period of 5 years. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if a school readiness
program provider has been cited for a Class I violation, as defined by rule, the coalition may refuse to
contract with the provider or revoke the provider’s eligibility to deliver the school readiness program.
PURPOSE: This procedure establishes a consistent framework for ELC staff to follow when denying a
contract for Class 1 violations or requiring a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and or a School Readiness
Contract Status Level Change. This policy establishes the guidelines of changing the status of a School
Readiness Contract from Full Contract, Contract with a Corrective Action Plan, Probationary, Terminated
and /or Revocation of Eligibility.
Procedures:
• Current SR providers are inspected annually by DCF to monitor School Readiness health and
safety requirements. These inspections are posted on the DCF CARES website. ELC staff review
the DCF inspections and log them on tracking spreadsheet. If required ELC staff will notify
school readiness provider that a corrective action plan must be submitted based on inspection
results. Technical support will be provided by ELC staff based on outcome of DCF Health and
Safety Inspections.
• New providers wishing to contract for School Readiness must be in full compliance with DCF on
the most current DCF inspection and not had a Class I standard or more than two (2) of the same
Class II standard, or evidence three (3) of the same Class III violation for the prior 2 years. These
inspections are posted on the DCF CARES website.
• Upon determination that a Provider is non-compliant, the ELC staff will notify the provider in
writing of the non-compliance and refer the provider to the EFS MOD system where the ELC
staff will upload Form OEL-SR 20M , other documentation of the noncompliance issues, or any
evidence of a second violation of the same Class II standard, evidence of third violation of the
same Class III standard and failure to comply with the requirements of the School Readiness
Contract. Class 1 violations will require either a Probationary, Terminated or Revocation of
Eligibility for the SR contract.
• The notice will identify the specific requirement(s) which the provider failed to meet and describe
how the provider failed to meet each requirement. If the provider is placed on a Probationary
contract the provider will be required to submit a Corrective Action Plan (CAP). The notice will
provide a detailed description of any required corrective action, if applicable, and set a deadline
for completion of the corrective action(s). Finally, the notice must state that the provider may
request a review of the findings of non-compliance.
• Note the contract status change, issues of non-compliance, and CAP deadlines in EFS MOD.
Upload all documentation in EFS MOD Document Library Management and save to S drive.
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Attachment V.A.2 Monitoring: Progressive Enforcement
•

Any provider placed on Probation will remain that status for a minimum of ninety (90) days and a
maximum of six (6) months. The individual circumstances that resulted in Probationary status
determines the time frame of the probationary status. This is at the discretion of the Early
Learning Coalition of Seminole.
Termination:
Termination for Cause:
• Third and subsequent violation of Class I standard or any violation in a Class I standard that pose
an immediate and danger to the health, safety, or welfare of children
• Fifth and subsequent violation of the same Class II standard that pose an immediate and danger to
the health, safety, or welfare of children in care
• Sixth and subsequent violation of the same Class II standard, if the Coalition determines that the
class violation(s) pose an immediate and danger to the health, safety, or welfare of the children in
care
• Failure to comply with the terms of the SR contract, including failure to implement corrective
action or comply with the terms of probation
Emergency Cause:
• Notification by DCF of actions or lack of action of a Provider that pose an immediate and danger
to the health, safety, or welfare of children
Revocation of Eligibility:
• Violations of Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code, terms of the Contract. Or provider
misconduct may result in ineligibility to execute a new School Readiness Contract for up to five
(5) years.
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Attachment V.A. Monitoring: Progressive Enforcement Procedure Chart

School Readiness Progressive Enforcement Procedure
DEFINITION
TECHNICAL
SUPPORT
CORRECTIVE
ACTION PLAN

PROBATION

Technical Assistance provided by
the Coalition
SR Contract with Stipulations

Probationary Status for
minimum of three (3) months
to six (6) months

ENFORCEMENT TERMS
•

Technical assistance will be provided based on the outcome of DCF Health and Safety Inspection(s) and noncompliances found during the SR Program Monitoring conducted

•
•
•

Evidence of second violation of the same Class II standard
Evidence of third violation of the same Class III standard
Failure to comply with the requirements of the School Readiness Contract

•
•
•
•

First and second violation of a Class I standard
Third and Fourth violation of the same Class II standard
Fourth and Fifth violation of the same Class III standard
Second and subsequent Corrective Action Plan issued by the Coalition with non-compliances in the same area
within the same contract year

SR Contract at risk of being
Terminated

SR Contract terminated by the
Coalition

TERMINATION

Provider is unable to apply for a
new contract during the remainder
of the current contract year

REVOCATION
OF ELIGIBILITY

Ineligible to execute a new School
Readiness Contract for up to five
(5) years from the date of
termination

Termination for Cause:
•
Third and subsequent violation of Class I standard or any violation in a Class I standard that pose an immediate and
danger to the health, safety, or welfare of children
•
Fifth and subsequent violation of the same Class II standard that pose an immediate and serious danger to the
health, safety, or welfare of children in care
•
Sixth and subsequent violation of the same Class III standard, if the Coalition determines that the class violation(s)
pose an immediate and danger to the health, safety, or welfare of children
•
Failure to comply with the terms of the SR Contract, including failure to implement corrective action or comply with
the terms of probation
Emergency Termination:
•
Notification by DCF of actions or lack of action of a Provider that pose an immediate and danger to the health, safety,
or welfare of children
•
Loss of license
•

Violations of Florida Statues, Florida Administrative Code, terms of the Contract, or provider misconduct may result
in ineligibility to execute a new School Readiness Contract for up to five (5) years

Please Note: This procedure is not limited to only the actions or terms of the School Readiness Provider Contract and Program Monitoring listed above. The Coalition shall
take into consideration the severity of the violation or non-compliance, as well as the actions taken by the Provider to correct the violation, when determining the
appropriate disciplinary action.
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JOB DESCRIPTION
(Grants and Communications Department)
Position:

Communications and Community Outreach Intern

Reports to:

Director of Grants and Communications

Grade Level:
Wage & Hour Status:

Stipend, Part-Time

Purpose: The Communications and Community Outreach Intern of the Early Learning Coalition
of Seminole (the Coalition) is primarily responsible for supporting the Communications
departments under the supervision of the Director of Grants and Communications. In addition,
this position is intended to support the promotion of high quality early learning opportunities for
children in Seminole county. This includes the supporting all efforts to grow awareness about the
Coalitions programs and services to families and potential and existing community partners. This
position will assist with outreach initiatives to different populations including events, outreach
and match development campaigns and all target communication efforts. The successful
candidate must possess exemplary written and oral communications skills, interpersonal,
community relations and organizational skills along with a professional demeanor.
(This job description may not be all-inclusive, and employees are expected to perform all other
duties as assigned and directed by management. Job descriptions and obligations may be
modified when deemed appropriate by management.)
Responsibilities:
• Assist with updating and maintaining the Coalition’s social media presence, including
scheduling Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn updates.
• Assist in planning, writing and managing quarterly external e-Newsletter.
• Assist with the design of flyers, graphics, evites and other marketing material for major events
hosted by the Coalition. In addition to local community events, which the Coalition
participates in as vendors or sponsors.
• Assist with updating the Coalition website when needed.
• Assist with outreach to community organizations, public and private donors through the
development of targeted messaging about the Coalition’s mission to provide quality early
learning for all children in Seminole county.
• Collaborate with staff on new ideas, directions, and venues for marketing and
communications.
• Draft and pitch press releases, media alerts and other stories.
Qualifications:
• Strong written and verbal communications skills, including the ability to write for multiple
media and communication platforms for a variety of audiences.
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• Strong work ethic, self-motivated with the ability to take initiative and come up with creative
solutions.
• Knowledge of AP writing style.
• Firm grasp of available tools and platforms in the social media space.
• Completed or working toward a college degree, preferably in a related field (e.g., English,
Marketing/Communications, or Public Relations).
• Previous internship or related experience in marketing or communications is a plus.
• Must be computer literate (working knowledge of word processing, PowerPoint, Excel).
Proficiency in, WordPress highly desired. Knowledge of graphic design a plus.
• Fundraising and event organizing experience is a plus.
• Ability to communicate in a professional manner with press and community contacts.
• Self-motivated, good organizational skills, detail-oriented, ability to prioritize, multi-task and
meet deadlines.
• Assist in organizing events including developing promotional materials; written
communications to attendees, sponsors and community leaders.
• Flexibility in schedule to attend some evening and weekend community events in support
event organizing and management.
• Enthusiasm for the mission of the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole and the families we
serve.

Background Checks:
Employment in this position is contingent upon obtaining and maintaining satisfactory:
o Level II Background Check,
o Drug Test,
o E-Verify,
o Educational Verification,
o Possession of a valid Florida driver’s license; and
o Ability to maintain Florida driver’s license throughout employment required
Essential Physical Requirements:
While performing duties of this job the employee is regularly required to sit for prolonged periods
of time; talk; hear; use hands and fingers to operate a computer, telephone, and other office
equipment; reach with hands and arms; and stoop, kneel or crouch. Also, the employee will
occasionally lift and move up to 25 lbs. Specific vision abilities required by this job include vision
and capacity to adjust focus.
The noise level in the office is usually quiet. The physical demands and work environment
described is representative of those that must be met by an employee successfully to perform
the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential duties of this job.
THIS JOB DESCRIPTION in no way states or implies that these are the only job duties to be
carried out by the employee incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to
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follow any other job-related instructions and perform any other job-related duties requested
by any person authorized to give instructions or assignments.
This description has excluded the marginal functions of the position that are incidental to the
performance of fundamental job duties. All duties, responsibilities, and requirements are
essential to the job. Job functions and requirements are subject to possible modification to
accommodate individuals with disabilities reasonable. To perform this job successfully, the
incumbent will possess the skills, aptitudes, and abilities to perform each duty proficiently.
This document does not create an employment contract, implied or otherwise, other than an “atwill” employment relationship.
I have reviewed and received a copy of this job description and acknowledge I have had the
opportunity to ask for additional clarification from my direct supervisor or by any person
authorized to give instructions or assignments.
Employee Signature:
Employee Printed Name:
Date:
Supervisor Name:
Supervisor Title:
Date:

Internship Description: Communications and Community Outreach Intern
Born out of legislation in 1999, the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole is a nonprofit charitable
organization, which aims to provide access to quality early learning for all children in Seminole County.
By providing families with financial assistance for child care, we help to educate the next generation,
which translates to higher employment and self-sufficiency for Seminole County families. We aim to
improve opportunity and reduce stress on parents by offering affordable child care, which allows them
to better contribute to the community while strengthening the life trajectory of the next generation for
all children in Seminole County.
Position: Communications and Community Outreach Intern
Description: The Early Learning Coalition of Seminole seeks a dynamic, self-starter to assist community
outreach, marketing and communications efforts. This internship is an excellent opportunity to
experience various aspects of communications while working for a well-known community based
nonprofit organization.
Responsibilities:
• Assist with updating and maintaining the Coalition’s social media presence, including
scheduling Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn updates.
• Assist in planning, writing and managing quarterly external e-Newsletter.
• Assist with the design of flyers, graphics, evites and other marketing material for major events
hosted by the Coalition. In addition to local community events, which the Coalition
participates in as vendors or sponsors.
• Assist with updating the Coalition website when needed.
• Assist with outreach to community organizations, public and private donors through the
development of targeted messaging about the Coalition’s mission to provide quality early
learning for all children in Seminole county.
• Collaborate with staff on new ideas, directions, and venues for marketing and
communications.
• Draft and pitch press releases, media alerts and other stories.
Qualifications:
• Strong written and verbal communications skills, including the ability to write for multiple
media and communication platforms for a variety of audiences.
• Strong work ethic, self-motivated with the ability to take initiative and come up with creative
solutions.
• Knowledge of AP writing style.
• Firm grasp of available tools and platforms in the social media space.
• Completed or working toward a college degree, preferably in a related field (e.g., English,
Marketing/Communications, or Public Relations).

• Previous internship or related experience in marketing or communications is a plus.
• Must be computer literate (working knowledge of word processing, PowerPoint, Excel).
Proficiency in, WordPress highly desired. Knowledge of graphic design a plus.
• Fundraising and event organizing experience is a plus.
• Ability to communicate in a professional manner with press and community contacts.
• Self-motivated, good organizational skills, detail-oriented, ability to prioritize, multi-task and
meet deadlines.
• Assist in organizing events including developing promotional materials; written
communications to attendees, sponsors and community leaders.
• Flexibility in schedule to attend some evening and weekend community events in support
event organizing and management.
• Enthusiasm for the mission of the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole and the families we
serve.
Start Date: Position open until filled, requires 3 to 6-month commitment.
Hours: 20-25 hrs./week
Compensation: Stipend Terms (TBD).
To Apply: Please send a resume and 1-3 writing samples to cmcgregor@seminoleearlylearning.org
The Early Learning Coalition of Seminole is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not discriminate on
the basis of sex, race, age, national origin, ethnic, background, disability or any other characteristic
protected by law.

February 20, 2019

Dear Board Member,

Our annual Provider Appreciation event will take place May 9, 2019 at the Holy Trinity Reception
Center. The theme for this year’s Provider Appreciation program is a Night of Stars, which will focus
on building self-esteem in young children while acknowledging the “Stars” that help to educate
them. Our goal is to raise $8,000 that will be used to defray the cost and further our mission in the
community. In order to continue to make this rewarding experience a reality for our child care
providers and educators, we are reaching out directly to area businesses, friends, partners, and
offering the opportunity to help by becoming a sponsor!
Last year, we attracted 200 attendees and this year we anticipate at least 250 attendees, composed
of early educators and community leaders. We will commemorate with an evening of entertainment,
music, fun raffle prizes, a buffet-style dinner and a special presentation from a Keynote Speaker. The
night will commence with a special recognition to our sponsors and our honorary guests of the night —
our network of early childhood providers.
Enclosed is an explanation of the different levels of sponsorship as well as a sponsorship form, for
your convenience. All sponsors will receive recognition and branding opportunities throughout the
event including mention on our social media pages and website, logo placement in the event
program, table tops and presentation— and much more!
If you are interested in participating as a sponsor, please scan and email the enclosed sponsorship
form back to me at the email below. I would be extremely grateful if you could R.S.V.P no later than
Friday, April 26, 2019, by pre-registering at: bit.ly/ELCSPA19. In the meantime, feel free to reach out to
me with any questions. I hope you can accept this invitation and I look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Cheyenne C. McGregor
Director of Grants & Communications
cmcgregor@seminoleearlylearning.org
O: (407) 960.2462 C: (407) 618-3514

Provider Appreciation
May 9, 2019
Holy Trinity Reception Center
1217 Trinity Woods Lane
Maitland, FL 32751

Sponsorship Proposal
About the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
Born out of legislation in 1999, the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole is a nonprofit charitable
organization, which aims to provide access to quality early learning for all children in Seminole County.
By contracting with hundreds of local child care providers and early learning centers, we act as a major
revenue generator within Seminole county — helping to boost the local economy while recycling
taxpayer dollars back into the community. In addition, we empower working-parents to be better and
more reliable employees by reducing stress on parents and offering safe and affordable child care.
We understand that investing in quality early learning is an investment in the future of education, the
economy and society. Therefore, we believe in investing in early learning educators with opportunities
for scholarships to continue their education and gain further training and certifications to create the
highest quality learning experience for our children.
About Provider Appreciation Day
It is estimated that nearly 11 million children under the age of 5 are cared for by 2.8 million child care
providers in the United States. Florida is home to approximately 1.4 million children younger than 5,
with more than 14,500 child care providers in the state! Governor Ron DeSantis has officially proclaimed
this day, May 10, 2019, as Provider Appreciation Day.
On this special day we recognize teachers, school-age program staff, family child care homes, child care
center directors and staff, and all those who work with children and are responsible for their education
and care.
Now in our 7th year, we are celebrating Provider Appreciation Day on May 9, 2019, at Holy Trinity Center
in Altamonte Springs. We will use this opportunity to personally thank each one of our child care
providers for making a commitment to serve our community and invest in our children during their most
critical years of development. Providers will be celebrated with an evening of acknowledgement,
entertainment, gifts and prizes, food and most importantly — gratitude!

Last year, we had nearly 200 guests register to attend Provider Appreciation and this year we are
expecting at least 250 attendees, which include Seminole county business owners, community leaders
and some of the best and brightest early learning facilitators in the state.

The theme for this year’s more glamorous Provider Appreciation program is a Night of Stars, which will
focus on building self-esteem in young children while acknowledging the “Stars” that help to educate
them. Guests are asked to dress in semiformal wear. We will commemorate with an evening of
entertainment, music, fun raffle prizes, a buffet-style dinner and a special presentation from a Keynote
Speaker. The night will commence with a special recognition to our sponsors and our honorary guests of
the night — our network of early childhood providers.
Event Objectives
We aim to raise $8,000 to fund all aspects of this special occasion and gain a return that will go towards
supporting the overall mission of the Coalition. Dollar cost for the event include, a Master of Ceremony,
guest speaker, catering company, giveaways for providers, venue cost, decorations and entertainment.
Support from our community is the only way that we are able to achieve our goals and objectives, each
year.
In previous years, the Coalition has received local support and sponsorships from Seminole State
College, Orlando Health South Seminole Hospital, Edwards Constructions Services, Inc., Kaplan Early
Learning Company, Lakeshore, Career Source Central Florida, Discount School Supply, just to name a
few.

Benefits to the Sponsor

Presenting Star
Sponsor

Golden Star
Sponsor

Silver Star
Sponsor

Sparkling Star
Sponsor

$1,000(+) or More
Speaking Opportunity in
Program

$750

$400
Featured in media
advertising for event
Name and logo
featured on website
and
social media
600+ Followers

$250
Logo displayed at
registration table

2 Reserved Seats

2 Reserved Seats

Special Top Sponsors
mention in
presentation

Special top sponsors
mention in presentation

Featured in
presentation display of
top sponsor

Featured Sponsor in
e-Newsletter 400+
Recipients
Featured in presentation
display of top sponsors
Featured in media
advertising for event
Name and logo featured
on website and social
media (600+ Followers)
Logo displayed at
registration

Featured Sponsor in
e-Newsletter 400+
Recipients
Name and logo
featured on website
and social media
Logo displayed at
registration table

Logo displayed in
Event Program

Featured Sponsor in
e-Newsletter 400+
Recipients

Featured sponsored on
all social media
advertising for event
600+ Followers
Featured Sponsor in
e-Newsletter 400+
Recipients

Logo displayed in
Event Program

Logo displayed on table
tops

Logo displayed at
registration table

Logo displayed on table
tops

Logo displayed in Event
Program
Logo displayed on table
tops as top sponsor

Logo displayed in
Event Program
Logo displayed on table
tops as top sponsor
Pre-event vendor
showcase. Direct access
to childcare business
owners, educators and
other community leaders.
In-Kind Donations (Gifts In-kind)
Gifts in kind, also referred to as in-kind donations, is a kind of charitable giving in which, instead of or in
addition to giving money to buy needed goods and services, the goods and services themselves are
given. In-kind gifts are contributions of goods or services, other than cash sponsorships.
In-kind materials valued in the amount listed above will be correlated to that section.

As a sponsoring vendor or business, you receive the benefit of face-to-face interaction and time with
one of your largest target audiences — working parents. In addition, if you choose to donate
supplemental in-kind gifts, such as classroom materials, teaching materials, food or other items,
including giveaways or prizes, to be distributed the night of the event, your business has the opportunity
to further expose its brand and attract new customers.
Sponsors who choose to donate $1,000 or more have the bonus benefit of being introduced as a top
sponsor, a brief speaking opportunity as a presenter for the evening, plus the option of hosting a
showcase high-top table, preceding the program.

If you are interested in becoming a sponsor, please complete the attached Sponsorship Form.
Questions can be answered by event planner, Cheyenne McGregor, Director of Grants and
Communications, at 407-960-2462 or cmcgregor@seminoleearlylearning.org.

SPONSORSHIP FORM
Our company is pleased to support the following event by a sponsorship at the level indicated below.
Event name: 2019 Provider Appreciation Day Celebration
Sponsoring Company _____________________________________________
Contact Name ___________________________________________________
Address ________________________________________________________
Phone _________________________ Fax ___________________________
Email __________________________________________________________
Website ________________________________________________________
Please indicate with  your sponsorship level.

 Presenting Sponsor

$1000

 Golden Sponsor

$750



$400

Sponsorship Amount Exceeding $1000: $____

Silver Sponsor

 Sparkling Sponsor

$250

 In-Kind Sponsor

In-kind materials valued in the amount listed
above will be correlated to that section

For more details and to send in your company logo, contact Cheyenne McGregor at the Early Learning
Coalition of Seminole at cmcgregor@seminoleearlylearning.org or (407) 960-2462.
Form of Payment:

Check - Make it payable to: Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
Memo: 2019 Provider Appreciation Evening Celebration

Signature: _____________________________________

Date: ___________________

s. 496.411, F.S. - A COPY OF THE OFFICIAL REGISTRATION AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE DIVISION
OF CONSUMER SERVICES BY CALLING TOLL-FREE WITHIN THE STATE. REGISTRATION DOES NOT IMPLY ENDORSEMENT,
APPROVAL, OR RECOMMENDATION BY THE STATE. 1-800-HELP-FLA (435-7352) www.FloridaConsumerHelp.com

Early Learning Coalition of Seminole
CEO Report
March 11, 2019
1. EFS Modernization: VPK attendance was released with twenty days for Providers and the ELC to
complete for the months of August 2018 through January 2019. Although we met our deadline,
there are still several outstanding tickets for issues that OEL must address. We will be working to
reconcile the estimated payments made with the actual payments generated through the EFS Mod
system over the next few months. School Readiness attendance was released on Sunday, March 10,
2019. We are releasing the instructions from OEL that we are modifying to our Coalition. We
anticipate a very large number of enrollment issues that will need to be addressed individually due
to data migration from EFS Legacy, paper enrollments and other system issues that have been
fluctuating since July. The Provider profiles have been released to allow Providers to begin updating
information for our Child Care Resource and Referral listings and 2019-20 contracts. OEL is
continuing to address outstanding issues and plans to release update 4.0, which will contain the
VPK and SR contracts, in the first week of April.
2. Performance Funding Project (PFP): This is the final year of the PFP, as the requirements will now
be incorporated into the SR contracts for CLASS assessments, professional development, child
screenings and tiered reimbursement for performance. We started the year with 16 Providers and
currently have 12 actively participating and five that are implementing child assessments. Our final
Making the Most of Classroom Interaction class will be held on Thursday and the only remaining
professional development for teachers enrolled to complete the spring semester of Early Learning
Florida courses.
3. HB1091 Implementation: In order to complete the required baseline CLASS assessments (121
remaining classrooms plus 41 PFP classrooms), we will be utilizing the statewide procurement of
CLASS assessments through Teachstone and/or the Children’s Forum. These scores will be
combined to establish a score that will indicate the need for a Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) , the
ability to received performance payment or the ineligibility to receive a School Readiness contract.
4. Vision and Hearing Screenings: Through a collaborative Memorandum of Understanding, the
Seminole State College Nursing program is assisting the Coalition in conducting vision and hearing
screenings in at least two Providers this semester as a pilot project. In exchange for providing this
service, the nursing students are obtaining real world experience with young children and exposure
to the Early Learning Coalition of Seminole and available services for families of young children.
5. Champion Families: Heidi Jones coordinated a team of volunteers from Chase to provide financial
literacy training for parents, a financial activity for school age children and volunteers to play with
the preschool aged children during the February Champion Families workshop. Approximately 15
Chase employees volunteered and helped the ELC establish a stronger partnership with Chase.
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6. Staffing Update: Stephanie Miller, joined the Coalition as a Classroom Assessment Specialist from
the ELC of Osceola County. Our team has had several presentations in the past two months to
enhance our knowledge of community issues and available resources. Jan Edwards, President and
CEO of Paving the Way presented on human trafficking, Rhoda Hicks and Karen Ernst-Smith, School
Psychologists with SCPS presented on trauma informed care and our team has been reading “The
Boy Who Was Raised As A Dog” by Dr. Bruce Perry.
7. Provider Training: Due to staffing changes, Seminole State College will not be able to partner for
the annual spring conference this year. However, the ELC will be offering a wide variety of
Professional Development opportunities for Providers to ensure opportunities for all teachers to
obtain the required training hours.
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Local Matching Funds for School
Readiness

JANUARY 17, 2019

Overview
Study Overview

Research Questions

OPPAGA evaluated the two sources of early learning
coalition matching funds for School Readiness
 6% match on direct service expenditures to
economically disadvantaged (working poor) families
 Child Care Executive Partnership Program (CCEP)
This analysis focuses on
 Comparison of the two local matching programs
 Potential financial effect of using CCEP match to
meet 6% match targets
 Possible challenges of merging the two matching
programs

2

Summary
Comparison of the Two Local Matching Programs


CCEP and economically disadvantaged School Readiness services are
• Similar in how they are administered at the local level, the services they provide to families, and
that they require local matching
• Different in whether the match is addressed in statute, how the programs are administered at the
state level, family income eligibility, and participating coalitions

Potential financial effect of Using CCEP Donations
to Meet 6% Match Targets



In Fiscal Year 2016-17, 9 of the 16 coalitions that did not fully meet the 6% match
received CCEP match
If their CCEP match were used for their working poor expenditure match, 7 of the 9
coalitions would have met their 6% match targets

Possible Challenges to Merging the Two Matching
Programs




Some families might lose child care services
Donations might fall if coalitions no longer have two purposes toward which to raise
match and/or if CCEP-only donors are not willing to contribute to another program
Some business donors to CCEP may no longer participate if they do not receive
employee benefits
3

Background

4

Federal CCDF Match Requirements That the State Must
Meet Related to School Readiness Funding
Federal matching requirements
 The School Readiness program receives funding from federal Child Care and
Development (CCDF) Block Grant funds1
 The CCDF matching funding stream requires each state to contribute a certain
percentage of the grant at the FMAP rate (Federal Medical Assistance
Percentage)2
 For federal FY 2017, Florida’s FMAP rate is 38.9%, or $59,681,779
 Coalitions have two state funding match requirements, which partially
contribute toward the state’s federal matching requirements
1

The School Readiness Program is funded from General Revenue, the Child Care and Development Block Grant Trust Fund, the Federal Grants Trust Fund, and the Welfare
Transition Trust Fund, including federal, state, and local revenue sources.

2 CCDF

consists of two separate funding streams: 1) discretionary funding authorized by the Child Care and Development Block Grant (CCDBG) Act, subject to annual
appropriation; and 2) an entitlement portion of mandatory and matching funds made available under Section 418 of the Social Security Act. Section 45 CFR 98.55 requires
expenditures to be matched at the state’s FMAP rate for the applicable fiscal year for allowable activities.

Source: General appropriations acts, the Office of Early Learning, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, and the Code
of Federal Regulations.
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Two State Match Requirements That Coalitions
Must Meet for School Readiness
For federal FY 2017, the Office of Early Learning (OEL)
reports that coalitions and RCMA contributed $33.2M
towards the state’s share of matching funds for CCDF1,2
1) The 6% match on coalition expenditures to provide School Readiness services
to the working poor generated $20,893,369 towards the state’s matching
requirement
2) The dollar-for-dollar match participating coalitions collect for services provided
through the Child Care Executive Partnership Program (CCEP) generated
$12,294,151 towards the state’s matching requirement3,4
1 The

state can use coalition matching funds to help meet the state’s federal matching obligations, with the exception of in-kind match (e.g., donated books or other
materials) that the GAA allows coalitions to use to meet the state 6% School Readiness matching requirement and CCEP contributions made to benefit the contributor’s
employees.
2 The

figures presented are preliminary as of September 2018. The Office of Early Learning stated that the amount of federally eligible match was higher in FY 2017
compared to previous years and may not be as high in future years.
3 CCEP serves families with incomes at or below 200% of the federal poverty level. During FY 2017-18, 19 coalitions and RCMA participated in the program.
4 This excludes CCEP contributions made by employers for the benefit of their own employees.
Source: Office of Early Learning.
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Percentage of the State’s CCDF Match
Requirements Provided by Source
For federal FY 2017, OEL reports that coalitions and RCMA contributed
56% of the state’s share of CCDF Block Grant matching funds1

Coalition 6%
Matching
Funds
$20,893,369
(35%)

Coalition
Total:
$33.2M
(56%)2

State Matching Funds
$26,494,259 (44%)

Coalition CCEP
Matching Funds
$12,294,151 (21%)3

The figures presented are preliminary as of September 2018.
Coalitions cannot use CCEP matching funds to meet the 6% funding match requirement and vice versa.
3 This excludes CCEP contributions made by employers for the benefit of their own employees.
1
2

Source: Office of Early Learning and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, FY 2017 CCDF allocations.
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Comparison of the two local
matching programs
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Similarities Between Economically Disadvantaged
School Readiness Services and CCEP
Program Administration
at the Local Level



Early learning coalitions administer services at the local level,
including contracting with and paying School Readiness service
providers



Child care services are the same to the families
• Coalitions determine family eligibility based on income
• Parents pay the same sliding scale fee for both School Readiness
and CCEP based on income and family size
• Eligible families may receive child care services from the same
School Readiness providers



Coalitions use several methods to recruit contributions, many of
which are similar for the 6% match and CCEP, including
• Attending meetings of local community groups, such as
chambers of commerce, to try to solicit contributions
• Applying to local government or not-for-profit entities for grants
or other funding
• Maintaining relationships with contributors by reporting
regularly on how the coalitions are using the funds contributed

Service Delivery to
Families

How Coalitions Raise
Matching Funds

9

Differences Between Economically Disadvantaged
School Readiness Services and CCEP
Economically Disadvantaged
School Readiness Services

Child Care Executive
Partnership Program

Stated Purpose for
Match in Statute

 The 6% local match is not addressed
in statute
 The 6% match is included annually in
the General Appropriations Act, but no
stated purpose is given

 Per s. 1002.94(1), F.S., use state and
federal funds as incentives for matching
local funds derived from local
governments, employers, charitable
foundations, and other sources so that
Florida communities may create local
flexible partnerships with employers

Administration at
the State Level

 The Office of Early Learning (OEL)
administers the program at the state
level, including oversight and financial
accounting

 OEL administers the program at the
state level, including oversight and
financial accounting
 A CCEP board with members appointed
by the Governor makes decisions such
as priorities for how state matching
funds will be distributed to the coalitions

 At or below 150% of the federal poverty
level for entry
 At or below 85% of the state median
income to maintain eligibility

 At or below 200% of the federal poverty
level for entrance and continued
eligibility

 All coalitions and RCMA provide School
Readiness services to economically
disadvantaged and other qualifying families

 19 of the 30 coalitions and RCMA
participated in CCEP during Fiscal Year
2017-18

Family Income
Eligibility

Coalition
Participation

10

Potential financial effect of
using CCEP match to meet 6%
match targets

11

Percentage of Working Poor Expenditures
Coalitions Matched in FY 2016-171, 2
Duval
Palm Beach
Seminole
Manatee
Lake
RCMA
Marion
Sarasota
Alachua
Miami-Dade, Monroe
Osceola
Polk
Orange
Flagler, Volusia
Pinellas
Santa Rosa
Hillsborough
Broward
Brevard
Escambia
St. Lucie
Pasco, Hernando
Florida's Heartland
Southwest Florida
North Florida
IRMO
Nature Coast
Big Bend
NW Florida
Okaloosa, Walton
Florida's Gateway

26% ($3,481,705)
10% ($1,898,598)
9% ($366,702)
9% ($223,878)
8% ($315,853)
7% ($639,055)
7% ($273,754)
6% ($134,590)
6% ($348,478)
6% ($3,865,799)
6% ($235,185)
6% ($592,063)
6% ($1,265,540)
6% ($392,632)
6% ($723,808)

Met or Exceeded the 6% Requirement

5% ($100,977)
5% ($1,085,547)
5% ($664,363)
5% ($416,180)
5% ($376,147)
5% ($233,827)
1% ($42,203)
5% ($233,778)

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched

($)

Total Amount of Matching Funds Obtained
Coalitions That Received Rural Waivers for at
Least One County

5% ($524,572)
3% ($249,310)
3% ($104,681)
3% ($101,140)
3% ($244,735)
2% ($159,701)
2% ($74,157)
0% ($0)

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due
to an error, it did not report $100,000 to OEL.
2 IRMO is the Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, Okeechobee.
12
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1

Coalitions That Did Not Meet Their 6% Match
Targets But Received CCEP Match1, 2
6%
Broward
IRMO*
Hillsborough
Southwest
Florida*
NW Florida*
St. Lucie
Brevard

$664,363

$104,681

$637,545

$1,085,547

$1,000,020

$524,572

$159,701

$215,971

$291,621

$233,827

$79,960

If the FY 2016-17 school readiness match funds and
CCEP donations were combined, 7 of the 9 coalitions that
did not meet the 6% school readiness match target would
have met or exceeded 6%3

7%
7%

6%
6%

$416,180

Pasco, Hernando
$42,203

$249,310

1%

4%
$21,951

20%

10%

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched

$73,210

North Florida*

31%

$3,250,587

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched if Used CCEP Match

*

Coalitions that were not required to meet the 6% match requirement for one or
more counties because they received rural waivers in 2016-17

$62,667

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due to an error, it did not report $100,000 to OEL.
IRMO is the Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, Okeechobee.
3 An additional 7 coalitions did not meet their 6% match targets but also did not receive CCEP match: Big Bend, Escambia, Florida’s Gateway, Florida’s Heartland,
Nature Coast, Okaloosa/Walton, and Santa Rosa.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1
2
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Possible challenges of
merging the two matching
programs
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Some Families Would Lose Child Care Services
About one-fifth of children served by CCEP in FY 2016-17 would not have met the income
eligibility requirements for entry into economically disadvantaged School Readiness services1

19% of
Children
Enrolled, Above
150% FPL
(n=3,321)

81% of
Children
Enrolled, 150%
or Below FPL
(n=14,038 )
FPL=Federal
Poverty Level





CCEP can be used to expand
services to children whose families
have slightly higher incomes
(200% FPL) than those served
through School Readiness services
for economically disadvantaged
families (150% FPL)
Families of 19% of children served
through CCEP in FY 2016-17
would not have met the lower
income eligibility requirement and,
therefore, would lose child care
services2

Based on the lowest income determined for the year. Excludes children for whom OEL could not find co-payment assessment data in its data system; approximately 2% of
children enrolled.
2 The percentage of children that would not have met the income eligibility requirement for economically disadvantaged School Readiness services was higher in FY 2017-18
15
at 22%.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1

Donations Might Fall



Having two match programs gives coalitions two purposes toward which to raise match
funds from some of the same donors; if there is only one match program, donors might
not be willing to pay the same combined amount toward one purpose



Coalitions compete with other not-for-profit entities for charitable contributions in their
communities, and not all local governments prioritize School Readiness



Donors who currently only contribute to CCEP might not be willing to contribute for a
different purpose
• A primary example is the Broward Children’s Services Council—according to the local
coalition, the council wants to encourage as much local participation as possible and
only contributes toward the 6% matching funds as a last resort if municipalities and
United Way do not contribute enough for the coalition to meet its 6% match
responsibility

16

Some Current CCEP Business Donors Might
Not Participate

23% Employee
Benefit Match
($3.5 million)



Some or all of the CCEP match to 13
coalitions in FY 2016-17 was donated by
employers for the benefit of their own
employees



In FY 2016-17, 23% of the donations to
CCEP were for employee benefit matching



It is unclear whether these donations would
continue if this benefit were not available in
the future

77% Community
Benefit Match
($11.7 million)

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
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Fewer Coalitions Would Reach 6% In Combined
Match Without Employee Benefit Donations1, 2
6%
Broward
IRMO*

$664,363
$104,681

Hillsborough
NW Florida*
St. Lucie

$79,960

7%

If the FY 2016-17 school readiness match funds and just
CCEP community benefit donations were combined (CCEP
employee benefit donations excluded), only 5 of the 9
coalitions that did not meet the 6% school readiness
match target would have met or exceeded 6%3

6%

5%

$416,180

$15,368

Southwest
Florida*

$524,572

5%
$6,384

$249,310
$0

Pasco, Hernando

$289,733

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched

4%
$21,951

1%

20%

10%

$1,000,020

$233,827

Brevard

North Florida*

$637,545

$1,085,547
$159,701

25%

$2,500,591

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched if Used CCEP Community Benefit Match

*

Coalitions that would not have been required to meet the 6% match requirement
for one or more counties because they received rural waivers

$42,203
The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due to an error, it did not report $100,000 to OEL.
IRMO is the Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, Okeechobee.
3 An additional 7 coalitions did not meet their 6% match targets but also did not receive CCEP match: Big Bend, Escambia, Florida’s Gateway, Florida’s Heartland, Nature Coast,
Okaloosa/Walton, and Santa Rosa.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1
2
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Early Learning Coalitions’ 6% Local
Funding Match Requirement for School
Readiness

JANUARY 17, 2019

Background
6% Local
Funding Match
Requirement

 The GAA requires early learning coalitions to provide match
funding from local sources for working poor eligible
participants in the School Readiness Program
 The match requirement is 6% of each coalition’s year-end
expenditures for direct services to economically
disadvantaged families
 Rural counties may receive a waiver from this requirement

Early Learning
Coalitions

 30 early learning coalitions plan, coordinate, and implement
School Readiness programs for eligible children
 Coalitions also oversee providers that offer School
Readiness services
 Each coalition serves one or more counties

Redlands Christian
Migrant
Association
(RCMA)

 RCMA is a non-profit organization that provides child care
and early education to children of migrant and seasonal
farmworkers throughout Florida
 Like early learning coalitions, RCMA provides School
Readiness Program services to the families it serves

2

OPPAGA Project Objectives
1

What federal match requirements must the state meet?

2

What is the origin and history of the 6% local funding match requirement?

3

What criteria are used to determine compliance with the 6% local match
requirement?

4

To what extent do the early learning coalitions meet the 6% local match
requirement?

5

What barriers do coalitions face that might prevent them from raising the 6%
match?

6

What criteria must a coalition meet to obtain a waiver from the match
requirement?

7

What policy options could the Legislature consider to improve the local match
requirement?
3

What federal match requirements
must the state meet?

4

Federal CCDF Match Requirements That the State
Must Meet Related to School Readiness Funding
Federal matching requirements
 The School Readiness program receives funding from federal Child Care and
Development (CCDF) Block Grant funds1
 The CCDF matching funding stream requires each state to contribute a certain
percentage of the grant at the FMAP rate (Federal Medical Assistance
Percentage)2
 For federal FY 2017, Florida’s FMAP rate is 38.9%, or $59,681,779
 Coalitions have two state funding match requirements, which partially
contribute toward the state’s federal matching requirements
1

The School Readiness Program is funded from General Revenue, the Child Care and Development Block Grant Trust Fund, the Federal Grants Trust Fund, and the Welfare
Transition Trust Fund, including federal, state, and local revenue sources.

2 CCDF

consists of two separate funding streams: 1) discretionary funding authorized by the Child Care and Development Block Grant (CCDBG) Act, subject to annual
appropriation; and 2) an entitlement portion of mandatory and matching funds made available under Section 418 of the Social Security Act. Section 45 CFR 98.55 requires
expenditures to be matched at the state’s FMAP rate for the applicable fiscal year for allowable activities.

Source: General appropriations acts, the Office of Early Learning, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, and the Code
of Federal Regulations.

5

Two State Match Requirements That
Coalitions Must Meet for School Readiness
For federal FY 2017, the Office of Early Learning (OEL)
reports that coalitions and RCMA contributed $33.2M
towards the state’s share of matching funds for CCDF1,2
1) The 6% match on coalition expenditures to provide School Readiness services
to the working poor generated $20,893,369 towards the state’s matching
requirement
2) The dollar-for-dollar match participating coalitions collect for services provided
through the Child Care Executive Partnership Program (CCEP) generated
$12,294,151 towards the state’s matching requirement3,4
1 The

state can use coalition matching funds to help meet the state’s federal matching obligations, with the exception of in-kind match (e.g., donated books or other
materials) that the GAA allows coalitions to use to meet the state 6% School Readiness matching requirement and CCEP contributions made to benefit the contributor’s
employees.
2 The

figures presented are preliminary as of September 2018. The Office of Early Learning stated that the amount of federally eligible match was higher in FY 2017
compared to previous years and may not be as high in future years.
3 CCEP serves families with incomes at or below 200% of the federal poverty level. During FY 2017-18, 19 coalitions and RCMA participated in the program.
4 This excludes CCEP contributions made by employers for the benefit of their own employees.
Source: Office of Early Learning.
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Percentage of the State’s CCDF Match
Requirements Provided by Source
For federal FY 2017, OEL reports that coalitions and RCMA contributed
56% of the state’s share of CCDF Block Grant matching funds1

Coalition 6%
Matching
Funds
$20,893,369
(35%)

Coalition
Total:
$33.2M
(56%)2

State Matching Funds
$26,494,259 (44%)

Coalition CCEP
Matching Funds
$12,294,151 (21%)3

The figures presented are preliminary as of September 2018.
Coalitions cannot use CCEP matching funds to meet the 6% funding match requirement and vice versa.
3 This excludes CCEP contributions made by employers for the benefit of their own employees.
1
2

Source: Office of Early Learning and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, FY 2017 CCDF allocations.
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What is the origin and history of the
6% local funding match
requirement?

8

Current 6% Local Funding Match Requirement
The 2018-19 General Appropriations Act requires early learning coalitions to
provide matching funds for certain School Readiness Program child care slots
• Funds in Specific Appropriation 85 require a match from local sources for
working poor eligible participants of 6% on child care slots
• In-kind match is allowable provided there is not a reduction in the number of
slots or level of services from the provision of in-kind match
• OEL may adopt a policy to grant a waiver of the 6% match requirement to a
rural county that demonstrates a significant hardship in meeting the match
requirement
• Progress towards meeting this requirement shall be monitored by OEL and
shall be considered satisfactorily attained if the 6% requirement is met on a
statewide basis
9

Origin of the Local Funding Match Requirement
The local funding match requirement
first appeared in proviso language in the
1974 General Appropriations Act
 In response to major changes in federal programs, Governor
Askew proposed expanding services through a cooperative
funding effort of the state and local agencies by splitting the
25% non-federal share for social services under Titles IV-A and
XVI of the Social Security Act with community agencies, both
public and private
 The requirement for local agencies to contribute has continued
in the GAA since 1974, but various aspects of the requirement
have evolved over time, as shown on the next slide
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History of the Local Funding Match Requirement in
the GAA
Current
Requirement

Specified that the
match requirement
shall not apply to
funding for child care
services directed for
WAGES participants,
Transitional Child Care
participants, or
children at risk of
abuse and neglect

Specified that if the
6% local match is met
on a statewide basis,
this requirement shall
be considered to have
been satisfactorily
attained

Introduced local
funding match
requirement in
the GAA

Lowered local
funding match
requirement to
8%

Specified that the
match requirement
shall not apply to
funding for child care
services directed
towards children at
risk of abuse

1974-75

1988-89

1997-98

2001-02

2009-10

12.5%

8%

8%

6%

6%

Milestones
1983-84

1991-92

1999-00

2002-03

12.5%

8%

6%

6%

Introduced
authorization to
include in-kind
match in meeting the
requirement

Specified that the
match requirement
shall not apply to
funding for federally
entitled child care

Lowered local
funding match
requirement to
6%

Introduced the rural
waiver provision and
that the match
requirement applies
to funding for
working poor eligible
participants

11

What criteria are used to determine
compliance with the 6% local
match requirement?
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Factors Used to Determine Each Coalition's
Local Match Requirement
OEL determines each coalition’s 6% match requirement for working poor
eligible participants based on the coalition’s expenditures for direct services
to economically disadvantaged families1
 Coalitions provide early learning and child care services to economically
disadvantaged families with children under the age of 132
 Families are considered to be economically disadvantaged if their income is at
or below 150% of the federal poverty level (to maintain eligibility must be at or
below 85% of the state’s median income)
 A coalition’s expenditures for early learning and child care services to
economically disadvantaged families increase over the course of the year, so
the requirement is a moving target
 When the state reaches 6% overall, OEL considers all coalitions in compliance
1

See Appendix A for additional details on how OEL and coalitions determine compliance with this requirement.

This includes children of working migratory families and agricultural workers but excludes certain children such as those who are homeless or under the supervision
of the Department of Children and Families.

2

13

To what extent do the early learning
coalitions meet the 6% local match
requirement?

14

How Coalitions Attempt to Raise Matching Funds
Coalition administrators reported using several methods
to recruit contributions
 Attending meetings of local community groups, such as chambers of
commerce, to try to solicit contributions
 Applying to local governmental or not-for-profit entities for grants or other
funding
 Applying to non-local sources for funding, such as statewide businesses
 Holding events to promote awareness
 Maintaining relationships with contributors by reporting regularly on how the
coalitions are using the funds contributed
15

Extent to Which Coalitions Met the 6% Match
Requirement on a Statewide Basis
In Fiscal Year 2016-17, coalitions exceeded the 6% funding
match requirement on a statewide basis1
Amount
Raised
Statewide

 Coalitions collectively raised $19.4 million
compared to the required match of $17.8 million
(or 109% of the required match)

General
Status of
Coalitions

 14 coalitions and RCMA met or exceeded the 6% match2
 7 non-rural coalitions did not obtain 6% in matching funds
 30 counties within 9 coalitions received the rural waiver

1

Final data on coalition matching funds for FY 2017-18 is not yet available, as OEL has not closed out the fiscal year.

2

We considered a coalition as meeting the requirement if the amount of match they raised was at least 6% including rounding.

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
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Extent to Which Coalitions Met Their 6%
Match Requirements in FY 2016-17

14 Coalitions
and RCMA
Met or
Exceeded
the 6% Match
Requirement

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.

16 Coalitions
Did Not
Obtain
6% in
Matching
Funds

30 Counties Within
9 Coalitions
Received Rural
Waivers

7 Coalitions
Did Not Have
Counties Eligible for a
Rural Waiver

17

Percentage of Working Poor Expenditures
Coalitions Matched in FY 2016-171, 2, 3
Duval
Palm Beach
Seminole
Manatee
Lake
RCMA
Marion
Sarasota
Alachua
Miami-Dade, Monroe
Osceola
Polk
Orange
Flagler, Volusia
Pinellas
Santa Rosa
Hillsborough
Broward
Brevard
Escambia
St. Lucie
Pasco, Hernando
Florida's Heartland
Southwest Florida
North Florida
IRMO
Nature Coast
Big Bend
NW Florida
Okaloosa, Walton
Florida's Gateway

26% ($3,481,705)
10% ($1,898,598)
9% ($366,702)
9% ($223,878)
8% ($315,853)
7% ($639,055)
7% ($273,754)
6% ($134,590)
6% ($348,478)
6% ($3,865,799)
6% ($235,185)
6% ($592,063)
6% ($1,265,540)
6% ($392,632)
6% ($723,808)

Met or Exceeded the 6% Requirement

5% ($100,977)
5% ($1,085,547)
5% ($664,363)
5% ($416,180)
5% ($376,147)
5% ($233,827)
1% ($42,203)
5% ($233,778)

% Working Poor Expenditures Matched

($)

Total Amount of Matching Funds Obtained
Coalitions That Received Rural Waivers for at
Least One County

5% ($524,572)
3% ($249,310)
3% ($104,681)
3% ($101,140)
3% ($244,735)
2% ($159,701)
2% ($74,157)
0% ($0)

See Appendix B for details on each coalition’s working poor expenditures, 6% match target, amounts waived
for rural counties, and funding match amounts obtained.
2 The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due
to an error, it did not report $100,000 to OEL.
3 IRMO is the Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, Okeechobee.
18
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1

Coalitions That Met or Exceeded the 6%
Match Requirement in FY 2016-17

14 early learning coalitions and
RCMA met or exceeded the 6%
match requirement for FY 2016-171
Alachua

Orange

Duval

Osceola

Flagler, Volusia

Palm Beach

Lake

Pinellas

Manatee

Polk

Marion

Sarasota

Miami-Dade, Monroe

Seminole

Redlands Christian Migrant Association (RCMA)

RCMA’s headquarters is
in Immokalee, but it has
multiple locations
around the state

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due to an error, it did not report
$100,000 to OEL.

1

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
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Counties That Received Rural Waivers in
FY 2016-17

30 counties within 9 coalitions received rural waivers
Coalition

Counties Not Eligible for
Waivers

Gadsden, Jefferson, Liberty, Madison,
Taylor, Wakulla
Columbia, Hamilton, Lafayette,
Suwannee, Union

Leon

Florida’s Heartland

DeSoto, Highlands

Charlotte, Hardee

IRMO1

Okeechobee

Indian River, Martin

Nature Coast

Gilchrist, Dixie, Levy

Citrus, Sumter

North Florida

Baker, Bradford, Nassau, Putnam

Clay, St. Johns

Northwest Florida

Bay

Okaloosa, Walton

Calhoun, Franklin, Gulf,
Holmes, Jackson, Washington
Walton

Southwest Florida

Glades, Hendry

Collier, Lee

Big Bend
Florida’s Gateway

1

Counties That Received
Waivers

IRMO is the Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, Okeechobee.

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.

Okaloosa
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Coalitions Without Waiver-Eligible Counties That Did
Not Obtain the Full 6% Match in FY 2016-17

7 coalitions did not obtain the full
6% match for FY 2016-17 and did not have
counties that were eligible for waivers
Broward1

Pasco, Hernando

Brevard

St. Lucie

Escambia

Santa Rosa

Hillsborough

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due to an error, it did not report
$100,000 to OEL.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.
1

21

What barriers do coalitions face
that might prevent them from
raising the 6% match?

22

Barriers Coalitions Report They Face in
Raising Matching Funds
Coalition administrators reported a number of barriers
to raising matching funds
 Coalitions compete with other local demands for funding including competing with other
not-for-profit entities to obtain available funding from local governmental entities or
charitable foundations
 Typical sources of funding, such as local governmental entities, might not deem school
readiness child care as an important community need
 Turnover in local government officials can result in placing a lower priority on School
Readiness
 Some local funders are experiencing declining revenues
 Some donors are inconsistent from year-to-year as to whether they can provide funding
 The match amount can be a moving target, as coalitions can continue to submit
invoices/adjustments through September for additional children served to close out the
prior state fiscal year
 Some donors want their donations to be used for purposes not eligible for the match
 Coalition staff have other responsibilities and thus limited time to solicit match funding
23

What criteria must a coalition meet
to receive a waiver from the match
requirement?

24

Criteria to Receive a Rural Waiver From the
Match Requirement
 General appropriations acts authorize OEL to adopt a policy to grant a
waiver of the 6% match requirement to a rural county that demonstrates
a significant hardship in meeting the match requirement
 OEL policies provide that to receive a waiver, coalitions must submit
documentation of at least 5 attempts to obtain matching fund donations
for counties that meet the definition of a rural community in
s. 288.0656(2)(e), F.S.
• A county with a population of 75,000 or fewer
• A county with a population of 125,000 or fewer that is contiguous to a
county with a population of 75,000 or fewer

25

Documentation Coalitions Must Submit to Receive a
Rural Wavier from the Match Requirement
OEL policies require documentation of hardship
for rural counties
 A waiver request letter signed by the coalition board chair or highest
ranking board officer
 Copies of any written communication from the coalition to at least 5
businesses and/or charitable organizations within the community
regarding requests for matching funds
 Copies of any written communication from the businesses and/or
charitable organizations to the coalition regarding the requests for
matching funds
 Documentation of any contact (phone calls, presentations, etc.) with the
businesses and/or charitable organizations regarding requests for
matching funds
26

Coalitions with Non-Rural Counties That Do
Not Meet the 6% Match Requirement
 General appropriations acts do not specifically authorize a waiver process for
non-rural counties that are not able to meet the 6% match requirement
 However, the appropriations acts provide that if the 6% match is met on a
statewide basis, this requirement is considered to be satisfactorily attained
 According to OEL staff, coalitions with non-rural counties that do not meet the
6% local funding match do not need to demonstrate significant hardship if the
6% match requirement is met on a statewide basis
 As a result, coalitions with non-rural counties do not have the same requirement
as coalitions with rural counties to provide documentation of unsuccessful
attempts to raise matching funds—they are not required to demonstrate that they
have exhausted all potential sources of revenue in the county

27

What policy options could the
Legislature consider to improve the
local match requirement?
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Options the Legislature Could Consider to
Improve the Local Match Requirement
Option

Advantages

Keep the 6% match with no change



Leave the match requirement at 6% and continue
to allow for a waiver for rural counties



The current system is raising at least 6%
statewide
Stakeholders are used to the current level of
required funding match

Disadvantages








Expand the waiver process and increase
the documentation requirements for
coalitions with non-rural counties that do
not raise the full 6% in match
Continue with the current hardship documentation
requirements for rural counties, but require
coalitions with non-rural counties that do not raise
the entire match amount to submit documentation
to OEL proving that they approached all charitable
foundations, large businesses, and local
governmental entities, including municipalities,
within the county



Requiring coalitions with non-rural counties
that are short of raising the 6% match to
apply for waivers and document that they
tried all possible sources of matching funds
might result in raising additional funds







The current system imposes unequal
documentation requirements on coalitions
that do not raise the full 6% match based on
whether they are rural or non-rural
The current practice of basing the match on a
percentage of current year expenditures
makes it a moving target for coalitions when
their enrollment fluctuates
Might not be the most equitable method of
assigning each coalition a funding match
target because it does not take into account
the ability of their service areas to support
each coalition’s need for funding
Does not address the difficulty that some
coalitions face with achieving the 6% match
Would increase workload for both coalitions
and OEL
The time coalition staff spend making
additional attempts might not be worth the
additional funding amounts they raise
There is no guarantee that additional
matching funds would be raised
Coalitions may not know until toward the end
of the fiscal year whether or not they will
meet the match requirement

29

Options the Legislature Could Consider to
Improve the Local Match Requirement (continued)
Option

Advantages

Increase the documentation requirements
for rural coalitions to receive waivers



Requiring coalitions with rural counties that

receive waivers to document that they tried all
possible sources of matching funds might

result in raising additional funds


Would increase workload for both coalitions
and OEL
The increased workload might be particularly
difficult to absorb for small, rural coalitions
There is no guarantee that additional
matching funds would be raised



Would address the issue of fluctuating
enrollment by giving the coalitions a precise
dollar amount for which to strive

The percentage might need to be reviewed
and/or adjusted each year to ensure that the
state continues to obtain the funds it needs to
meet federal matching requirements

Require coalitions with rural counties that apply
for waivers to submit documentation to OEL
documenting that they approached all potential
donors within the county including charitable
foundations, businesses, and governmental
entities

Establish a fixed dollar amount for each
coalition’s match requirement at the
beginning of the fiscal year


Examples would be to base the coalitions’ match
requirement on either a percentage of their prior
year’s working poor expenditures (e.g., 6%) or a

percentage of their initial GAA allocation (e.g., an
average of approximately 2.9% of the coalitions’
2018-19 allocations would equal the total required
match for 2016-17)

Might help coalitions with planning their fund
raising activities throughout the year because
the amount they need to raise is predictable

Disadvantages



Could be set at a level so that the state still
obtains the same amount of matching funds
as with the current 6% match requirement

30

Options the Legislature Could Consider to
Improve the Local Match Requirement (continued)
Option

Advantages

Create a pilot project that authorizes
some coalitions to establish a selffunded position or partial position for
the purpose of fund raising



Addresses the issue of coalition staff having
limited time to raise matching funds due to
their other responsibilities



Has the potential to raise sufficient additional
funds to more than pay for the cost of the
fund-raising positions

Authorize coalitions in the pilot project to
establish fund-raising positions that do not count
against their statutory administrative cost limits;
use the pilot project to determine whether the
additional funds raised exceed the cost of the
position

Source: Stakeholder input and OPPAGA analysis.

Disadvantages


The state might need to provide upfront
funding to establish the positions



Donors might not want their contributions to
be used to support the administrative costs of
the positions



OEL or another state level entity would need to
spend time evaluating and determining the
results of the pilot project



The pilot project might result in finding that
fund-raising positions do not pay for
themselves, and thus took funding away from
direct services to children
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Appendix A: Details on the
Process OEL and Coalitions Use
to Determine Compliance With the
6% Funding Match Requirement
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Appendix A: Process Used to Determine
Compliance With the Local Match Requirement
OEL and the coalitions determine compliance with the 6% match requirement
based on coalition expenditures for direct services to economically disadvantaged
families, which qualify due to their income levels and other criteria
 Working poor participants are families considered to be economically
disadvantaged
•

To be considered economically disadvantaged for School Readiness, family income
must be
 At or below 150% of the federal poverty level to enter the program
 At or below 85% of the state’s median income to maintain eligibility

 The population of children served
•
•
•

Includes children ages birth to younger than 13 years
Includes, but is not limited to, children of working migratory families and
agricultural workers
Excludes certain children such as those who are homeless or under the
supervision of the Department of Children and Families
33

Appendix A: Process Used to Determine Compliance
With the Local Match Requirement (continued)
 Coalitions enter their expenditures for School Readiness direct services to the
working poor into OEL’s cost accounting system
• OEL has established an OCA (other cost accumulator) to track expenditures for
services to the working poor

 OEL and the coalitions calculate compliance with the 6% match requirement
based on the total expenditures each coalition entered into the OCA category
• However, when the state reaches 6% overall, OEL considers all coalitions in
compliance due to this wording in the GAA


Progress towards meeting this requirement … shall be considered satisfactorily attained
if the 6% requirement is met on a statewide basis

 The expenditures against which the 6% is calculated exclude administration, quality,
and non-direct costs such as eligibility determination
• These costs are not allocated to specific eligibility groups of children in OEL’s
accounting system
• OEL reports that for FY 2016-17, approximately 4.3% of School Readiness Program
expenditures was for administration, 8.5% for quality, and 6.3% for non-direct costs
34

Appendix B: Details on School
Readiness Matching Funds
Coalitions Raised for FY 2016-17
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Appendix B: Details on School Readiness Matching
Funds Coalitions Raised for FY 2016-17
Coalition
Alachua
Big Bend
Brevard
Broward1
Duval
Escambia
Flagler, Volusia
Florida's Gateway
Florida's Heartland
Hillsborough
IRMO
Lake
Manatee
Marion
Miami-Dade, Monroe
Nature Coast
1

Working Poor
Direct Services
Expenditures
$5,434,458
$9,568,916
$8,264,152
$12,714,022
$13,366,567
$7,964,888
$6,614,013
$4,096,654
$4,480,919
$20,553,281
$3,638,469
$3,903,448
$2,472,783
$3,965,534
$61,964,846
$3,715,486

Required 6%
Match
$326,067
$574,135
$495,849
$762,841
$801,994
$477,893
$396,841
$245,799
$268,855
$1,233,197
$218,308
$234,207
$148,367
$237,932
$3,717,891
$222,929

Match Amount
Waived

Match Amount
Raised

$223,753

$245,799
$56,206
$41,245

$69,256

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward reported that it had sufficient matching funds for FY 2016-17, but due to an error, it did not report $100,000 to OEL.

$348,478
$244,735
$416,180
$664,363
$3,481,705
$376,147
$392,632
$0
$233,778
$1,085,547
$104,681
$315,853
$223,878
$273,754
$3,865,799
$101,140
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Appendix B: Details on School Readiness Matching
Funds Coalitions Raised for FY 2016-17 (continued)
Coalition
North Florida
NW Florida
Okaloosa, Walton
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco, Hernando
Pinellas
Polk
RCMA
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
Southwest Florida
St. Lucie
Totals

Working Poor
Direct Services
Expenditures
$7,585,845
$6,660,029
$4,176,044
$20,980,788
$3,770,568
$18,826,718
$7,479,883
$12,198,578
$9,661,921
$9,082,270
$1,869,621
$2,079,137
$3,946,946
$10,485,367
$5,025,781
$296,547,930

Source: OPPAGA analysis of data from the Office of Early Learning.

Required 6%
Match
$455,151
$399,602
$250,563
$1,258,847
$226,234
$1,129,603
$448,793
$731,915
$579,715
$544,936
$112,177
$124,748
$236,817
$629,122
$301,547
$17,792,876

Match Amount
Waived
$215,309
$154,440
$47,339

$67,058
$1,120,405

Match Amount
Raised
$249,310
$159,701
$74,157
$1,265,540
$235,185
$1,898,598
$42,203
$723,808
$592,063
$639,055
$100,977
$134,590
$366,702
$524,572
$233,827
$19,368,957
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Child Care Executive Partnership Program
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
As directed by the Legislature, we evaluated the Child Care
Executive Partnership (CCEP) Program, which was created
to provide an incentive to employers, local governments,
charitable foundations, and others to contribute funds to
expand the provision of child care services to low income
families. While the program has been successful in raising
funding from local governments and not-for-profit entities,
it has had difficulty attracting private business contributors
that are not in the child care industry. In addition, although
the program is generally being operated as outlined in
statute, it has not met some of the statutory requirements
related to the CCEP board’s membership and fundraising
responsibilities. There are several options the Legislature
may wish to consider to improve the program.

SCOPE
As directed by the Legislature,
OPPAGA evaluated the Child Care
Executive Partnership Program,
including its funding sources for
child care services, barriers to
attracting
private
business
contributions, and compliance with
statutory requirements.

This memorandum addresses eight questions.

1. What is the Child Care Executive Partnership Program?

2. What are the potential benefits of the CCEP Program?

3. How do early learning coalitions recruit contributors when raising additional funding for child
care services?

4. What are the sources of funding early learning coalitions raise for child care services provided
through CCEP?
5. What types of businesses participate in the program?

6. What barriers do coalitions encounter in attracting more private businesses to participate in
the program?

7. What is the level of the program’s compliance with statutory requirements?

8. What options could the Legislature consider to improve the program?
i

INTRODUCTION
What is the Child Care Executive Partnership Program?
The Legislature created the Child Care Executive Partnership (CCEP) Program in 1996 to give
employers an incentive to share the cost of providing child care for their low income employees as well
as a means to maximize the use of state and federal funds for child care by raising matching funds from
local governments, employers, charitable foundations, and other sources. 1 Chapters 88-337 and
96-175, Laws of Florida, expressed the Legislature’s original intent for the program to







promote public/private partnerships to ensure that the children of the state are provided safe
and enriching child care at any time, but especially while parents work to remain self-sufficient;

encourage private employers to participate in the future of this state by providing employee
child care benefits and explore innovative ways to assist employees to obtain quality child care;

expand the availability of scholarship options for working families by providing incentives for
employers to contribute to meeting the needs of their employees' families through matching
public dollars available for child care; and

utilize state and federal funds as incentives for matching local funds derived from local
governments, employers, charitable foundations, and other sources, so that Florida
communities may create local flexible partnerships with employers. 2

Florida law currently requires the CCEP board appointed by the Governor to oversee the program. The
Department of Education’s Office of Early Learning is responsible for providing program support
services.

General Appropriations Acts for Fiscal Years 2017-18 and 2018-19 allocated $15 million each year in
School Readiness funding to the Department of Education to be used for the CCEP Program as a match
to expand the provision of services to low income families at or below 200% of the federal poverty
level. 3 Florida statutes require coalitions to match CCEP funding on a dollar-for-dollar basis with funds
from employers, local government, and other eligible contributors. Statutes further require that CCEP
funds must be used to supplement or extend the use of existing public or private funds for direct
services. 4
The CCEP board is responsible for deciding how to allocate the program’s appropriations among the
coalitions. During Fiscal Year 2017-18, 19 of 30 early learning coalitions and the Redlands Christian
Migrant Association (RCMA) participated in the CCEP Program. 5 Early learning coalitions that wish to
participate submit annual CCEP funding requests to the board. The requests are based on

1

Section 1002.94(1), F.S.

3

The School Readiness Program is funded from General Revenue, the Child Care and Development Block Grant Trust Fund, the Federal Grants Trust
Fund, the Welfare Transition Trust Fund, and local revenue sources.

2

4
5

The 1988 Child Care Partnership Act established a 50% matching grant for employers that provided a child care benefit to their employees. The
1996 law created the Child Care Executive Partnership as a more formal mechanism to establish and govern the CCEP Program; stimulate the
establishment of public-private partnerships; and include the participation of local governments, charitable foundations, and other sources of
funding.
Section 1002.94(1), F.S.

To gather information about how the program is being implemented at the local level, we interviewed administrators from these 20 program
participants. We also interviewed administrators from the 11 early learning coalitions that did not participate to discuss barriers to recruiting
contributors.

1

commitments coalitions have received from entities willing to contribute local matching funds as well
as the coalitions’ estimates of the number of qualified children these funds will serve. The Office of
Early Learning and board members review the coalitions’ funding requests. The Office of Early
Learning provides the board with recommendations that the board reviews when making allocation
decisions.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

What are the potential benefits of the CCEP Program?
The program was designed to
Exhibit 1
provide benefits to employers,
The CCEP Program Provides a Broad Range of Potential
families, and the state.
These
Benefits
benefits include improved employee
recruitment and retention for
Stakeholder Group
Potential Benefits
businesses, expanded child care for
Employers
• Helps improve employee recruitment and retention and
reduce absenteeism
working families, and increased
Families
• Increases the number of families receiving child care
numbers of children served through
and supports parents’ efforts to be employed
the School Readiness Program at a
The State of Florida
• Provides child care services to additional families
throughout Florida at a reduced cost to taxpayers
reduced cost to the state. In addition,
Source: OPPAGA analysis.
the money contributed to the
program helps the state meet its
share of federal match requirements for subsidized child care services. (See Exhibit 1.)

Employers potentially benefit from improved employee recruitment and retention and
reduced absenteeism. The program enables participating employers to broaden their range of
employee benefits, which has the potential to help with employee recruitment and retention, and
reduce employee absenteeism due to a lack of adequate child care.
Families benefit from the program because it expands the number of children eligible to receive
child care services with the intent that parents can work and become more self-sufficient. The
program provides coalitions with additional resources to reduce the number of families on School
Readiness waiting lists and/or allows coalitions to provide benefits to families whose income levels
are slightly above the School Readiness entry criteria (200% rather than 150% of the federal poverty
level). The Office of Early Learning estimates that during Fiscal Year 2017-18, the program funded
child care services for 15,020 children.

The state benefits from the program because it receives local matching funds to expand services
through the School Readiness Program. To use CCEP funds, coalitions must raise 50% in local
matching funds. Thus, from a state funding perspective, the program is able to provide child care
services to more families throughout Florida at a lower cost than if the Legislature appropriated the
same funds directly to the School Readiness Program, which does not require the same match.

The state also benefits because it can use local purchasing pool funds (funds donated for the benefit of
children in the community and not by an employer for the benefit of an employee) as matching funds
to help the state meet its share of federal match requirements for subsidized child care services.
Federal regulations allow the state to use donated funds as match for funding from the federal Child
2

Care and Development Fund as long as these funds are donated without any restriction that would
require their use for a specific individual, organization, facility, or institution.

How do early learning coalitions recruit contributors when raising
additional funding for child care services?

Coalitions reported using several methods to recruit Exhibit 2
contributions. These methods include attending meetings of local Coalitions Request Contributions
community groups, including business organizations such as From Various Sources
rotary clubs or chambers of commerce and local governmental
Commonly Mentioned Groups
entities to present on the program and try to solicit participants.
•
Rotary Clubs
In addition, they request meetings with managers of local
•
Chambers 0f Commerce
businesses, including child care providers, and apply to local
•
Local Governmental Entities
governmental or not-for-profit entities for grants or other
•
Local Businesses
funding. (See Exhibit 2.) Some also reported using social media,
•
Not-For-Profit Entities
flyers, newsletters, and/or their websites to promote the
Source: OPPAGA analysis.
program. Some administrators emphasized that part of the
recruitment role is to maintain relationships in the community
through means such as attending meetings of the entities that contribute and reporting regularly on
how they are using the funds contributed.

What are the sources of funding early learning coalitions raise for
child care services provided through CCEP?

Local governments provide the majority of funds contributed. Not-for-profit entities are also a
primary funding source. The majority of funds contributed are for purchasing pools, which make funds
available for children in the community rather than specific employees’ children. Further, local
governments fund services for the majority of children the program serves.

Coalitions raise significant funding from local government and not-for-profit entities. In Fiscal
Year 2017-18, CCEP contributors provided $14.0 million in funding to the CCEP Program. Local
governments and children’s services councils accounted for more than half (56%, $7.9 million) of all
contributions to the program, while not-for-profit entities contributed 21% ($2.9 million). Children’s
services councils and other local government entities used local tax revenues to match funds the
Legislature makes available for the program. 6,7 Not-for-profit entities that contributed matching funds
to the program included the United Way and charitable foundations.

6

7

The children’s services councils that contribute matching funds to the CCEP Program have the authority to levy taxes. Section 125.901, F.S.,
authorizes each county by ordinance to create an independent special district to provide funding for children’s services throughout the county.
The county governing body shall obtain voter approval to annually levy ad valorem taxes for this purpose. The governing board of the special
district shall be a council on children’s services (commonly referred to as a children’s services council). For Fiscal Year 2017-18, children’s
services councils in six counties contributed to the program: Broward, Hillsborough, Martin, Miami-Dade, Palm Beach, and St. Lucie.
Research we conducted in 2014 found that some local governments used license and permit fees as one of their funding sources as well as the
county portion of sales tax revenues that were collected locally, remitted to the state, and then redistributed back to counties.

3

The majority of CCEP contributions are
provided for the benefit of children in the
community. The entities that contribute
local matching funds for the CCEP Program
specify whether they intend that their
contributions be used for their own
employees’ benefit or placed into the
coalition’s purchasing pool for the benefit of
children in the community. The majority of
contributions are placed into purchasing
pools for community benefit rather than for
a specific employer’s employees.

As shown in Exhibit 3, community benefit
contributors provided the majority of CCEP
contributions (76%) during Fiscal Year
2017-18, while the remaining funds (24%)
were contributed by employers to provide
child care for the benefit of their own
employees.
Coalitions use community
benefit funds to provide child care services
for children who meet CCEP eligibility
requirements without regard to the parents’
employer. Contributors can specify that
their community benefit contributions be
used for children who live in a certain
geographic area within a coalition’s
boundaries and/or children who are of a
particular age group. However, neither
community benefit nor employee benefit
contributors can specify that children must
receive services at a particular child care
center; parents of children receiving child
care services through the CCEP Program
may choose any School Readiness provider.

Exhibit 3
The Majority of CCEP Contributions During Fiscal Year
2017-18 Were for Community Benefit (Purchasing
Pools)1, 2

Total:
$10,703,502
(76%)
Childcare
Providers
$56,666

Other Not-forProfit Entities
$2,759,282

Local
Government
$7,887,554

Total:
$3,326,292
(24%)

Other Private
Businesses
$114,815

Childcare
Providers
$3,037,165
Community Benefit
Contributors

1 Figures

Local
Government
$3,131

Other Not-forProfit Entities
$171,182

Employee Benefit
Contributors

are preliminary pending final invoices.
not-for-profit entities include organizations such as United Way, and
other private businesses are private businesses that are not child care
providers.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data provided by the Department of Education,
Office of Early Learning.
2 Other

4

As shown in Exhibit 4, during Fiscal Year 2017-18, local governments were responsible for funding
child care for 59% of the children served through the program. These contributions were primarily
made to purchasing pools, which funded child care services for families in the community, not
necessarily local government employees. In addition, child care providers funded services for 17% of
the children served. These contributions were primarily made for the children of the providers’
employees.

Exhibit 4
Local Governments Funded Child Care for the Majority of Children Served During Fiscal Year 2017-181, 2

1 Figures

are preliminary pending final invoices.
not-for-profit entities include organizations such as United Way, and other private businesses are private businesses that are not
child care providers.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data provided by the Department of Education, Office of Early Learning.
2 Other

What types of businesses participate in the program?
Overwhelmingly, child care providers account for the greatest percentage of program participants. In
Fiscal Year 2017-18, child care providers were the primary businesses participating in the program,
accounting for 93% of program contributors. (See Exhibit 5.) The three private businesses that

Exhibit 5
Child Care Providers Are the Vast Majority of CCEP Participants1, 2

CCEP Participants

Child Care Providers

Ot her Not-forProfit Entities,
4% (20)

Local
Government,
3% (18)
Ot her Private
Bus inesses,
1% (3)

93% (521)

1 Figures

are preliminary pending final invoices. Percentages do not add due to rounding.
not-for-profit entities include organizations such as United Way, and other private businesses are private businesses that are not
child care providers.
Source: OPPAGA analysis of data provided by the Department of Education, Office of Early Learning.
2 Other

5

participated included a hotel chain, a health care provider, and a cleaning service. It is likely easier and
less costly for child care providers to participate because, in most cases, the providers do not have to
pay out funds to provide child care as a CCEP employee benefit. When child care providers serve their
employees’ children in their own facilities, the coalitions pay the providers 50% of the School
Readiness rate for these services.

What barriers do coalitions encounter in attracting more private
businesses to participate in the program?

Coalitions cited several barriers to
Exhibit 6
attracting private businesses that are not
Coalitions Cited Several Barriers to Business Participation
in the child care industry to participate in
Commonly Cited Barriers
the program. (See Exhibit 6.) The most
frequently cited barrier was that some
•
Unequal employee benefits
•
Highlighting low salaries
employers are concerned that it would not
•
Employees do not qualify
•
Businesses lack funds
Source:
OPPAGA
analysis.
be equitable to provide a child care benefit
for some employees, whose incomes
qualify for the program, while not offering a similar benefit to higher paid employees. Some coalition
administrators also said that they have encountered companies that do not want it known that their
employees’ salaries are low enough to qualify for a public assistance program. Other companies that
coalitions have approached pay their employees more than the program’s income limit of 200% of the
federal poverty level. In addition, many companies do not have extra funds to spend on a child care
benefit for their employees.

What is the level of the program’s compliance with statutory
requirements?

In general, the program is being operated as outlined in statute. However, some of the statutory
requirements related to the CCEP board’s membership and fundraising responsibilities are not being
met. In addition, although Redland Christian Migrant Association (RCMA) participates in the program,
its participation is not specified in statute.
Statutes give the Office of Early Learning, the CCEP board, and coalitions several
responsibilities. The Office of Early Learning is charged with providing administrative support to the
program and is authorized to promulgate rules to implement and administer the program. 8
The CCEP board has several responsibilities outlined in statute. These duties include





8

holding quarterly meetings;

making recommendations concerning the implementation and coordination of the School
Readiness Program;
soliciting, accepting, receiving, investing, and expending funds from public or private sources;

Section 1002.94(4), F.S., authorizes the Office of Early Learning to adopt any rules necessary to implement and administer the statutory provisions
relating to CCEP.

6





contracting with public or private entities as necessary;

approving an annual budget; and

providing an annual report to the Governor, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and
the President of the Senate. 9

Statutes require coalitions to develop plans for use of CCEP funds and match state appropriations for
CCEP on a dollar-for-dollar basis as well as establish a community child care task force.

The Office of Early Learning is administering the program as specified in statute. The office
provides administrative support to the program through activities such as overseeing coalitions’
submission of CCEP plans and assisting the board by analyzing coalition requests for CCEP matching
funds. Although the office has not promulgated rules to govern the program, this statutory language
is permissive rather than required. 10 The office’s current administration of CCEP does not appear to
necessitate rule-making.

The CCEP board has fulfilled most of its
Exhibit 7
statutory responsibilities. (See Exhibit
The CCEP Board Has Met Most of Its Statutory
7.) Our review of board meeting minutes
Responsibilities
from March 2016 through March 2018
Statutory Requirements Met
found that the board generally met
quarterly and focused primarily on
• Making recommendations
•
Holding quarterly meetings
concerning the implementation
making decisions about how the
•
Approving an annual budget
and coordination of the School
program’s budget should be allocated
•
Providing an annual report
Readiness Program
among coalitions. 11
During these Source: OPPAGA analysis.
meetings, the board set priorities for CCEP
funding allocations and approved the distribution of funds to coalitions that applied. Toward the end
of the fiscal year, when some coalitions were not able to match all of their initial funding allocations,
the board redistributed those funds among coalitions that had entities willing to contribute additional
matching funds to the program. Our interviews with coalition administrators who attended board
meetings corroborated that funding allocation decisions were the board’s main focus. The board also
met its statutory responsibility to issue an annual report.

In addition, the Office of Early Learning has interpreted the board’s statutory responsibility to make
recommendations concerning the implementation and coordination of the School Readiness Program
to mean that the board is responsible for making recommendations regarding the implementation of
the CCEP Program, including the use of CCEP funds and how these funds may be most efficiently and
broadly utilized to benefit those that qualify for school readiness services. As such, the board has met
this responsibility through activities such as seeking coalition input into CCEP priorities, reviewing
coalition CCEP plans, and making decisions about how to distribute CCEP funding. (See Exhibit 9.)

9
10

11

Although the statutes authorize the board to contract with public or private entities, this provision includes the words “as necessary” and thus is
not a requirement.

The Office of Early Learning drafted a rule in 2013, but did not complete the rule promulgation process. The draft rule included definitions, items
the board would consider when making funding allocations to coalitions, how the program would address unexpended funds coalitions were
initially allocated and could not match, eligibility requirements for CCEP child care benefits, and coalitions’ responsibilities for program
administration.
One board meeting was delayed but took place two months later.

7

However, there were two areas in which the CCEP board was not meeting requirements specified in
statute. (See Exhibit 8.)




The CCEP board has not fulfilled its fundraising responsibilities. Our review of board meeting
minutes found that the board has not acted on its statutory responsibilities to solicit funds from
public or private sources. The current board discussed whether it should become involved in
soliciting funds, but has not assumed this role. Some stakeholders noted that coalitions tend to
raise CCEP funding commitments for more than the program’s annual appropriation, and thus
there may not be additional state funding available to match funding solicitations made by
board members. For example, in Fiscal Year 2016-17, coalitions requested $33 million to
match contributor commitments for CCEP compared to the state appropriation of $15 million.12
If the board were to solicit more businesses to participate, it would need to adjust the formula
it uses to distribute funds to the coalitions and might need to decide whether to give its
solicitations or the coalitions’ solicitations priority for state matching funds.
The CCEP board has fewer members than specified in statute. Statutes provide that the CCEP
board shall consist of a representative of the Executive Office of the Governor and nine
members of the corporate or child care community, appointed by the Governor. 13 Although the
board currently includes a representative of the Executive Office of the Governor, it has five
other members rather than nine.

Although some CCEP task forces rarely or never meet, some coalitions are fulfilling the
requirement to establish task forces in other ways. Coalitions have met their statutory
responsibilities to develop plans for their participation in CCEP and match state appropriations for the
program on a dollar-for-dollar basis.
Although
statutes
also
require Exhibit 8
participating coalitions to establish a Some Program Requirements Not Met
community child care task force for their
Statutory Requirements Not Met
purchasing pools, coalitions are carrying
• The CCEP board did not solicit
•
Although some CCEP task
out this responsibility in a variety of
funds from public or private
forces rarely or never meet,
14
sources
some coalitions are fulfilling the
ways.
According to coalition
requirement to establish task
administrators, some of the task forces
forces in other ways
rarely or never meet. Some coalitions use
• The board has fewer members
•
RCMA participates in CCEP but
their boards or a subset of their boards to
than required by statute
its participation is not
specifically addressed in statute
act as their CCEP task force rather than
Source: OPPAGA analysis.
appointing a separate task force.

The requirement for these task forces predates the creation of coalitions and duplicates the functions
performed by their boards of directors, which are responsible for overseeing other programs the
coalitions administer. Similar to the statutorily required membership of local task forces, coalition
boards of directors include members of the business community, providers, and the director or board
chair from the local children’s services council, if applicable. 15 Moreover, the statutes do not give the
CCEP task forces any specific responsibilities. Although the law that created the CCEP program (Ch.
96-175, Laws of Florida), made the task forces responsible for developing plans for use of child care
12 Approximately

$12.6 million of the unmatched commitments was for community benefit, primarily from the Broward and Palm Beach children’s
services councils.
13 Section 1002.94(2), F.S.
14
15

Section 1002.94(3)(d), F.S.

Local CCEP task forces are also required to include parents.
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purchasing pool funds, current statutes give this responsibility to the coalitions and do not specify the
purpose of the task forces.

Although RCMA is currently participating in the program, it is not specifically mentioned in the
statutes governing the program. The Redlands Christian Migrant Association is a not-for-profit
organization that provides child care and early education to children of migrant and seasonal
farmworkers throughout Florida. Similar to early learning coalitions, RCMA administers School
Readiness services and participates in the CCEP Program. Although RCMA’s participation enhances
the program’s ability to serve needy families, the statutes governing the program do not specifically
mention RCMA.

What options could the Legislature consider to improve the
program?

Those we interviewed provided feedback on several options to improve the CCEP Program. For
instance, 10 of the 19 participating coalition administrators noted that the CCEP board might not be a
necessary component of the program, as the Office of Early Learning could take primary responsibility
for distributing program funds to the coalitions, but others (9) believed that the board fulfills a
necessary purpose as an objective entity to oversee the program and distribute the funding. Coalitions’
perspectives on whether the board should help solicit business participation might relate to their size.
Five small- and medium-sized coalitions recommended that the board or another state level entity
should help recruit major statewide businesses willing to contribute to the program, while five added
that the program should develop marketing materials coalitions can use to recruit contributors.
Exhibit 9 provides a range of options that the Legislature could consider to improve the program and
address outdated statutory requirements, along with the potential advantages and disadvantages of
each option.

Exhibit 9
The Legislature Could Consider Several Statutory Revisions to Improve the CCEP Program
Potential Statutory Revision
Eliminate the CCEP Board
Eliminate the CCEP board and make
the Office of Early Learning (OEL)
responsible for allocating CCEP
funds to coalitions.

Advantages
 OEL is experienced in making funding allocations
because it has this responsibility for other
programs.
 OEL is already involved in the CCEP funding
allocation process by reviewing coalition requests
and making recommendations to the board.
 Might speed up the funding redistribution process
(when some coalitions are not able to spend all of
the funds they were allocated) because of not
needing to wait for a board meeting.
 Would address any difficulty in finding individuals
to serve on the board.
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Disadvantages
 Decisions about which coalitions will and will not
receive the full amount of CCEP funds they request
often involves setting priorities; the statutory
makeup of the CCEP board includes a broad range
of stakeholders to enable it to fully consider and
weigh a variety of factors when making funding
decisions.

Potential Statutory Revision

Advantages

Disadvantages

Modify the CCEP Board
Refocus the CCEP board’s
responsibilities to recruiting
statewide corporations to contribute
CCEP Program funds and
developing marketing materials, and
make OEL responsible for allocating
CCEP funds to coalitions.

 Would give the board a more focused and clear
purpose to recruit businesses to contribute to the
program.
 OEL is experienced in making funding allocations
because it has this responsibility for other
programs.
 OEL is already involved in the CCEP funding
allocation process by reviewing coalition requests
and making recommendations to the board.

Modify the CCEP board’s
responsibilities to remove the
requirement to solicit, accept,
receive, invest, and expend funds
from public or private sources.

 Would conform to current board practice.
 If the board were to act on its statutory
responsibility to solicit funds for CCEP, state
appropriations for matching funds might not reach
the level of both the board’s solicitations and the
coalitions’ solicitations.
 Might be easier to fill all vacant seats on the board
because board membership would be filled through
multiple sources.

Change how CCEP board members
are appointed. For example, in
addition to appointments made by
the Governor, add appointments to
be made by the Senate President
and the Speaker of the House of
Representatives. In addition, some
membership could be based on
state agency positions or their
appointees, such as the Executive
Director of the Department of
Economic Opportunity and/or the
Commissioner of Education.

 Could make recruiting board members more
difficult because it would be important for the
members to have the connections to recruit
participation from major corporations; if such
members cannot be recruited, the board may have
difficulty fulfilling its responsibilities.
 State appropriations for matching funds might not
reach the level of both the board’s funding
solicitations and the coalitions’ solicitations.
 Some stakeholders believe the board is necessary
for objective oversight of funding distribution.
 Removing this requirement might lessen the
board’s flexibility to enter into an agreement should
a large statewide business approach the board with
an opportunity for business participation in CCEP.

 It is unclear as to why the board currently does not
have the statutorily required number of members.
If the reason is a lack of individuals interested or
willing to serve on the board, changing who
appoints members will not address this issue.

Change the Purpose of the Program
Modify statutes to eliminate the
employee benefit portion of the
program and make raising matching
funds for the benefit of eligible
children in the community the
primary purpose of the program

 Would refocus the program on the area in which it
has been successful—raising funds from local
government and charitable entities for the benefit of
children in the community.
 Would make additional program contributions
eligible to meet federal Child Care and Development
Fund match requirements (currently, CCEP
contributions for employee benefits are not eligible
for federal match).

 Might result in fewer private businesses
contributing to the program if their own employees
do not receive a benefit.
 Could result in dis-enrollment of children currently
receiving services through the employee benefit
portion of the program if coalitions cannot raise
sufficient community benefit match to serve them.

 Would reduce some of the effort involved in making
annual CCEP funding decisions.
 Would make the funding allocation process more
transparent.
 The word “Executive” in the program’s name does
not clearly convey the purpose of the program.
 This option would eliminate a statutory provision
that predates the creation of coalitions whose
membership includes a broad range of
stakeholders intended for the task forces and, thus,
can serve in this role.

 The program would have less flexibility to change
funding priorities if statewide needs shift.
 Would reduce the role of the board and the broad
stakeholder input into funding allocation decisions.
 No apparent disadvantages.

Make Other Program Changes
Modify statutes to include CCEP
funding priorities and direct OEL to
establish a funding formula in rule.
Change the name of the program to
focus on its main purpose.
Eliminate the requirement for local
task forces.
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 No apparent disadvantages.

Potential Statutory Revision
Revise statutes to include RCMA
along with the coalitions in the
groups eligible to administer CCEP
funds.

Advantages
 RCMA is already participating in the program, but
there is no specific statutory authorization for its
participation. Providing statutory authorization
would codify the current condition.
 Not allowing RCMA to participate would result in
dis-enrollment of children currently receiving
services.

Source: OPPAGA analysis.
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Disadvantages
 No apparent disadvantages to the program.

AELC
Sorted by Bill Number
HB 69
Child Care Facilities
Antone
Child Care Facilities: Requires that vehicles used by child care facilities & large family child care homes to transport children be equipped with
reliable alarm system that prompts driver to inspect vehicle for children before exiting; requires DCF to adopt by rule minimum safety
standards & maintain list of approved alarm manufacturers & alarm systems. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee
12/4/2018
HOUSE Filed
1/3/2019
HOUSE Referred to Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee; Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee; Health & Human Services
Committee
1/3/2019
HOUSE Now in Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee
Identical
SB 94
Child Care Facilities (Stewart)
SB 90

Early Childhood Courts
Book
Early Childhood Courts; Authorizing circuit courts to create early childhood court programs; providing requirements and guidelines for the
Office of the State Courts Administrator when hiring community coordinators and a statewide training specialist; authorizing the office to
provide funding to circuit courts that choose to establish a coordination system in lieu of creating a community coordinator position, etc.
Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Appropriations
3/1/2019
SENATE On Committee agenda - Appropriations Subcommittee on Criminal and Civil Justice, 03/06/19, 2:00 pm, 37 S
3/6/2019
SENATE Subcommittee Recommendation: Favorable by Appropriations Subcommittee on Criminal and Civil Justice; 8 Yeas, 0 Nays
3/7/2019
SENATE Now in Appropriations
Similar
HB 139
Early Childhood Courts (Payne)

SB 94

Child Care Facilities
Stewart
Child Care Facilities; Citing this act as the "Child Safety Alarm Act"; requiring that, by a specified date, vehicles used by child care facilities
and large family child care homes to transport children be equipped with a reliable alarm system that prompts the driver to inspect the vehicle
for children before exiting the vehicle; requiring the Department of Children and Families to adopt by rule minimum safety standards and to
maintain a list of approved alarm manufacturers and alarm systems, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Rules
2/28/2019
SENATE On Committee agenda - Infrastructure and Security, 03/05/19, 2:30 pm, 110 S
3/5/2019
SENATE Favorable by Infrastructure and Security; 7 Yeas, 0 Nays
3/6/2019
HOUSE Now in Rules
Identical
HB 69
Child Care Facilities (Antone)

SB 120

Early Childhood Music Education Incentive Pilot Program
Perry
Early Childhood Music Education Incentive Pilot Program; Extending the scheduled expiration of the pilot program, etc. Effective Date:
7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Appropriations Subcommittee on Education
1/28/2019
SENATE On Committee agenda - Education, 02/05/19, 10:00 am, 412 K
2/5/2019
SENATE Favorable by Education; 8 Yeas, 0 Nays
2/5/2019
SENATE Now in Appropriations Subcommittee on Education
Identical
HB 1357
Early Childhood Music Education Incentive Pilot Program (Plakon)

HB 197

Concealed Weapons and Firearms
Polo
Concealed Weapons and Firearms: Prohibits concealed weapon or firearm licensee from openly carrying handgun or carrying concealed
weapon or firearm into any child care facility. Effective Date: July 1, 2019

Current Committee of Reference: Criminal Justice Subcommittee
1/9/2019
HOUSE Filed
1/16/2019
HOUSE Referred to Criminal Justice Subcommittee; Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee; Judiciary Committee
1/16/2019
HOUSE Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee
Identical
SB 752
Concealed Weapons and Firearms (Berman)
HB 871

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
Ausley
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program: Requires principals of certain public elementary schools to take specified actions to facilitate
communication & collaboration with private prekindergarten providers; provides requirements for such school principals; requires OEL & early
learning coalitions to provide specified support. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
2/15/2019
HOUSE Filed
2/28/2019
HOUSE Referred to PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee; PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee; Education Committee
2/28/2019
HOUSE Now in PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
Identical
SB 970
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (Baxley)

SB 970

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
Baxley
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program; Requiring the principals of certain public elementary schools to take specified actions to
facilitate communication and collaboration with private prekindergarten providers; requiring the Office of Early Learning and early learning
coalitions to provide specified support to such school principals, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Education
2/12/2019
SENATE Filed
2/19/2019
SENATE Referred to Education; Appropriations Subcommittee on Education; Appropriations
Identical
HB 871
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (Ausley)

HB 1027

Office of Early Learning
Aloupis
Office of Early Learning: Requires OEL to develop certain training & course standards for school readiness program providers; provides
requirements for such training & standards; requires such training & standards to be integrated into certain preservice and inservice training
requirements. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
2/22/2019
HOUSE Filed
3/4/2019
HOUSE Referred to PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee; PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee; Education Committee
3/4/2019
HOUSE Now in PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
Identical
SB 1456
Office of Early Learning (Perry)

SB 1138

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education
Simmons
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education; Providing that a parent may enroll his or her child in a family engagement computer adaptive
prekindergarten program; authorizing an early learning coalition to administer the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program to certain
students; providing that a family engagement computer adaptive prekindergarten program must include a specified number of academic
hours and a specified individualized curriculum, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Education
2/18/2019
SENATE Filed
2/28/2019
SENATE Referred to Education; Appropriations Subcommittee on Education; Appropriations

SB 1144

Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents
Montford
Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents; Providing an early education or child care subsidy for certain foster parents, etc. Effective Date:
7/1/2019

Current Committee of Reference: Children, Families, and Elder Affairs
2/18/2019
SENATE Filed
2/28/2019
SENATE Referred to Children, Families, and Elder Affairs; Appropriations Subcommittee on Health and Human Services; Appropriations
Similar
HB 1367
Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents (Diamond)
HB 1193

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
Grall
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program: Revises provisions of Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program relating to provider
accountability, student screening and assessments, & DOE and Office of Early Learning duties & responsibilities. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
3/1/2019
HOUSE Filed
3/8/2019
HOUSE Referred to PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee; PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee; Education Committee
3/8/2019
HOUSE Now in PreK-12 Innovation Subcommittee
Identical
SB 1594
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (Harrell)

HB 1367

Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents
Diamond
Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents: Provides that early education or child care subsidy be paid to certain caregivers. Effective Date: July
1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee
3/4/2019
HOUSE Filed
3/8/2019
HOUSE Referred to Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee; Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee; Health & Human Services
Committee
3/8/2019
HOUSE Now in Children, Families & Seniors Subcommittee
Similar
SB 1144
Child Care Subsidies for Foster Parents (Montford)

SB 1456

Office of Early Learning
Perry
Office of Early Learning; Requiring certain preservice and inservice training requirements established by the Office of Early Learning to
include specified professional development pathways; requiring the office to develop certain training and course standards for school
readiness program providers; requiring the office to identify certain formal and informal career pathways, stackable credentials, and
certifications that meet specified criteria for such providers, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Education
2/27/2019
SENATE Filed
3/4/2019
SENATE Referred to Education; Appropriations Subcommittee on Education; Appropriations
Identical
HB 1027
Office of Early Learning (Aloupis)

SB 1594

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
Harrell
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program; Requiring a parent of a student enrolled in the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
to submit his or her student for a specified screening; requiring the Office of Early Learning to make available professional development and
training courses that meet certain criteria; requiring each private prekindergarten provider and public school participating in the program to
participate in a program assessment, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2019
Current Committee of Reference: Education
3/1/2019
SENATE Filed
3/8/2019
SENATE Referred to Education; Appropriations Subcommittee on Education; Appropriations
Identical
HB 1193
Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (Grall)

HB 4287

Help Me Grow Florida
Rodriguez (Ant)
Help Me Grow Florida: Provides an appropriation for the Help Me Grow Florida. Effective Date: July 1, 2019

Current Committee of Reference: PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee
2/15/2019
HOUSE Filed
2/22/2019
HOUSE Referred to PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee; Appropriations Committee
2/22/2019
HOUSE Now in PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee
HB 4771

The Florida Center for Early Childhood - Early Childhood Court
Good
The Florida Center for Early Childhood - Early Childhood Court: Provides an appropriation for The Florida Center for Early Childhood - Early
Childhood Court. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee
2/24/2019
HOUSE Referred to Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee; Appropriations Committee
2/24/2019
HOUSE Now in Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee
3/7/2019
HOUSE On Committee agenda - Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee, 03/11/19, 11:00 am, 404 H

HB 4979

University of North Florida - Florida Rural Early Learning Exchange Network
Alexander
University of North Florida - Florida Rural Early Learning Exchange Network: Provides an appropriation for the University of North Florida Florida Rural Early Learning Exchange Network. Effective Date: July 1, 2019
Current Committee of Reference: Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
2/20/2019
HOUSE Filed
2/24/2019
HOUSE Referred to Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee, Appropriations Committee
2/24/2019
HOUSE Now in Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
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